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INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
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Name of Registrant as
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Province, country or other
jurisdiction or incorporation
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Address of principal office &
Postal Code

Registrant’s Telephone No.
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Date, time, and mode of
conduct of meeting of security holder

Approximate date on which the
Information Statement is first to
be sent or given to security holders

In case of Proxy Solicitations
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Address and Telephone Number

Securities registered pursuant

to Section 4 and 8 of RSA
(information on number of shares
and amount is applicable only to
corporate registrant)

Are any or all of registrant’s
Securities listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange

() Preliminary Information Statement
( x ) Definitive Information Statement

PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

Manila, Philippines

15552

000-663-983-000

PSBank Center, 777 Paseo de Roxas
corner Sedefio Sts., Makati City
1226

(632) 8885- 8208

April 24, 2025 at 3:00 PM

Virtual meeting via secure online meeting
platform (CISCO WEBEX)

April 2, 2025

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Common Shares

426,859,416 outstanding
as of December 31, 2024

Yes



PSBank

PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK
Metrobank Group

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual meeting of stockholders of the Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank) will
be held on April 24, 2025, Thursday, at 3:00 P.M. The meeting will be conducted virtually via secure online
meeting platform (CISCO WEBEX) to pass upon the following matters:

Call to Order

Certification of Notice and Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 25, 2024
Presentation of the President’'s Report and the PSBank’s 2024 Audited Financial Statements
Confirmation of All Acts of the Board of Directors, Management and All Committees

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors

Appointment of the External Auditor

Other Matters

Adjournment

COeNoOoORAWN =

Stockholders of record as of February 28, 2025 shall be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

-/Leah M. Zamora
Corporate Secretary

Stockholders who intend to participate or be represented in the virtual meeting shall first submit the following
via email to psbasm@psbank.com.ph not later than April 7, 2025, subject to validation procedures, to gain
access to the secure online meeting link:

o Letter of Intent (LOI) to participate by remote communication and vote in absentia
e Duly accomplished proxy instrument for a representative to the virtual meeting, as applicable
o Copy of proof of identity, ownership and other certification/information for validation purposes

Once validated, a confirmation along with access credentials to the secure online meeting link shall be sent
to the stockholder's email as provided. For reference and other details, please go to
https://www.psbank.com.ph/annual-stockholders-meeting-2025/.

The Information Statement (IS) containing the attendance/voting (via remote communication) and
nomination/election procedures, along with the Notice and Agenda, Proxy and other ASM-related information
can be accessed through any of the following options:

1. Go to the PSBank website via this ASM link:
https://www.psbank.com.ph/annual-stockholders-meeting-2025/

2. Go to the PSE EDGE portal via https://edge.pse.com.ph

3. Request for a copy by sending an email to psbasm@psbank.com.ph

Philippine Savings Bank Head Office: 777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio St., 1226 Makati City

The meeting proceedings shall be recorded in audio and video format and shall be made available in a secured manner
to stockholders upon request by sending an email to psbasm@psbank.com.ph. For ASM-related matters, please go to
https://www.psbank.com.ph/annual-stockholders-meeting-2025/. For ASM-related queries, please send an email to
psbasm@psbank.com.ph or contact the Office of the Corporate Secretary at 8885-8208 local 8180/8535. For account
updating/validation concerns, please get in touch with PSBank’s Stock Transfer Agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group,
through 8857-5688; 8857-5694,; 8857-5695 or via email to stocktransfer@metrobank.com.ph.
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EXPLANATION AND RATIONALE
OF AGENDA ITEMS

Call to Order
The Chairman will welcome stockholders and guests tmdldy begin the PSBank’s 2025 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

Certification on Notice and Quorum

The Corporate Secretary will certify that the Notice of Meeting has been duly sent atateriraia appropriate
disclosures and publications pursuant to the regulations of the Securities drahdex Commission (SEC) for the
purpose of informing the stockholders of record. The Corp&ateetary will further announce whether or not a
quorum is present constituting two-thirds of the outstanding capital. stock

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 25, 2024

The stockholders will be requested to approve the minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on April 25,
2024, which contain, among others, the (a) Annual Report to Stoekhp(h) Confirmation of all acts of the Board
of Directors, Management and all Committees, (c) Election of the members obénd &f Directors and (d)
Appointment of the External Auditor.

Resolution to be Adopted Stockholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution approving timeites of the
April 25, 2024Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Presentation of the President’s Report and the PSBank’s Audited Financial Statements (AFS) as of December
31, 2024

The President will reder his Annual Report on the Bank’s activities, business and financial performance in 2024. It
includes the summary of the AFS which is incorporated in the Definitive Inform&taiement for dissemination to
stockholders of record within prescribed period and in a manner pursudhe tSEC rules. Due to logistical
limitations of the meeting conducted virtually, voting and open forum/discussiilb not be possible during the
virtual meeting. However, a stockholder, once validated/registered, will be giv@pariumity to raise any relevant
questions or express an appropriate comment limited to the agenda items byg sandiemail to
psbasm@psbank.com.ph not later than April 16, 2025 in order totée and addressed accordingly.

Resolution to be Adopted Stockholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution noting and apgrowia
President’s Annual Report for 2024 and the Bank’s Audited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2024.

Confirmation of all Acts of the Board of Directors, Management and All Committees in @24

The stockholders will be requested to confirm all acts, transactions and resolutitdmes Bbard of Directors,
including transactions with the Bank’s DOSRI and other related parties, Management and all Committees during the
year 2024.

Resolution to be Adopted Stockholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution confirming the adtedBoard of
Directors and all Committees during the year 2024.

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors

The Corporate Governance Committee will present nominees for election as memberBo#ith of Directors,
including independent directors. This is in compliance with regulatory requitenaérthe Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas and the Securities and Exchange Commission on the nomination of gjreetdr upon review and
evaluation by the Corporate Governance Committee of the qualifications of all personatadrtirthe Board.

Resolution to be Adopted Stockholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution for the electioneofgmbers of
the Board of Directors, including independent directors, for 2025-2026

Appointment of the External Auditor
The stockholders will be requested to ratify the appointment of the selected Extedimr for the year 2025 as
endorsed by the Audit Committee and with the approval of the Board of Directors.

Resolution to be Adopted Stockholders will vote for the adoption of a resolution for the appoirtoesaid
auditing firm as independent external auditor of the Bank for 2025.

Other Matters

Other relevant matters or issues may be taken up during the meeting. Anytrgleagtions or comments received
by the Office of the Corporate Secretary via email within the prescribed period gikegidiered stockholders shall
be acknowledged, noted and addressed accordingly.
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Adjournment
Upon determination that there are no other matters to be considered, the Cletiattadeclare the meeting
adjourned. The meeting proceedings shall be recorded in audio and oriched fo be safekept by the Office of the

Corporate Secretary and shall be made available in a secured manner to stockpolleexjuest by sending an
email to_psbasm@psbank.com.ph.
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PROXY

I, do hereby nominate, constitute and appoint as my {
representative at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank) tb doe
April 24, 2025, with authority to participate in the deliberations thereof, and to vote in my bdhalé
shares standing in my name for the election of directors and/or approval of transactions incthde
Agenda or any related matter or any adjournment thereof.

In witness whereof, | have signed on (date) at (place).

Name of Stockholder

Signature

This form is being provided for your convenience. Stockholders who wish to do so may adopt th
proxy form.

In case you cannot attend the virtual meeting and you wish to be represented, you may designate your
authorized representative by submitting a proxy instrument on or before April 7, 2025 via email to
psbasm@pshank.com.ph. If so preferred or if no name is indicated, the Chairman of the Meeting shall act as
the proxy.

THIS PROXY FORM NEED NOT BE NOTARIZED.

roxy and
hel

;]
2d in

e above
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PART I. INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Security Holders

Date . April 24, 2025, Thursday
Time : 3:00 PM
Platform . Virtual meeting via secure online meeting platform (CISCO R¥B

Mailing address of the principal office:
PSBank Center
777 Paseo de Roxas cor. Sedefio St., Makati City 1226

Approximate date on which copies of the Information Statement are first tedretgisecurity holders:
April 2, 2025

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There is no matter or proposed action in the Agenda which mayigévtorthe exercise by the security holders
of their right of appraisal. Generally, however, the right of appraisal stheulkercised in instances and in
accordance with the procedures mentioned in the Sec. 80-82 and othesbdgsections of the Revised
Corporation Code of the Philippines.

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall haveagaiedt the proposed corporate
action, by making a written demand on the corporation for the @atyof the fair value of shares held within
thirty (30) days from the date on which the vote was taken: Prgvidatifailure to make the demand within
such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the pcbporporate action is implemented, the
corporation shall pay the stockholder, upon surrender of theicasifor certificates of stock representing the
stockholder’s shares, the fair value thereof as of the day before the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation
or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If, within sixty (60) days from the approval of the corporate actignthe stockholders, the withdrawing
stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value stidhes, it shall be determined and appraised
by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be namée btjotkholder, another by the corporation,
and the third by the two (2) thus chosen. The findinghefmajority of the appraisers shall be final, and their
award shall be paid by the corporation within thirty (30) days a&fteh award is made: Provided, That no
payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the corpoaatiomréstricted retained earnings in
its books to cover such payment: Provided, further, that upomeratyby the corporation of the agreed or
awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer the shares to theatiamo

Iltem 3. Interests of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to bActed Upon
Other than election to office, there is no matter to be acted upon in whictliranior, executive officer, or
nominee for election as director (or any associates of the foregisniglyolved or has a direct, indirect or

substantial interest. There is also no incumbent director who has infthen&dnk in writing that he intends to
oppose any action to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

a) No. of Shares outstanding as of February 28, 2025 : 426,859¢thfMon Shares
No. of votes to which each share is entitled . one (1) vote per share



b) Record date to determine stockholders entitled to
Notice and to vote at the regular meeting

February 28, 2025

c) Election of Directors:

Majority vote is required for the election of directors. Security holdea save the right to cumulative voting.
Cumulative voting is allowed provided that the total votes cast by a stockhbédenat exceed the number of
shares registered in the name of that security holder in the botiles B&nk as of the record date multiplied by
the whole number of directors to be elected. There is no condition pretcedbmet exercise of the right to
cumulative voting.

d) Arthur V. Ty is the person authorized to vote the MBTC shares in PSBank

e) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of February 28, 2025, the following stockholder owns more thanf%P& @ommon voting securities:

Name, address of Record Name of Beneficial No. of
Title of Class | Owner and relationship with | Owner and relationship | Citizenship | gnares Held | Pereent
. with Record Owner
issuer
Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Common Company Arthur V. T
Stock GT Tower International, 6813 Ayala rthur V. Ty, - o
Ave., corner H.V. Dela Costa St., Chairman of Metrobank Filipino 377,279,068 | 88.38%
Brgy. Bel-Air, 1227, Makati City
(Parent Company of PSBank)
Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon
Common 310 Country Club Drive, Ayala _ o
Stock Alabang Village, Alabang, Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leorf  Filipino 26,982,249 6.32%
Muntinlupa City

There is no person who holds more than 5% of the Bank’s securities lodged with PCD Nominee Corporation.
(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management

As of February 28, 2025, the following directors and management*gesup held a total of 962 common
voting securities, broken down as follows:

Title of Class Name of Stockholder Position Citizenship Beneficial Ownership % of .
No. of Shares Nature Ownership

Common stock Vicente R. Cuna, Jr. Chairman Filipino 111 Direct 0.000026%
Common stock Arthur V. Ty* Vice Chairman Filipino 129 Direct 0.000030%
Common stock Jose Vicente L. Alde Director/President Filipino 111 Direct 0.000026%
Common stock Eduardo A. Sahagun Independent Director | Filipino 111 Direct 0.000026%
Common stock Rufino Luis T. Manotok Independent Director | Filipino 100 Direct 0.000023%
Common stock Ronald Luis S. Goseco Independent Director | Filipino 100 Direct 0.000023%
Common stock Cecilia C. Borromeo Independent Director | Filipino 100 Direct 0.000023%
Common stock Ferlou |. Evangelista Director Filipino 100 Direct 0.000023%
Common stock Frances Gail E. Male Director Filipino 100 Direct 0.000023%
Aggregate Shareholdings of Directors and Management*as a Group 962 0.000225%

* Includes 18 shares lodged with PCD Nominee Corp.
** Except for the above-mentioned list which included Mr. Jose Vicente L. Alde as Director and President, there are no other officers holding PSBank shares.

3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more
There is no person who holds more than 5% of the Bank’s securities under a voting trust or similar agreement.
(4) Changes in Control

There is no arrangement that may result in a change in control of thearggig here is no change in control
that has occurred since the beginning of the last fiscal year.



Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

a. Directors

The following are the Directors for 20242025:

Business Experience and Present and

Relatives up to &'

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Past Directorship with Other -
. . Civil degree
Companies for the last five (5) years
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr. 63 | Filipino Present Involvements None
Chairman e Chairman, since 2023 / Director since 2013, Philippin
Savings Bank*
e Director, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company* sing
2014
e Senior Executive Vice President/Head, Enterprise
Services Sector Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Corporation* since 2018
Past Experiences/ Positions Held
¢ Vice Chairman, Philippine Savings Bank* from 2018
2023
e Chairman, ORIX Metro Leasing & Finance Corporatid
from 2016to 2022
e Chairman, ORIX Auto Leasing Philippines Corporatig
from 2016to 2022
Chairman, ORIX Rental Corporation from 2016 to 20
e Chairman, OMLF International Trading Development
Corp. from 2016 to 2022
e Chairman, OMLF Insurance Agency, Inc. fr@d16to
2022
President, Philippine Savings Bank* from 2013 to 201
Senior Executive Vice President/Head, Metrobank*
Institutional Banking Sector from 2012 to 2013
e Executive Vice President/Head, Metrobank*
Corporate Banking Group from 2006 to 2012
e Adviser, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company* fron
2007 to 2009
Director, FMIC from 2011 to 2015
e Chairman, Metro Remittance Center, Inc. (California
from 2010 to 2013
e Vice Chairman, Metro Remittance Center Inc. (U.S.A
from 2010 to 2013
e Chairman, Metro Remittance Inc. (Canada) from 201
to 2013
¢ Vice Chairman, MB Remittance Center Ltd. (Hawaii)
from 2010 to 2013
Vice Chairman, PSBank* from 2009 to 2011
e Director, Asia Pacific Top Mgt., Int’l., Resources Corp.
from 2008 to 2013
Adviser, FMIIC-HK from 2006 to 2008
e Director, SMBC Metro Investment Corp. from 2006 tg
2009
¢ Vice - President, Citibank Manila from 1995 to 2006
Academic Qualifications
e Pursued further studies (MBA) at the Ateneo de Man
Graduate School of Business
e AB Economics, De La Salle University Manila
Arthur V. Ty 58 | Filipino Present Involvements None

Vice Chairman

e Vice Chairman, Philippine Savings Bank* since 2001
e Chairman, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company* sing
2012

e Chairman/President since 2024 / Director since 1997

10




Name/ Position

D

Ag

Citizenship

Business Experience and Present and
Past Directorship with Other
Companies for the last five (5) years

Relatives up to &'
Civil degree

Horizon Royale Holdings, Inc.

Chairman since 2019 / Trustee since 2006, Metrobal
Foundation, Inc.

Chairman since 2008 / Director since 2007, Grand T
Capital Holdings, Inc.

Director, GT Capital Holdings*, Inc. since 2007
Chairman / President, Nove Ferum Holdings, Inc. sin
2009

Chairman / President, Jam Holdings Inc. since 2022
Chairman, Metropolitan Bank (China) Ltd. since 200
Chairman / Director, Ferum Cee Inc. since 2011
Chairman since 2019 / Trustee since 2009, GT
Foundation Inc.

Chairman / President, Milgen Holdings Inc. since 20]
Chairman / President, Philippine Securities Corporati
since 2024

Trustee, Metrobanker Foundation Inc. since 2007
Trustee, Norberto & Tytana Ty Foundation Inc. since
1994

Adviser, Philippine AXA Life Insurance Corporation
since 2023

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

President, Philippine Savings Bank* from 2000 to 20
President, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company* fron|
2006 to 2012

Chairman from 2006 to 2023 / Director from 2006 to
2024, Great Mark Resources Corporation

Vice Chairman, Metrobank Foundation, Inc. since 20
to 2018

Chairman, Manila Medical Services, Inc. from 2017 t|
2019

Vice Chairman / Director, First Metro Investment
Corporation since 2012 to 2020

Chairman, Global Treasure Holdings Inc. since 2006
2019

Chairman, GT Capital Holdings Inc.* from 2016 to
2022

Vice Chairman from 2017 to 2023 / Director from 201
to 2023, Philippine AXA Life Insurance

President, Philippine Securities Corp. from 2003 to
2023

Senior Adviser, First Metro Investment Corporation
from 2020 to 2024

Director, Federal Land, Inc. from 2006 to 2024
President/Director, Horizon Royale Holdings Inc. fror
1997 to 2024

Academic Qualifications

MBA, Columbia University
BS Economics, University of California (Los Angeles

Jose Vicente L. Alde
Director/President

58

Filipino

Present Involvements

President since April 2018Director since 2016,
Philippine Savings Bank*

Chairman / Director, Sumisho Motor Finance
Corporation since 2016

Director, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Corporation*
since 2022

Director, First Metro Insurance and Reinsurance
Brokers, Inc. (FMIRBI) since 2024

Trustee, Chamber of Thrift Banks since 2020

None

11




Business Experience and Present and

Relatives up to &'

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Past Directorship with Other L
. i Civil degree
Companies for the last five (5) years

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

e Trustee/ Truste@-Charge from 2020 to 2021,
ELECOM Member from 2018 to 2021, Chamber of
Thrift Banks

e Executive Vice President from July 2010-April 20118
Senior Vice President from 2007June 2010,
Philippine Savings Bank*

e Director, Metrobank Card Corporation from 2015 to
2016

e Vice President from 1999 to 200Assistant Vice
President from 1995 to 1998BN AMRO BANK

Academic Qualifications

e Master in Business Management, Asian Institute of
Management

e Bachelor of Computer Science, University of the
Philippines, Diliman, Quezon City

Eduardo A. Sahagun 67 | Filipino Present Involvements None

Independent Director

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

Independent Director, Philippine Savings Bank* since
2017

Chairman, Edcommerce Corporation since 2017
President & CEO since 201 Director since 2010
Union Galvasteel Corporation since 2017

President & CEO, Phinma Solar Energy Corporation
since 2017

President & CEO, Philcement Corporation since 201]
President & CEO, Union Insulated Panel Corporation
since 2022

President & CEO, Philcement Mindanao Corporation
since 2024

Member, Board of Trustees, Phinma Foundation Inc.
since 2019

Director, Phinma Property Holdings Corporation sinct
2016

Director, T-O Insurance Brokers, Inc. since 2019
Director, Phinma Corporation* since 2021

Director, Song Lam Cement Joint Stock Company sir
2021

Director, Cagayan De Oro College, Inc. since 2021
Director, First Batangas Hotel Corporation since 202

Academic Qualifications

President from 2013 to 201 Director from 2010 to
2017, Holcim Philippines, Inc.

Chief Executive Officer, Holcim Philippines Inc. from
2013 to 2016

Senior Vice PresidentSales, Marketing, Technical
Services & Commercial, Holcim Philippines, Inc. from
2007 - 2012

Chief Financial Officer, Holcim Philippines, Inc. from
2002 - 2007

Chairman, Holcim Mining and Development
Corporation from 2013 to 2017

Director, Holcim Philippines Manufacturing
Corporation from 2013 to 2017

Member, Board of Trustees, Cement Manufacturers
Association of the Philippines from 2013 to 2016
Member, Board of Trustees, Philippine Business for t
Environment, Inc. from 2014 to 2016

Masters in Management Science, Arthur D. Little

12




Name/ Position

D

Ag

Citizenship

Business Experience and Present and
Past Directorship with Other
Companies for the last five (5) years

Relatives up to &'
Civil degree

Management Education Institute, (now Hult
International Business School) Boston, USA
Masters in Business Administration, Ateneo Graduatg
School of Business

BS Commerce, Major in Accounting, Holy Angel
University

Senior Management Program, Senior Leadership
Program, Managing Change Program, IMD, Switzerlg

Rufino Luis T. Manotok
Independent Director

74

Filipino

Present Involvements

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

Independent Director, Philippine Savings Bank* since
2023

Independent Director, Manila Medical Services, Inc.
since 2019

Independent Director, Cebu Landmasters, Inc. since
2017

Chairman, Manarsa Holdings Corporation since 2016
Director, Manotok Bros., Inc. since 1997

Academic Qualifications

Independent Director, First Metro Investment
Corporation from 2014 to 2023

Chairman, Ayala Automotive Holdings Corporation
from 2009 to 2012

Chairman, Ayala Aviation Corporation from 1998 to
2008

Chairman and President, Honda Cars Makati, Inc. fro
1994 to 2012

Chairman and President, Isuzu Automotive Dealersh
from 1996 to 2012

Director, Family Savings Bank from 2002 to 2012
Chief Finance Officer / Head of Strategic Planning,
Ayala Corporation from 1987 to 2010

AB Economics, Ateneo De Manila University
Master of Business Management, Asian Institute of
Management

Advanced Management Program, Harvard Business
School

None

Ronald Luis S. Goseco, Ji
Independent Director

69

Filipino

Present Involvements

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

Independent Director, Philippine Savings Bank* since
2023

Director, Automated Fare Payment Inc. since 2022
Chairman, Guagua National Colleges since 2019
President, South Luzon Thermal Energy, Inc. since 2
President, ETM Philippines Holdings Inc. since 2022
Trustee, Finex Research and Development Foundati
Inc. since 2023

Treasurer, Finex Academy since 2018

Independent Director, Philippine Dealing System
Holdings from 2019 to 2020

Director, Northwind Power Devt. Corporation, Ace
Mariveles GP Corporation, Ace Dinginin GP
Corporation and Kauswagan Power Holdings Inc. fro
2013 to 2016

Director, Northern Luzon Renewable Energy from 20
to 2015

COO, Iconic Dealership, Inc. from 2016 to 2018

Treasurer, Philnewriver Corporation and Quadriver fr

None

13




Business Experience and Present and

Relatives up to &'

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Past Directorship with Other Civil degree
Companies for the last five (5) years
2011 to 2016
e Treasurer, Monte Solar from 2015 to 2016
e Treasurer, llocos Wind Energy Corporation from 201
to 2016
e Treasurer, Viage Corporation from 2012 to 2016
e CFO, AC Infra from 2014 to 2016
e CFO, AC Energy Holdings, Inc, from 2011 to 2016
e CFO, South Luzon Thermal Energy Corporation from
2011 to 2012
e Division Head, Globe Telecom from 2003 to 2011
Past experiences/ Positions held in Government Service
e Military Pilot, Armed Forces of the Philippines from
1977 to 1985
Academic Qualifications
e Bachelor of Science, Philippine Military Academy
e Masters in Business Administration, Major in
International Finance, University of Southern Califorr
e Fellow in Finance, Netherlands Institute of Managen
— MAASTRICT
Ferlou I. Evangelista 64 Filipino Present Involvements
Director e Director, Philippine Savings Bank* since 2024
e Consultant/Lecturer, Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Company* since024
Past Experiences/ Positions Held
e  Senior Vice President / Head, Commercial Banking
Group, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company* from
2017 to 2023
e First Vice President, Metro Manila Center Head undg
Commercial Banking Group, Metropolitan Bank and
Trust Company* from 2014 to 2017
e Vice President, Division Head under Metro Manila
Center - Commercial Banking Group, Metropolitan
Bank and Trust Company* from 2011 to 2014
e Assistant Vice President, Senior Assistant Vice Pres
and Vice PresidenSecurity Bank Corporationfrom
2000 to 2011
Academic Qualifications
e  Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
e MBA (Undergraduate)Ateneo de Manila University
e Bachelor of Science in Commerce Major in Accounti
San Beda University
Frances Gail E. Male 49 Present Involvements

Director

¢ Director, Philippine Savings Bank* since 2024

e Senior Vice PresideritHead of Credit Cards, Persona
Loans and Retail Digital Channels Group under
Consumer Business Sectbtetropolitan Bank and Tru
Company* since 2022

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

e  Senior Vice Presidd/ Head of Digital Strategies,
Lending and Insurance DivisioNetropolitan Bank ang
Trust Company* from 2020 to 2022

e Senior Vice President for Digital Acquisition and
Partnerships, Citibank PH from 2010 to 2020

¢ Marketing Manager, Globe Telecom, thécom 2004
to 2010

14




Name/ Position

D

Ag

Citizenship

Business Experience and Present and
Past Directorship with Other
Companies for the last five (5) years

Relatives up to &'
Civil degree

Academic Qualifications

e Masters in Business Management, Asian Insitute of
Management

e Business Management, University of the Philippines,
Cebu

*Company listed at The Philippine Sock Exchange, Inc.

b) Executive Officers

Relatives up to #

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Experience Civil degree
Jose Vicente L. Alde 58 Filipino Present Involvements None
President/Director e President since April 2018

e Chairman, Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation since
2016

e Trustee, Chamber of Thrift Banks since 2020

e Director, MBTC since 2022

Past Experiences/ Positions Held

e Director since 2016/ Executive Vice President from J
2010-April 2018, Senior Vice President from 2007
June 2010 Philippine Savings Bank*

e Director, Metrobank Card Corporation from 2015 to
2016

¢ Vice President, ABN AMRO BANK from 1999 to 200]

e Assistant Vice President, ABN AMRO BANK from
1995 to 1999

e Business Development Manager, Household
Development from 1993 to 1994

e Key Account Manager, Johnson and Johnson from 1
to 1993

e Computer Programmer, World Health Organization
from 1988 to 1990

Academic Qualifications

e Bachelor of Computer Science (Cum Laude), Univer
of the Philippines, Diliman 1984 t01988

e Master in Business Management, Asian Institute of
Management 1990 to 192

Noli S. Gomez** 59 Filipino Present Involvements None

Executive Vice President

e  EVP and Head at PSBank’s* Office of the Executive
Vice President since March 1, 2018

e Director, Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation since
June 2018

Past Involvements

e  SVP andHead of PSBank’s* Operations Group from
January 2006 September 2019

e Chief Finance Officer at PSBank* from October 2001
to December 2005

e Head of Systems and Methods and Chief Risk Office
SAVP and VP at DBS Bank Phils., Inc. from Septem
1998 to October 2001

e  SAVP at Southeast Asia from February 1997 to Aug
1998

e System Management Officer of the AVP at Bank of t
Philippine Islands* from August 1996 to January 199

e  Citytrust Banking Corporation from November 1992 {
July 1996
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Relatives up to &

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Experience Civil degree
Academic Qualifications
e BS Civil Engineering, Mapua Institute of the
Philippines- 1981 to 1986
Neil C. Estrellado 53 Filipino Present Involvement None
Senior Vice President e  SVP since 2015 and Head of PSBank’s* IT Group since
2002
Past Involvements
e Held various positions in the following Banks:
- Project Leader, Overseas Chinese Banking
Corporation (OCBC), Singapore from 2001 - 2002
- Lead IT Analyst, Development Bank of Singapore
from 2000- 2001
- Manager, DBS Philippines Inc. (formerly Bank of
Southeast Asia) from 1997 - 2000
- Assistant Manager, BPI* (formerly Citytrust Banking
Corporation) from 1992 - 1996
- Systems Analyst, Bank of the Philippine Islands
Academic Qualifications
e BS Mathematics, Ateneo De Manila Universityt 988
to 1992
Francis C. Llanera 53 Filipino Present Involvement None
Senior Vice President e  SVP since October 2016 and Head of Branch Bankin
and Operations Group since Janury 2025
Past Involvements
e SVP and Head of Branch Banking Group from Octohb
2012 to December 2024
e FVP and Head of PSBank Loans Operations Group
from January 2011 to October 2012
e Remedial Management Division Head from Decemb
2007 to December 2010
e Held various positions in the following Banks:
- Senior Manager and Credit Card Collections Head
Union Bank from May 200%+ November 2007
- Assistant Manager, Credit Risk at AIG from May
2000- April 2001
- Assistant Cashier, Credit Card Department at Far B
Bank & Trust Co from July 1993 April 2000
Academic Qualifications
e BSC-Commerce, University of Sto. Tomag993 to
2003
e MBA, Ateneo Graduate School of Business, 2016 to
2019
Mary Jane M. Valero 55 Filipino Present Involvement None

Senior Vice President

e  SVP since December 2020 and Head PSBank-Custd
Experience and Human Resources Group

Past Involvements

e FVP and Group Head of PSBank- Customer Experie
and Human Resources Group from September 2019
Nov 2020

e FVP and Group Head of PSBank- Customer Experie
and People Development Group from January 2019
September 2019

e FVP and Group Head of PSBank- Customer Experie
Group from July 2017 to January 2019

e VP and Division Head of Customer Experience Divis

from November 2014 to July 2017
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Relatives up to &

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Experience Civil degree
e VP and Division Head of Customer Service Division
from February 2008 to November 2014
e VP and Division Head of Service Quality Division fro
August 2004 to January 2008
e AVP and Division Head of Service Quality Division fr
August 2002 to July 2004
e Part-Time Professor of Enderun Colleges from June
to June 2014
e Front Office Manager of Mandarin Oriental Manila frg
January 1999 to August 2002
e Duty Manager of Westin Philippine Plaza from Janug
1992 to January 1999.
Academic Qualifications
e BS Psychology, St. Scholasticas CollegE986 to 1990
e  AB Guidance and Counseling, St. Scholastica’s College
— 1986 to 1990
e Masters in Industrial Psychology, University of Sto.
Tomas- 2010 to 2013
e PHD in Clinical Psychology, University of Sto. Tomas
2014 to 2019
Leah M. Zamora 51 Filipino Present Involvement None
Senior Vice President e Corporate Secretary since January 2024
e  SVP since December 2020 and Controller and Finan
Group Head of PSBank
Past Involvements
e FVP and Controller and Finance Group Head of PSH
from January 2017 to November 2020
e FVP and Division Head of Business Information
Management Services Division from April 2010 to
December 2016
e Held various positions in the following Banks:
-VP, FP&A Manager of GE Money Brank from May
2006 to April 2010
- Senior Manager of Banco de Oro Universal Bank fro
March 2000 to May 2006
- Administrative Officer of Equitable Banking Corporat
from June 1993 to June 9%
Academic Qualifications
e Bachelor of Science in Accountancy, De La Salle
University— 1989 to 1992
e Academic Units for Masters in Business Administrati
De La Salle University 1995 to 1998
Dan Jose D. Duplito 50 Filipino Present Involvement None

Senior Vice President

e  SVP since September 1, 2022 and Chief Information
Security Officer of Information Security Division

Past Involvements

e FVP and Chief Information Security Officer of ISD frg
July 1, 2017 to August 31, 2022

e VP and Chief Information Security Officer of ISD fron
March 20, 2017 to June 30, 2017

¢ VP and Information Security Division Head from May
2013 to March 19, 2017

e VP and Information Security Department Head from
March 1, 2011 to May 7, 2013

e AVP and Information Security Department Head fron
May 1, 2007 to February 28, 2011

e  Senior Manager and Information Security Departmer
Head from March 7, 2005 to April 30, 2007
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Name/ Position

Age

Citizenship

Experience

Relatives up to &
Civil degree

e Held various positions in the following Private
Institutions:

- Security Analyst Consultant of Total Information
Management from October 1, 2003 to Decembe|
2004

- Security Tester Consultant of Isentry Security Servic
from December 1, 2002 to March 1, 2003

-Webmaster and Linux Network Admin of Powerhom
Inc. from October 1, 2000 to October 1, 2003

- Lead Web DevelopeConsultant of Writer’s Edge Inc.
from October 1, 2003 to December 1, 2005

- Production Shift Supervisor of Steel Asia Mfg. Corp
from September 1, 1997 to July 1, 2000

Academic Qualifications
e BS Mechanical Engineering, University of the
Philippines Diliman- 1991 to 1996

Edeza A. Que
Senior Vice President

52

Filipino

Present Involvement
e  SVP since September 1, 2022 and Chief Risk and
Sustainability Officer of Risk Management Office

Past Involvements

e FVP and Chief Risk and Sustainability Officer from
April 7, 2021 to August 31, 2022

e FVP and Chief Risk Officer from March 1, 2016 to Af
6, 2021

e FVP and Chief Risk Manager from May 1, 2014 to
February 9, 2016

e VP and Credit Risk Manager from October 17, 2005
April 30, 2014

e Director, Bankers Institute of the Philippines from Jul
2019 to June 30, 2024

Academic Qualifications

e BS Statistics, University of the Philippined990 to
1993

e MS Statistics, University of the Philippinesl993 to
1996

None

*Company listed at The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
**Resigned effective December 31, 2024

None of the Bank’s directors and officers works with the government. All of the above-mentioned officers have
been involved in the banking industry for more than five years.

c. Significant Employees

Except for the above-mentioned executives, there are no otheicsighgmployees as contemplated under the
Securities Regulations Code.

Nomination Procedures

1. A stockholder may submit nominations for directorial positions to thpdate Governance Committee.

2. The nominating stockholder shall submit his proposed nomination in gvtdithe Corporate Governance
Committee together with the biodata, acceptance and conformity by the-b@wominee. In case of a
nominee for the position of an independent director, the would-b@&nee is also required to submit a
Certification that he/she has all the qualifications and none of the discptédiis to become an independent

auditor.

3. The Corporate Governance Committee shall screen the nomination of difgitor® the submission of
the Definitive Information Statement and come up with the Final List of Catedid
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4. Only nominees whose names appear in the Final List of Candidates shall be digitdetion as director.
5. The nomination process of the Bais incorporated in the company’s amended Code of By-Laws duly
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission as early as Se@ém@06 and also in the Bank's
annually updated and Board-approved Corporate Governance Manual.

The following are thenembers of the Bank’s Corporate Governance Committee:

Cecilia C. Borromeo, Independent Director Chairperson
Eduardo A. Sahagun, Independent Director Member
Rufino Luis T. Manotok, Independent Director Member
Gilbert L. Nunag, Chief Compliance Officer Secretary

Nominee Directors

The following are all incumbent directors and have been duly nominatefelection as members of the
Bank’s 2025-2026 Board of Directors:

Incumbent Directord
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr.
Arthur V. Ty

Jose Vicente L. Alde
Eduardo A. Sahagun
Rufino Luis T. Manotok
Ronald Luis S. Goseco, Jr.
Cecilia C. Borromeo
Ferlou I. Evangelista
Frances Gail E. Male

*Please refer to Item 5.a Directors for brief professional backgrountuded in the above list is Ms. Cecilia C.
Borromeo who was duly elected as independent director on January 16in206@pliance with the regulatory
requirements of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and the Securities and Exchandges@on(S8EC):

Business Experience and Present and .
Relatives up to

Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Past Dlrectorshlp Wlt_h Other 4" Civil degree
Companies for the last five (5) years
Cecilia C. Borromeo 65 Filipino Present Involvements None
Independent Director ¢ Independent Director, Philippine Savings Bank?

since January 2025

e Director and Chairperson, Upgrade Energy and
Philippines, Inc. since February 2025

¢ Independent Director, Atlantic Gulf & Pacific
Company of Manila since 2024

¢ Independent Director, Philippine Life Financial
Assurance Corporation since 2024

¢ Independent Director, Cosco Capital, Inc.* since
2023

Past experiences/ Positions held in Government Se

e President & CEO, Land Bank of the Philippines
from 2019 to 223

e President & CEO, Development Bank of the
Philippines from 2017 t8019

e Held various positions from Project Assistant to
Executive Vice President from 1989 to 2016

Academic Qualifications

e BS Agribusiness, University of the Philippines

e Pursued further studies (MBA units) at the De L
Salle Business School

e Pacific Rim Banker®rogram, University of
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Business Experience and Present and
Name/ Position Age| Citizenship Past Directorship with Other
Companies for the last five (5) years

Relatives up to
4" Civil degree

Washington Executive Education Foster School
Business

e International Study on Rural Banking and Finan
Massey University

e Advance Bank Management Program, Asian
Institute of Management

*Company listed at The Philippine Siock Exchange, Inc.

All nominations were submitted, evaluated and approved by the Bank’s Corporate Governance Committee. As
such, all nominees possess the qualifications and none of the disquatificat become directors of the Bank
for 2025-2026.

Of the above-named nominees, Mr. Eduardo A. Sahagun, MmdRufiis T. Manotok, Mr. Ronald Luis S.
Goseco, Jr. and Ms. Cecilia C. Borromeo have been nominated as InelgpRindctors by Ms. Jeanne Frances
T. Chua, Mr. Samson C. Lim, Mr. Joaquin Aligguy and Ms. DulcAiebal, respectively, with whom they are
not related. Based on the Bank’s Manual of Corporate Governance and as required by existing laws and
regulations, the stockholders must elect at least three (3) members Bbdah& or such number as may
constitute one-third (1/3) of the members of the Board, whichis\egher, as Independent Directors.

Mr. Sahagun, Mr. Manotok, Mr. Goseand Ms. Borromegpossess the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications to become independent directors. The certificates of qualifcafrom the nominated
independent directors are attached as Annex D.

Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and information of the Bank, none of its direetod executive officers are involved or have
been involved for the past five (5) years in any legal proceedichwill have material or substantial effect to
the Bank, its operation, reputation, or financial condition.

To the knowledge and information of the Bank, none of its directoreseclitive officers have been involved
or subject of the following legal proceedings during the past &ygdars up to latest date that are material to
an evaluation of their ability or integrity:

(@) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of wélch person was a general partner or
executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within teery prior to that time;

(b) Any conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceedidgmestic or foreign, or being subject to a
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign;

(c) Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not sudrsthgueversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanenttgraporarily enjoining, barring, suspending
or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of busingssurities, commodities or banking activities; and

(d) Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competaigdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or otiganized trading market or self-
regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities lawutatieq, and the judgment has not
been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

As required under existing BSP rules and regulations, the Bank discloseandaotber credit accommodations
granted to its DOSRI. These loans and other credit accommodations were nstaetisdlly on the same terms
as with other individuals and businesses of comparable risks and wgeetsof prior BOD approval and

entailing BSP reportorial requirements.

Existing banking regulations also limit the total amount of credit exposure to each of the Bank’s DOSRIs, at
least 70.00% of which must be secured, to the total of their respectiositdepnd book value of their
respective unencumbered deposits and, if any, book value of their respeaitivin capital contribution in the
Bank. In the aggregate, the Bank’s total credit exposure to all its DOSRIs should not exceed its net worth or
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15.00% of its total loan portfolio, whichever is lower, with any unssgtyportion thereof not exceeding the
lower between 30.00% of the aggregate limit or of the total actuakesgpo However, loans and other credit
accommodations to DOSRIs that are secured by assets considered Bythe Bon-risk are exempt from these
ceilings. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank's credit expdsul®SRI are within the said
regulatory limits.

BSP Circular No. 423 dated March 15, 2004, as amended by BSP Cirbldar 914 dated
June 23, 2016, provide the rules and regulations governing credgusgpao DOSRI. The following table
shows information relating to the loans, other credit accommodations amdntpes classified as DOSRI
accounts under regulations existing prior to BSP Circular No. 423nemdDOSRI loans and other credit
accommodations granted under said circular as of December 31, 20228r(thZBousands):

2024 2023
DOSRI Related Party DOSRI  Related Party
Loans Loans Loans Loans
Total outstanding loans P186,375 B1,121,375 B191,082 B1,146,082
Percent of DOSRI/Related Party loans to total loan portfolic 0.13% 0.78% 0.17% 1.03%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI/Related Party loans to total
DOSRI/Related Party loans 98.57% 99.76% 98.35% 99.73%
Percent of past-due DOSRI /Related Party loans to total
DOSRI/Related Party loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of non-performing DOSRI/Related Party loans to to
DOSRI /Related Party loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total interest income from DOSRI loans amounted to B11.2 million 24,2B3.9 million in 2023 and B4.6
million in 2022.

All of the Bank's directors do not have any self-dealing/related partyatémss with PSBank directly by
themselves in 2024.

Further discussion on transactions with related parties are found ir36lofe¢he Audited Financial Statements.

Others

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election because disagreement with the Bank on any
matter relating to the Bank’s operations, policies or practices.

No director has informed the Bank in writing that he intends to @pang action to be taken by the Bank at the
Annud Stockholders’ Meeting.

Iltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

2025 (Estimates)
Salary Bonus *Others (Per Dien|

Name and Principal Position

Jose Vicente L. Alde President

Neil C. Estrellado - Senior Vice President

Dan Jose D. Duplito - Senior Vice President

Leah M. Zamora - Senior Vice President

Mary Jane M. Valero - Senior Vice President

TOTAL* R75.07 million B32.64 million

ALL OFFICERS (AVP UP)* P183.91 million B89.31 million

Vicente R. Cuna Jr. - Chairman

Arthur Ty - Vice Chairman

Jose Vicente L. Alde - Director / President

Eduardo A. Sahagun - Independent Director

Rufino Luis T. Manotok - Independent Director

Ronald Luis S. Gosec Independent Director

Ferlou I. Evangelista Director

Frances Gail E. Male Director

Cecilia C. Borromee- Independent Director

ALL DIRECTORS R17.31 million

* Estimated (Increased 2025 figures by 6% except directors’ fee
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Name and Principal Position

2024

Salary

Bonus

*Others (Per
Diem)

Jose Vicente L. Alde President

Noli S. Gomez- Executive Vice President*

Neil C. Estrellado - Senior Vice President

Dan Jose D. Duplito - Senior Vice President

Leah M. Zamora - Senior Vice President

TOTAL

B71.11 million

B30.79 million

ALL OFFICERS (AVP UP)

B184.07 million

B91.16 million

Vicente R. Cuna Jr. - Chairman

Arthur Ty - Vice Chairman

Jose Vicente L. Alde - Director / President

Eduardo A. Sahagun - Independent Director

Francisco S. Magsajo - Independent Director**

Rufino Luis T. Manotok - Independent Director

Ronald Luis S. Goseco - Independent Director

Ferlou I. Evangelista Director

Frances Gail E. Male Director

Rosanna F. De VeraDirector***

ALL DIRECTORS

B17.31 million

* Resigned as of December 31, 2024
** Term ended on September 17, 2024 (deceased)
*** Resigned as of April 2024

Name and Principal Position

2023

Salary

Bonus

*Others (Per Diem

Jose Vicente L. Alde President

Noli S. Gomez- Executive Vice President*

Jose Jesus B. Custodicsenior Vice President**

Perfecto Ramon Z. Dimayuga, JrSenior Vice
President***

Emmanuel A. Tuazon Senior Vice President* **

TOTAL

B63.07 million

B28.72 million

ALL OFFICERS (AVP UP)

B192.71 million

B94.65 million

Jose T. Pardo - Chairman / Independent Director

Arthur Ty - Vice Chairman

Vicente R. Cuna Jr. - Vice Chairman

Jose Vicente L. Alde - Director / President

Samson C. Lim - Independent Director

Francisco S. Magsajo - Independent Director

Eduardo A. Sahagun - Independent Director

Ma. Soledad D.S. De LecenDirector

Rosanna F. De VeraDirector

ALL DIRECTORS

B19.06 million

* Resigned as of December 31, 2024
**Retired effective April 1, 2024
***Retired effective January 1, 2024

*Each director receives a monthly professional fee for attending Boatdcommittee meetings. The total per

diem paid to the directors of the Bank are as follows (in millions):

2024 2023

Board Meetings R16.06 R17.58
Board Committee Meetings 1.25 1.48
R17.31 R19.06
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The directors receive per diem, bonuses and allowances that are atadgd in the amounts stated above.
Aside from said amounts, they have no other compensation plarangament with the bank. The Directors
receive a per diem of B150,000 for attending Board meetings 2@ for Committee meeting$he
executive officers receive salaries, bonuses and other usual bankshvafiire also included in the amounts
stated above. Aside from these, they have no other compensation plaangearent with the bank.

For the protection and security of its directors and officers, the Baokable to provide their individual
compensation.

There are no warrants or options held by the Bank’s officers and directors.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

SGV & Co. has acted as the Bank’s external auditors since 1979. Mr. Bryan Chrisnel Baes has succeeded Ms.
Veronica Mae A. Arce as the new certifying partner at SGV and Co., in comglisith the 7-year rotation

requirement.

The Bank has no disagreements on accounting and financial dissl@stiréts current external auditors for the
same periods or any subsequent interim period.

The Bank intends to retain SGV as its external auditors for the yeara2@Ps submitting the same to the
stockholders for ratification as endorsed by the Audit Committee with thesgmf the Board of Directors.

Representatives of SGV are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and will have the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be availaewer appropriate questions.

Iltem 8. Financial and Other Information
The Audited Financial Statements of PSBank is attachédhaex “A”.

C. OTHER MATTERS

Iltem 9. Proposed Actions with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholdeieeting held virtually on April 25, 2024 at 3:00 p.m.
via CISCO WEBEX Livestreaming

Stockholders in Attendance via Remote Communication

NAMES No. of Shares Held Percentage of Equity

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (parent company) 377,279,068 88.38485%
represented by Arthur Ty

Chairman Vicente R. Cuna Jr. 111 0.00003%
Vice Chairman Arthur Ty 129 0.00003%
Director Eduardo A. Sahagun 111 0.00003%
Director Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr. 100 0.00002%
Director Rufino Luis T. Manotok 100 0.00002%
Director Ronald Luis S. Goseco 100 0.00002%
Director Jose Vicente L. Alde 111 0.00003%
Other PSBank Stockholder(s) 11 0.00000%
TOTAL 377,279,841 88.3850%

1. CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Vicente R. Cuna, Jr., presidedtbgemeeting which he called to
order. The Corporate Secretary, Ms. Leah M. Zamora, recorded the nohthesmeeting. Likewise,
the audio/video recordings of the meeting were secured by the Office Gbrporate Secretary.

2. CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM

The Bank conducted its Annu8tockholders’ Meeting (ASM) on April 25, 2024 at 3:00 P.M. via
remote communication using a secure online meeting platform, Ciscox\falrsuant to applicable
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations.
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The Corporate Secretary, Ms. Leah M. Zamora, certified that the Noticeasinglevas duly sent and
circulated via appropriate disclosures and publications pursuant to the reguétioesSecurities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) for the purpose of informing the Istdedrs of record. The said notice
also contained the necessary information and links to the Bank’s corporate website pertaining to
relevant ASM-related matters/documents.

Stockholders of record who notified within prescribed period their intergiah participated in the
Meeting via remote communication, including those who voted in absendiabyarproxy, were
considered in the determination of quorum. The Corporate Secretdrgrfodrtified that the required
quorum was met, as signified by the presence of its stockholders totidl af 377,279,841 common
shares representing more than two-thirds (2/3) of the outstandjitalcatock or 88% of the
426,859,416 common shares outstanding. There was 100% attebglealtaine (9) members of the
Board of Directors who had been nominated and elected to their respesitiengqsee item 6 for the
list of directors). The list of stockholders in attendance was providesiMih as Annex A. Also in
attendance were representatives from the Bank’s top management, as well as representatives from SGV

& CO. as the Bank’s external auditor, and other distinguished guests/stakeholders of the Bank.
Chairman Cuna acknowledged that, there being a quorum, the virtughgneas duly constituted for
the transactions of the business in the agenda.

Verified stockholders casted their votes for each of the agenda iteonghithe secure voting link and
within prescribed deadline. The Office of the Corporate Secretary tabulatedtéise assisted by the
Bank’s stock transfer agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group, and with validation by the SGV & Co. It
was also noted that relevant questions or comments in relation to the agersjafigey, by verified
stockholders that will be received by the Office of the Corporate Secretary via witéil the
prescribed period shall be properly acknowledged, noted and addressedngbcotdformation
regarding participation and voting requirements and procedures in connedtfiothe conduct of
meeting via remote communication were provided accordingly under itérid bf the approved
Definitive Information Statement which was also posted in the Bank’s corporate website.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS MEETING HELD ON
27 APRIL 2023

Chairman Cuna proceeded to the next item in the agenda which was ithveabppthe Minutes of the
Annual Stockholders” Meeting held on April 27, 2023, copies of which were included in the
Information Statement disseminated accordingly and posted in the a@rpeebsite pursuant to
applicable SEC regulations.

The Corporate Secretary stated that, upon tabulation of votes cast, bb#eiriia and through proxy,

a total of 377,279,841 common shares representing 88% of the 428858ommon shares
outstanding had participated and all voted in favor of the approval of thetéd of the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting held on April 27, 2023, of which the following resolution was passed and
adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. PSB-ASM202401

“RESOLVED, that theMinutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the
Philippine Savings Bank held @pril 27, 2023 are hereby approved as recorded.”

PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL OF THE PRESIDENT’S REPORT AND THE AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2023

Chairman Cuna turned over the floor to the President, Mr. Jose Vicented,.whd rendered to the
stockholders his annual report, including the audited financial statemettis fggar2023

The Corporate Secretary then mentioned that, upon tabulation of votes casih hbtdentia and

through proxy, a total of 377,279,841 common shares reprege38¥ of the 426,859,416 common
shares outstanding participated and voted accordingly and all were irofafaiernotation and approval
of thePresident’s Annual Report and the 2023 Audited Financial Statements, as per resolution below:
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RESOLUTION NO. PSB-ASM2024-02

“RESOLVED, that thePresident’s Annual Report and the 2023 Audited
Financial Statements the Philippine Savings Bank are hereby noted and approved.”

5. CONFIRMATION OF ALL CORPORATE ACTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
MANAGEMENT AND ALL COMMITTEES IN 2023

Chairman Cuna moved on with the next item in the agenda whicthev@®nfirmation of all corporate
acts, transactions and resolutions of the Board of Directors, Managenakall Committees during the
year 2023, including material transactions with the Bank’s DOSRI and other related parties (RPTs) as
summarized in the 2023 Annual Report and in the Material RPTs Report.

The Corporate Secretary reported that, upon tabulation of votes cast, katikeintia and through
proxy, 88% or 377,279,841 common shares out of the B2@186 common shares outstanding voted
and all were in favor of the confirmation of all corporate acts, transacsiod resolutions of the Board
of Directors, Management and all Committees during the year 20@8dimg significant/material
transactions with the Bank’s DOSRI and other related parties as summarized in the 2023 Annual
Report and in the Material Related Party Transactions Report, of which theifigllosgolution was
passed and adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. PSB-ASM2024-03

“RESOLVED, that all corporate acts, transactions and resolutions of the
Philippine Savings Barik Board of Directors, Management and all Committees during
the year 2023, including significant transactions with the Bank’s DOSRI and other
related parties as summarized in the 2023 Annual Report and in the Material Related
Party Transactions Report, as well as approval of loans/credit transacti@ssients,
bank products and services, among others, are hereby confirmed.

6. ELECTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The next item in the agenda was the election of the members Biotdrd of Directors to serve for the
year 2024-2025.

In compliance with the regulatory requirements of the Bangko Sentrfdilipjnas (BSP) and the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on the nomination of dielehorFrancisco S. Magsajo,
Jr., an Independe Director and the Chairman of the Bank’s Corporate Governance (CG) Committee,
conveyed that the CG Committee reviewed and evaluated the qualificatiathp@fsons nominated to
the Board, and certified that, based on the records, the followneg(®) nominees, four (4) of whom
were nominated as Independent Directors, possess all the qualificationsaraf tiee disqualifications
prescribed by law and the regulations, namely:

Mr. Vicente R. Cuna, Jr.

Mr. Arthur V. Ty

Mr. Jose Vicente L. Alde

Mr. Ferlou I. Evangelista

Mr. Ronald Luis S. Goseco (Independent Director)
Mr. Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr. (Independent Director)
Ms. Frances Gail E. Male

Mr. Rufino Luis T. Manotok (Independent Director)
Mr. Eduardo A. Sahagun (Independent Director)

CoNooOA~ONE

Considering that there were only nine (9) persons nominateddauatified for, the nine (9) seats in
the Board of Directors for the year 2024-2025, the Corporate Secastaoynced that, upon tabulation
of votes cast, both in absentia and through proxy, at least 377427€&mmon shares equivalent to
88% of the 426,859,416 common shares outstanding had voteddo of the nine (9) aforementioned
nominees for directors. Hence, the following resolution on the eleafitime nine (9) aforementioned
nominees was passed and adopted accordingly:
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RESOLUTION NO. PSB-ASM2024-04

“RESOLVED, that the following are hereby elected as Directors of the
Philippine Savings Bank for the year 2024-2025 and until their ssmeesire duly
elected and qualified:

Mr. Vicente R. Cuna, Jr.

Mr. Arthur V. Ty

Mr. Jose Vicente L. Alde

Mr. Ferlou |. Evangelista

Mr. Ronald Luis S. Goseco (Independent Director)
Mr. Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr. (Independent Director)
Ms. Frances Gail E. Male

Mr. Rufino Luis T. Manotok (Independent Director)
Mr. Eduardo A. Sahagun (Independent Director)

CoNoR~ONE

7. APPOINTMENT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR FOR THE YEAR 2024

Chairman Cuna continued on with the next item in the agenda whdshtlve appointment of the
Bank’s external auditor for the year 2024.

The Chairman announced that Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (or “SGV & Co.”) had been recommended
by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directorsr®appointment as the Bank’s external auditor
for the year 2024.

Upon recommendation and tabulation of votes cast, both in absentiaramghtiproxy, the Corporate
Secretary reported that 88% or a total of 377,279,841 common sharestoeit4@6,859,416 common
shares outstanding had participated and voted accordingly and all weverirof the re-appointment
of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (or “SGV & Co.”) as the Bank’s external auditor for the year 2024, of
which the following resolution was passed and adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. PSB-ASM2024-05
“RESOLVED that, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors, Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (or “SGV & Co.”) is, hereby,
re-appointed as the Philippine Savings Bank’s External Auditorsor the year 2024.”

8. OTHER MATTERS

The Corporate Secretary mentioned that no relevant questions or commeeaiteeeeived from the
stockholders within the prescribed period in accordance with the Bank’s procedures on the conduct of
meeting via remote communication. As such, there were no othertddmesdiscussed aside from the
aforementioned agenda matters taken up.

9. _ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Cuna acknowledged that, there being no other business to tfrémsameeting was
adjourned. On behalf of the Board of Directors, the Chairman exprgsattide for the continued
support and trust from the Bank’s stakeholders.

Presentation and Approval of titeesident’s Annual Report and the Bank’s Audited Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2@.

The President’s Annual Report on the Bank’s activities, business and financial performance for year-end
2024 including theBank’s Audited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2024, will be presented for
notation and approval of the stockholdeP$ease refer to Item 8. “Financial and Other Information”.

Confirmation of All Acts of the Board of Directors, Management and Alindittees

All acts, transactions and resolutions of the Board of Directorsaljlement and all Committees done in
the ordinary course of business during the ye@420cluding, among others, the approval of loans/credit

26



transactions, investments, Bank products and servicestranghctions with the Bank’s DOSRI and other
related parties, will be presented for confirmation of the stockholders.

Election of the Members of the Board of Directors

The Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank for the yea$-2026 are to be elected to hold office
until the next succeeding annual meeting, and/or until their respectigessors have been duly elected
and qualified. Pleasecfer to the list of nominees under Item 5. “Directors and Executive Officers -
Nominee Directors” for details.

Appointment of the External Auditor
The re-appointment of SGV & Co. as independent external auditoe @ahk for the yea2025will be

presented for ratification of the stockholders. Please refer to Itéfindependent Public Accountants” for
details.

Item 10. Voting Procedures

a.

Majority vote is required for the following:

i. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders

ii. Confirmation of all corporate acts of the Board of Directors, the Managieand all committees
including significant transactions with the Bank's Directors, Officers, Stdd&ls & their Related
Interests (DOSRI) and other related parties

iii. Appointment of External Auditors

Majority vote is required for the election of members of the BoarDirdctors. Nominees receiving the
highest number of votes shall be declared elected following the provisitims Gbrporation Code.

Every stockholder entitled to vote on the particular question or matter @d/ghall be entitled to one (1)
vote for each share of stock in his name. Cumulative voting is allpresitied that the total votes cast by
a stockholder shall not exceed the number of shares registered in leisméma books of the bank as of
the record date multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.rdVattbmitted to

stockholders for ratification shall be decided by the required vote ciftsitnlers present, in person or by

proxy.
A stockholder can exercise his vote at the meeting or remotely (in abgethtiaumh proxy), as applicable

Pursuant to applicable regulations of the Revised Corporation Code altoishvoting in absentia by the
stockholders, an online link may be accessed by the verified stoclkhtddegister and/or vote in absentia
on the matters for resolution at the meeting. A stockholder who votesentabshall be deemed present
for purposes of quorum. Please refer to Itelm Participation of Shareholders by Remote Communication
for the applicable instructions for voting in absentia or through proxy.

All votes will be counted by the Office of the Corporate Secretary, to be assisted by the Bank’s stock
transfer agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group, and with validatidhéo$$GV & Co.

Iltem 11. Participation of Shareholders by Remote Communication

To comply with applicable regulations and to ensure the safety afaevef our stockholders, the Bank shall
allow attendance by remote communication, voting in absentia and thpoogy. The following are the
corresponding requirements and procedures for participation by renmoteucdcation:

PARTICIPATION BY REMOTE COMMUNICATION,
VOTING IN ABSENTIA AND THROUGH PROXY

A. Attendance by Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia and through Proxy

1. Stockholders intending to participate by remote communication and/or votadgséntia should
notify the Office of the Corporate Secretary through a Letter of Intedl) (fo be sent via e-malil
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to psbasm@psbank.com.ph on or before April 7, 2025, complgtehe following requirements
for validation purposes:

1.1 Indicate the following required information:

1.1.1 Complete Registered Name

1.1.2 Complete Registered Residential/Mailing Address
1.1.3 Active e-Mail Address

1.1.4 Active Mobile #

1.1.5 Active Landline #

1.2  Attach the following documents (e- copy/scanned)copy

1.2.1 Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature (scanmatdand back)
1.2.2 Proof of Ownership, such as, but not limited to, the follgwin

a) Stockholder’s certificate (for certificated shares); or

b) Broker’s certification (for scripless or uncertificated shares); or

C) Secretary’s certificate for authorized representative (for corporate)
1.2.3 Other supporting document, as applicable

In case a stockholder cannot attend the virtual meeting andesvishbe represented, said
stockholder shall designate an authorized representgtirexy”) by submitting the following
additional documents, aside from the requirements as enumerated under.1temd 1.2 above,
on or before April 7, 2025 via email to psbhasm@psbank.com.phalidation purposes:

2.1 Dulyacomplished proxy form/instrumeriif so preferred or if no name is indicated, the
Chairman of the Meeting shall act as the proxy.)

2.2 Valid government-issued ID with photo and signature of the rlsid Proxy (scanned front
and back)

The Office of the Corporate Secretary shall forward the email containind Gteand its
attachments to thBank’s stock transfer agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group. The validation
process will be completed by the stock transfer agent no later thar(3hitaesiness days from its
receipt of the LOI. Te Bank’s stock transfer agent reserves the right to request for additional
information and documents, as needed/necessdipreover, for general welfare and in the
interest of time, electronic signature for the required documents shall be alldwecdhetarization
requirement shall not be compulsory and may be considered once practicable.

Once validated/verified, a stockholder shall be provided a confirmation cordespen with
secure links for virtual meeting registration and voting in absentia. s€airrity purposes, the
confirmation correspondence which include access credentials, links andctioasufor
participation through remote communication and voting in absentia shallbenlsentto the
stockholdets email address, and if necessary, notification shall be sent to tkhalders mobile
number as provided per item 1.1 abowueis the duty of the stockholder to securely provide the
information on access credentials and instructions to his/her Proxy,cedregeplicable.

4.1 A verified stockholder or his/her Proxy shall have to access the correspdindtiig order to
be able to join the virtual meeting on the ASM day.

4.2 A verified stockholder or his/her Proxy may cast his/her fmteach of the agenda items
through the secure voting link provided in the confirmation correspeedebeadline to vote
in absentia through its corresponding link is on April 21, 202Beyond this date,
stockholders may no longer avail of the option to vote in absenfibe Office of the
Corporate Secretary shall thetbulate all votes, to be assisted by the Bank’s stock transfer
agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group, and with validation by the 8GZo. The
Corporate Secretary shall report the results of voting during the medtorgnformation on
counting and tabulation of votes, please refer to “Item 10. Voting Procedures” of this
Information Statement.
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B. Participation and Determination of Quorum and Votes

1. Only those stockholders who have notified the Company of their interttiparticipate in the
Meeting via remote communication, including those who voted in absetibyaproxy, will be
consicered in the determination of quorum at the meeting. By participating rematstgckholder
shall be deemed present for purposes of quorum.

2. Due to logistical limitations of the meeting conducted virtually, voting @eh forum/discussion
will not be possible during the virtual meeting. However, a stockhotdeéhough his/her Proxy)
once verifie, will be given an opportunity to raise any relevant questions @resg an
appropriate comment in relation to the agenda items by sending an dmail
psbasm@psbank.com.ph not later than April 16, 2025. Any releuagtigns or comments
received by the Office of the Corporate Secretary via email within the prespebied given to
verified stockholders shall be properly acknowledged, noted and addressetiragy.

3. The Office of the Corporate Secretary shall take down minutes of thenmeettordingly and
shall note all comments and other relevant matters discussed coveringnida af the meeting.
The meeting proceedings shall be recorded in audio and video forimatsafekept by the Office
of the Corporate Secretary and shall be made available in a secured tastoekholders upon
request by sending an email to psbasm@psbank.com.ph

4. The Office of the Corporate Secretary lshensure confidentiality of all votes for tahtibn,
including those cast in absentia and by proxy, with assistamtehe Bank’s stock transfer agent,
Metrobank Trust Banking Group, and for validation by the SGV & Td® Corporate Secretary
shall report the results of voting during the meeting. For irdition on counting and tabulation of
votes, please refer to “Item 10. Voting Procedures” of this Information Statement.

** All participants are requested to adhere to the Bank’s Confidentiality and Data Privacy guidelines
for the meeting which shall be posted in the ASM-related page of the atepabsite.

For ASM-related matters, please go to https://www.psbank.com.ph/annual-stockimsing2025/

For ASM-related queries, please send an email to psbasm@psbank.com.pitaot ite Office of the
Corporate Secretary 88858208 local 8180/8535. For account updating/validation concerns, please get in
touch with PSBank’s Stock Transfer Agent, Metrobank Trust Banking Group, through 8857-5688; 8857-
5694; 8857-5695 or via email to stocktransfer@metrobank.com.ph.

* % %
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PART Il. MANAGEMENT REPORT
Brief Description and General Nature and Scope of Business of Registrant

Philippine Savings Bank (the Bank) was incorporated in the Philipgiriesarily to engage in savings and
mortgage bankingThe Bank’s shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The Bank offers a
wide range of products and services such as deposit products, loansytegas trust functions that mainly
serve the retail and consumer markets. On September 6, 1991, thenvBsrauthorized to perform trust
functions.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had 250 branche824ntBe Bank had 272 Automated Teller
Machines (ATMSs) in the branchesrtsite) and 256 in other locations (off-site) bringing its total numiber o
ATMs to 528 as of December 31, 2024 and 556 as of December 31, 2023.

The Bank’s original Certificate of Incorporation was issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

on June 30, 1959. On March 28, 2006, the Board of Directd2®jBof the Bank approved the amendment of
Article IV of its Amended Articles of Incorporation to extend the corpaierte of the Bank, which expired on
June 30, 2009, for another 50 years or up to June 30, 20bis was subsequently approved by stockholders
representing at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of tiie @aApril 25, 2006. The Amended
Articles of Incorporation was approved by the SEC on Septembef@a, 2

On Apiil 27, 2010, by majority vote of the BOD and by stockholders reptiegetwo-thirds of the outstanding
capital stock, the amendment of Article VI of its Amended Articles of rimm@tion reducing the number of
directors from a maximum of eleven (11) to a maximum of (Meas been approved. This was approved by
the SEC on August 26, 2010.

On March 24, 2014, the BOD approved Atrticle Il of Articles of Incogtion to specify its principal address
from Makati City to PSBank Center, 777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio IBtiesti, City 1226. The
Amended Articles of Incorporation was approved by the SEC on Dec&2p2014.

As of DecembeB1, 2024 and 2023, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (MBTC), the Bank’s ultimate parent,
owned 88.38% of the Bank.

Market Price Information

PSBank common shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSEWYinTh89hares are traded
under the symbol “PSB”.

The high and low sales prices of the Shares as reported in the PSE foruedeh i the years ending
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and subsequent interim periods were\as:follo

Highest Lowest
2025:
January 31 P60.80 B57.20
February 28 59.20 56.00
2024:
First quarter 56.00 52.00
Second quarter 57.00 51.50
Third quarter 61.70 53.15
Fourth quarter 61.50 57.70
2023:
First quarter 57.50 55.00
Second quarter 56.95 55.00
Third quarter 58.00 54.15
Fourth quarter 56.00 50.20

Closing price as of March 12, 2025 was at B58.50 per share.
Dividends and Dividend Policy

Dividends to be paid in cash are subject to the approval by a majottity Bbard of Directors. Dividends to be
paid in the form of stocks require the approval of a majoritthefBoard and the approval of shareholders
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representing no less than twideds of the Bank’s outstanding capital stock. The Dividend Policy of the Bank is
presented in Part Il. Management Report on Compliance with Leading Practicespomate Governance.

Dividends Paid and Proposed

Details of the Bank’s dividend distributions as approved by the Bank’s BOD and the BSP follow:

Cash Dividends

Record date

Payment date

Date of declaration Per share Total amount

January 17, 2022 B0.75 B320,144,562
April 25, 2022 0.75 320,144,562
July 21, 2022 0.75 320,144,562
October 20, 2022 0.75 320,144,562
January 26, 2023 0.75 320,144,562
April 27, 2023 0.75 320,144,562
July 20, 2023 0.75 320,144,562
October 19, 2023 0.75 320,144,562
January 18, 2024 0.75 320,144,562
April 25, 2024 0.75 320,144,562
July 25, 2024 0.75 320,144,562
October 17, 2024 0.75 320,144,562

February 2, 2022
May 11, 2022
August 5, 2022
November 7, 2022
February 10, 2023
May 15, 2023
August 4, 2023
November 8, 2023
February 2, 2024
May 13, 2024
August 9, 2024
November 4, 2024

February 16, 2022
May 21, 2022
August 22, 2022
November 21, 202z
February 27, 2023
May 29, 2023
August 22, 2023
November 20, 202:
February 19, 2024
May 27, 2024
August 27, 2024
November 18, 202¢

Stock Dividends
Per share Total amount Record date
11.42% B- January 31, 2020

Date of declaration
March 12, 2019

Payment date
February 21, 2020

No unregistered securities were sold or offered for sale by the Battlefgear 2024.

Cash Dividend Declaration

On January 16, 2025, the BOD of the Bank approved the declaraon.5®% regular cash dividend for the
fourth quarter of 2024 for stockholders on record as of Fepr8, 2025 amounting to B320.1 million or
B0.75 per share, to be paid on February 17, 2025.

Holders
As of February 28, 2025, the Bank has2B,4tockholders.

Top 20 Stockholders as of February 28, 2025

Name of Stockholders No. of Shares % to Total

1 METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY? 377,279,068 88.3849%
2 DE LEON, MARIA SOLEDAD S. 26,982,249 6.3211%
3 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FILIPINOﬁ 5,372,963 1.2587%
4 DE LEON, GIAN CARLO SERRANO 3,054,440 0.7156%
5 DE LEON, LEONARD FREDERICK SERRANO 2,895,061 0.6782%
6 DE LEON, ALVIN BENJAMIN SERRANO 2,716,290 0.6363%
7 DE LEON, KEVIN ANTHONY SERRANO 2,682,950 0.6285%
8 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPINO) 2,605,955 0.6105%
9 GO, JAMES 334,723 0.0784%
10 GRAND ASIA REALTY INVESTMENT CORPORATION 325,958 0.0764%
11 QUE, LIONG H. 75,834 0.0178%
12 CHOA, JOHNNY K. 72,247 0.0169%
13 CHOA, VICTORIA K. 68,940 0.0162%
14 TY, ALEJANDRO 63,893 0.0150%
15 CHENG, BERCK Y. OR ALVIN Y. CHENG OR DIANA Y. CHENG OR

CHERYL Y. CHENG 50,138 0.0117%
16 SY, VICTOR GAN 45,654 0.0107%
17 PEREZ, MA. GEORGINA V. 44,418 0.0104%
18 DY BUNCIO, ANJANETTE TY 42,710 0.0100%
19 PEOPLE'S GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION 41,776 0.0098%
20 ROSARIO, ROLAND R. 41,762 0.0098%

1 Includes 206,331,982 shares lodged with PCD Nominee Corp.
2 Net of 206,331,982 shares owned by Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company and 18 shares owned by Arthur Ty

Note: List of Stockholders as of February 28, 2025 (record date) iglpdovnder Annex E.
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As of February 28, 2025, public ownership of the Bank was atl%..©f the total shares issued, 2,630,584
shares or 0.62% represents foreign ownership.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEADING PRACTICES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance ensures that we stay accountable and transpaxemt when no one is looking.

This is why well-governed organizations are comprised of people drivarcbgnmon purpose: to continually
build the trust and confidence of stakeholders, going beyond mewgiance with applicable laws, rules, and
regulations.

At PSBank, people and culture are at the heart of good corporate governaseed&termine how we run our
business in a prudent and sound manner, remain fair and trarispaour dealings, and provide reliable and
better service amidst the ever-growing expectations of our customers whitesante time working with
integrity and accountability.

CORE GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Our annually updated Corporate Governance Manual contains the policiesidelihgs that we follow. The
Manual is posted on our website, www.psbank.com.ph, and dntoamet site, InfoChannel (now iCentral), for
the guidance of all our stakeholders. The policies and guidelines prineadlye around three basic values that
we observe:

Fairness

We see to it that we conduct fair dealings with counterparties and other dtigkeh®Ve ensure that such
dealings, especially with our related parties, are made in the regular oborgebusiness, and upon mutually
favorable terms. Our Board-level Related Party Transactions Committee (R&Wi@}ly composed of Non-
Executive Directors, and Management-level Related Party Transactiongéfeest Committee (RPTMC),
help ensure that our transactions with kglgfarties are conducted at arm’s length terms and conditions, and
that our resources are not misappropriated.

These are in accordance with our Board-approved Related Party Trans@R#arspolicy and its specific
guidelines and handling procedures vis-a-vis set transaction magehadisholds and exposure limits. Our RPT
policy is regularly reviewed and updated on an annual basis. It was tkgedpn November 2024 to include
the relatives up to the"2degree by consanguinity and affinity of thenB’s officers from asset sales units as
part of “Other Related-Individuals” as they may pose potential conflict of interest, re-align with parent-
Metrobank’s updated RPT Policy and articulate on some other items for clarity, among other updates/changes.

Our transaction materiality thresholds for RPTs were set on a per transgotdrasis, taking into account the
high end of their historical ticket sizes, their nature, and our riskti@pThese thresholds are applied on a per
single transaction basis for one-time or non-recurring transactiontheoaggregate amount of multiple
transactions expected in a year for some arrangements with recumtirgiogy transactions. Except for loan
transactions to Directors, Officers, Stockholders, and their Related Int»&3RI), as well as to subsidiaries
and affiliates requiring prior approval of the Board of Directors undestieg Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP) rules regardless of their amounts, RPTs with amounts withée tinresholds are subject to the review
and approval of the Management-level RPTMC and endorsement of the-IBear RPTC for the Board of
Directors’ confirmation. On the other hand, those beyond such thresholds are considered “material” and shall
pass through the Board-level RPTC for review and endorsemeBo&md approval prior to their consummation
and for stockholders’ confirmation in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

In 2024, the following material RPTs were entered into between the &ahks related partigsee material
RPTstable on the next page and Note 29 of the Audited Financial Satements).

Related Parties . . . . Original Dec. 31, 2024
Relationship Nature of Transaction Terms & Conditions Amount Balance
LOANS AND OTHER CREDIT ACCOMMODATIONS
First Metro Affiliate Renewal of Existing Clean/unsecured Credit Line 1,000 N/A
Investment Php1.0 Billion Clean/ available via PNs of up to 30
Corporation Unsecured Credit Line days for additional working
(FMIC) capital purposes and to gap

intraday funding requirements
with interest rate upon drawdow
based on current BSP’s Overnight
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Related Parties

Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Terms & Conditions

Original
Amount

Dec. 31, 2024
Balance

Lending Facility (OLF) rate plus
50-75 basis points (bps) spread

PSBank Trust
Division

Trust Division

Renewal of Existing
Php1.0 Billion Domestic
Bills Purchase (DBP)
Clean Line for PSBank-
Trust Division’s Clients

Renewal of Domestic Bills
Purchase Line under the same
terms & conditions for the
purchase of local and regional
checks issued by PSBank Trust
Division’s clients payable to
PSBank Trust Division for
outright crediting of their
investments.

1,000,

N/A

Toyota Mobility
Solutions
Philippines, Inc.
(TMSPI)

Affiliate

Set-up of New Php200
Million Unsecured
Credit Line

One (1)-year unsecured Credit
Line to gap working capital
requirements, subject to annual
renewal. Interest rate is subject {
quarterly re-pricing and payable
monthly while principal is
payable at maturity. Deviations
granted were duly justified which
were also granted to other
unrelated borrowers under the
same circumstances.

200

N/A

Sawvice
Corporation

INTERCOMPANY COUNTERPARTY

Metropolitan Bank
& Trust Company
(MBTC)

Other Related
Party - Entity

Parent-Bank

New Php160 Million
Unsecured Term Loan
and Set-up of Php40
Million Unsecured
Credit Line

LINES
Annual Renewal of
Related Intercompany
Counterparty Lines of
Treasury Group

Unsecured Php160.0 Million
Term Loan to fund purchase of
various capital assets and/or for
general corporate purposes and
unsecured Php40.0 Million Cred
Line for working capital
purposes. Interest rate based o
BVAL ref. rate for 5-year tenor
plus 50-90 BPs spread on the dg
of drawdown subject to annual
and quarterly re-pricing,
respectively. Deviations grantg
were duly justified which were
also granted to other unrelated
borrowers under the same
circumstances.

Clean/unsecured Line is for
Interbank Call Loans (IBCL)
only; Secured Line is
collateralized by non-risk assets
i.e. Government securities (GS);
andPreSettlement Risk Line is
for Peso and US Dollar trading 9
Fixed Income Securities, FX
trading transactions and Peso af
US Dollar Repo transactions.

200

Clean- 7,000;
Secured -
25,000;
Settlement -750
(same/no
changes)

N/A

N/A

First Metro

Investment
Corporation
(FMIC)

Affiliate

Renewal of Existing
Php85.0 Million Pre-
Settlement Risk (PSR)
Line

Counterparty line to cover risks
for fixed income securities (i.e.,
corporate bonds, government
securities) and FX spot
transactions for maximum of T+3
for FMIC’s securities trading.

Pre-Settlement
— 85(same/no
changes)

N/A

Metropolitan Bank
& Trust Company
(MBTC)

Parent-Bank

Annual Renewal of
Related Intercompany
Lines of Trust Division

Counterparty line for investment
in Time Deposit transactions of
Trust Accounts (TAS),
earmarking of settlement amoun|
of fixed income/equity
transactions, settlement of fixed
income/equity transactions and
investments in Time Deposit
transactions of Investment
Management Accounts (IMAS)

Clean-1,000;
Pre-Settlement
- 5; Settlement

-50 & IMA -

100 (same/no
changes)

N/A

First Metro

Investment
Corporation
(FMIC)

Affiliate

Counterparty line for earmarking
of settlement amount of fixed
income/equity transactions and
settlement of fixed income/equity
transactions

Pre-Settlement
-500 &
Settlement- 500
(same/no
changes)

N/A

First Metro
Securities
Brokerage Corp.
(FMSBC)

Affiliate

Counterparty line for earmarking
of settlement amount of fixed
income/equity transactions and

settlement of fixed income/equity

Pre-Settlement
-500 &
Settlement- 500
(same/no

N/A
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Related Parties Relationship Nature of Transaction Terms & Conditions Original Deé:éls;ln,ciom
transactions changes)
PSBank Bank Proper Counterparty line for investment Clean- 1,000 N/A
in Time Deposit transactions of Pre-Settlement
Trust Accounts (TASs), — No Limit
earmarking of settlement amoun| Settlement— No
of fixed income/equity Limit
transactions, settlement of fixed IMA - 4,000
income/equity transactions and (same/no
investments in Time Deposit changes)
transactions of Investment
Management Accounts (IMAS)
INSURANCE
AXA Philippines Affiliate Annual Renewal of Total sum insured is at Php2.47 5.329 N/A
(AXA) Bank’s Money, Billion with gross annual
Securities, Payroll & premium rate of 0.2150% which
Robbery Insurance is cheaper than those offered by
Coverage other unrelated insurance
providers
OTHERS
Metropolitan Bank Parent-Bank Increase in Service Fee | In view of the upsurge in 46.460 N/A
and Trust Company rate for Cash Pick-up MBTC’s cost for armored car (increased from
(MBTC) and Delivery Services unit leasing, insurance premium the previous
Outsourced to MBTC fuel and other related operationg annual service
under Intra-group expenses which rate increase is| fee of Php31.103
Outsourcing still much cheaper than for the Million)
Bank to perform said activities
itself
Metropolitan Bank Parent-Bank Renewal of Existing Renewal of existing lease 9.710 N/A
and Trust Company Lease Agreement for contract for MBTC’s Paseo de
(MBTC) MBTC’s Paseo de Roxas | Roxas Branch at the G/F of
Branch PSBank Center for which rental
rate is generally acceptable per
latest market survey conducted
within the vicinity
PSBank Trust Trust Division | PhilPaSSplus To allow PSBank-Trust Division N/A N/A
Division Sponsorship Agreement | (as sponsored institution) to (depends on the
to Enable PSBank-Trust | participate/access the BSP- amount of BSP-
Division to Access the Securities Facility (SF) primary SF transaction
BSP Securities Facility market using the existing BSP settlement)
Primary Market Demand Deposit Account (DDA
of the PSBank Proper (as
sponsoring institution) as
settlement account for the
former’s own BSP-SF transaction
JBA Philippines Affiliate One (1)-Year Extension | Tie-up with JBA Philippines, Inc. 17.280 N/A
(JBAP) of the Existing Tie-up has proven to be a successful (estimated
Between PSBank Pre- partnership resulting to a higher annual
Owned Automart and conversion/selling rate commission fee
Affiliate-JBA due to JBAP)
Philippines (JBAP) for
the Latter’s Assistance
in Selling the Bank’s
Repossessed Cars by
Auction

Our RPT policy likewise requires our Directors and officers with perdatekest in our transaction (e.g., they
themselves or any of their close family members act as our coumygrparinhibit or abstain from the
discussion, approval, and management of such a transaction, exqapwitte material information to the
RPTC or Board about the transaction. Provisions against conflict ofsht&tuations are also stipulated in our

Board approved “Code of Conduct” such as the prohibition of self-dealing transactions.

Pursuant to

Memorandum Circular No. 10 s2019 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), or the “Rules on
Material Related Party Transactions for Publitkgted Companies,” the Bank also adopted since August 2019

a Board-approved Material Related Party Transactions (MRPT) policy that exblueidies to related party
transaction(s) amounting to at least 10% of its Total Assets based on its latést Atidancial Statement
(AFS), either individually or in aggregate over a 12-month period wélstime related party. Save for a few
differences in terms of scope, approval, reportorial and disclosurgenr@gunts, this separate policy espouses
the same key principles in handling related party transactions dikdvisse posted in our corporate website

and intranet site.
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We also ensure that our stockholders are treated equally and without discrimination by preserving stockholders’
rights and protecting ouninority stockholders’ interests, including the latter’s right to nominate candidates to
our Board of Directors.

Integrity and Accountability

We uphold at all times the value of honesty as the best policy. We bélgwveutr reputation precedes us in the
business of trust and confidence. We continue to enhance a wothkinge of integrity, guided by a Code of
Conduct that defines the standards that we must follow in our busie@lésgs and relationships.

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct is our guide in defining the norms, rates responsibilities of each and every PSBanker.

It includes provisions on:

» Disciplinary process;

» General policies to establish a professional working environment and secumabla reputation for the
Bank;

» Corrective measures for unacceptable behavior or failure to complyowithules, such as on Financial
Consumer Protection, Anti-Money Laundering/Terrorism Financing, Bath Privacy, and our other
policies and procedures;

* Schedule of penalties for attendance and punctuality, required corporate attdectcand behavior,
dishonesty, health, safety, and security, reporting of violgtiorisrmation security, and data privacy,
among others; and,

*  Provisions on management of personal finances, conflict of intargstyribery and corruption, anti-sexual
harassment, non-disclosure of information, and insider information.

Insider Trading

Under our Policy Against Insider Trading, reporting insiders are required to disclose their and their associates’
initial beneficial ownership in PSBank shares and any changes theretbie onext trading day after their
election/appointment and from the date of changes thereof, respectivelyafhdigewise prohibited from
selling or buying PSBank shares during “blackout periods,” i.e., upon obtaining material non-public information
up to two trading days after such information is disclosed.

The Bank did not have any trading transactions with reporting issided/or their associates in 2024.
Incumbent Directors’ level of share ownership and movements throughout 2024 are summarized in the table
below:

Rollforward of Common Shares
Name of Director Position Beginning Movements End
12/31/2023 % Additions Deductions | 12/31/2024 %
- Chairman & Non-
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr. Executive Director 111 0.000026 - - 111 0.000026
Vice Chairman & Non-
Arthur V. Ty Executive Director 129 0.000030 - - 129 0.000030
Rufino Luis T. Manotok Independent Director 100 0.000023 - - 100 0.000023
Ronald Luis S. Goseco | Independent Director 100 0.000023 - - 100 0.000023
Eduardo A. Sahagun Independent Director 111 0.000026 - - 111 0.000026
) Executive
Jose Vicente L. Alde Director/President 111 0.000026 - - 111 0.000026
- Non-Executive
Ferlou I. Evangelista Director 100 - 100 0.000023
Frances Gail E. Mafé NorExecutive 100 - 100 0.000023
Director

* Mr. Evangelista was elected as Non-Executive Director in April 2024 and replaced former Non-Executive Director Ms. Soledad D.S. De Leon who resigned in
January 2024.

** Ms. Male was el ected as Non-Executive Director in April 2024.and replaced former Non-Executive Director Ms. Rosanna F. De Vera whose term ended in
April 2024.

*** \With 1 vacant Board seat as of end-December 2024 due to the demise of former Independent Director Mr. Francisco S Magsajo Jr. in September 2024
which was filled up with the election of Independent Director Ms. Cecilia C. Borromeo in January 2025.

Whistleblowing

PSBank’s whistleblowing policy requires our employees to report immediately any impropriety or malpractice
committed byco-employee/s or third party/ies to their group heads or directly t@stbep Head of Internal
Audit, Fraud Management, or Human Resources, for evaluation if it wearidint an investigation. Under the
Code of Conduct, concealment or non-reporting is considered aogrigily or malpractice in itself. The
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whistleblower is protected from any form of harassment as a resatyadlisclosure which was made in good
faith believing the disclosure to be true and was not made maliciously mer&onal gain. The policy considers
any attempt to determine the whistleblower’s identity as a breach of confidentiality which is subject to
disciplinary sanctions.

The Bank has whistleblowing hotlines such as iag-expose @ psbariicand_fire@psbank.com.ph which can
only be accessed by the Internal Audit Group Head and by the Fraud Memderoup Head, respectively.

Anti-Money Laundering/Combating Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT)

PSBank subscribes to and adopts the State’s policy to protect the integrity and confidentiality of accounts and to
ensure that it shall not be used as a money laundering/terrorism finarmlifgyqtion financing site and/or
conduit for the proceeds of unlawful activities; and life, liberty andp@rty from acts of terrorism by
condemning such acts and those who support and finance it as a caimst dge Filipino people, against
humanity and against the law of nations.

We ensure that we execute transactions with our customers in accondidnttee AML/CFT policy guidelines,
procedures, tools, and controls set forth in our regularly updateéWMosundering & Terrorism Financing
Prevention Program (MTPP).

Our MTPP, as posted in our intranet site for the guidance of all genmenting personnel, primarily revolves
around the following basic AML/CFT controls required under existing AML/GHS, rules and regulations:

. Know Your Customer (KYC)/Customer Due Diligence (CDD) and KnowrEmployee (KYE);

. Ongoing Monitoring of Customers and their Transactions;

. Covered and Suspicious Transactions Reporting;

. Records Keeping and Retention;

. Employee Training and Continuing Education; and

. Compliance with Freeze Orders, KYC Requests, Bank Inquiries, Targetedcial Sanctions and other
AML/CFT rules and regulations of the Anti-Money Laundering CoursMIC) and the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP).

OO~ WNER

Our MTPP was last updated in October 2024 to include the recent ML/TF-relatedowgisisiances such as
the AMLC’s Advisory to Covered Persons on SEC’s Suspended, Revoked and Delinquent List of Corporations
and BSP Circular No. 1193 re: Guidelines and Criteria for Reporting Sigriifi¢h/TF/PF Risk Events to the
BSP, incorporate the relevant CO AML advisories recently issued and effest amendments including
documentation and articulation of existing practices. Compliance with the magui® of this MTPP is
continuously monitored by our Board-designated AML Compliance Offid®&LCO) as lead implementer
under the Compliance Office.

Transparency and Open Communication

As a publicly listed company and a responsible financial institution, we abidiebyarious disclosure
requirements of the BSP, the SEC, and the Philippine Stock Exchange YPSENsure that we are transparent
to our stakeholders by posting the latest public disclosures on the InvestorriRetatition of our website and
in our press releases. In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No014, s#e regularly update ou
website to include all required disclosures in accordance with the SEC-presabedemplate for our
stakeholders to readily check our corporate governance practices.

We also maintain an open communication line and use feedback fromstakaholders to develop better
policies, products, and services. We likewise accommodate requests for inforomatlses management of our
Bank, stockholders rights, or any other Bank-related matters, vetmilaining mindful of disclosure limitations
under existing laws on the secrecy of bank deposits and datayprivac

Our Corporate Governance Manual (CGM) serves as a valuable guide and refer@mcanplementation of
corporate governance rules and regulations, and standards of @&BPhand the SEC. Our CGM is reviewed
on an annual basis and was last updated in September 2824riwrate the role and function of the Bank’s
Lead Independent Director (LID) as duly appointed by the Board of Digettdts Resolution No. 2024-059
dated 23 May 2024 pursuant to $IeC’s Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies in line
with the standards of good practices under the ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ACGS) and the BSP’s
Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB), include in the Board of Directors’ duties and responsibilities its
oversight function of ensuring the full disclosure of all mimiminformationrequired in the Bank’s quarterly
Balance Sheet (BS) and Annual Report (AR) pursuant to BSP Circular N®.datéd 21 December 2023 re:
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Amendments to the Guidelines on Disclosures to the Public and include thee@kif@d uploading in the
Bank’s corporate website of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM) and, if any, Special
Stockholder’s Meeting (SSM) including their drafts within the prescribed deadline pursuant to SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 11 s2024 re: Minutes of the Meeting of Stockkolder

Financial Consumer Protection

With customers at the forefront of our priorities and in compliance B8R Circular No. 857, as amended by
BSP Circular No. 1048 and BSP Circular No. 1160 re: “Regulations on Financial Consumer Protection to
Implement Republic Act No. 11765, otherwise known as the Financialubto and Services Consumer
Protection Act (FCPA)”, our corporate governance system and culture includes a Financial Consumer Protection
(FCP) Framework to ensure that financial consumers’ rights are protected at all times and that consumer
protection laws, rules and regulations, standards and practices are dulyedbend embedded in our business
operations.

This framework comprises FCP Policies and Procedures, FCP Code diigGoonsumer Assistance

Management System, FCP Training Program, FCP Risk Manag&ysteim, FCP Compliance Program, FCP
Audit Program, and Financial Consumer Education and AwarenegsaRroThe framework revolves around
the core principles of consumer protection, namely:

. Disclosure and transparency;

. Protection of client information;

. Fair treatment;

. Effective recourse;

. Protection of consumer assets against fraud and misuse; and
. Financial education and awareness.

OO~ WNE

This FCP Compliance Program was updated in November 2024 tpdnate BSP Memorandum No. BD24
029 dated 19 September 2024 re: Reiteration of Guidelines on Risk Margg8ystems and Controls to
Protect Financial Accounts in relation to Section 6 of R.A. No. 12010 otherwise known as the “Anti-Financial
Account Scamming Act (AFASA)” which took effect on 13 August 2024 and BSP Memorandum No. M-2024
030 dated 24 September 2024 re: Reiteration of Protection of Consumer aksbdssuse Provisions of BSP
Circular No. 1160 in relation to Section 7 of R.A. No. 12010 otherwise known as the “Anti-Financial Account
Scamming Act (AFASA)” which took effect on 13 August 2024, subject to the BSP’s promulgation of its
detailed implementing rules & regulations (IRRs).

The Board of Directors, jointly with the Senior Management, is ultimatefponsible in establishing an
effective oversight over our consumer protection programs as well @ssuring that consumer protection
practices are embedded in our business operations.

As part of our corporate-wide risk management system spearheadadRigk Management Office (RMO), an
FCP Risk Management System (FCPRMS) is instituted to identify, measanitom and control consumer
protection risks (both risks to the financial consumers and the Bdawddent in our operations.

PSBank aims to differentiate itself from other banks by providingelient customer experience. Being
attentive and proactive to all customer feedback is one of the effetieans of doing so. While positive
feedback is welcome, we are more vigilant about negative feedback or comphkititey cover areas for
improvement. For data analytics purposes, complaints received from cliethdsiged in an automated tracking
system to manage our defined turnaround time in resolving #mehto serve as a database of all customer
complaints, including the record of actions taken. This procesglsmented in four steps, namely:

(1) Acknowledgement

(2) Decision/Disposition by designated senior officers

(3) Investigation and communication of feedback to the customer concerned
(4) Resolution of complaint

While all personnel are given access to the system for the repoitiugtomer complaints and feedback, the
investigation and resolution are handled by the following:

« Service Recovery Team (SRT)consists of the Consumer Assistance Management Department. The team is
responsible for investigation, resolution, and documentation of all mestoomplaints and feedback received
across all channels. The SRT also works with other departments, divisiag®ups in the implementation of
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interim and long-term resolution (e.g., process improvement effpdigy revision, system enhancement
personnel training).

« Designated Senior Officers:consists of senior officers or group heads tasked to provideiateédisposition
to the customer complaint.

» Emergency Recovery Team (ERT)AIl complaints/feedback that are qualified under fraud or those that may
be classified as high risk are immediately escalated to the ERT which congtstsextecutive vice President
(EVP), the customer experience and human resource group (CXHRG)imieahation technology group
(ITG) head, branch banking group (BBG) head, and marketingpdid®) head. Issues requiring PR solutions
or those with media impact are also submitted to the PR and corporate comnmusicasid.

» Process Owner Representativerespondents to the complaint. They can also be subject matter experts who
may provide valuable inputs in the immediate resolution of the complaint.

* FCPA Roundtable: a top-level advisory and action group led by a Senior Officer who adscaach. The
FCPA roundtable’s primary objective is to create a venue for discussion of customer issues, develop and
recommend actions that will lead to continuous structural improvements

At the end of each day, all customer issues received are reportedot af genior officers, including the
President and the executive vice President. The consolidated report is likelnsidexlito the RMO on a
monthly basis as part of the Key Risk Indicator (KRI) reports.

Each valid complaint arising from a service/process lapse shall have a aodiegpone demerit point against
theresponsible personnel’s performance rating.

CUSTOMER INTERACTION: Aside from the branches, we offer other channels for customer itiberac
The Customer Experience Operations Division handles loan and depositemqrequests, and complaints
coursed through Direct Banking, Call Banking, email, LiveChat, SMS, wel388ank Online, PSBank
Mobile and social media. All these channels are managed 24/7, except for DirecigBahidh caters to walk-

in clients.

. . W Inquiries  mRequests  m Complaints
Utilization/engagement per Channel:

1%

Inquiries 568,766 90%
Requests 56,336 9%
Complaints 5,287 1%
630,389 100%

Comilaints:

Environment 0 0.00%
Personnel 2 0.04%
Policy 1 0.02%
Process 63 1.19%
System 5,221 98.75%
5,287 100%

M Environment M Personnel ® Policy MProcess M System
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Data Privacy

PSBank respects and values data privacy rights and makes sure thasaalbbdata collected from its data
subjects (i.e. employees, clients & customers, suppliers, etc.y@esped in adherence to the principles of
transparency, legitimate purpose, proportionality, quality and securitpritpliance with Republic Act No.
10173 otherwise known as “The Data Privacy Act of 20127, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and the
related issuances of the National Privacy Commission (NPC). OurdBpproved Data Privacy Policy
encapsulates the privacy and data protection protocols/security measure=eth#&t be observed and carried
out within the Bank for specific circumstances (i.e. from collection astrdction) directed towards the
fulfilment and realization of the rights of our data subjects and proteofigrersonal data against natural
dangers such as accidental loss or destruction, and human dangers suakfas access, fraudulent misuse,
unlawful destruction, alteration and contamination. It was updated in Sept@@erto articulate on the
criteria when establishing and using legitimate interest as the lawful basimadfsping personal without
requiring the data subject’s consent pursuant to NPC Circular No. 2023-07 dated 13 December 2023 re:
“Guidelines on Legitimate Interest” and NPC Advisory No. 2024-02 dated 12 August 2024 réBasis for
Relying on Section 13(f) of the Data Privacy Act (DPA) in ProcessingoRal Data Instead of the Data
Subject’s Consent”; incorporate the general data privacy guidelines in the Bank’s processing of personal data
using CCTV cameras pursuant to NPC Circular No. 2024-02 dated 08stA@924 re: Closed Circuit
Television (CCTV) Systems; articulate Privdoy-Design and Privachy-Default approach in the
development, review and/or revision of policies, guidelines, projects and/orapregystems of the Bank;
include under the Bank’s physical security measures the prohibition of using of facsimile technology (fax
machine) for transmitting documents containing personal per NPC Ci2#&-06 dated 01 December 2023
data; and articulate on the National Privacy Commission’s web-based/online registration platform Registration
System (NPCRS) and its entailing requirements. .

BOARD OVERSIGHT

The Board of Directors sets the corporate governance tone in ourizatgan by ensuring adherence to
principles and standards. It is accountable to our stakeholders in rummirgank in a prudent and sound
manner to ensure long-term sustainability and success. It is prinesjlgnsible for developing, reviewing, and
approving our strategic objectives annually and thereafter monitoring aedseeing the effective
implementation with due consideration of our risk strategies, corporatengoeer and corporate values. It
monitors management’s performance against set targets and makes sure that appropriate controls and systems of
checks and balances are in place and operating effectively.

For the most part until September 2024 when one of our IndepeDdentors passed away, there were nine
Directors in our Board, four of whom are Independent Directors,doaiNon-Executive Directors, and one is
an executive Director who is also the President of the Bank. They areadified business professionals with
the required expertise and experience in directing our strategic path. sefeition was based on their
qualifications (i.e., integrity/probity, physical/mental fitness, competenedevant education/financial
literacy/training, diligence and knowledge/experience) without discriioimagainst gender, age, and ethnic,
political, religious, or cultural backgrounds, and therefore achievingsitiyén the Board.

In accordance with our By-Laws, Directors are elected by the vote d¢falders of common stock of the Bank
in accordance with Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code of thepRtaipand other pertinent applicable
laws. Any stockholder may submit nominations for Directorial posititmsthe Corporate Governance
Committee. The Committee then screens the qualifications of the nominees idaaceowith screening
policies and procedures, and parameters, including alignment with our strategitods by attaining an
optimal mix of skills and talents and balanced Board membership.

In identifying potential candidates, the Bank may consult whatever resoudessyis appropriate, including but

not limited to, referrals from existing Directors and officers, reconttagons from a third-party search firm or
suggestions from stockholders or by checking on the external datafakesinstitute of Corporate Directors

(ICD) or other professional search firms. Only nominees whosesappear in the final list of candidates are
considered for election as Directors at the annual meeting of the stockholders.

We have consistently maintained Independent Directors who provide inéepgmdgment, outside experience,
and obijectivity. In our nine-seat Board, we have four Indeperdiattors. This is more than the required
minimum number of Independent Directors. We do not have any Neodixe Director holding a total of
more than five Board seats in publicly listed companies.

Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, meet regularinoannual basis, other than in
meetings of the Audit, Risk Oversight, Corporate Governance and®Bdlaed-level committees in the absence
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of any executive Director and Senior Management, with the externabmaadd the heads of internal audit,
compliance and risk management functions to scrutinize gaarat’s performance particularly in meeting our
goals and objectives and to determine the integrity of our internal conttbiffantiveness of risk management
systems. Further, the Board also meets annually with the Audit Granwithout the presence of the
President/Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and any other management teatmensetm discuss and resolve any
significant issues.

Our Chairman provides active leadership by ensuring that our Boardtsamdrious committees function
effectively, including maintaining a relationship of trust among Boaechbers. Our Chairman also ensures that
our Board follows a sound decision making process.

Individual Directors are tasked to observe the fit-and-proper rukey @he expected to conduct fair business
dealings, avoid conflict of interest, and observe confidentiality. They actishonestly, judiciously and in good
faith, and uphold the best interest of our Bank and its stakeholdersmitstyalso devote time and attention to
their duties and responsiitties and contribute to our Board’s decision-making process. They must exercise
independent judgment and have a working knowledge of laws, rulesguidtions applicable to our Bank.

All new members of the Board of Directors are furnished with § odpheir duties and responsibilities and are
provided with a comprehensive training on corporate governance, as part of the BSP’s requirements in
confirming elected bank Directors. Together with our principal officars Directors attended in July 2024 an
annual refresher program on Corporate Governance via Zoom wehisaapt to SEC Memorandum Circular
No. 20 s2013 and as conducted by the Center for Global Best Practices (GGBEC-accredited training
provider. Topics covered in said webinar are Best Leadership Practices foarehdffective Change
Management, Executive Briefing on Governance Framework on Data ProtaantioByber-security, Updates
on Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA) and The Next Level in ESG & Susaility-Going Beyond
Compliance and Reporting.

Our Board has access to our Corporate Secretary who manages the fliiwnadiion to the Board prior to the
meetings. The Office of the Corporate Secretary plays a significant rolpporsing the Board in discharging
its responsibilities as it administers, attends, and prepares the agehdainames of Board meetings, and
ensures that notices required under the By-Laws and/or applicable rules emetgiall Directors and
stockholders. Regular Board meetings are also scheduled in advance veéhinbriaually set every third
Thursday of the month. Directors typically attend Board meeting®iison or facee-face and are given the
access/option also to attend virtually whenever necessary or as applicablas tohgovide flexibility and
convenience to the members of the Board.

Our Board also reviews and approves all policy manuals to ensure that rggettaioges and best practices are
included. They have access to a permanent compilation of documents telptest Board activities. They can
readily seek clarification from Senior Management should they have rosnabout our Bank or any item
submitted for their consideration.

Board Committees
A number of Board-level committees were created to aid our Board in iitgisdasks to ensure efficiency and
provide greater focus. Four of these committees are in charge of goveomarsight functions, as follows:

The Corporate Governance Committee (CGC)is tasked to assist our Board in fulfilling its duties and
responsibilities and monitoring our adherence to the corporate govepramtples and guidelines set forth in
our Corporate Governance Manual, including the functions forrasdigned to the Nomination Committee and
Compensation and Remuneration Committee which were both dissolvedtagdted into this committee
since 2017. It also oversees the development and effective implememthiiam compliance system. The
Committee is composed of three Directors, all of whom are Independent Birdamuding the committee
Chairperson. The Committee meets monthly and is supported Ioowpliance Office (CO).

The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) is responsible for the development and oversight of our risk
management program. The Committee is composed of three menibéms Board of Directors. Two or
majority of its voting members are Independent Directors, including figirgerson, who is neither the
Chairman of the Board nor of any other Board-level committee. The iR@fbers possess a range of expertise
and adequate knowledge of our risk exposures, which is neededetolappropriate strategies for preventing
or minimizing losses. The Committee meets monthly and is supporiegr lRisk Management Office (RMO).
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The AML Oversight Committee (AMLOC) is tasked to assist our Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibility over our AML compliance management. It ensures that wplcawith the provisions of the
Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA), as amended, its Revised Ibngenting Rules and Regulations (RIRRS),
the provisions of the Anti-Terrorism Act (ATA), the Anti-FinanciofjTerrorism Act (AFTA), the Strategic
Trade Management Act (STMA) and their Implementing Rules and RegulafiBfs); the regulatory
issuances and orders of the Anti-Money Laundering Council (AM&@) BSP AML/CFT regulations to the
end that the Bank shall not be used as a vehicle to legitimize the profesdimswful activity or to facilitate or
finance terrorism. The Committee is composed of three Directors, @hvitvo are Non-Executive Directors,
including the Chairperson and an Independent Director. The Committeemuedtdy and is supported by our
Compliance Office (CO).

The Audit Committee (AuditCom) is designated to provide independent oversight for our financial regortin
process, system of internal control and risk management, internabxdachal audits, as well as fraud
management functions, and monitoring of compliance with Bank pol@gsicable laws, rules, regulations,
and Code of Conduct. It is composed of three Non-Executive Disectibof whom are independent, including
the committee Chairperson, who is not the Chairman of the Board oft@&ewr of any other Board-level
committee. The committee members have accounting, auditing, or related finaap@jement expertise or
experience commensurate with the size, complexity of operations andaig& pf the Bank. The Committee
meets monthly and as needed, and is supported by our Internal Aadi BAG) and the Fraud Management
Group (FMG).

Other Board-level committees are as follows:

The Executive Committee (ExCom)is tasked, among others, to regularly review and approve cregibgals
within its limits. It recommends additional conditions and requirememi®an applications. The Committee is
composed of four Directors which includes the President, and @it Collections Group Head as the
Bank’s representative.

TheRelated Party Transactions Committee (RPTC]s tasked to assist the Board in ensuring that transactions
with related parties are reviewed, appropriate restrictions are followed, and corpscatees are judiciously
used. The Committee is composed of three Non-Executive Directorsy twajarity of whom are Independent
Directors, including the committee Chairperson. It meets monthly asdpisorted by our Compliance Office
(CO).

The Trust Committee (TrustCom) is a special committee tasked to be primarily responsible for oversheing t
fiduciary activities of the Bank. It is composed of five members, nartted President, the Trust Officer, a non-
executive director, an independent director who is the committee chairperdamn amependent professional.
It meets quarterly, and is supported by our Trust Division.

The attendance records in 2024 for these committees were logged as follows:

Corporate Governance Committee (CGC)

Members Position Attendance %
Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr.* Chairperson 6/8 75%
Independent Director
Eduardo A. Sahagun Member 11/12 92%
Independent Director
Rufino Luis T. Manotok Member 12/12 100%
Independent Director
Gilbert L. Nunag Secretary 12/12 100%
Chief Compliance & Data Protection
Officer

*Term ended on September 17, 2024 (deceased).

Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

Members Position Attendance %
Ronald Luis S. Goseco Chairperson 12/12 100%
Independent Director
Jose Vicente L. Alde Member 12/12 100%
Executive Director/President
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Members Position Attendance %
Eduardo A. Sahagun Member 12/12 100%
Independent Director
Edeza A. Que Secretary 12/12 100%
Chief Risk & Sustainability Officer
AML Oversight Committee (AMLOC)

Members Position Attendance %
Ferlou I. Evangelista* Chairperson 8/8 100%
Non-Executive Director
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr.** Member 12/12 100%
Non-Executive Director
Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr.*** Member 6/8 75%
Independent Director
Rosanna F. De Vera**** Member 3/4 75%
Non-Executive Director
*Elected as Non-Executive Director in April 2024 and replaced Mr. Cuna Jr. as AMLOC Chairperson starting May 2024.
**Served as AMLOC Chairperson until April 2024.
*** Term ended on September 17, 2024 (deceased).
**x* Served as AMLOC member until April 2024.
Audit Committee (AuditCom)

Members Position Attendance %
EDUARDO A. SAHAGUN
Independent Director Chairperson 13/14 93%
RUFINO LUIS T. MANOTOK
Independent Director Member 14/14 100%
RONALD LUIS S. GOSECO
Independent Director Member 14/14 100%
SHERWIN U. LEE
Chief Audit Executive Secretary 14/14 100%
Executive Committee (ExCom)

Members Position Attendance %
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr. .
Non-Executive Director Chairman 12/12 100
Arthur V. Ty
Non-Executive Director Member 10712 83
Jose Vicente L. Alde
Executive Director/President Member 12112 100
Rosanna F. De Vera*
Non-Executive Director Member 44 100
Ferlou I. Evangelista**
Non-Executive Director Member 8/8 100
Mary Myleen M. Masanque
PSBank Representative Member 12/12 100
Jose M. Manuel, Jr. Secretary
Legal Services Division Head 12/12 100

Arlyn S. Montebon
Legal Documentation Department Head

Alternate Secretary

*Termended in April 2024.

**Elected as Non-Executive Director in April 2024 and replaced former Non-Executive Director Ms. De Vera as ExCom Member starting May 2024.

Related Party Transactions Committee (RPTC)

Members Position Attendance %

Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon * Member 1/1 100%
Non-Executive Director

Rufino Luis T. Manotok Chairperson 12/12 100%
Independent Director

Ronald Luis S. Goseco Member 12/12 100%
Independent Director

Frances Gail. E. Male ** Member 8/8 100%

Non-Executive Director
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Members

Position

Attendance

%

Gilbert L. Nunag
Chief Compliance & Data Protection
Officer

Secretary

12/12

100%

* Resigned effective January 31, 2024.

**Elected as Non-Executive Director in April 2024 and replaced former Non-Executive Director Ms. De Leon as RPTC

Member starting May 2024.

Trust Committee (TrustCom)

Members Position Attendance %
- - "

E}g;;?;gt SD.irli?ogrsajo Jr. Chairperson 2/4 50%
Rommel Enrico C. Dionisio Member 4/4 100%
Independent Professional

Jose Vicente L. Alde o

Executive Director/President Member a/4 100%
Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon** o

Non-Executive Director Member U1 100%
_Frﬁge(')f'ﬁé Javier Member 414 100%
Frances Gail E. Male**

Non-Executive Director Member 313 100%

* Term ended on September 17, 2024 (deceased) and was replaced by newly elected Independent Director Ms. Cecilia C. Borromeo as TrustCom Chair in
January 2025.

**Ms. De Leon resigned effective January 31, 2024 and was succeeded by Non-Executive Director Ms. Frances Gail E. Male as TrustCom member in April
2024.

Board Meetings.In 2024, our Board had 14 meetings, in addition to the annual stockholders’ meeting (ASM)
and organizational meeting. Directors logged a 94% attendance rate. Attendande tee&ward meetings in
2024 are summarized below.

MEMBERS ATTENDANCE % ASM
Vicente R. Cuna, Jr.
Chairman and Non-Executive Director 14/14 100 YES
Arthur V. Ty
Vice Chairman and Non-Executive Director 13114 93 YES
Rufino Luis T: Manotok 14/14 100 VES
Independent Director
Ronald Luis S. Goseco
Independent Director 14714 100 YES
Eduardo A. S_ahagun 12/14 86 VES
Independent Director
Jose Vicente L. Alde
President and Executive Director 14/14 100 YES
Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon*
Non-Executive Director mn 100 N/A
Rosanna F. De Vera**
Non-Executive Director 414 100 N/A
Ferlou I. Evangelista*
Non-Executive Director 10/10 100 YES
Frances Gail E. Male**
Non-Executive Director 10/10 100 YES
Francisco S. Magsajo, Jr.***
Independent Director 5/9 56 YES

* Mr. Evangelista was elected as Director in April 2024, replacing Ms. De Leon who resigned in January 2024.
** Ms. Male was el ected as a Non-Executive Director and replaced former Non-Executive Director Ms. De Verain April 2024.
*** Term ended on September 17, 2024 (deceased).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT
Senior Management.Our Senior Management team, headed by our President as the @igetite Officer

(CEO), consists of a core group of senior officers who managdayto-day operations and business affairs.
They exercise good governance by ensuring that line managersthalerespective areas of responsibility
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execute their activities in a manner consistent with Board-approved policiestratehic directions. These
should be aligned with applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as dtaoidgood practice.

Management Committees.To achieve efficiency and provide greater focus for our Senior Mamagein
overseeing key areas of banking operations, we have various Naggievel committees tasked as follows:

» The Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO manages our assets and liabilities consistent with our
liquidity, capital adequacy, growth, risk tolerance and appetite, and piiitfitgbals.

* The Credit Committee (CRECOM) regularly reviews and approves credit proposals within the authodty an
limits set by our Board.

» The Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Committee (AMLCC) is designated by the Board to receive,
evaluate, and decide whether or not a Suspicious Transaction Reportst&llR)e filed with the Anti-Money
Laundering Council Secretariat (AMLCS) for cases or incidents reporteteeated by various business or
operating units of the Bank. It also provides support to our Conggligiffice in terms of AML policy
review/development, and in addressing AML deficiencies/adverse findings.

» The Outsourcing Oversight Committee (OOC)oversees the accreditation of service providers, performance
monitoring, post-implementation reviews including materiality, emvivtent and social risk assessment and
contract renewals in accordance with our Board-approved risk-basedif@inigdPolicy Guidelines pursuant to
existing BSP rules and regulations on outsourcing.

» The IT Steering Committee (ITSC) monitors IT performance and institutes appropriate actions to ensure
achievement of desired results. It is accountable for designing and implegnentr Board-approved
Information Technology Risk Management System (ITRMS).

» The Emergency Committee (EMCOM) manages and monitors the effective implementation of our Business
Continuity Plan (BCP). It aims to provide our Bank with the capghitit continue its critical functions and
processes by identifying, assessing and managing emergency scandrider business interruptions.

» The Policy Committee (POLCOM) resolves policy-related issues that require escalation or cross-functional
discussion.

» The Personnel Committee (PERCOM)assists our Senior Management in evaluating the performance and
career advancement of our employees, deciding on employee offenda@hdtive cases, and in maintaining
personnel policies and procedures, including our Code of Conduct.

* The Retirement Committee (RETCOM) exclusively administers our Gratuity and Retirement Benefit Plan.

» The Related Party Transactions Management Committee (RPTMCassists the Board-level RPTC and the
Board of Directors in ensuring that transactions with related parties, with respect to those considered as “non-
material” (i.e., within the set transaction materiality thresholds) are conducted at arm’s length/fair terms and
conditions.

* The Investment Committee (INCOM) establishes investment guidelines and oversees the investment
activities of the Bank. It monitors and reports the overall investment remultsreviews compliance with
investment objectives and guidelines.

» The Occupational Safety and Health Committee (OSHCOM)serves as the official planning and policy-
making group of the Bank in all matters pertaining to sadetl/health pursuant to Rule 1040 of the DOLE’s
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Standards.

OUR GOVERNANCE VANGUARDS

Our compliance, risk management, and internal audit functions are thenfeeesun our relentless drive to

promote and uphold the noblest tenets and highest standards of gpodato governance across all our
business operations.
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Compliance

Ensuring our compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, mmismum requirement, is our
collective duty and team effort. It begins with our Board and Senior Maragexnthe top and down the line to
our various business and operating units in accordance withoaud Bpproved compliance system. The design
and implementation of this program is administered and annualbteghtdy our Compliance Office, led by our
Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) who directly reports to our Corpo@teernance Committee and to our
Board.

Our annually updated Bank Compliance Program has a three-prondetlasex approach to effectively
manage our compliance risks by ensuring compliance with pertinenngdalvs, rules and regulations, codes
of conduct, policies and standards of good practice. Its prioritysfand compliance testing frequency depends
on the pre-assessed level of risk the business/operating unitharenity exposed relative to the number and
magnitude or severity of pertinent requirements applicable to them. lip@ased in October 2024 to enhance
certain compliance processes, update Compliance Office’s organizational structure and document certain
existing compliance practices.

This three-pronged strategy is structured to be operated by threkakeys, namely:

1. The line units are the first line of defense being the risk owners and emanag
2. The Compliance Office (CO) is the second line of defense and the cooepfisk overseers.
3. The Internal Audit Group (IAG) is the third line of defense as the independemtase provider.

Aside from monitoring and controlling compliance risk, our Chiefnptiance Officer (CCO) also tracks our
Bank’s adherence to our Corporate Governance Manual, which is aligned with the SEC’s Revised Code of
Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies, and embodies all CG-relagdnd regulations of the
BSP. Cases of non-compliance are required to be reported to our@warchan who ensures due process and
determines appropriate sanctions. The Bank fully and continuallylesmyth the material requirements of the
SEC’s Revised Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies as embodied in its Board-
approved Corporate Governance Manual.

Our Compliance Office continually strives to maintain our strong diamge culture in the midst of an ever-
dynamic banking regulatory landscape. It proactively identifiesnamwitors, assesses, and addresses emerging
compliance issues, vigorously promotes continuing education througtal/informal trainings, compliance
awareness testing, compliance checking, and advisory service throlegih and open communication line; and
fosters good corporate governance culture by benchmarking agairsttyrukest practices and standards.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Group (IAG) is established by the Board of Directorsesigonsibilities are defined by the
Audit Committee (AuditCom) as part of its oversight function. The @sepof the internal audit function is to
strengthen the Bank’s ability to create, protect and sustain value by providing the Board and Management with
independent, risk-based and objective assurance, advice, insight, and foresight.

IAG adheres to the Institute of Internal Auditors’ Global Internal Audit Standards. IAG is headed by the Chief
Audit Executive (CAE) who reports functionally to the Board throughAbditCom and administratively to the
President. The CAE annually confirms to the Board the organizationaleindepce of the internal audit
activity and its conformance with the Standards.

IAG, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding res@nad information, is authorized to:

1. Have full, free, and unrestricted access to all Bank functions, recordsripeepand personnel pertinent to
carrying out any engagement;

2. Have direct and unrestricted access to Senior Management and the Board thredgghittBom;

3. Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes pfapmitk the required
procedures and techniques, and issue communications to accomplish the internal audit function’s
objectives; and

4. Obtain assistance from the necessary Bank personnel and other specgalizass rom within or outside
the Bank to complete internal audit services.

To maintain independence and objectivity, IAG remains free from émterte by any element in the
organization, including audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency,,tomireport content.
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OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

Our Directors and officers are provided with an industry competitivgpeasation package to attract, motivate,
and retain highly qualified people. The salary scales of our offigestsiding that of our President or Chief
Executive Officer (our sole executive Director), are generally based orathee rof their jobs, positions, and
ranks. These are reviewed annually vis-a-vis annual performanceasdsrso structured to achieve business
objectives and adjusted as needed, based on performance.

Our compensation package for non-officers/rank-and-file employges1 accordance with labor law
requirements and is linked to both performance and our contractigatmn under a collective bargaining
agreement which include loyalty bonuses for long-term employees.

We also grant fixed bonuses, including a 13th-month pay in acea@deith the law, and a performance bonus
(non-guaranteed) based on our overall performance, individual perfoemend market conditions.

Our Board sees to it that this remuneration strategy is regularly exli¢as ensure that the policy is
commensurate with corporate and individual performance, aligned with ragstdom interests, compliant with
labor laws and regulations, and benchmarked against our industsygmeeother market considerations, while
also maintaining internal equity.

Except for the President/Chief Executive Officer, each Director receives a yngtifessional fee for
attending Board and committee meetings. This is also in consideration of’aheble contributions in the
formulation of the Bank’s overall strategy.

The total per diem and transportation allowance paid to Directors for thedaitanin Board meetings for the
period January to December 2024 was Php17.3 Million. Our remuneratioy foo Directors indicates that the
Chairman, Vice Chairpersons, and each of the Directors receive reasonaldienperfor attendance at any
Board meeting. There is nothing in the By-Laws that prevent®éegtor from serving any other capacity and
receiving compensation.

We have been consistent in preaching the philosophy of meritocracythewiahur total rewards programs are
geared towards providing incentives to employees who have contributexidoccess of the Bank.

» Merit Increase. Annual increases are given to employees based on their relative performénioettve
organization. The Bank has adopted an increase matrix that rewardsehigimers without neglecting those
rated as standard performers, or those who were able to perform aéxpmwarding the most productive
encourages others to perform better. This procedure on merit increase icomediately after the performance
appraisal exercise for the employees to relish the fruits of their hard ndroatributions to the growth of the
Bank.

» Other Performance Incentives.Based on the overall company performance, i.e., attainment by the Bank of
stipulated income, we grant a return on equity (ROE) bonus to rahklaemployees.

* HE1GHTS: Reaching the Peak of TopnotcHPerformance. This productivity-based award is given quarterly
and annually to an individual or team for achieving exceptional perfarenaln 2024, top-performing
PSBankers from Branch Banking Group, Credit and Collections Gamgpindirect Sales Channel Group were
recognized for achieving 100% or higher of their target productivity.

« Job Evaluation. We regularly conduct job evaluation to measure and benchmark Bank mesitea-vis the
banking industry and for certain niche roles, with other industries too

» Salary Structure Program. We conduct salary restructuring to ensure that the salaries of the employees are
equitable to what the industry offers. The Bank recognizes the neaitrdot and retain top talent, thus i
reviews the existing scale periodically to ensure competitiveness.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SELECTION PROCESS

The Bank has pre-defined job descriptions for its Senior Managemsitiops (i.e., those to be held by officers
from assistant vice President and up). It evaluates the qualificafiamernal and/or external candidates for the
available positions.

Every candidate undergoes a series of interviews by the line head, CuBtgaeaence and Human Resources

Group, and the President. Any hiring or appointment to the role istbjthe approval of the President and
the Board of Directors.
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OUR RETIREMENT AND SUCCESSION POLICY

As a matter of policy, the compulsory retirement age for our regulplogees (officers and staff) is at 55 years
old. This has been established in our Retirement and Gratuity Plgnagiuoved by the Bureau of Internal

Revenue. To aid in workforce planning, we review the roster ofames reaching the compulsory retirement
age before the end of the applicable year.

Appropriate notification is arranged, and deferential treatment is accorded to estipbmyees, ensuring that
they receive the compensation for their loyal service within 30 dayslsdieeffective date of retirement.

In 2024, succession was again among our focus areas for Taleagdaent. The Bank continued with its
comprehensive Succession Planning Program which consists aftdiyes: (1) identification of the successor,
(2) assessment of the gap, (3) addressing the gap, (4) evaluatiofB)aintblementation. This instituted
program helps ensure the continuity and viability of the busifesstions that are critical to the business have
identified “Ready Now” and “Ready Later — Ready in 1-3 Years or Ready in53¥ears” replacements, which

are reviewed periodically. Potential successors are subjected to Individual fm&etoPlans, which are a
combination of classroom trainings, cross-postings, immersiomgpradevelopment assignments. Strategic
workforce planning is also implemented annually to ensure that critical pssitrenfilled up and that Talent
Acquisition is ready to provide external talents if deemed necessary.

Except for certain persons such as Filipino citizens with recognizedestaitluence, and reputation in the
banking and business community, and whose business practices agtarestimonies to good corporate
governance, we have adopted an age limit of 75 years old asmlgere for Directors, patterned after that of
our parent bank. Upon the recommendation of the Corporate Govef@amesittee, this age limit for Directors
may be waived by the Board if such a waiver is deemed to the best intethst Bnk. Our Independent
Directors may only serve as such for a maximum cumulative temnmefyears, after which the Independent
Director shall be perpetually barred from re-election, but may continugatifygfor nomination and election as
a non-independent or regular Director. Succession or filling up any vasamdlee Board of Directors shall be
made by the vote of at least a majority of the remaining Directostillitonstituting a quorum. Vacancies
occurring by reason of removal by the stockholders, by expirafiterm, or by an increase in the number of
Directors, however, shall be filled by the stockholders in a regulspenial meeting called for this purpose.

OUR DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividends to be paid in cash are subject to the approval by a majottity Bbard of Directors. Dividends to be
paid in the form of stocks require the approval of a majoritthefBoard and the approval of shareholders
representing no less than two-thirds of our outstanding capital stock.

Consistent with SEC rules, cash dividends declared by the Bank mesa magord date of not less than 10 but
not more than 30 business days from the date the cash disidee declared/approved by the Board. With
respect to stock dividends, the record date should not be less tham it more than 30 business days from
the date of the stockholders’ approval; provided, however, that the set record date should not be less than 10
business days after the PSE has received the notice of declaration of saekddiBSP regulations have since
allowed banks to fix the record date and payment date on the date of diddeladation, and pay such
dividends without prior BSP approval, with the exception of bankk wihjor supervisory concerns. In the
event that a stock dividend is declared in connection with an increase iorizadhcapital stock, the
corresponding record date is to be fixed by the SEC.

Unless approved by a majority vote of the Board at a different rate depemdliogr earnings/results of
operations, cash flow, financial condition and other factors or oiberwestricted/prohibited from
declaring/paying dividends, the Bank regularly declares out of its unrestréttéded earnings and pays cash
dividends at a payout ratio of PhP3.00 per share per annum @7Biger share per quarter, provided that these
comply with the regulatory requirements of the SEC and the B8Buristances which could restrict the
payment of cash dividends include, but are not limited to, when th& Baglertakes major projects and
developments requiring substantial cash expenditures or when it is rednictegaying cash dividends by its
loan covenants. Provided likewise that the Bank is not restricted/prohitaitadieclaring/paying dividends and
that all such regulatory requirements are complied with, the Bank maydatdare out of its unrestricted
retained earnings and pay out special cash dividends (on topefular quarterly cash dividends) at such rate
as may also be approved via majority vote of the Board of Directors.
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The aggregate amount of quarterly cash dividends declared by the BO#distood at Php1.28 Billion.
Details are shown under Note 21 of the Audited Financial Statements section.

OUR GOVERNANCE EVALUATION

Every first quarter of each year, our Board, individual Directiesy respective oversight committees, and all
other Board-level committees, as well as the President and all Management-level committhed, axanual
self-rating exercises on their performance during the immediately prgasadendar year.

Using scorecards, this exercise aims to gauge their effectiveness anurietehe areas of improvement vis-a-
vis set performance standards that are consistent with our strategitivay and business plans designed to
continuously create value to all our stakeholders. Items subject to aatirthe pertinent standards, as well as
their duties and responsibilities, under @08at rating scale, to wit: “3”-Meets Standards (MS),“2”-Needs
Improvement (NI), and “1”-Not Observed (NO), with an enjoinder to provide suggestions ertdhvaddress the
deficiencies/improve performance on items rated either “1” or “2”.

Our Corporate Governance Committee reviews the scorecard results, whichparted to our Board of
Directors and, thereafter, regularly tracked in terms of the status efsaduy the areas needing improvement.
This annual performance rating exercises also include that of the ChairtherBmard, the Chief Risk Officer,
the Chief Audit Executive, the Chief Compliance Officer, Directors/offiweith multiple/interlocking positions
and of the entire Bank.

Trainings

In 2024, the PSBank Business Campus (PBC) continued to offéx afim-person and virtual trainings for

PSBankers all year-round. These hybrid setups helped ensure that esgletyée Learning and Development
programs they needwhether they are joining through virtual platforms or attendingghming sessions face-
to-face.

Among the teams which received customized and targeted programs matidor Technology Group (ITG),
one of the biggest employee groups in the Bank. With the goal of making the Bank’s IT workforce adept with
Industrial Revolution 4.0 skills, they were included again in the pyiteérners for 2024.

The IT trainings with the most number of attendees were the following:

IT Training Programs Number of Participants

(Technical and Developmental)

Workplace Wellness: Towards A Healthier You 73
Introduction to Agile Project Management 36
Essentials of Strategic Management 33
Basic SQL 27
React and Node.js 27
Systems Analysis and Design 26
Project Management Fundamentals 22
Windows Operating System Installation and Administration 22
C# Fundamentals 21
Linux Operating System and Administration 20
Leadership for Beginners 19
U-BIX Troubleshooting 17
Internal Controls and Audit 14
Effective Time Management 14
Basic Scripting Linux 14
Leading with Emotional Intelligence 14
ITIL Problem Management and Its Practical Application to PSBank 13
Effective Presentation 13
ITIL Event Management and Its Practical Application to PSBank 10
Basics of Project Management 10
Experiential Change Management and Simulation Game 10
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Aside from tailor-fit technical and developmental trainings, PBC also continygddace a pool of IT Leaders
through the IT Officership Program (ITOP). Eighteen (18) additiomatigipants of ITOP concluded their
trainings and are currently assigned as Systems Analysts (15), KeSwecialist (1), and Systems Engineers
(2) — ready to assume various fields of specializations in IT. As advocatesiiiumus learning, the ITG
personnel also looked for external trainings, short courses, @nthgy sessions some of which were free
which they could enroll in, based on the program’s applicability to their respective functions. A total of 1,064 IT
trainings were delivered in 202482 of these were internal and 982 were online, self-paced external session

HR-Learning & Development (L&D) continued its collaboration with ITG in 2024 to enhance the Bank’s
Cloud-based Learning Management System, MOODLE (Modular Object-OrieDigthmic Learning
Environment). This initiative strengthened our commitment to deliveringvative and accessible training
solutions, keeping PSBankers #AlwaysForward in their learningggurn
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PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 31

Amount %

Amount

%

Amount %

2024

2023

2022

2021

2024 vs 2023

2023 vs 2022

2022 vs 2021

ASSETS

Cash and Other Cash Items P1,781,441,158 P1,653,554,961 P1,930,720,274 $2,801,335,279 P127,886,197 7.73% (P277,165,313) -14.36%  (P870,615,005) -31.08%
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 1,183,357,292 9,745,633,911 37,553,243,574 52,427,713,760 568,276,619) -87.86%  (27,807,609,663) -74.05% (14,874,470,186) -28.37%
Due from Other Banks 1,815,099,522 1,764,229,676 2,910,493,038 1,366,924,524 50,869,8188% (1,146,263,362) -39.38%  1,543,568,514 112.92%
Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased
Under Resale Agreements 400,000,000 6,989,635,680 2,669,609,031 4,532,877,908 (6,589,635,680) -94.28% 4,320,026,649 161.82%  (1,863,268,877) -41.11%
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) Investments 300,599,156 414,298,313 35,875 44,701 (113,699,157) -27.44% 414,262,4381154738.50% (8,826) -19.74%
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 25,892,190,851  54,359,693,631 69,660,715,882 60,266,508 (28,467,502,780) -52.37%  (15,301,022,251) -21.97% 9,394,211,534 15.59%
Investment Securities at Amortized Cost 30,096,321,212  29,893,168,043 30,422,284,704 980,346,722 203,153,169 0.68% (529,116,661) -1.74%  9,459,937,982  45.13%
Loans and Receivables 143,823,452,568 122,764,412,226 109,697,304,552 110,301,826 21,059,040,341 17.15%  13,067,107,675 11.91% (414,201,274) -0.38%
Investment in a Joint Venture 892,036,809 870,178,530 816,284,853 762,926,364 21,858,27.81% 53,893,677 6.60% 53,358,489 6.99%
Property and Equipment 3,193,122,788 3,141,957,377 3,126,723,127 2,938,455,849 51,165,4163% 15,234,250 0.49% 188,267,278 6.41%
Investment Properties 3,640,816,902 3,934,950,184 4,031,471,065 3,508,598,106 (294,133,282 7% (96,520,881) -2.39% 522,872,959  14.90%
Deferred Tax Assets 1,318,508,161 1,257,607,610 280,113,544 576,786,519 60,900,5684% 977,494,066 348.96% (296,672,975) -51.44%
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 460,788,987 298,197,196 333,890,899 361,193,084 162,591 5952% (35,693,703) -10.69% (27,302,185) -7.56%
Other Assets 1,559,037,180 1,345,778,616 988,118,816 1,188,896,822 213,258 B685% 357,659,800 36.20% (200,778,006) -16.89%
216,356,772,586 238,433,295,954 264,421,009,233 261 B0%812 (22,076,523,368) -9.26%  (25,987,218) -9.83% 2,614,899,421 1.0(
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities
Demand $25,535,370,093 $25,325,912,039 $26,602,133,863 $26,939,262,124 $£209,458,054 0.83% (P1,276,221,824) -4.80%  (P337,128,261) -1.25%
Savings 47,745,087,366  46,463,448,245 46,933,474,339 348,797,393 1,281,639,121 2.76% (470,026,094) -1.00%  1,613,676,946 3.56%
Time 91,272,571,647 112,749,125,906 135,158,982,248 136,088,765  (21,476,554,259) -19.05% (22,409,856)342 -16.58% (936,056,517) -0.69%
Long-term Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 5,084,217,598 5,077,602,528 8,441,451,6035,084,217,598) -100.00% 6,615,070 0.13% (3,363,849,075) -39.85%
164,553,029,106 189,622,703,788 213,772,192,978 216,59%,885 (25,069,674,682) -13.22% (24,149,489190 -11.30% (3,023,356,907) -1.39%
Bills Payable 271,896,461 1,185,944,975 (271,896 UBELDPO% (914,048,514) -77.07%  1,185,944,975  0.00%
Bonds Payable - - 4,648,449,939 4,633,613,322 0.00% (4,648,449,939) -100.00% 14,836,617 0.32%
Treasurer’s, Cashier’s and Manager’s Checks 1,615,438,412 1,514,065,655 1,014,225,796 593,630,994 101,372, %®70% 499,839,859 49.28% 420,594,802 70.85%
Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses 2,246,446,273 2,663,537,503 2,506,216,736 1,684,762,235 (417,091,2%056% 157,320,767 6.28% 821,454,501 48.76%
Income Tax Payable - - - 80,547 0.00% - 0.00% (80,547) -100.00%
Other Liabilities 3,835,930,737 4,206,934,631 4,154,367,586 3,204,395,695 (371,003,88482% 52,567,045 1.27% 949,971,891  29.65%
172,250,844,528 198,279,138,038 227,281,398,010 226032678 (26,028,293,510) -13.13% (29,002,239) -12.76% 369,365,332 0.16%

(Forward)
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December 31

Amount %

Amount

%

Amount %

2024 2023 2022 2021 2024 vs 2023 2023 vs 2022 2022 vs 2021
EQUITY
Common Stock P4,268,594,160 P4,268,594,160 P4,268,594,160 P4,268,594,160 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Capital Paid in Excess of Par Value 11,418,563,257  11,418,563,257 11,418,563,257 418,563,257 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Surplus Reserves 1,049,164,351 1,046,398,969 1,043,979,211 1,041,471,464 2,765,3826% 2,419,758 0.23% 2,507,747 0.24%
Surplus 28,380,653,358 24,455,554 572 21,207,490,714 818,148,450 3,925,098,785 16.05% 3,248,063,858 15.32% 2,395,342,264 12.73%
Fair Value Reserves on Financial Assets at FVOCI 16,969,885 70,794,457 (48,782,635) 2,409,890 (53,824,5R2D3% 119,577,092 -245.12% (51,192,525)2124.27%
Remeasurement Losses on Retirement Plan (1,038,514,167)  (1,129,174,728) (748,523,773) (632,885,484) 90,660,5803% (380,650,955) 50.85% (115,638,289) 18.27%
Equity in Remeasurement Gains on Retirement Plan of
a Joint Venture 2,421,056 6,178,352 2,877,392 2,877,392 (3,757 BW681% 3,300,960  114.72% (0)  0.00%
Equity in Hedge Reserves of a Joint Venture - 9,707,213 (12,144,581) (12,144,581) (9,707 UBP0% 21,851,794  -179.93% (0) 0.00%
Cumulative Translation Adjustment 8,076,158 7,541,664 7,557,479 (6,957,414) 534,4D89% (15,815) 0.21% 14,514,893 -208.62%
44,105,928,058  40,154,157,916 37,139,611,224 894,077,134 3,951,770,142 9.84% 3,014,546,692 8.12% 2,245,534,090 6.44
$216,356,772,586 P238,433,295954 $264,421,009,234 P261,806,109,812  (P22,076,523,368)  -9.26% (£25,987,713,280) -9.83% $2,614,899,422 1.00%
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PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Amount %

Amount

%

Amount %

2024 2023

2022

2021

2024 vs 2023

2023 vs 2022

2022 vs 2021

INTERESTINCOME

Loans and receivables P12,853,958,647 P11,479,459,384 P10,159,518,037 P12,148,774,170 P1,374,499,263 11.97% P1,319,941,347 12.99% (P1,989,256,133) -16.37%
Financial assets at FVOCI and investment securdties
amortized cost 3,272,624,033 4,307,661,938 2,574,256,913 1,486,019,162  (1,035,037,905) -24.03%  1,733,405,025 67.34% 1,088,237,751 73.2¢
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 345,049,668 1,397,792,663 1,254,216,130 648,063,197(1,052,742,995) -75.31% 143,576,533 11.45% 606,152,933 93.53%
Interbank loans receivable and securities purchasdelr resale
agreements 347,567,262 419,381,106 195,778,577 70,592,184 (71,813,844) -17.12% 223,602,529  114.21% 125,186,393 177.34%
Due from other banks 9,906,500 16,474,592 4,101,643 47,132 (6,568,8287% 12,372,949  301.66% 4,054,511 8602.46%
FVTPL investments 44,019,337 3,495,728 2,152 11,272,985 40,52B163923% 3,493,576 162340.89% (11,270,833) -99.98%
16,873,125,447  17,624,265,411 14,187,873,452 364,768,830 (751,139,964) -4.26% 3,436,391,959 24.22% (176,895,378) -1.23%
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit liabilities 4,475,126,221 5,663,176,485 2,811,393,495 1,637,233,919(1,188,050,264) -20.98%  2,851,782,990  101.44% 1,174,159,576 71.7:
Lease Liabilities 80,201,164 78,902,394 79,873,386 85,201,992 1,298,71(65% (970,992) -1.22% (5,328,606) -6.25%
Bills payable 20,257,951 35,278,313 21,919,260 41,972 (15,020,38258% 13,359,053 60.95% 21,877,28%2123.53%
Bonds payable - 20,731,311 224,036,617 437,530,261 (20,731810.D0% (203,305,306) -90.75% (213,493,644) -48.80%
4,575,585,336 5,798,088,503 3,137,222,758 2,160,008,144(1,222,503,167) -21.08% 2,660,865,745 84.82% 977,214,614  45.24%
NET INTEREST INCOME 12,297,540,111  11,826,176,908 11,050,650,694 202,760,686 471,363,203  3.99% 775,526,214 7.02% (1,154,109,992) -9.46
Service fees and commission income 1,905,435,829 1,792,742,915 1,732,841,894 1,581,126,848 112,692,9629% 59,901,021 3.46% 151,715,046 9.60%
Service fees and commission expense 89,857,094 65,583,938 51,309,070 47,816,732 24,273,83601% 14,274,868 27.82% 3,492,338 7.30%
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 1,815,578,735 1,727,158,977 1,681,532,824 1,533,310,116 88,419,758.2% 45,626,153 2.71% 148,222,708 9.67%
OTHER OPERATING INCOME (CHARGES)
Gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgag@erties - net 210,233,861 619,971,252 700,214,707 142,185,112 (409,737,391) -66.09% (80,243,455) -11.46% 558,029,595 392.47%
Gain on foreclosure and sale of investment propsrtinet 420,709,766 361,931,299 801,738,724 571,276,769 58,778,467 16.24% (439,807,425) -54.86% 230,461,955 40.34%
Foreign exchange gain - net 8,280,983 17,627,813 (6,075,489) (8,168,185) (9,346,830) 53.02% 23,703,302 390.15% 2,092,696 -25.62%
Gain on disposal of investment securities at armedicost - - - 11,711,129 - 0.00% - 0.00% (11,711,129) -100.00%
Trading and securities gains (losses) - net 14,291,108 5,293,898 2,455,186 2,733,476 8,997,210 169.95% 2,838,712 115.62% (278,290) -10.18%
Gain on sale of property and equipment 3,864,437 3,895,058 12,079,779 2,042,084 (30,621) -0.79% (8,184,721) -67.76% 10,037,695 491.54%
Miscellaneous 547,977,595 582,860,969 777,775,337 700,430,805 (34,883,374) -5.98% (194,914,368) -25.06% 77,344,532  11.04%
1,205,357,750 1,591,580,289 2,288,188,244 1,422,211,190 (386,222,580P7% (696,607,955) -30.44% 865,977,054  60.89%
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME P15,318,476,596  P15,144,916,174  P15,020,371,762  P15,160,281,992 P173,560,422 1.15% P124,544,412 0.83% (P139,910,230) -0.92%

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31 Amount % Amount % Amount %
2024 2023 2022 2021 2024 vs 2023 2023 vs 2022 2022 vs 2021

OTHER EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits £4,088,667,958 P3,811,715,458 $3,640,553,887 P3,545,335,550 P276,952,500 7.27% P171,161,571 4.70% P95,218,337 2.69%
Taxes and licenses 1,520,977,423 1,672,526,981 1,612,926,317 1,586,134,257 (151,549,558)-9.06% 59,600,664 3.70% 26,792,060 1.69%
Provision for credit and impairment losses 214,439,037 1,451,089,796 1,306,242,436 3,070,678,2241,236,650,759) -85.22% 144,847,360 11.09% (1,764,435,788) -57.46%
Depreciation 951,779,982 840,135,760 755,952,721 836,327,579 111,644,22213.29% 84,183,039 11.14% (80,374,858) -9.61%
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 564,124,597 431,238,658 413,011,422 349,532,682 132,885,93%30.81% 18,227,236 4.41% 63,478,740 18.16%
Occupancy and equipment-related costs 355,258,322 338,465,479 344,568,484 352,588,645 16,792,843 4.96% (6,103,005) -1.77% (8,020,161) -2.27%
Amortization of intangible assets 111,357,953 106,212,859 102,850,715 113,649,164 5,145,094 4.84% 3,362,144 3.27% (10,798,449)  -9.50%
Miscellaneous 1,642,264,312 1,690,846,708 2,130,720,607 2,082,202,992 (48,582,395)-2.87% (439,873,899) -20.64% 48,517,615 2.33%

9,448,869,584  10,342,231,699 10,306,826,589 936,449,093 (893,362,114) -8.64% 35,405,110 0.34% (1,629,622,505) -13.65%
INCOME BEFORE SHARE IN NETINCOMEOF
A JOINT VENTURE AND INCOME TAX 5,869,607,011 4,802,684,475 4,713,545,173 3,223,832,900 1,066,922,%%'&2% 89,139,302 1.89% 1,489,712273  46.21%
VENTURE 68,022,771 86,340,894 83,418,474 41,914,529 (18,318,12321.22% 2,922,420 3.50% 41,503,945 99.02%
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,937,629,782 4,889,025,369 4,796,963,647 3,265,747,428 1,048,604 21.35% 92,061,722 1.92% 1,531,216,219 46.89%
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
Current 820,308,105 1,208,573,920 783,316,316 312,183,551 (388,265,81513% 425,257,604 54.29% 471,132,765 150.92%
Deferred (91,120,738) (850,610,415) 335,219,072 1,414,071,157 759,489.89.29% (1,185,829,487) -353.75% (1,078,852,085) -76.29%

729,187,367 357,963,505 1,118,535,388 1,726,254,708 371,2238820% (760,571,883) -68.00% (607,719,320) -35.20%

NET INCOME P5,208,442,415 P4,531,061,864 P3,678,428,259 P1,539,492,720 677,380,551 14.95% £852,633,605 23.18% P2,138,935,539 138.94%
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share P12.20 P10.61 P8.62 P3.61
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Part Ill. Management Discussion and Analysis
A. Analysis of Statements of Condition

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023

In 2024, the Bank recorded Total Assets at @356 billion, B22.08 billion lower as compared to the December
2023 level of P3843 billion. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in the Bank’s investment
portfolio, including placements in the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Loans and Receivables, net of allowance and unearned interest and tdisogpresenting 66.48% of total
assets were posted at B143.82 billion, higher by B21.06 billion Brecember 2023 level of B122.76 billion.
Auto Loans and Mortgage Loans grew by 20.48% and 6.25%, respectively

Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased under Resale Agreenreateddry 94.28% from
B6.99 billion in 2023 to B0.40 billion in December 2024.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, Investment securities represérfi@ézand 35.51% of the total assets,
respectively. These were composed of Financial Assets at Fair Value through Othgmelensive Income
(FVOCI), which decreased by B28.47 billion or 52.37% 25.8 billion from B4.36 billion in December
2023. Investment securities at amortized cost amounte8td®billion in December 2024, B203.15 million or
0.68% higher compared to December 2023 level 29.8® billion. Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments (FVTPL) amounted to B300.60 million and B414ndlon in December 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Due from Other Banks was recorded at B1.82 billion, B50.87 mdli®2.88% higher than the December 2023
level of R1.76 billion. Cash and Other Cash Items increased to Billi@8 versus R1.65 billion in December
2023. Further, Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas was lower by6R#llion or 87.86% to R1.18 billion
from B9.75 billion year on year.

Investment in a joint venture went up by R21.86 million .61% to B892.04 million from B870.18 million in
December 2023 due to the rgadion of PSBank’s share in the net earnings of Sumisho Motor Finance
Corporation (SMFC), a joint venture between PSBank and Sumitomo r@bgmo The increase from the
recognition of share in net earnings was partially reduced by the divideaived by the Bank from SMFC. As
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank’s ownership interest in SMFC is 30.00%.

Investment Properties decreased by B294.13 million or 7.4738.&4 billion as of December 31, 2024 from
B3.93 billion as of December 31, 2023 due to sale of foreclosedtimgnt properties. Property and Equipment
increased by R51.17 million or 1.63% to B3.19 billion as of Dece8ihet024 from R3.14 billion in 2023.

Deferred Tax Asset was higher at B1.32 billion in December 2024 #h26 Billion in December 2023.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets increased to B460.79 million in December f2@24B298.20 million in
December 2023. Other Assets rose to B1.56 billion from BllI®Hm as of December 31, 2023.

The Bank’s deposit level comprising of 95.53% of total liabilities reached B164.55 billion as of DieeeB1,
2024, 13.22% lower than thel®).62 billion posted last year.

Treasurer’s, Cashier’s and Manager’s Checks went up by B101.37 million or 6.70% to R1.62 billion from
B1.51 billion last December 31, 2023. Accrued Taxes, Interest and Othendes decreased by P417.09
million or 15.66% to B2.25 billion in December 2024 from B2blion as of December 31, 2023. Income Tax
Payable was nil as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. Other Liabilitiesdwent to B3.84 billion, B371.00
million or 8.82% lower than B4.21 billion posted last year.

Total Capital remained strong at B44.11 billion, B3.95 billion at%8.8igher from the B40.15 billion posted as
of December 31, 2023. The Bank reflected a B16.97 million Fair \Raserves on Financial Assets at FVOCI,
B53.83 million lower than the B70.79 million in December 2023.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) increased to 12.36% in Decedtli&t versus 11.72% in December 2023.
Return on Average Assets (ROAA) was higher at 2.29% in 2024 frodflif8 2023.
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As of December 31, 2023 and 2022

In 2023, the Bank recorded Total Assets at BZBBillion, B25.99 billion lower as compared to the December
2022 level of R64.42billion. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in the Bank’s investment
portfolio, including placements in the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Loans and Receivables, net of allowance and unearned interest andtdiscepresenting 51.49% of total
assets were posted at B122.76 billion, higher by B13.07 billiom Brecember 2022 level of B109.70 billion.
Auto Loans grew by 23.70%, while Mortgage Loans decreased b%62.18

Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements ibhgré&4e82% from
B2.67 billion in 2022 to B6.99 billion in December 2023.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, Investment securities repreSénmbddo and 37.85% of the total assets,
respectively. These were composed of Financial Assets at Fair Value through Othereensive Income
(FVOCI), which decreased by P15.30 billion or 21.97% to Bbs#iBion from R69.66 billion in December
2022. Investment securities at amortized cost amounted to B29.89ihilbecember 2023, R529.12 million or
1.74% lower compared to December 2022 level of B30.42 billion. Fair tAheeigh Profit or Loss
Investments (FVTPL) amounted to R414.30 million and PO@Mion in December 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Due from Other Banks was recorded at B1.76 billion, B1.15 bdlid30.38% lower than the December 2022
level of B2.91 billion. Cash and Other Cash Items decreased t6 I®llidgh versus B1.93 billion in December
2022. Further, Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas decreased bg1Ballion or 74.05% to B9.75 billion
from B37.55 billion year on year.

Investment in a joint venture went up by B53.89 million .60% to B870.18 million from B816.28 million in
December 2022 duto the recognition of PSBank’s share in the net earnings of Sumisho Motor Finance
Corporation (SMFC), a joint venture between PSBank and Sumitomo 1@tgmo The increase from the
recognition of share in net earnings was partially reduced by the dividerived by the Bank from SMFC. As
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank’s ownership interest in SMFC is 30.00%.

Investment Properties decreased by B96.52 million or 2.39983.88 Pillion as of December 31, 2023 from
B4.03 billion as of December 31, 2022 due to sale of investmaepéenies. Property and Equipment increased
by B15.23 million or 0.49% to B3.14 billion as of December 8232rom B3.13 billion in 2022.

Deferred Tax Asset was higher at B1.26 billion in December 2023 B280.11 million in December 2022.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets decreased to B298.20 million in Decemberfi2B232333.89 million in
December 2022. Other Assets jumped to B1.35 billion fromPaMlitbn as of December 31, 2022.

The Bank’s deposit level comprising of 95.63% of total liabilities reached R189.62 billion as of DeeeBi,
2023, 11.30% lower than the B213.77 billion posted last year.

Treasurer’s, Cashier’s and Manager’s Checks increased by B499.84 million or 49.28% to B1.51 billion from
B1.01 billion last December 31, 2022. Likewise, Accrued Taxes, IntenelsOther Expenses increased by
B157.32 million or 6.28% to R2.66 billion in December 2028nfil22.51 billion as of December 31, 2022.
Income Tax Payable was nil as of December 31, 2022 and 2023. Otheriembikint up to B4.21 billion,
B52.57 million or 1.27% higher than B4.15 billion posted last year.

Total Capital remained strong at B40.15 billion, B3.01 billion d298.higher from the B37.14 billion posted as
of December 31, 2022. The Bank reflected a B70.79 million Fair VaserRes on Financial Assets at FVOCI,
B119.58 million higher than the negative B48.78 million in Dxe 2022.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) increased to 11.72% in Decen@® Zrsus 10.21% in December 2022.
Return on Average Assets (ROAA) was higher at 1.80% in 2023 fradflid 2022.
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021

In 2022, the Bank recorded Total Assets at B264.42 billion,1BR&n higher as compared to the December
2021 level of B261.81 billion. The growth was primarily due to inesas investment portfolio.

Loans and Receivables, net of allowance and unearned interest and tdiscepiresenting 41.49% of total
assets were posted at P109.70 billion, lower by B414.20 milliom Brecember 2021 level of B110.11 billion.
Auto Loans increased by 4.70%, while Mortgage Loans decreasedd8%.7.0

Interbank Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased under Resale Agreenreateddry 41.11% from
B4.53 billion in 2021 to B2.67 billion in December 2022.

Investments securities represent 37.85% and 31.03% of total assetsDasember 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensmmdn(FVOCI) increased to
B69.66 billion in December 2022, or B9.39 billion higher ttten December 2021 level of B60.27 billion.
Meanwhile, Investment securities at amortized cost amounted to B30.42, Hi8id8% higher compared to
December 2021 level of B20.96 billion. Fair Value through Profitoss Investments (FVTPL) amounted to
B0.04 million in December 2022.

Due from Other Banks was registered at R2.91 billion, 112.92% 54 Billion higher than the December 2021
level of B1.37 billion. Cash and Other Cash Items decreased 8 IBlli&h versus B2.80 billion in December
2021. Further, Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas also decreased4@7million to B37.55 billion versus

B52.43 billion in December 2021.

Investment in a joint venture went up by B53.36 millior8d6228 million from B762.93 million in December
2021 due to the recognition of PSBank’s share in the net earnings of Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation
(SMFC), a joint venture between PSBank and Sumitomo Corporation. Thasecfrom the recognition of
share in net earnings was partially reduced by the dividend recejvde lBank from SMFC amounting to
B30.06 million. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank’s ownership interest in SMFC is 30.00%.

Investment Properties increased by 14.90% or 522.87 milliort103mbillion as of December 31, 2022 from
B3.51 billion as of December 31, 2021 due to foreclosure oftmees properties. Property and Equipment
also increased by P188.27 million to B3.13 billion as of Decemb@O032,

Deferred Tax Asset was lower at B280.11 million from B576.79omillLikewise, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets decreased to B333.89 million in December 2022 from BB6illlion in December 2021. Other Assets
went down to B988.12 million from B1.19 billion as of Decemiie2B821.

The Bank’s deposit level comprising of 94.06% of total liabilities reached R213.77 billion as of DeeeBi,
2022, 1.39% lower than the B216.80 billion posted last year.

Treasurer’s, Cashier’s and Manager’s Checks increased to B1.01 billion from B593.63 million last December
31, 2021. Likewise, Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses ettigag821.45 million to B2.51 billion
in December 2022 from B1.68 billion as of December 31, 202bme Tax Payable was nil as of December
31, 2022 compared to B0.08 million recorded in December ZD@Er Liabilities went up to B4.15 billion,
29.65% higher than B3.20 billion posted last year.

Total Capital remained strong at B37.14 billion, B2.25 billion highan fthe B34.89 billion posted as of
December 31, 2021. The Bank reflected a negative B48.78 million Fai Ralserves on Financial Assets at
FVOCI, B51.19 million lower than B2.41 million in December 2021.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) stood at 10.21% in December 2681 4.44% in December 2021.
Return on Average Assets (ROAA) was better at 1.40% in 2022 from 0.62021n
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B. Discussion of Results of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

The Bank posted an all-time high net income of B5.21 billion foy¢lae 2024, up by 15% from R4.53 billion
in 2023. The robust double-digit growth in loans, coupled wghi§cant improvements in asset quality, fueled
the Bank’s outstanding financial performance.

Total Interest Income was recorded at B16.87 billion, lower by 4.2686B17.62 billion recorded last year.
Total Interest Expense went down to B4.58 billion from B5.80 biti@®23. Net Interest Income increased by
3.99% or B0.47 billion to B12.30 billion from the B11.8Boln posted last year.

Interest income on Loans and Receivables was recorded at B12.85 bill@rdsliigher than the B11.48
billion recorded last year. Interest income on Financial Assets at FVOCI andniemgsSecurities at

Amortized cost was lower by 24.03% or B1.04 billion to B3.27 biliiom B4.31 billion in 2023. Interest

Income on FVTPL Investments rose to B44.02 million from @3xdllion in 2023. Interest earned from
deposits with BSP went down by B1.05 billion to B0.35 bilfiom B1.40 billion in 2023. Interest earned from
Interbank Loans Receivable and SPURA was recorded at B347.57 millid2%4d lower than the B419.38
million in 2023. Interest income from deposits with other banks sIRX@1 million from R16.47 million last

year.

Interest Expense on the Bank’s deposit liabilities decreased by 20.98% to B4.48 billion from B5.66 billion year
on year. The Bank recorded nil and B20.73 million in Interest Eegpen Bonds Payable for the year 2024 and
2023, respectively. This is due to the maturity of the Peso Fixed Ratks BonFebruary 4, 2023. Meanwhile,
Interest Expense on Bills Payable was recorded at B20.26 million #h 2@58% lower than the P35.28
million recorded in 2023.

The Bank recognized interest expense on lease liabilities amounting to B8id0and B78.90 million in
2024 and 2023, respectively. Prior to adoption of PFRS 16, retatged against profit or loss under these
lease contracts is included in Occupancy and Equipmegiated cost account.

Net Service Fees and Commission Income increased by 5.12% to R1.82rbRidd versus R1.73 billion in
2023.

The Bank’s Net Interest Income went up by 3.99% or R471.36 million versus last year. This was primarily due
to the increase in Interest Income on Loans and Receivables and decoess®irfunds.

The Bank’s Other Operating Income of B3.02 billion was lower yean-year by 8.97% primarily due to lower
gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage recorded in 2024.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Bank posted a net ghin foretlosure and sale of investment
properties amounting to B420.71 million, 16.24% higher compaittdthe B361.93 million gains last year.
However, gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage propertigs $810.23 million from B619.97

million in 2023. Miscellaneous Income was lower by B34.88 million 68%. to B547.98 million versus

B582.86 million in 2023 mostly from reduced bancassurance sn@ora023. Meanwhile, Foreign Exchange
Gain was posted at B8.28 million for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Other Operating Expenses, excluding provision for impairment and credit losssssawiby 3.86% to B9.23
billion from B8.89 billion in 2023Taxes and Licenses went down by P151.55 million or 9.06% t2&illion
from R1.67 billion posted last year. Compensation and FringeflBeramounted to B4.09 billion while
Occupancy and equipment-related cost amounted to B355.26 milliO24n Repreciation and amortization of
Bank’s properties and leasehold improvements went up to B951.78 million in 2024 from B840.14 million in
2023. Security, messengerial and janitorial services was posted atlZ56dlion in 2024. Meanwhile,
amortization of software was recorded at B111.36 million in 2024. Miseellss Expenses was lower by
2.87% to B1.64 billion in 2024 from B1.69 billion in 2023.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Bank set aside BP&iiligidin provision for impairment and
credit losses versus P1.45 billion in 2023.
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The Bank also reported share in net income from its investment rmsiBa Motor Finance Corporation
(SMFC) amounting to B68.02 million and B86.34 million for years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

The Bank ended 2023 with a net income of B4.53 billion, a grofn®3.18% or B852.63 million compared to
P3.68 billion in 2022. The Bank’s strong financial performance came from the double-digit growth in loans,
higher investment revenues and muted costs brought by operational effgiencie

Total Interest Income was recorded at B17.62 billion, higher by 24.22%®h4.19 billion recorded last year.
Total Interest Expense went up to B5.80 billion from B3.14 bilic2022. Net Interest Income increased by
7.02% or B0.78 billion to B11.83 billion from the B11.0koln posted last year.

Interest income on Loans and Receivables was recorded at B11.48 bill@®s1Righer than the B10.16
billion recorded last year. Interest income on Financial Assets at FVOCI andniemgsSecurities at

Amortized cost was better by 67.34% or B1.73 billion to B4.31 biftemm B2.57 billion in 2022. Interest
Income on FVTPL Investments rose to B3.50 million from ED®@lion in 2022. Further, Interest earned
from deposits with BSP increased by P143.58 million to Rlilionbfrom R1.25 billion in 2022. Interest

earned from Interbank Loans Receivable and SPURA was recorded a8&®4iillion, 114.21% higher than
the R195.78 million in 2022. Interest income from deposits witlerdbanks jumped to R16.47 million from
B4.10 million last year.

Interest Expense on the Bank’s deposit liabilities increased by 101.44% to B5.66 billion from B2.81 billion year
on year. The Bank recorded B20.73 million in Interest Expemdgoads Payable for the year 2023, B203.31
million or 90.75% lower than the B224.04 million in 2022 duth&éomaturity of the Peso Fixed Rate Bonds on
February 4, 2023. Meanwhile, Interest Expense on Bills Payable wasledcat B35.28 million in 2023,
60.95% higher than the P21.92 million recorded in 2022.

The Bank recognized interest expense on lease liabilities amounting to B7f@0and B79.87 million in
2023 and 2022, respectively. Prior to adoption of PFRS 16, rehtalged against profit or loss under these
lease contracts is included in Occupancy and Equipmegiated cost account.

Net Service Fees and Commission Income increased by 2.71% to B1.73/bilfioa B.68 billion in 2022.

The Bank’s Net Interest Income went up by 7.02% versus last year. This was primarily due to the increase in
Interest Income on Loans and Receivables and Financial asset at FVOCI/Investméigssatamortized cost
amounting to B11.48 billion and B4.31 billion, respectively.

The Bank’s Other Operating Income of B3.32 billion was lower yeayryear by 16.40% despite Net Service
Fees and Commission Income increasing by B45.63 million t@3Rdillion this year from higher loan
bookings.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Bank posted a net ghi foretlosure and sale of investment
properties amounting to B361.93 million, 54.86% lower compared thiti2801.74 million gains last year.
Also, gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage propertieg® $#619.97 million from B700.21 million
in 2022. Miscellaneous Income was lower by B194.91 million or 25.06B5682.86 million versus B777.78
million in 2022 mostly from reduced bancassurance income in.2088nwhile, Foreign Exchange Gain was
posted at B17.63 million for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Other Operating Expenses, excluding provision for impairment and credit|Idesreased by 1.22% to B8.89
billion from B9.00 billion in 2022Taxes and Licenses went up by B59.60 million or 3.70% to B1.6anbilli
from R1.61 billion posted last year. Compensation and FringeflBeramounted to B3.81 billion while
Occupancy and equipment-related cost amounted to B338.47 milliO23n Repreciation and amortization of
Bank’s properties and leasehold improvements went up from B755.95 million to B840.14 millior2023.
Security, messengerial and janitorial services was posted at B431.24 milioa3. Meanwhile, amortization
of software was recorded at B106.21 million in 2023. Miscellanerperises was lower by 20.64% to B1.69
billion in 2023 from B2.13 billion in 2022.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Bank set aside Blatbibifrovision for impairment and credi
losses. This was higher than B1.31 billion the previous year.

The Bank also reported share in net income from its investment rinislBa Motor Finance Corporation
(SMFC) amounting to B86.34 million and B83.42 million for ykars ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Bank achieved a record-high net income of B3.68 billiorOR22a growth of 138.94% or more than
double compared to B1.%llion in 2021. The Bank’s remarkable performance was attributed to higher loan
demand, better asset quality, increase in non-interest revenues and prudes¢ exgnagement.

Total revenues reached B15.02 bhillion with combined fees, commisaimhsther income amounting to B3.97
billion, higher by 34% year on year. Total Interest Income was reflett®14.19 billion, slightly lower by
1.23% than R14.36 billion recorded last year. Total Interest Expemdaupvéo B3.14 billion from B2.16 billion
in 2022. Net Interest Income declined by 9.46% or B1.15 billionlthOB billion from the B12.20 billion
posted last year.

Interest income on Loans and Receivables was recorded at B10dr§ bili37% lower than the B12.15 billion
recorded last year. Interest income on Financial Assets at FVOCI andriewéSecurities at Amortized cost
was higher by 73.23% or B1.09 billion to B2.57 billiomfrB1.49 billion in 2021. Interest Income on FVTPL
Investments slid to B0.002 million from B11.27 million i®22. On the other hand, Interest earned from
deposits with BSP increased by B606.15 million to B1.25 billamm £648.06 million due to higher placements
in 2022. Interest earned from Interbank Loans Receivable and SPURAew@slad at R195.78 million,
177.34% higher than the B70.59 million in 2021. Interest income dapusits with other banks jumped to
B4.10 million from B0.05 million last year.

Interest Expense on the Bank’s deposit liabilities increased by 71.72% to B2.81 billion from B1.64 billion. The
Bank recorded R224.04 million in Interest Expense on Bonds Pdyalilee year 2022, P213.49 million or
48.80% lower than the B437.53 million in 2021. Meanwhile, Intengs¢iise on Bills Payable was recorded at
R21.92 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

On February 04, 2020, the Bank issued fixed rate bonds amountg.65 billion with a tenor of three (3)

years and due on February 4, 2023 with interest rate of 4.5% pemgrayable quarterly. On July 24, 2019,
the Bank issued fixed rate bonds amounting to B6.30 billionanvidmor of two (2) years and due on July 24,
2021 with interest rate of 5.6% per annum payable quarterly. Thenanmiinvestment size for the bonds
payable is B0.5 million with increments of B0.1 million thereaft@m July 24, 2021, the Bank paid its
outstanding bonds.

The Bank recognized interest expense on lease liabilities amounting to B78@Y and B85.20 million in
2022 and 2021, respectively. Prior to adoption of PFRS 16, refiaiged against profit or loss under these
lease contracts is included in Occupancy and Equipmesiated cost account.

Net Service Fees and Commission Income increased by 9.67% to B1.68/bilioa B1.53 billion in 2021.

The Bank’s Net Interest Income went down 9.46% versus last year. This was primarily due to the drop in
Interest Income on Loans and Receivables to B10.16 billion resultimgttie slow demand for consumer loans
during the pandemic.

Meanwhile, Other Operating Income increased by 60.89% or B865.98nndli&2.29 billion due to higher
gain on foreclosure and sale of both investment properties and chattghge recorded during 2022. The
Bank registered B2.46 million trading gains for the year 2622,99 million lower than the B14.44 million
trading gains in 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Bank posted a net ghia foretlosure and sale of investment
properties amounting to B801.74 million, 40.34% higher compaigdtise B571.28 million gains last year.
Also, gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage propertesa@®y700.21 million from B142.19 million
in 2021. Miscellaneous Income was higher by B77.34 million to B777lli@n mainly due to recoveries from
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loan accounts previously written-off and amortization of debt modificakiteanwhile, Foreign Exchange Loss
was posted at B6.08 million for the year ended December 31, 2022

Other Operating Expenses, excluding provision for impairment and twedés, increased by only 1.52% to
B9.00 billion from B.87 billion in 2021 due to the Bank’s sustained efforts in productivity, process efficiency

and automation has kept operating expenses under cofitgeads and Licenses went up by B26.79 million or
1.69% to R1.61 billion from B1.59 billion posted last year. gamation and Fringe Benefits amounted to
R3.64 billion while Occupancy and equipment-related cost amount@344.57 million. Depreciation and
amortization of Bank’s properties and leasehold improvements went down from B836.33 million to B755.95
million in 2022. Security, messengerial and janitorial services was posted1atOR million. Meanwhile,
amortization of software was recorded at B102.85 million. Miscellanérpenses was higher by 2.33% to
B2.13 billion in 2022 from B2.08 billion in 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Bank set aside B1d@ilibifirovision for impairment and credit
losses. There was a significant drop in credit provisions by 57.46%svdrs same period last year due to
improved asset quality complemented by efficient collection and recovertseffor

The Bank also reported share in net income from its investmenurimisBo Motor Finance Corporation
(SMFC) amounting to B83.42 million and B41.94 million for years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

B. Analysis of Key Performance Indicators

2024 2023 2022
Return on Average Assets ROAA 2.29% 1.80% 1.40%
Return on Average Equity ROAE 12.36% 11.72% 10.21%
Net Interest Margin on
Average Earning Assets NIM 6.00% 5.18% 4.66%
Debt-Equity Ratio DER 3.91:1 4.94:1 6.11:1
Assetto-Equity Ratio AER 491:1 5.94:1 7.11:1
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio IRCR 2.30:1 1.84:1 2.52:1
Liquidity/Current Ratio LR 20.09% 48.89% 62.41%
Capitalio-Risk Assets Ratio CAR 23.56% 24.46% 24.85%
Earnings per share EPS P12.20 B10.61 P8.62

2024 vs. 2023 Comparative highlights on key performance indicators

1. Return on Average Assets (ROAA) increased to 2.29% in 2024 frorf6lir82023. ROAA is calculated
by dividing the net income by the yeamn-year average of the outstanding total assets.

2. Return on Average Equity (ROAE) increased to 12.36% in 2024 1bi2% in 2023. ROAE measures
how well the Bank is using common shareholders’ invested money. It is calculated by dividing the net
income by the yeaon-year average of the outstanding shareholders’ equity.

3. Net Interest Margin on Average Earning Assets (NIM) went up from 5.182028 t06.00%in 2024. NIM
is calculated by dividing the net interest income by the average earning assets

4. Debtio-Equity Ratio (DER) decreased to 3.91:1 as of December 31, 2084sv4.94:1 as of December
31, 2023. DER measures the Bank’s financial leverage. This is computed by dividing total liabilities by
total stockholder’s equity.

5. Assetto-Equity Ratio (AER) went down to 4.91:1 in 2024 versus 5.94:2023. AER is computed by
dividing the total assets by total shareholder’s equity.

6. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio (IRCR) increased to 2.30:1 as of Decembed23lari 1.84:1 as of

December 31, 2023. IRCR is a measure ofBlmek’s ability to meet its interest payments on outstanding
debt. It is calculated by dividing the total earnings before interest and taxastewest expense.
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Liquidity Ratio (LR) decreased in 2024 at 20.09% compared to #BiB2023. LR measureBetBank’s
ability to meet its short-term liabilities. It is derived from dividing the curreséts by current liabilities.

Capitalto-Risk Assets Ratio (CAR) was lower at 23.56% in 2024 versus 24.462028. CAR is the
measure of the Bank’s capital strength. It is calculated by dividing the qualified capital by risk-weighted
assets as defined by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Earnings per Share (EPS) improved to B12.20 in 2024 fron6B102023. EPS is the net profit the Bank
has generated per common share. It is computed by dividing the neteirlmothe weighted average
number of outstanding common shares.

2023 vs. 2022 Comparative highlights on key performance indicators

1.

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) increased to 1.80% in 2023 frorfolid@022. ROAA is calculated
by dividing the net income by the yean-year average of the outstanding total assets.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) increased to 11.72% in 2023 1@21% in 2022. ROAE measures
how well the Bink is using common shareholders’ invested money. It is calculated by dividing the net
income by the yeaon-year average of the outstanding shareholders’ equity.

Net Interest Margin on Average Earning Assets (NIM) went up from 4.66%928 f 5.18% in 2023.
NIM is calculated by dividing the net interest income by the average earning assets.

Debtto-Equity Ratio (DER) went down to 4.94:1 as of December 31, 2823us 6.11:1 as of December
31, 2022. DER measures the Bank’s financial leverage. This is computed by dividing total liabilities by
total stockholder’s equity.

Assetto-Equity Ratio (AER) was lower at 5.94:1 in 2023 versus 7.11:10222 AER is computed by
dividing the total assets by total sharcholder’s equity.

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio (IRCR) was lower at 1.84:1 as of Decemb2028Land 2.52:1 as of
December 31, 2022. IRCR is a measure of the Bank’s ability to meet its interest payments on outstanding
debt. It is calculated by dividing the total earnings before interest and taxestevest expense.

Liquidity Ratio (LR) decreased in 2023 at 48.89% compared to 82id12022. LR measures the Bank’s
ability to meet its short-term liabilities. It is derived from dividing the curreséss by current liabilities.

Capitalto-Risk Assets Ratio (CAR) was lower at 24.46% in 2023 versus 24.85202R. CAR is the
measure of the Bank’s capital strength. It is calculated by dividing the qualified capital by risk-weighted
assets as defined by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Earnings per Share (EPS) improved to B10.61 in 2023 fra62R82022. EPS is the net profit the Bank
has generated per common share. It is computed by dividing the neteirmpothe weighted average
number of outstanding common shares.

2022 vs. 2021 Comparative highlights on key performanceindicators

1.

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) increased to 1.40% in 2022 frorfo0ir62021. ROAA is calculated
by dividing the net income by the yean-year average of the outstanding total assets.

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) rose to 10.21% in 2022 from94.ih 2021. ROAE measures how well
the Bank is using common shareholders’ invested money. It is calculated by dividing the net income by the
yearonyear average of the outstanding sharekslcquity.

Net Interest Margin on Average Earning Assets (NIM) went down fr@&h% in 2021 to 4.66% in. NIM is
calculated by dividing the net interest income by the average earning assets.
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4. Debtto-Equity Ratio (DER) went down to 6.11:1 as of December 31, 2@22us 6.50:1 as of December
31, 2021. DER measures the Bank’s financial leverage. This is computed by dividing total liabilities by
total stockholder’s equity.

5. Assetto-Equity Ratio (AER) was lower at 7.11:1 in 2022 versus 7.50:10@12 AER is computed by
dividing the total assets by total shareholder’s equity.

6. Interest Rate Coverage Ratio (IRCR) was lower at 2.52:1 as of Decemb2022L,and 2.51:1 as of
December 31, 2021. IRCR is a measure of the Bank’s ability to meet its interest payments on outstanding
debt. It is calculated by dividing the total earnings before interest and taxastewest expense.

7. Liquidity Ratio (LR) increased in 2022 was lower at 62.41% in 20@®Rpared to 65.57% in 2021. LR
measures the Bank’s ability to meet its short-term liabilities. It is derived from dividing the currentetss
by current liabilities.

8. Capitalto-Risk Assets Ratio (CAR) was better at 24.85% in 2022 versus 24.22%2ih CAR is the
measure of the Bank’s capital strength. It is calculated by dividing the qualified capital by risk-weighted
assets as defined by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

9. Earnings per Share (EPS) improved to R8.62 in 2022 from R8B121. EPS is the net profit the Bank
has generated per common share. It is computed by dividing the neteirmpothe weighted average
number of outstanding common shares.

C. Key Variables and Other Qualitative and Quantitative Factors
Liquidity

PSBank manages its liquidity position to ensure that it has more tharasslégnds to meet its obligations at
any given time. The Bank monitors its daily liquidity and reserve poditastetermining inflows and outflows,
short-term and long-term obligations, holdings and repaymentst-&nm liquidity management identifies
obligations and repayments in the next 12-months, aids in the deton of the securities trading strategy,
and influences the Bank’s pricing mechanism. On the other hand, long-term liquidity management covers
maturing obligations and repayments of loans and investmerdsd&ye next 12-months.

The level of liquid assets remained strong, exhibiting healthy growthtingd@cements with BSP/other banks
and investments.

With the Bank’s high capitalization, current liquidity position, strong deposit growth trend, continuing
development of retail and corporate accounts, and prudent liquidity masaiydh®Bank does not anticipate
encountering any cash flow or liquidity problems in the next 12 nsonthremains confident of its ability to
meet its obligations and is committed to providing the necessarinfutw support the projected loan growth,
investment activities and expenditures for 2024.

The Bank also performs liquidity stress testing under various siresarfos to ensure its ability to meet its
funding obligations. The Bank has a Liquidity Contingency Funéifan to anticipate and manage any funding
crisis that may occur.

Events that will Trigger Direct or Contingent Financial Obligation

In the normal course of the Bank's operations, there are variostaralihg commitments and contingent
liabilities such as guarantees and commitments to extend credit, which are fiarfeofding and related
businesses but due to their nature, may not be reflected in the accamgpimgmcial statements. The Bank,
however, does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these transactions.

Also, several suit and claims, in behalf or against the Bank in relatiig operations, including labor-related

cases are pending before the courts and quasi-judicial bodies. In then adimanagement, these suits and
claims, if decided adversely, will not involve an amount having a materéateffi the financial statements.
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Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, Arrangements and Obligations

The following is a summary of the Bank’s commitments and contingent liabilities at their equivalent peso

contractual amounts:

2024 2023 2022
Trust department accounts B10,249,018,66¢ P9,295,113,014 B8,825,860,829
Stand-by credit lines 79,885,313 41,100,000 122,000,000
Spot foreign exchange and contracts sé 28,922,500 27,685,000 27,877,500
Items held for safekeeping 258,875 215,511 240,348
Late deposits/payments received - 290,311 3,288,413
Others 49,%7 57,244 60,626

None of these off-balance sheet transactions, arising in the ordinarsecaither individually or in the
aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial condition.

Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures

The Bank's capital expenditures in 2024 includes expenses for IT-related activitgstems and
licenses, and upgrade of bank premises including infrastructurdtufernfixtures and equipment.
Capital expenditures were soed from the Bank’s capital.

Causes for Any Material Changes from Period to Period of Financial Statements

See previous discussion on Analysis of Statement of Condition andsBiso of Results of Operations.

Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties or Seasonal Aspects

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in compliancBhiliipine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those aéttoap financial year, except that
it has adopted new accounting pronouncements starting Janu2@p4., These new and revised accounting
standards are presented in Note 2 of the Audited Financial Statements. Pleasé\refex tA.

Unless otherwise indicated, these new and revised accounting standards lapact to the Bank.

Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matters

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV & Co.), independent certified public accotsmtaudited the &hk’s
financial statements without qualification and in accordance with Philippinel@tiion Auditing and has
expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completitmes@amination, in its report to the

stockholders and Board of Directors.

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of tregmded December 31, 2024 and 2023
for professional services rendered by SGV & Co for the audit of the'8annual financial statements.

P2,861,300*

Audit and Audit-Related Fees:
Fees for services that are normally provided by the
external auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements

*Exclusive of 10% out-of-pocket expenses and (OPES) and 12% value added tax (VAT).

B3,004,365*
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Tax and All Other Feesfor Services of External Auditor

The Bank has engaged the services of external auditor for compliance, athuicéng and any other form of
services during the last three (3) years. The collective fees for eacbngkst December 31, 2024, and 2023
amounted to B44,000. Refer to Supplementary Schedule of External riAveiteRelated Information (Annex
B).

In 2024, non-audit fees paid by the Bank to its external agdilidrnot outweigh its audit-related fees. These
non-audit fees pertain to professional services rendered for PSBanklAtoakholders Meeting while audit-
related fees pertain to regular year-end financial statement audit. Nonethzlessure that the existing
arrangementdo not compromise our external auditor’s independence, separate engagement agreements and
teams handled the sasdrvices.

Feesfor Services of other Tax Consultant

The Bank also engaged the services of Du-Baladad and Associates for tdiacogsFrom 2021 to 2024, the
collective fees amounted to B266,112.

Audit Committee’s Approval Policies and Procedures for Above Services

As Metrobank subsidiary, the Bank adopted the Parent’s policies and procedures on audit engagement contract
for external auditors. The same was discussed and approved by the dmdiite.

Included in the duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee addp for in the Audit Committee
Charter are to recommend to the Board for approval the appointreesgppointment, dismissal, and fees of
external auditors; to assess and monitor the integrity, independenaghjeaativity of external auditor; and to
discuss and agree the terms of the engagement letter provided éxteh®al auditor as to the nature, audit
approach, fees, and scope of work prior to the approval of theengag

The following are the members of Bank’s Audit Committee:

Audit Committee (AuditCom)

Members | Position Attendance %
Eduardo A. Sahagun
Independent Director Chairperson 13/14 93%
Rufino Luis T. Manotok
Independent Director

Member 14/14 100%
Ronald Luis S. Goseco
ndependent Director Member 14/14 100%
Sherwin U. Lee
Chief Audit Executive Secretary 14/14 100%
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2: All Boxes must be properly and completely filled-up. Failure to do so shall cause the delay in updating the corporation’s records with the Commission and/or non-receipt
of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies shall not excuse the corporation from liability for its deficiencies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Savings Bank

PSBank Center

777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio Street
Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philippine Savings Bank (“the Bank”), which comprise the
statements of condition as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the statements of income, statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2024, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

Adequacy of allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables

The Bank’s application of the expected credit loss (ECL) model in calculating the allowance for credit
losses on loans and receivables is significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant
management judgment. Key areas of judgment include: segmenting the Bank’s credit risk exposures;
determining the method to estimate ECL; defining default; identifying exposures with significant
deterioration in credit quality; determining assumptions to be used in the ECL model such as the
counterparty credit risk rating, the expected life of the financial asset and expected recoveries from
defaulted accounts, and impact of any financial support and credit enhancements extended by any party;
and incorporating forward-looking information (called overlays) in calculating ECL.

Allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables as of December 31, 2024 amounted to £4.0 billion.
Provision for credit losses of the Bank in 2024 amounted to £199.7 million.

The disclosures related to the allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables are included in Note 15
to the financial statements.

Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the board-approved ECL methodologies and models used for the Bank’s
different credit exposures and assessed whether these considered the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, to reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money, and the
best available forward-looking information.

We (a) assessed the Bank’s segmentation of its credit risk exposures based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; (b) tested the definition of default and significant increase in credit risk criteria against
historical analysis of accounts and credit risk management policies and practices in place; (c) tested the
Bank’s application of internal credit risk rating system by reviewing the ratings of sample credit
exposures; (d) assessed whether expected life is different from the contractual life by testing the maturity
dates reflected in the Bank’s records and considering management’s assumptions regarding future
collections, advances, extensions, renewals and modifications; (e) tested loss given default by inspecting
historical recoveries including the timing, related direct costs, write-offs and collateral valuations, and the
effects of any financial support and credit enhancements provided by any party; (f) tested exposure at
default considering outstanding commitments and repayment scheme; (g) evaluated the forward-looking
information used for overlay through statistical test and corroboration using publicly available
information and our understanding of the Bank’s lending portfolios and broader industry knowledge; and
(h) tested the effective interest rate used in discounting the expected loss.
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Further, we compared the data used in the ECL models from source system reports to the data warechouse
and from the data warehouse to the loss allowance analysis/models and financial reporting systems. To
the extent that the loss allowance analysis is based on credit exposures that have been disaggregated into
subsets of debt financial assets with similar risk characteristics, we traced or re-performed the
disaggregation from source systems to the loss allowance analysis. We also assessed the assumptions
used where there are missing or insufficient data.

We recalculated impairment provisions on a sample basis. We involved our internal specialists in the
performance of the above procedures. We reviewed the completeness of the disclosures made in the
financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 17-A, SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2024 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The SEC Form 17-A, SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual
Report for the year ended December 31, 2024 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Reports on the Supplementary Information Required Under Section 174 of the Manual of
Regulations for Banks (MORB) and Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Section 174 of the Manual of Regulations for
Banks (MORB) in Note 36 and Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 in Note 37 to the financial statements
is presented for purposes of filing with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR), respectively, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of the management of Philippine Savings Bank. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Veronica Mae A.
Arce.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Veronica Mae A. Arce

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0117208

Tax Identification No. 234-282-413

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-153-2024, October 2, 2024, valid until October 1, 2027
PTR No. 10465265, January 2, 2025, Makati City

February 20, 2025
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PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 31

2024

2023

ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash Items

P1,781,441,158

P1,653,554,961

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (Notes 7 and 16) 1,183,357,292 9,745,633,911
Due from Other Banks (Note 29) 1,815,099,522 1,764,229,676
Interbank Call Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased
Under Resale Agreements (Note 7) 400,000,000 6,989,635,680
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) Investments (Note 8) 300,599,156 414,298,313
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVOCI) (Note 8) 25,892,190,851 54,359,693,631
Investment Securities at Amortized Cost (Note 8) 30,096,321,212 29,893,168,043
Loans and Receivables (Note 9) 143,823,452,568 122,764,412,226
Investment in a Joint Venture (Notes 10 and 29) 892,036,809 870,178,530
Property and Equipment (Note 11) 3,193,122,788 3,141,957,377
Investment Properties (Note 12) 3,640,816,902 3,934,950,184
Deferred Tax Assets (Note 27) 1,318,508,161 1,257,607,610
Intangible Assets and Goodwill (Note 13) 460,788,987 298,197,196
Other Assets (Note 14) 1,559,037,180 1,345,778,616
£216,356,772,586 $£238,433,295,954
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities (Note 16)
Demand £25,535,370,093 £25,325,912,039
Savings 47,745,087,366 46,463,448,245
Time 91,272,571,647 112,749,125,906
Long-term Negotiable Certificates of Deposits (LTNCD) — 5,084,217,598
164,553,029,106  189,622,703,788
Bills Payable (Note 17) - 271,896,461
Treasurer’s, Cashier’s and Manager’s Checks 1,615,438,412 1,514,065,655
Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses (Note 18) 2,246,446,273 2,663,537,503
Other Liabilities (Note 19) 3,835,930,737 4,206,934,631
172,250,844,528  198,279,138,038
Equity
Common Stock (Note 21) 4,268,594,160 4,268,594,160
Capital Paid in Excess of Par Value (Note 21) 11,418,563,257 11,418,563,257
Surplus Reserves (Note 30) 1,049,164,351 1,046,398,969
Surplus (Note 21) 28,380,653,358 24,455,554,572
Fair Value Reserves on Financial Assets at FVOCI (Note 8) 16,969,885 70,794,457
Remeasurement Losses on Retirement Plan (Note 24) (1,038,514,167) (1,129,174,728)
Equity in Remeasurement Gains on Retirement Plan
of a Joint Venture (Note 10) 2,421,056 6,178,352
Equity in Hedge Reserves of a Joint Venture (Note 10) - 9,707,213
Cumulative Translation Adjustment 8,076,158 7,541,664
44,105,928,058 40,154,157,916

£216,356,772,586 $238,433,295,954

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
INTEREST INCOME
Loans and receivables (Note 9) P12,853,958,647 £11,479,459,384 £10,159,518,037
Financial assets at FVOCI and investment securities at amortized cost
(Note 8) 3,272,624,033 4,307,661,938 2,574,256,913
Interbank call loans receivable and securities purchased under
resale agreements (Note 7) 347,567,262 419,381,106 195,778,577
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (Note 7) 345,049,668 1,397,792,663 1,254,216,130
FVTPL investments (Note &) 44,019,337 3,495,728 2,152
Due from other banks 9,906,500 16,474,592 4,101,643
16,873,125,447 17,624,265,411 14,187,873,452
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit liabilities (Note 16) 4,475,126,221 5,663,176,485 2,811,393,495
Lease liabilities (Note 25) 80,201,164 78,902,394 79,873,386
Bills payable (Note 17) 20,257,951 35,278,313 21,919,260
Bonds payable (Note 17) — 20,731,311 224,036,617
4,575,585,336 5,798,088,503 3,137,222,758
NET INTEREST INCOME 12,297,540,111 11,826,176,908 11,050,650,694
Service fees and commission income (Note 22) 1,905,435,829 1,792,742,915 1,732,841,894
Service fees and commission expense (Note 22) 89,857,094 65,583,938 51,309,070
NET SERVICE FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 1,815,578,735 1,727,158,977 1,681,532,824
OTHER OPERATING INCOME (CHARGES)
Gain on foreclosure and sale of investment properties - net
(Note 12) 420,709,766 361,931,299 801,738,724
Gain on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage properties - net
(Note 14) 210,233,861 619,971,252 700,214,707
Trading and securities gains - net (Note 8) 14,291,108 5,293,898 2,455,186
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net 8,280,983 17,627,813 (6,075,489)
Gain on sale of property and equipment (Note 11) 3,864,437 3,895,058 12,079,779
Miscellaneous (Notes 12, 23 and 25) 547,977,595 582,860,969 777,775,337
1,205,357,750 1,591,580,289 2,288,188,244
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 15,318,476,596 15,144,916,174 15,020,371,762
OTHER EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits (Notes 24 and 29) 4,088,667,958 3,811,715,458 3,640,553,887
Taxes and licenses 1,520,977,423 1,672,526,981 1,612,926,317
Depreciation (Note 11) 951,779,982 840,135,760 755,952,721
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 564,124,597 431,238,658 413,011,422
Occupancy and equipment-related costs (Note 25) 355,258,322 338,465,479 344,568,484
Provision for credit and impairment losses (Note 15) 214,439,037 1,451,089,796 1,306,242,436
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 13) 111,357,953 106,212,859 102,850,715
Miscellaneous (Notes 12 and 26) 1,642,264,312 1,690,846,708 2,130,720,607
9,448,869,584 10,342,231,699 10,306,826,589

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
INCOME BEFORE SHARE IN NET INCOME OF A JOINT
VENTURE AND INCOME TAX B5,869,607,012  P4,802,684,475  P4,713,545,173
SHARE IN NET INCOME OF A JOINT VENTURE
(Notes 10 and 29) 68,022,770 86,340,894 83,418,474
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,937,629,782 4,889,025,369 4,796,963,647
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 27)
Current 820,308,105 1,208,573,920 783,316,316
Deferred (91,120,738) (850,610,415) 335,219,072
729,187,367 357,963,505 1,118,535,388
NET INCOME P5,208,442,415  P4,531,061,864  P3,678,428,259
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 28) P12.20 P10.61 P8.62

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022
NET INCOME P5,208,442,415 P4,531,061,864 P3,678,428,259
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items that recycle to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity in hedge reserves of a joint venture (Note 10) (9,707,213) 21,851,794 -
Fair value reserves on debt securities at FVOCI (Note 8) (60,771,043) 112,803,154 (58,258,709)
Cumulative translation adjustment 534,494 (15,815) 14,514,893
(69,943,762) 134,639,133 (43,743,816)
Items that do not recycle to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement plan (Note 24) 120,880,748 (507,534,607) (154,184,385)
Equity in remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement plan of
a joint venture (Note 10) (3,757,296) 3,300,960 -
Fair value reserves on equity securities at FVOCI (Note 8) 6,946,472 6,773,938 7,066,184
Income tax effect (Note 27) (30,220,187) 126,883,652 38,546,096
93,849,737 (370,576,057) (108,572,105)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 23,905,975 (235,936,924) (152,315,921)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX P5,232,348,390 P4,295,124,940 P3,526,112,338

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity in
Remeasurement
Fair Value Gains
Capital Reserves on  Remeasurement on Retirement Equity in Hedge
Paid in Excess Surplus Financial Assets Losses on Plan of a Reserves of a Cumulative
Common Stock of Par Value Reserves Surplus at FVOCI Retirement Plan Joint Venture Joint Venture Translation
(Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 30) (Note 21) (Note 8) (Note 24) (Note 10) (Note 10) Adjustment Total
Balance at January 1, 2024 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257  P1,046,398,969 $24,455,554,572 £70,794,457 (£1,129,174,728) $6,178,352 £9,707,213 P7,541,664 P40,154,157,916
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year - - - 5,208,442,415 (53,824,572) 90,660,561 (3,757,296) 9,707,213) 534,494 5,232,348,390
Cash dividends (Note 21) - - - (1,280,578,248) - - - - - (1,280,578,248)
Appropriation of surplus to trust
business (Note 30) - - 2,765,382 (2,765,382) - - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2024 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257  P1,049,164,351 $28,380,653,358 P16,969,885  (£1,038,514,167) $2,421,056 P- £8,076,158  P44,105,928,058
Balance at January 1, 2023 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257 P1,043,979,211 $21,207,490,714 (R48,782,635) (R748,523,773) 2,877,392 (R12,144,581) P7,557,479 $£37,139,611,224
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year - - - 4,531,061,864 119,577,092 (380,650,955) 3,300,960 21,851,794 (15,815) 4,295,124,940
Cash dividends (Note 21) - - - (1,280,578,248) - - - - - (1,280,578,248)
Appropriation of surplus to trust
business (Note 30) - - 2,419,758 (2,419,758) - - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2023 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257 P1,046,398,969  P£24,455,554,572 70,794,457  (P1,129,174,728) P6,178,352 P£9,707,213 P7,541,664 $£40,154,157,916
Balance at January 1, 2022 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257 P1,041,471,464 P18,812,148,450 $£2,409,890 (R632,885,484) 2,877,392 (R12,144,581) (B6,957,414) P34,894,077,134
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year - - - 3,678,428,259 (51,192,525) (115,638,289) - - 14,514,893 3,526,112,338
Cash dividends (Note 21) - - - (1,280,578,248) - - - - - (1,280,578,248)
Appropriation of surplus to trust
business (Note 30) - - 2,507,747 (2,507,747) - - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2022 P4,268,594,160 P11,418,563,257 P1,043,979,211  $£21,207,490,714 (P48,782,635) (R748,523,773) 2,877,392 (R12,144,581) P7,557,479  $37,139,611,224

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2024 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax $5,937,629,782 P£4,889,025,369 P£4,796,963,647
Adjustments to reconcile income before income tax to net
cash provided by operations:
Provision for credit and impairment losses (Note 15) 214,439,037 1,451,089,796 1,306,242,436
Amortization of premium (discount) on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income and investment
securities at amortized cost (1,523,050,996) (2,448,385,863) (2,414,610,975)
Depreciation (Note 11) 951,779,982 840,135,760 755,952,721
Loss (gain) on foreclosure and sale of:
Investment properties (Note 12) (420,709,766) (361,931,299) (801,738,724)
Chattel mortgage properties (Note 14) (210,233,861) (619,971,252) (700,214,707)
Accretion of modified loans (Notes 9 and 23) (40,054,727) (70,125,024) (107,007,086)
Amortization of:
Intangible assets (Note 13) 111,357,953 106,212,859 102,850,715
Debt issuance costs (Note 17) - 1,550,061 14,836,617
Accretion of lease liabilities (Note 25) 80,201,164 78,902,394 79,873,386
Share in net income of a joint venture (Note 10) (68,022,770) (86,340,894) (83,418,474)
Realized loss (gain) on sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and amortized cost (Note 8) (24,247,623) (677,047) 2,499,021
Gain on sale of property and equipment (Note 11) (3,864,437) (3,895,058) (12,079,779)
Fair value loss (gain) on fair value through profit or loss investments
(Note 8) 4,980,604 (1,763,136) 8,826
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Fair value through profit or loss investments 108,718,553 (412,499,302) -
Loans and receivables (24,882,732,846) (16,690,866,036) (2,904,935,501)
Other assets (25,746,297) (25,085,315) 127,575,882
Increase (decrease) in:
Deposit liabilities (25,069,407,062) (24,149,496,905) (3,016,581,657)
Treasurer’s, cashier’s and manager’s checks 101,372,757 499,839,859 420,594,802
Accrued taxes, interest and other expenses (417,090,487) 157,320,735 821,474,754
Other liabilities (259,449,880) (313,236,832) 751,987,887
Cash used in operations (45,434,130,920) (37,160,197,130) (859,726,209)
Income taxes paid (820,308,105) (1,208,573,920) (783,396,863)
Dividends received from joint venture investment (Note 10) 32,699,984 57,599,971 30,059,985
Net cash used in operating activities (46,221,739,041) (38,311,171,079) (1,613,063,087)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of:
Financial assets at FVOCI (228,142,099,166)  (522,049,795,033)  (596,433,148,029)
Investment securities at amortized cost (1,927,310,139) (890,227,702) (8,626,650,004)
Property and equipment (Notes 11 and 32) (319,208,849) (388,426,720) (332,839,077)
Other intangible assets (Note 13) (273,949,744) (70,519,156) (75,548,530)
Proceeds from sale/maturities of:
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 8) 257,872,403,928 540,298,330,000 588,538,027,651
Chattel mortgage properties (Note 14) 3,243,570,913 2,006,025,248 2,073,485,973
Investment securities at amortized cost 1,955,737,250 1,027,002,760 47,454,850
Investment properties (Note 12) 877,066,090 780,498,824 923,283,316
Property and equipment (Note 11) 37,246,262 51,992,160 99,482,403
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 33,323,456,545 20,764,880,381 (13,786,451,447)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Settlement of bonds payable - (4,650,000,000) -
Dividends paid (Note 21) (1,280,578,248) (1,280,578,248) (1,280,578,248)
Payment of lease liabilities (Notes 25 and 32) (522,142,339) (533,555,296) (558,996,040)
Settlement of bills payable (Note 32) (2,447,207,380) (5,981,745,057) (8,664,527,168)
Availments of bills payable (Note 32) 2,175,310,919 5,067,696,543 9,850,472,143
Net cash used in financing activities (2,074,617,048) (7,378,182,058) (653,629,313)
Effect of exchange rate differences 12,638 (399) 756,081

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2024

2023

2022

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(P14,972,886,906)

(P24,924,473,155)

(P16,052,387,766)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Cash and other cash items

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas - gross (Notes 7 and 16)

Due from other banks - gross

Interbank call loans receivable and securities purchased under
resale agreements (Note 7)

1,653,554,961
9,745,633,911
1,765,438,984

6,989,635,680

1,930,720,274
37,553,243,574
2,925,163,812

2,669,609,031

2,801,335,279
52,428,888,060
1,368,023,210

4,532,877,908

20,154,263,536

45,078,736,691

61,131,124,457

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Cash and other cash items

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas - gross (Notes 7 and 16)

Due from other banks - gross

Interbank call loans receivable and securities purchased under
resale agreements (Note 7)

1,781,441,158
1,183,357,292
1,816,578,180

400,000,000

1,653,554,961
9,745,633,911
1,765,438,984

6,989,635,680

1,930,720,274
37,553,243,574
2,925,163,812

2,669,609,031

P5,181,376,630

P£20,154,263,536

P45,078,736,691

OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Interest paid
Interest received

$£4,770,082,953
15,383,148,818

P5,786,661,627
15,417,117,332

$2,820,995,599
12,782,470,531

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Philippine Savings Bank (the Bank) was incorporated in the Philippines primarily to engage in
savings and mortgage banking. The Bank’s shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Bank offers a wide range of products and services such as deposit products, loans, treasury and
trust functions that mainly serve the retail and consumer markets. On September 6, 1991, the Bank
was authorized to perform trust functions.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank had 250 branches. In 2024, the Bank had 272
Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) in the branches (on-site) and 256 in other locations (off-site)
bringing its total number of ATMs to 528 as of December 31, 2024 and 556 as of December 31, 2023.

The Bank’s original Certificate of Incorporation was issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on June 30, 1959. On March 28, 2006, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Bank
approved the amendment of Article IV of its Amended Articles of Incorporation to extend the
corporate term of the Bank, which expired on June 30, 2009, for another 50 years or up to June 30,
2059. This was subsequently approved by stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock of the Bank on April 25, 2006. The Amended Articles of Incorporation was
approved by the SEC on September 27, 2006.

On April 27, 2010, by majority vote of the BOD and by stockholders representing two-thirds of the
outstanding capital stock, the amendment of Article VI of its Amended Articles of Incorporation
reducing the number of directors from a maximum of eleven (11) to a maximum of nine (9) has been
approved. This was approved by the SEC on August 26, 2010.

On March 24, 2014, the BOD approved Article III of Articles of Incorporation to specify its principal
address from Makati City to PSBank Center, 777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio Street, Makati City
1226. The Amended Articles of Incorporation was approved by the SEC on December 22, 2014.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (MBTC), the Bank’s
ultimate parent, owned 88.38% of the Bank.

2. Material Accounting Policy Information
Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) that have been measured at fair
value. All values are rounded to the nearest peso unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Bank include the accounts maintained in the Regular Banking Unit
(RBU) and Foreign Currency Deposit Unit (FCDU). The functional currency of RBU and FCDU is
Philippine Peso (PHP) and United States Dollar (USD), respectively. For financial reporting
purposes, FCDU accounts and foreign currency-denominated accounts in the RBU are translated into
their equivalents in Philippine peso (see accounting policy on Foreign Currency Translation). The
financial statements of these units are combined after eliminating inter-unit accounts.



The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the Bank presents an additional statement of condition at the beginning of the earliest period
presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with PFRS Accounting
Standards as adopted by the Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC).

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Bank presents its statements of condition in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery of
assets or settlement of liabilities within twelve (12) months after the statement of condition date

(current) and more than 12 months after the statement of condition date (non-current) is presented in
Note 20.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of
condition only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. The
Bank assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not contingent on a
future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event
of solvency or bankruptcy of the Bank and all of the counterparties.

Income and expenses are not offset in the statements of income unless required or permitted by any
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the
Bank.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective as at January 1, 2024. The Bank has not early adopted any
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. Unless otherwise
indicated, adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the financial statements of the
Bank.

o Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
The amendments clarify:
» That only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before reporting date will affect
a liability’s classification as current or non-current.
» That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right.
» That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
e Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
The amendments specify how a seller-lessee measures the lease liability arising in a sale and

leaseback transaction in a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use retained.
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e Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments specify disclosure requirements to enhance the current requirements, which are
intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in PHP, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

The books of accounts of the RBU are maintained in PHP, while those of the FCDU are maintained
in USD.

RBU

As at reporting date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the RBU are translated in

PHP based on the Bankers Association of the Philippines (BAP) closing rate prevailing at the
statement of condition date, and foreign currency-denominated income and expenses, at the exchange
rates as at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange differences arising from restatements of
foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities in the RBU are credited to or charged against
profit or loss in the year in which the rates change. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

FCDU

As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of the FCDU are translated to the Bank’s presentation
currency (PHP) at the BAP closing rate prevailing at the statement of condition date, and its income
and expenses are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the transactions. Exchange
differences arising on translation to the presentation currency are taken to the statements of
comprehensive income under ‘Cumulative translation adjustment’. Upon disposal of the FCDU or
upon actual remittance of FCDU profits to RBU, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income is recognized in the statements of income.

Fair Value Measurement

The Bank measures financial instruments, such as FVTPL investments, financial assets at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments, at fair value at each statement of condition date. Also, fair values of
financial instruments measured at amortized cost and non-financial assets such as investment
properties are disclosed in Note 4.

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Bank.



The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price (e.g., an input from a
dealer market), the price between the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorized within
the fair value hierarchy.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items,
due from BSP and other banks, interbank call loans receivable and securities purchased under resale
agreements (SPURA) that are convertible to known amounts of cash which have original maturities
of three months or less from date of placements and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Due from BSP includes the statutory reserves required by the BSP which the Bank
considers as cash equivalents as withdrawals can be made to meet the Bank’s cash requirements as
allowed by the BSP.

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets, except for derivatives, that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the
settlement date. Derivative financial instruments are recognized on a trade date basis. Deposits,
amounts due to banks and loans and receivables are recognized when cash is received by the Bank or
advanced to the borrowers.




Initial recognition of financial instruments
All financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Except for financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL, the initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs.

Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Bank recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the statement of income. In
cases where the transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the difference between
the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of income when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Bank
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ difference amount.

Financial Instruments — Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless these are measured at FVOCI or at amortized cost.
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or financial liabilities at
amortized cost. The classification of financial assets depends on the contractual terms and the
business model for managing the financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank may
reclassify its financial assets only when there is a change in its business model for managing these
financial assets. Reclassification of financial liabilities is not allowed.

The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Bank’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios. As a second step of its
classification process, the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether
they pass the contractual cash flows test (SPPI test).

Investments at FVTPL

Financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading purposes and derivative instruments.

Financial instruments held-for-trading

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading (HFT) are recorded in the statements of
condition at fair value. Included in this classification are debt securities which have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term. Changes in fair value relating to the HFT
positions are recognized in ‘Trading and securities gains (losses) - net’. Interest earned or incurred is
recorded as interest income or expense, respectively, while dividend income is recorded in other
operating income under ‘Miscellaneous’ when the right to receive payment has been established.

Derivatives recorded at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value on the date at which the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair values of derivatives (except those accounted for as cash flow hedges) are taken
directly to the statements of income and are included in ‘Foreign exchange gain - net’. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, derivatives consist of Republic of the Philippines (ROP) paired
warrants acquired to manage the Bank’s foreign currency risk, lower the risk-weighted assets and
improve the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank.



Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI include debt and equity securities. After initial measurement, investment
securities at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. The unrealized gains and losses arising
from the fair valuation of financial assets at FVOCI are excluded, net of tax as applicable, from the
reported earnings and are included in the statements of comprehensive income as ‘Fair value reserves
on financial assets at FVOCI’.

Debt securities at FVOCI are those that meet both of the following conditions: (i) the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order to both collect
contractual cash flows and sell financial assets; and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the outstanding principal amount. The
effective yield component of debt securities at FVOCI, as well as the impact of restatements on
foreign currency-denominated debt securities at FVOCI, is reported in the statements of income.
Interest earned on holding debt securities at FVOCI are reported as ‘Interest income’ using the
effective interest method. When the debt securities at FVOCI are disposed of, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in the statements of comprehensive income is recognized as ‘Trading and
securities gain (loss) - net’ in the statements of income. The ECL arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) with a corresponding charge to
‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the statements of income.

Equity securities designated at FVOCI are those that the Bank made an irrevocable election to present
in OCI the subsequent changes in fair value. Dividends earned on holding equity securities at FVOCI
are recognized in the statements of income as ‘Dividends’ when the right to receive payment has been
established, except when the Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Gains and losses on disposal of these
equity securities are never recycled to profit or loss, but the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in the statements of comprehensive income is reclassified to ‘Surplus’ or any other
appropriate equity account upon disposal. Equity securities at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost are debt financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:
(1) these are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the outstanding principal amount. This accounting policy relates to the statements of
condition captions ‘Due from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’, ‘Interbank call loans receivable and
SPURA’, ‘Investment securities at amortized cost’ and ‘Loans and receivables’.

After initial measurement, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate (EIR). The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statements of
income. Gains and losses are recognized in statements of income when these investments are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The ECL are recognized in
the statements of income under ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’. The effects of
revaluation on foreign currency denominated investments are recognized in the statements of income.

Other financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

This category represents issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at
FVTPL and comprises deposit liabilities, bills payable, subordinated notes, treasurer’s, cashier’s and
manager’s checks, accrued interest payable, accrued other expenses payable, accounts payable, bills
purchased-contra, other credits, dividends payable, deposits for keys-safety deposit boxes (SDB), and
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overages, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Bank having an obligation
either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity
shares.

After initial measurement, financial liabilities not qualified and not designated as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest amortization method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR.

A compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is
separated at the issue date. A portion of the net proceeds of the instrument is allocated to the debt
component on the date of issue based on its fair value (which is generally determined based on quoted
market prices for similar debt instruments). The residual amount determined after deducting the fair
value of the debt component is assigned to the equity component. The value of any derivative
features (such as a call option) embedded in the compound financial instrument other than the equity
component is included in the debt component.

Financial Guarantees and Undrawn Loan Commitments

The Bank issues financial guarantees and loan commitments. Financial guarantees are those issued
by the Bank to creditors as allowed under existing rules and regulations whereby it guarantees third
party obligations by signing as guarantor in the contract/agreement. Undrawn loan commitments and
letters of credit are commitments under which over the duration of the commitment, the Bank is
required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. The nominal contractual value of
financial guarantees and undrawn loan commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on
market terms, are not recorded in the statement of financial position. These contracts are in the scope
of the ECL requirements where the Bank estimates the expected portion of the undrawn loan
commitments that will be drawn over their expected life. The ECL related to financial guarantees and
undrawn loan commitments is recognized in ‘Miscellaneous liabilities’ under ‘Other liabilities’.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets)
is primarily derecognized when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expires;
e the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through 'arrangement;
o the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
a. the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
b. the Bank has neither transferred nor retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control over the asset.

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor is transferred control over the asset, the asset recognized to the extent of the
Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. In this case, the Bank also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Bank could be required to repay.

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Bank has stopped
pursuing the recovery. If a write-off is later recovered, any amounts formerly charged are credited to
‘Recovery on charged-off assets’ under ‘Miscellaneous income’ in the statements of income.

Modification of financial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new asset, with the difference between its carrying amount and
the fair value of the new asset recognized as a derecognition gain or loss in profit or loss, to the extent
that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative factors in assessing whether a modification of
financial asset is substantial or not. When assessing whether a modification is substantial, the Bank
considers the following factors, among others:

» Change in currency

» Introduction of an equity feature

* Change in counterparty

» If the modification results in the asset no longer considered “solely payment for principal and
interest”

The Bank also performs a quantitative assessment similar to that being performed for modification of
financial liabilities. In performing the quantitative assessment, the Bank considers the new terms of a
financial asset to be substantially different if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10% different from the present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial asset.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, the Bank
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original EIR (or credit-adjusted EIR for purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets) and recognizes a modification gain or loss in the
statement of income.

When the modification of a financial asset results in the derecognition of the existing financial asset
and the subsequent recognition of a new financial asset, the modified asset is considered a ‘new’
financial asset. Accordingly, the date of the modification shall be treated as the date of initial
recognition of that financial asset when applying the impairment requirements to the modified
financial asset. The newly recognized financial asset is classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be originated as credit impaired (POCI).

Financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability or a
part of it are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of income.
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Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (SSURA) at a specified future date (‘repos’) are not
derecognized from the statements of condition as the Bank retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is recognized in
the statements of condition as a loan to the Bank under ‘Bills payable’, reflecting the economic
substance of such transaction.

Conversely, SPURA at a specified future date (‘reverse repos’) are not recognized in the statements
of condition. The consideration paid, including accrued interest, is recognized in the statements of
condition as SPURA, and is considered a loan to the counterparty. The difference between the
purchase price and resale price is treated as interest income and is accrued over the life of the
agreement using the effective interest amortization method.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Bank reclassifies its financial assets when there is a change in its business model for managing
financial assets. A change in business model occurs when the Bank either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. The Bank applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date and does not restate any previously recognized gains,
losses or interest.

Impairment of Financial Assets
PFRS 9 requires the Bank to record ECL for all loans and other debt financial assets not classified as
at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

Expected credit loss methodology

ECL represent credit losses that reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted amount which is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. The objective is to record lifetime losses on all financial instruments which have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since their initial recognition. As a result,
ECL allowances are now measured at amounts equal to either (i) 12-month ECL or (ii) lifetime ECL
for those financial instruments which have experienced a SICR since initial recognition (General
Approach). The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In comparison, the previous incurred loss model recognizes lifetime credit losses only
when there is objective evidence of impairment.

In select circumstances, accounts are individually assessed to ensure that provisions are appropriate
and adequate. Manual loan classification reviews additional qualitative factors and prescribes much
higher provisions that is based on portfolio historical experience.

Staging assessment

For non-credit-impaired financial instruments:

e Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a
SICR since initial recognition. The Bank recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial
instruments.

e Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have experienced a SICR
since initial recognition. The Bank recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial instruments.
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For credit-impaired financial instruments:

¢ Financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The ECL model
requires that lifetime ECL be recognized for impaired financial instruments.

Definition of “default” and “cure”

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Bank considers a variety
of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. The Bank’s definition of default is aligned with the
non-performing loan criteria as prescribed in BSP Circular No. 941. Defaults refer to loans,
investments, receivables, or any financial asset, even without any missed contractual payments, that
satisfy any of the following conditions (1) impaired under existing accounting standards,

(2) classified as doubtful or loss, (3) in litigation, (4) and/or there is evidence that full repayment of
principal and interest is unlikely without foreclosure of collateral, if any. All other loans, even if not
considered impaired, shall be considered non-performing if any principal and/or interest are unpaid
for more than ninety (90) days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more than ninety
(90) days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement. Restructured loans shall be
considered non-performing. However, if prior to restructuring, the loans were categorized as
performing, such classification shall be retained. Defaults are characterized by financial assets that
have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date and as such classified under Stage 3 ECL
treatment.

An instrument is considered to be no longer in default, i.e., to have cured, when it no longer meets
any of the default criteria above and there is sufficient evidence to support full collection thru
payments received for at least 6 months. Cured accounts are classified under Stage 1 ECL treatment.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by portfolio and
include quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, including a backstop
based on delinquency. The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition if, based on the Bank’s quantitative models, the borrower or
counterparty’s credit rating has deteriorated by at least 2 notches. On the other hand, if based on the
Bank’s internal credit assessment, the borrower or counterparty is determined to require close
monitoring or with well-defined credit weaknesses, then credit risk may have significantly increased
as well. Moreover, if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due threshold, the credit risk
is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which amortized
payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any grace period that
might be available to the borrower. In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial
instrument improves such that there is no longer a SICR since initial recognition, the Bank shall
revert to recognizing a 12-month ECL.

ECL parameters and methodologies
ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default
(LGD) with each of the parameter independently modelled.

The PD represents the likelihood that a credit exposure will not be repaid and will go into default in
either a 12-month horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual
instrument is modelled based on historical data and is estimated based on current market conditions
and reasonable and supportable information about future economic conditions. The Bank segmented
its credit exposures based on homogenous risk characteristics and developed a corresponding PD
methodology for each portfolio. The PD methodology for each relevant portfolio is determined based
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on the underlying nature or characteristic of the portfolio, behavior of the accounts and materiality of
the segment as compared to the total portfolio.

EAD is modelled on historical data and represents an estimate of the outstanding amount of credit
exposure at the time a default may occur. For off-balance sheet and undrawn amounts, EAD includes
an estimate of any further amounts to be drawn at the time of default. LGD is the amount that may
not be recovered in the event of default and is modelled based on historical cash flow recovery and
reasonable and supportable information about future economic conditions, where appropriate. LGD
takes into consideration the amount and quality of any collateral held.

Economic overlays and multiple economic scenarios

The Bank incorporates economic overlays into the measurement of ECL to add a forward-looking
risk measure parallel to multiple future macroeconomic atmosphere expectations. A broad range of
economic indicators were considered for the economic inputs, such as GDP, GIR change, CPI
change, PSE indices, foreign exchange rates and other BSP statistical indicators. The inputs and
models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date
of the financial statements. To address this, quantitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally
made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

The Bank’s loans and receivables consist of different portfolios, such as consumption, real estate,
commercial and personal loans, as well as other receivables (e.g., sales contract receivables). In
compliance with PFRS 9, the Bank developed ECL parameters and methodologies for each portfolio,
using historical data as well as forward-looking inputs and assumptions.

Restructured loans

In certain circumstances, the Bank modifies the original terms and conditions of a credit exposure to
form a new loan agreement or payment schedule. The modifications can be given depending on the
borrower’s or counterparty’s current or expected financial difficulty. The modifications may include,
but are not limited to, changes in maturity date, principal amount from capitalization of accrued
interest, terms and conditions from conversion/consolidation or interest rates/repricing cycle that
results in an extension in the loan maturity. Distressed restructuring with indications of unlikeliness
to pay are categorized as impaired accounts and are initially moved to Stage 3.

The Bank implements a curing policy for restructured accounts compliant with BSP Circular No.
1011. Restructured accounts that have exhibited improvements in creditworthiness may be moved
from Stage 3 after a total of one-year probation period. These accounts are transferred to Stage 2
after six months of full payments and consequently transferred to Stage 1 after making the next six
months of full payments.

Management continuously reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subjected to an individual or collective
impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR if the original loan has a fixed
interest rate and the current repriced rate if the original loan is repriceable. The difference between
the recorded value of the original loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows,
discounted at the applicable interest rate, is recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’
in the statements of income.

Investment in a Joint Venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Bank’s investment in its joint venture is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the joint venture since
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of income reflects the Bank’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture.
Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Bank’s OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Bank recognizes its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Bank and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Bank’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the
statement of income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling
interests in the subsidiaries of the joint venture.

The financial statements of a joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Bank.
The length of the reporting period is the same from period to period. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Bank.

After application of the equity method, the Bank determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each statement of condition date, the Bank
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If
there is such evidence, the Bank calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, then recognizes the loss as ‘Share in
net income of a joint venture’ in the statements of income.

Upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Bank measures and recognizes any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon
loss of joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Property and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value, while depreciable properties, including building,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, and leasehold improvements, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of property and equipment
consists of its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged against profit or loss in the
year in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of property and equipment.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of the property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 25-50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years, depending on the type of assets
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the term of the related lease,

whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Leases

Bank as lessee

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets
The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets (included in ‘Property and Equipment’) at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Office space and warehouses 1 to 20 years
ATM space 1 to 3 years

ii. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Bank exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
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payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets were recognized based on the amount equal to
the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously
recognized. Lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

After the commencement date, the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that are within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to
exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy).

The Bank’s lease liabilities are included in ‘Other Liabilities’.

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Bank applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of ATMs and office equipment that are considered of low value
(i.e., £250,000 and below). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment
property acquired through an exchange transaction is measured at the fair value of the asset acquired
unless the fair value of such asset cannot be measured, in which case the investment property
acquired is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up. The difference between the fair
value of the asset received and the carrying amount of the asset given up is recorded as ‘Gain on
foreclosure of real assets and other properties acquired’ under ‘Gain on foreclosure and sale of
investment properties’. Foreclosed properties are classified under investment properties from
foreclosure date. Expenditures incurred after the investment properties are recognized, such as
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to income in the period in which the costs are
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment in value, except for land which is stated at cost less impairment in value.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the remaining useful lives from the
time of acquisition of the investment properties. The estimated useful life of building and
condominium units ranges from 10 to 40 years.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized
in the statement of income in ‘Gain on foreclosure and sale of investment properties - net’ in the year
of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced
by ending of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of
construction or development. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when,
there is a change in use evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sale.

Chattel Mortgage Properties

Chattel mortgage properties comprise of repossessed vehicles. Chattel mortgage properties are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value. Chattel mortgage properties acquired
are initially recognized at fair value. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the remaining useful lives from the time of acquisition of the vehicles. The useful lives of chattel
mortgage properties are estimated to be five years.

Chattel mortgage properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the
chattel mortgage property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from
its disposal.

Any gains or losses on disposal of chattel mortgage properties are recognized in the statements of
income under ‘Gain (loss) on foreclosure and sale of chattel mortgage properties- net’ in the year of
disposal.

Intangible Assets

The Bank’s intangible assets include branch licenses and computer software. An intangible asset is
recognized only when the cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Bank.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statements of income in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statements of income under
‘Amortization of intangible assets’.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or
at the cash-generating unit (CGU) level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statements of income when the asset is derecognized.

Branch licenses

Branch licenses arise from the acquisition of branches from local banks and licenses to operate new
branches from the BSP. Branch licenses have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment on
an annual basis.

Software costs

Software costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment in value. Given
the history of rapid changes in technology, computer software are susceptible to technological
obsolescence. Therefore, it is likely that their useful life is short. Software costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over five years but maybe shorter depending on the period over which the Bank
expects to use the asset.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Property and equipment, investment properties and chattel mortgage properties

At each statement of condition date, the Bank assesses whether there is any indication that its non-
financial assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists or when an annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank makes a formal estimate of the recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the CGU to which it belongs. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples and other available fair value
indicators.

An impairment loss is charged to operations in the year in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each statement of condition date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Bank estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been previously recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of income.
After such reversal, the depreciation expense is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life.
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Goodwill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of
CGU) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGU)
is less than the carrying amount of the CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated,
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statements of income. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in future
periods. The Bank performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at December 31 of each year.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at December 31 of
each year, either individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate.

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Investment in a joint venture

After application of the equity method, the Bank determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on the Bank’s investment in a joint venture. The Bank determines at each statement
of condition date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment a joint venture is
impaired. If this is the case, the Bank calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the fair value of the investment in the joint venture and the carrying amount and recognizes
such amount in the statements of income.

Common Stock

Common stocks are recorded at par. Proceeds in excess of par value are recognized under equity as
‘Capital paid in excess of par value’ in the statements of condition. Incremental costs incurred which
are directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from
proceeds, net of tax.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of services to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services.

The Bank assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as a principal or agent. The Bank concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements.

Service fees and commission income

Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognized after fulfilling the
corresponding criteria. These fees include remittance fees, commissions, deposit-related and other
credit-related fees.

Income from sale of property and equipment, investment property and chattel mortgage properties
Income from sale of property and equipment, investment property and chattel mortgage properties is
included in the profit or loss when the property is derecognized. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of the property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount on the date of the transaction.
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Revenue outside the scope of PFRS 15

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments
classified as financial assets at FVOCI investments, interest income is recorded at the EIR, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options), including any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the EIR.

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original
EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as ‘Interest income’.

Under PFRS 9, when a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as Stage 3
(as discussed in “Impairment of Financial Assets” above), the Bank calculates interest income by
applying the EIR to the net amortized cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no
longer credit-impaired, the Bank reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Recovery on charged-off assets
Income arising from collections on accounts or recoveries from impairment of items previously
written off are recognized in the year of recovery.

Trading and securities gains (losses) - net

Trading and securities gain (loss) represents results arising from trading activities, including all gains
and losses from changes in the fair values of FVTPL investments. It also includes gains and losses
realized from sale of debt securities at FVOCI.

Realized gains and losses on disposals of FVTPL investments are calculated using weighted average
method. It represents the difference between an instrument’s initial carrying amount and disposal
amount.

Gain on disposal of investments securities at amortized cost
Gain on disposal of investment securities at amortized cost represents gain realized from sale of peso-
denominated debt securities measured at amortized cost.

Rental income

Rental income arising from leased properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms of ongoing leases and is recorded in the statements of income under ‘Miscellaneous’ in other
operating income.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized when it is probable that a decrease in future economic benefit related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase in liability has occurred and the decrease in economic benefits can
be measured reliably. Revenues and expenses that relate to the same transaction or other event are
recognized simultaneously.

Interest expense
Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities are recognized in ‘Interest expense’ in the
statements of income using the EIR of the financial liabilities to which they relate.
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Other expense
Expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the ordinary course of business of
the Bank. Expenses are recognized when incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
acquisition cost over the share in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities. The Bank’s goodwill arose from past purchases of branch business/offices from
the Parent Company. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Retirement Cost

Defined benefit plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the statement of condition date reduced by the fair value of plan assets, adjusted for any
effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary. The asset ceiling is the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

a. service cost;
b. net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset; and
c. remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service costs, which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on Philippine government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or
loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Bank, nor can they be paid directly to the
Bank. The fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
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defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The Bank’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs.
Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are measured in accordance with
the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-term employee benefits,
or other long-term employee benefits.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled after the end of the annual
reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Bank expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income, net of
any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as ‘Interest expense’.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Debt Issue Costs

Issuance, underwriting and other related expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of debt
instruments are included in the measurement basis of the underlying debt instruments and are
amortized as an adjustment to the interest on the underlying debt instruments using the effective
interest method.
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Income Taxes

Income tax on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
determined in accordance with Philippine tax law. Income tax is recognized in the statement of
income, except to the extent that it relates to OCI items recognized directly in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using the tax
rates enacted at the statement of condition date, together with adjustments to tax payable in respect to
prior years.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary
differences at the statement of condition date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry
forward of unused tax losses and tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over
the regular corporate income tax (RCIT), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax
losses and MCIT can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of condition date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each statement of condition date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the statement of condition date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Current income tax and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in OCI is also
recognized in OCI and not in the statements of income.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive
effect to stock dividends declared, stock rights exercised and stock splits, if any, declared during the
year.

Dividends on Common Shares

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when approved
by the BOD of the Bank. Dividends for the year that are approved after the statements of condition
date are dealt with as subsequent events.
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Segment Reporting

The Bank’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business segments is
presented in Note 6. The Bank’s assets generating revenues are all located in the Philippines (i.e.,
one geographical location). Therefore, geographical segment information is no longer presented.

Fiduciary Activities

Assets and income arising from fiduciary activities together with related undertakings to return such
assets to customers are excluded from the financial statements, where the Bank acts in a fiduciary
capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Bank’s position at the statement of
condition date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. The Bank intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective. Adoption of these pronouncements is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025
e PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
e Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeability

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2026
e Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7, Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
e Annual Improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2027
e PFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
o PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability

Deferred effectivity
e Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure
of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities affected in future periods. The effects of any change in judgments, estimates and
assumptions are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.
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Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

(@)

(b)

()

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of
condition or disclosed in the notes to financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility for longer-dated derivatives and discount rates, prepayments and default rates
assumptions. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

The fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 4.

Classification of financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets depending on the business model for managing those
financial assets and whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Bank performs the business model assessment based on observable factors such as:

e Performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the Bank’s key management personnel

e Risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

e Compensation of business units whether based on the fair value of the assets managed or on
the contractual cash flows collected

e Expected frequency, value and timing of sales

In performing the SPPI test, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the
currency in which the financial asset is denominated, the period for which the interest rate is set,
contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows, leverage features,
prepayment and extension terms and other features that may modify the consideration for the
time value of money.

Leases

Bank as lessor

The Bank has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties portfolio and
over various items of furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Bank has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements (i.c., the lease does not transfer
ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term, the lessee has no option to
purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date
the option is exercisable and the lease term is not for the major part of the asset’s economic life),
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that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

Bank as lessee

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Extension and termination options

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank
applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors such as leasehold
improvements and location that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the Bank reassess the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Estimating the IBR for lease liabilities

The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR for lease liabilities is the rate of interest that the Bank would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

The Bank estimates the IBR for lease liabilities using observable inputs (by reference to
prevailing risk-free rates) adjusted to take into account the entity’s credit risk (i.e., credit spread).

The carrying values of the Bank’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 11,
19 and 25, respectively.

Evaluation of business model in managing financial assets

The Bank manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain adequate level of
financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely arising from customers’ withdrawals
and continuing loan disbursements to borrowers, while maintaining a strategic portfolio of
financial assets for investment and trading activities consistent with its risk appetite.

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Bank developed
business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial instruments. The Bank’s
business models need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but applied at the level of a
portfolio of financial instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed together
by the Bank) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or specific
characteristics of individual financial instrument). The Bank evaluates in which business model a
financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments belong to taking into consideration the
objectives of each business model established by the Bank.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent and more than an insignificant
sale is made out of a portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess
whether and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.
In making this judgment, the Bank considers certain circumstances documented in its business
model manual to assess that an increase in the frequency or value of sales of financial instruments
in a particular period is not necessarily inconsistent with a held-to-collect (HTC) business model
if the Bank can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not reflect a change in
the Bank’s objective for the business model.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of condition date, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next period, are described below. The Bank
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the Bank. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Credit losses on financial assets
The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Significant
factors affecting the estimates on the ECL model include:

e Segmentation of the portfolio, where the appropriate model or ECL approach is used

e The criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment. The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a
collective basis

e Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs. In
2024, the Bank enhanced its ECL models to align with current economic conditions and
improve capital efficiency. Pandemic-era overlay models for consumer loans were updated to
enhance stability and reliability. Additionally, the Bank refined its Probability of Default
(PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) models improved risk assessment and provisioning
accuracy.

e Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs and
the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

The ECL model performance is reviewed periodically, and appropriate measures are taken to
ensure provisions for credit losses are adequate.

The gross carrying amounts of financial assets subject to ECL as of December 31, 2024 and the
related allowance for credit losses are disclosed in Notes 5 and 15, respectively.

(b) Impairment of investment properties and chattel mortgage properties
The Bank assesses impairment on its non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors
that the Bank considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

e significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating
results;

e significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

e significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Bank recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the fair value less costs to sell
for property and equipment, investment properties and chattel mortgage properties. Recoverable
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amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

The carrying values of the Bank’s investment properties and chattel mortgage properties are
disclosed in Notes 12 and 14, respectively.

(c) Present value of retirement obligation
The cost of defined benefit pension plans as well as the present value of the pension obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, and
future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and
its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each statement of condition date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
Philippine government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit
obligation.

The details of assumptions used in the actuarial valuation and carrying value of the net pension
liability are disclosed in Note 24.

(d) Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The estimates of future taxable income indicate that
certain temporary differences will be realized in the future. The recognized net deferred assets
and unrecognized deferred tax assets for the Bank are disclosed in Note 27.

(e) Contingent liabilities
The Bank is a defendant in legal actions arising from its normal business activities. Management
believes that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from these cases will not have a material
effect on the Bank’s financial statements are disclosed in Note 31.

Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine the fair values of
financial instruments:

Cash and other cash items, due from BSP, due from other banks, interbank call loans receivable and
SPURA, accounts receivable, accrued interest receivable, bills purchased, returned checks and other
cash items (RCOCI), shortages, petty cash fund, and liquidity requirement for e-money - Carrying
amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturities of these assets.

Debt investments - Fair values are generally based on quoted market prices. If the market prices are

not readily available, fair values are estimated using either values obtained from independent parties
offering pricing services or adjusted quoted market prices of comparable investments or using the
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discounted cash flow methodology, using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

Equity investments - Fair values are based on quoted prices published in markets.

Receivable from customers, sales contract receivables and security deposits - Fair values are
estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology, using the Bank’s current lending rates for
similar types of loans. The discount rates used range from 3.00% to 36.22% and 3.00% to 41.52% in
2024 and 2023, respectively.

Demand deposits, savings deposits, treasurer’s, cashier’s and manager’s checks, accrued interest
payable, accounts payable, bills purchased-contra, other credits, deposits for keys-SDB, payment

orders payable and overages - Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to either the demand
nature or the relatively short-term maturities of these liabilities.

Bonds payable and time deposits - Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow
methodology using the Bank’s borrowing rates for similar borrowings with maturities consistent with

those remaining for the liability being valued. The discount rates used are the following:

Discount Rates

2024 2023
Bonds payable - 4.50%
Time deposits 0.35% to 4.95% 0.25% to 6.25%

The inputs used in the fair value measurement based on Level 2 are as follows:

Government securities - interpolated rates based on market rates of benchmark securities as of
statement of condition date.

The inputs used in estimating fair values of financial instruments carried at amortized cost and
categorized under Level 3 include risk-free rates and applicable risk premium.

Non-financial Assets

Investment properties - Fair values of the investment properties have been determined based on
valuations performed by independent external and in-house appraisers using valuation technique with
significant inputs that are not based on observable market data (Level 3). The valuation of
investment properties was based on the Sales Comparison Approach and considered recent sales of
similar or substitute properties in the same areas where the investment properties are located, taking
into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time of the valuation. Other factors considered
were the location and shape of the properties, environmental issues, development controls such as the
height restriction, building coverage and floor area ratio restrictions among others. Other significant
unobservable inputs include shape, location, time element, discount and corner influence. The fair
value of investment properties is based on its highest and best use, which is its current use.
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The following tables summarize the carrying amount and fair values of the Bank’s financial
instruments and investment properties, analyzed based on the hierarchy described in Note 2
(in thousands):

December 31, 2024
Carrying Total
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial Assets
FVTPL investments
HFT - government securities £300,599 £300,599 - - £300,599
Financial assets at FVOCI
Government debt securities 25,518,904 9,294,431 16,224,473 - 25,518,904
Private debt securities 338,923 242,082 96,841 - 338,923
Equity securities 34,364 34,364 — — 34,364
£26,192,790 £9,871476 216,321,314 £26,192,790
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Financial Assets
Investment securities at amortized cost
Government £29,020,885 £18,000,375 9,759,936 B- £27,760,311
Private 1,075,436 1,069,001 - - 1,069,001
Loans and receivables
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans 87,967,008 - - 99,812,680 99,812,680
Real estate loans 43,347,882 - - 66,616,422 66,616,422
Commercial loans 7,435,282 - - 7,567,451 7,567,451
Personal loans 1,731,395 - - 2,140,463 2,140,463
Sales contract receivable 3,861 - - 4,055 4,055
Security Deposits 209,110 - - 283,964 283,964
Non-Financial Assets
Investment properties 3,640,817 — — 6,547,753 6,547,753
P£174,431,676 £19,069,376 £9,759,936 P£182,972,788 £211,802,100
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Deposit liabilities - time £91,272,572 P- P- £93,931,631 £93,931,631
Deposit liabilities - LTNCD - - - - -
Bills payable — — — — —
£91,272,572 £93,931,631 £93,931,631

December 31, 2023

Carrying Total
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial Assets
FVTPL investments
HFT - government securities £414,298 £414,298 P P P414,298
Financial assets at FVOCI
Government debt securities 52,699,129 50,889,402 1,809,727 - 52,699,129
Private debt securities 1,633,147 1,633,147 - - 1,633,147
Equity securities 27,418 21,199 6,219 — 27,418
P54,773,992 P52,958,046 P1,815,946 P- P54,773,992
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Financial Assets
Investment securities at amortized cost
Government £27,875,963 18,767,093 £8,088,712 P £26,855,805
Private 2,017,205 1,984,906 - - 1,984,906
Loans and receivables
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans 71,139,977 - - 81,231,497 81,231,497
Real estate loans 40,214,290 - - 61,703,987 61,703,987
Commercial loans 6,521,064 - - 6,529,641 6,529,641
Personal loans 1,629,939 - - 2,247.444 2,247.444
Sales contract receivable 6,380 - - 6,764 6,764
Security Deposits 198,884 - - 285,800 285,800
Non-Financial Assets
Investment properties 3,934,950 — — 6,617,966 6,617,966
P153,538,652 P20,751,999 P8,088,712 P158,623,099 P187,463,810
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Deposit liabilities - time P112,749,126 P P P116,153,413 P116,153,413
Deposit liabilities - LTNCD 5,084,218 - - 5,111,755 5,111,755
Bills payable 271,896 — — 310,561 310,561
P118,105,240 P P P121,575,729 P121,575,729
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When fair values of listed equity and debt securities, as well as publicly traded derivatives at the
reporting date are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer price quotations, without any
adjustments for transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist and other revaluation models. Instruments included in Level 3 include those
for which there is currently no active market.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank determined the market value of its warrants to be zero
due to the absence of an active market for the Bank’s ROP warrants, as evidenced by the
unavailability of quoted market prices.

Financial Risk Management Policies and Objectives
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

e Creditrisk
e  Market risk
e Liquidity risk

Organization risk management structure continues to be a top-down organization, with the BOD at
the helm of all major initiatives.

Discussed below are the relevant sections on roles and responsibilities from the Risk Oversight
Committee (ROC) Charter:

Board of Directors (BOD)

The corporate powers of the Bank are vested in and are exercised by the BOD, who conducts its
business and controls its property. The BOD approves broad risk management strategies and policies
and ensures that risk management initiatives and activities are consistent with the Bank’s overall
objectives. The BOD appoints the members of the ROC.

Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

The ROC is composed of at least three members of the Board, the majority of whom are independent
directors including its Chairperson. The ROC Chairperson is not the Chairperson of the Board or of
any other committee. Members of the ROC possess a range of expertise and adequate knowledge of
the Bank’s risk exposures to be able to develop appropriate strategies for preventing losses and
minimizing the impact of losses when they occur.

The BOD may also appoint non-directors to the ROC as part of the Metrobank Group risk oversight
measures. However, only Bank directors shall be considered as voting members of the ROC. Non-
voting members are appointed in an advisory capacity.

The ROC oversees the system of limits to discretionary authority that the BOD delegates to the

management and ensures that the system remains effective, the limits are observed, and that
immediate corrective actions are taken whenever limits are breached.
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The ROC meets on a monthly basis and is supported by the Risk Management Office (RMO). In the
absence of the ROC Chairman, another Independent Director shall preside. ROC resolutions, which
require the concurrence of the majority of its voting members, are presented to the BOD for
confirmation.

Risk Management Office (RMO)

The RMO, headed by the Chief Risk and Sustainability Officer, is a function that is independent from
executive functions and business line responsibilities, operations and revenue-generating functions. It
reports directly to the BOD, through the ROC. The RMO assists the ROC in carrying out its
responsibilities by:

e analyzing, communicating, implementing, and maintaining the risk management policies
approved by the ROC and the BOD;

e spearheading the regular review of the Bank’s risk management policy manual and making or
elevating recommendations that enhance the risk management process to the ROC and the BOD,
for their approval; and

e ensuring that the risks arising from the Bank’s activities are identified, measured, analyzed,
reported to and understood by risk takers, management, and the board. The RMO analyzes limit
exceptions and recommends enhancements to the limits structure.

The RMO does not assume risk-taking accountability nor does it have approving authority. The
RMO’s role is to act as liaison and to provide support to the BOD, ROC, the President, management
committees, risk takers and other support and control functions on risk-related matters.

The Risk Management Function is responsible for:

e identifying the key risk exposures and assessing and measuring the extent of risk exposures of the
Bank and its trust operations;

e monitoring the risk exposures and determining the corresponding capital requirement in
accordance with the Basel capital adequacy framework and based on the Bank’s internal capital
adequacy assessment on an on-going basis;

e monitoring and assessing decisions to accept particular risks whether these are consistent with
BOD-approved policies on risk tolerance and the effectiveness of the corresponding risk
mitigation measures; and

e reporting on a regular basis to Senior Management and the BOD the results of assessment and
monitoring.

President

The President is the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and has the primary responsibility of
carrying out the policies and objectives of the BOD. The President exercises the authorities delegated
to him by the BOD and may recommend such policies and objectives he deems necessary for the
continuing progress of the Bank.

Risk management

The risk management framework aims to maintain a balance between the nature of the Bank’s
businesses and the risk appetite of the BOD. Accordingly, policies and procedures are reviewed
regularly and revised as the organization grows and as financial markets evolve. New policies or
proposed changes in current policies are presented to the ROC and the BOD for approval.
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a. Credit risk and concentration of assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet items

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not settle its obligations in accordance with the agreed
terms.

The Bank’s lending business follows credit policy guidelines set by the BOD, ROC and RMO. These
policies serve as minimum standards for extending credit. The people engaged in the credit process
are required to understand and adhere to these policies.

Product manuals are in place for all loans and deposit products that actually or potentially expose the
Bank to all types of risks that may result in financial or reputational losses. They define the product
and the risks associated with the product plus the corresponding risk-mitigating controls. They
embody the business plans and define the business parameters within which the product or activity is
to be performed.

The system of checks around extension of credit includes approval by at least two credit approvers
through the Credit Committee (CreCom), Executive Committee (ExCom) or BOD. The ROC
reviews the business strategies and ensures that revenue-generating activities are consistent with the
risk tolerance and standards of the Bank. The Internal Audit Group conducts regular audit across all
functional units. The BOD, through the ExCom, CreCom and ROC, ensure that sound credit policies
and practices are followed through all the business segments.

Credit Approval
Credit approval is the documented acceptance of credit risk in the credit proposal or application.

The Bank’s credit decision-making for consumer loans utilizes the recommendation of the credit
scoring and is performed at the CreCom level appropriate to the size and risk of each transaction, in
conformity with corporate policies and procedures in regulating credit risk activities. The Bank’s
ExCom may approve deviations or exceptions, while the BOD approves material exceptions such as
large exposures, loans to directors, officers, stockholders and other related interests (DOSRI) and
related party transactions, and loan restructuring.

Credit delegation limits are identified, tracked and reviewed at least annually by the Bank’s Head of
Credit and Collections together with the Credit Risk Manager.

Borrower Eligibility

The Bank’s credit processing commences when a customer expresses his intention to borrow through
a credit application. The Bank gathers data on the customer; ensures they are accurate, up-to-date and
adequate to meet the minimum regulatory requirements and to render credit decision. These data are
used for the intended purpose only and are managed in adherence to the customer information secrecy
law.

The customer’s credit worthiness, repayment ability and cash flow are established before credit is
extended. The Bank independently verifies critical data from the customer, ensuring compliance with
Know Your Customer requirements under the anti-money laundering laws. The Bank requires that
customer income be derived from legitimate sources and supported with government-accepted
statements of income, assets and liabilities.

The Bank ascertains whether the customer is legally capable of entering a credit contract and of
providing a charge over any asset presented as collateral for a loan. Guarantors or sureties may be
accepted, provided they are a relative, partner, and have financial interest in the transaction, and they
pass all credit acceptance criteria applied to the borrower.
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Loan Structure
The Bank structures loans for its customers based on the customer’s capability to pay, the purpose of
the loan, and for a collateralized loan, the collateral’s economic life and liquidation value over time.

The Bank establishes debt burden guidelines and minimum income requirements to assess the
customer’s capacity to pay.

The Bank utilizes credit bureau data, both external and internal, to obtain information on a customer’s
current commitments and credit history.

The Bank takes into account environmental and social issues when reviewing credit proposals of
small businesses and commercial mortgage customers. The Bank ensures that all qualified securities
pass through the BOD for approval. Assignments of securities are confirmed and insurance are
properly secured.

The Bank uses credit scoring models and decision systems for consumer loans as approved by the
BOD. Borrower risk rating model and facility risk rating model, on the other hand, are available for
SME loans, and supported with qualitative evaluation. Regular monitoring of all these tools and their
performance is carried out to ensure that they remain effective.

Initial loan limits are recommended by the CreCom and ExCom and approved by the BOD. The
Bank ensures that secured loans are within ceilings set by local regulators. Succeeding loan
availments are based on account performance and customer’s credit worthiness.

Credit Management

The Bank maintains credit records and documents on all borrowings and captures transaction details
in its loan systems. The credit risk policies and system infrastructure ensure that loans are monitored
and managed at all times.

The Bank’s Management Information System provides statistics that its business units need to
identify opportunities for improving rewards without necessarily sacrificing risk. Statistical data on
product, productivity, portfolio, profitability, performance and projection are made available
regularly.

The Bank conducts regular loan review through the ROC, with the support of the RMO. The Bank
examines its exposures, credit risk ratios, provisions and customer segments. The Bank’s unique
customer identification and unique group identification methodology enables it to aggregate credit
exposures by customer or group of borrowers. Aggregate exposures of at least £100.0 million are put
on a special monitoring.

The ROC assesses the adequacy of provisions for credit losses regularly. The Bank’s automated loan
grading system enables the Bank to set up provision per account. The Bank also performs
impairment analyses on loans and receivables, whether on an individual or collective basis, in
accordance with PFRS 9.

The Bank carries out stress testing analyses using Board-approved statistical models relating the
default trends to macroeconomic indicators.

In 2023, the Philippine economy exhibited resilience and growth despite global challenges. Steady

expansion in GDP was observed but inflation and external uncertainties persisted necessitating
government’s careful economic management. The Bank reviewed and recalibrated its expected credit
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loss models to ensure the sufficiency of its calculated provisions and appropriateness of the models in
light of the changing economic landscape.

In 2024, the Bank enhanced its credit models for both scoring and provisioning to strengthen risk
management and improve decision-making. Pandemic-era overlay models for consumer loans were
updated to improve stability and reliability, while Application and Behavioral scoring models were
recalibrated to enhance risk assessment. The Bank also refined its Probability of Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD) models to better reflect current economic conditions and optimize capital
use. Separately, the Bank continues to enhance its integration of bureau and alternative data sources,
further improving borrower evaluation and lending decisions. As part of its ongoing efforts to
maintain portfolio quality, the Bank actively manages the credit risk of its incoming portfolio through
data analytics. Regular monitoring enables timely adjustments, such as underwriting refinements and
stricter credit parameters, when certain segments show elevated risk. These measures ensure that risk-
taking activities remain well-controlled and aligned with the Bank’s prudent credit risk management
framework. These efforts reinforce the Bank’s commitment to a forward-looking, data-driven
approach to credit risk management.

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The tables below show the analysis of the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Bank’s financial
instruments, excluding those where the carrying values as reflected in the statement of condition and
related notes already represent the financial instrument’s maximum exposure to credit risk, after
taking into account collateral held or other credit enhancements (in thousands):

2024

Financial Effect

Maximum of Collateral

Carrying Fair Value of Exposure to or Credit

Amount Collateral Credit Risk Enhancement

Due from other banks £1,815,100 £3,290,311 P515,841 £1,299,259
Receivables from customers

Consumption loans 87,967,008 97,643,010 1,088,271 86,878,737

Real estate loans 43,347,882 73,153,677 10,202,405 33,145,477

Commercial loans 7,435,282 13,444,223 3,617,334 3,817,948

Other receivables

Accrued interest receivable 2,319,968 941,576 1,378,391 941,577

Sales contract receivable 3,861 8,075 — 3,861

Total credit exposure £142,889,101 P188,480,872 £16,802,242 £126,086,859

2023

Financial Effect

Maximum of Collateral

Carrying Fair Value of Exposure to or Credit

Amount Collateral Credit Risk Enhancement

Due from other banks 21,764,230 3,258,145 P469,833 21,294,397
Receivables from customers

Consumption loans 71,139,977 83,233,369 1,339,115 69,800,862

Real estate loans 40,214,290 65,152,648 9,945,343 30,268,947

Commercial loans 6,521,064 10,749,329 3,482,338 3,038,726

Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 2,326,463 1,022,105 1,304,460 1,022,003
Sales contract receivable 6,380 20,340 180 6,200

Total credit exposure P121,972,404 P163,435,936 P16,541,269 P105,431,135
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An analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets under Stage 3 as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 is shown below:

2024
Financial Effect
Maximum of Collateral
Carrying Fair Value of Exposure to or Credit
Amount Collateral Credit Risk Enhancement
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans £1,491,677 £2,006,167 £36,580 £1,455,097
Real estate loans 886,020 1,382,206 272,997 613,023
Commercial loans 32,429 251,421 5,141 27,288
Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 65,480 42,043 23,437 42,043
Sales contract receivable 3,842 6,567 - 3,842
Total credit exposure £2,479,448 £3,688,404 £338,155 £2,141,293
2023
Financial Effect
Maximum of Collateral
Carrying Fair Value of Exposure to or Credit
Amount Collateral Credit Risk Enhancement
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans 21,298,961 21,972,796 P73,741 P1,225,220
Real estate loans 1,106,037 1,693,222 349,437 756,600
Commercial loans 119,247 546,727 10,226 109,021
Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 99,606 63,094 36,512 63,094
Sales contract receivable 5,756 12,243 — 5,756
Total credit exposure £2,629,607 £4,288,082 £469,916 £2,159,691

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding acceptability of types of collateral and valuation
parameters.

The main types of collaterals obtained are as follows:

For Due from other banks: investment securities

For SPURA: investment securities

For commercial lending: mortgages over real estate properties, deposit accounts and securities
For consumer lending: mortgages over real estate and chattel

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with
the underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of
the adequacy of the allowance for credit and impairment losses.

It is the Bank’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion and proceeds are
used to repay or reduce the outstanding claim. In general, the Bank does not occupy repossessed
properties for business use.

The Bank holds collateral against loans and receivables in the form of real estate and chattel
mortgages, guarantees, and other registered securities over assets. Estimates of fair value are based
on the value of the collateral assessed at the time of borrowing and generally are updated every two
years and when a loan is assessed to be impaired, whenever applicable. The Bank is not allowed to
sell or re-pledge collateral held under SPURA in the absence of default by the counterparty.
Collateral is usually not held against holdings in investment securities, and no such collateral was
held as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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Concentration of risk is managed by borrower, by group of borrowers, by geographical region and by
industry sector. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the maximum credit exposure to any borrower,
before taking into account any collateral or other credit enhancement amounted to £1.0 billion.

The distribution of the Bank’s financial assets before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements can be analyzed by the following geographical regions (in thousands):

2024
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
Luzon P£121,533,652 £3,399,935 £56,300,349 £306,138 P£181,540,074
Visayas 13,811,209 - - - 13,811,209
Mindanao 12,457,470 — — — 12,457,470
147,802,331 3,399,935 56,300,349 306,138 207,808,753
Less allowance for credit losses 3,978,878 1,479 11,238 3,991,595
Total £143,823,453 £3,398,456 £56,289,111 £306,138 £203,817,158

* Composed of due from BSP and due from other banks, interbank call loans receivable and SPURA

H Composed of FVTPL investments, financial assets at FVOCI (excluding equity securities not exposed to credit risk) and investment securities at amortized cost

***  Composed of financial assets classified under other assets (such as RCOCI, security deposits, other investments, and shortages) and stand-by credit lines amounting
to £79.9 million

2023
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
Luzon P107,777,116 P138,500,708 P84,681,046 P254,841 P211,213,711
Visayas 10,675,617 - - - 10,675,617
Mindanao 10,475,215 — — — 10,475,215
128,927,948 18,500,708 84,681,046 254,841 232,364,543
Less allowance for credit losses 6,163,536 1,209 13,886 — 6,178,631
Total P122,764,412 P18,499,499 P84,667,160 P254,841 P226,185,912

* Composed of due from BSP and due from other banks, interbank call loans receivable and SPURA

H Composed of FVTPL investments, financial assets at FVOCI (excluding equity securities not exposed to credit risk) and investment securities at amortized cost

***  Composed of financial assets classified under other assets (such as RCOCI, security deposits, other investments, and shortages) and stand-by credit lines amounting
to P41.1 million

Additionally, the tables below show the distribution of the Bank’s financial assets and off-balance
sheet items before taking into account any collateral or other credit enhancements analyzed by
industry sector as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 (in thousands):

2024
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment

Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
Activities of private households as employers and
undifferentiated goods and services and producing
activities of households for own use £92,786,160 P- P- P- £92,786,160
Financial and insurance activities 2,036,559 3,399,935 56,300,349 226,253 61,963,096
Real estate activities 39,208,698 - - - 39,208,698
Wholesale and retail trade; repair
of motor vehicles and motorcycles 3,132,435 - - - 3,132,435
Transportation and storage 993,717 - - - 993,717
Electricity, gas, steam and air-conditioning supply 941,191 - - - 941,191
Construction 739,949 - - 79,885 819,834
Manufacturing 703,363 - - - 703,363
Accommodation and food service activities 293,915 - - - 293,915
Administrative and support service activities 290,909 - - - 290,909
Agricultural, forestry and fishing 187,331 - - - 187,331
Education 184,153 - - - 184,153
Professional, scientific and technical services 141,580 - - - 141,580
Information and communication 89,275 - - - 89,275
Human health and social work activities 86,8604 - - - 86,8604
Arts, entertainment and recreation 80,570 - - - 80,570
Water supply, sewage, waste management and

remediation activities 63,316 - - - 63,316

Mining and quarrying 5,018 - - - 5,018
Other service activities 5,837,328 — — — 5,837,328

147,802,331 3,399,935 56,300,349 306,138 207,808,753
Less allowance for credit losses 3,978,878 1,479 11,238 — 3,991,595
Total P143,823,453 £3,398,456 £56,289,111 £306,138 £203,817,158

* Composed of due from BSP and due from other banks, interbank call loans receivable and SPURA
H Composed of FVTPL investments, financial assets at FVOCI (excluding equity securities not exposed to credit risk) and investment securities at amortized cost
***  Composed of financial assets classified under other assets (such as RCOCI, security deposits and shortages) and stand-by credit lines amounting to £79.9 million
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2023
Loans and
Loans and Advances to Investment
Receivables Banks* Securities** Others*** Total
Financial and insurance activities £2,037,250 218,500,708 £84,681,046 P213,741 £105,432,745
Activities of private households as employers and
undifferentiated goods and services and producing
activities of households for own use 77,672,482 - - - 77,672,482
Real estate activities 37,060,347 - - - 37,060,347
Wholesale and retail trade; repair
of motor vehicles and motorcycles 2,364,545 - - - 2,364,545
Electricity, gas, steam and air-conditioning supply 1,034,433 - - - 1,034,433
Transportation and storage 918,610 - - - 918,610
Construction 611,870 - - 41,100 652,970
Manufacturing 569,671 - - - 569,671
Administrative and support service activities 316,974 - - - 316,974
Accommodation and food service activities 196,318 - - - 196,318
Professional, scientific and technical services 151,628 - - - 151,628
Education 131,299 - - - 131,299
Human health and social work activities 93,008 - - - 93,008
Information and communication 96,509 - - - 96,509
Arts, entertainment and recreation 79,617 - - - 79,617
Agricultural, forestry and fishing 76,654 - - - 76,654
Water supply, sewage, waste management and
remediation activities 66,064 - - - 66,064
Mining and quarrying 5,725 - - - 5,725
Other service activities 5,444,944 — — — 5,444,944
128,927,948 18,500,708 84,681,046 254,841 232,364,543
Less allowance for credit losses 6,163,536 1,209 13,886 — 6,178,631
Total P122,764,412 P18,499,499 84,667,160 P254,841 P£226,185,912

* Composed of due from BSP and due from other banks, interbank call loans receivable and SPURA
H Composed of FVTPL investments, financial assets at FVOCI (excluding equity securities not exposed to credit risk) and investment securities at amortized cost
***  Composed of financial assets classified under other assets (such as RCOCI, security deposits and shortages) and stand-by credit lines amounting to £41.1 million

Credit Quality
The Bank uses the standard below in defining credit quality.

High Grade exposures show low levels of expected loss. For loans, these accounts should neither be
past due nor impaired. The Bank classifies those accounts under current or 1 to 30 days past due
status and are not impaired (Stage 1 & 2).

Standard Grade exposures show moderate levels of expected loss. For loans, these accounts should
neither be past due nor impaired.

Sub Standard Grade requires a special degree of attention given the increased risk of default. For
loans, these accounts should neither be past due nor impaired.

Past Due but Not Credit Impaired are applicable to loan accounts which are classified as
delinquent (31-90 days past due) but are not subject to impairment (Stage 2) as of statement of
condition date.

Past Due and Credit Impaired. These include loan accounts considered to be delinquent (91+ days
past due), non-performing as defined by BSP Circular No. 941.

Description of the internal credit rating system for loans, receivables and stand-by credit lines:

Internal Credit Rating System (ICRS)

The Bank rates accounts on a scale of 1 to 10, with 1 being the best, based on the Board-approved
credit ratings which utilize the expected credit loss and qualitative assessments. ICRS rating
assessment considers both borrower and facility features.

High Grade (ICRS Rating 1 - 4)

1 - Excellent

An excellent rating is given to a borrower with a very low probability of going into default and/or low
loss given default. The Bank’s internal rating system has given an outstanding rating to the borrower,
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indicative of excellent ability to meet credit obligation in full and consistently meet payment
commitments. Accounts with excellent rating may have collateral, further diminishing any losses in
case of a default.

2 - Strong

This rating is given to borrowers with low probability of going into default in the coming year with
low to moderate loss given default. The Bank’s internal rating system has given a high rating to the
borrower. The borrower has the ability to meet credit obligation in full, except that the borrower may
have a history of missing a payment.

3 - Good

This rating is given to borrowers with low to moderate probability of going into default in the coming
year with moderate loss given default. These are largely characterized by borrowers with good rating
and have historically missed several payments.

4 - Satisfactory

A ‘satisfactory’ rating is given to a borrower where clear risk elements exist and probability of default
is somewhat greater with moderate to high loss given default. These are characterized by borrowers
with good rating with a history of default.

Standard Grade (ICRS Rating 5)

5 - Acceptable

An ‘acceptable’ rating is given to a borrower whose risk elements are sufficiently pronounced
although borrower should still be expected to meet their credit obligations in full. These are
characterized by borrowers with moderate rating.

Substandard Grade (ICRS Rating 6-8)

6 or 7 - Loan Especially Mentioned

An account assessed to have potential weaknesses which when left uncorrected, may affect the
repayment of the account and thus increase credit risk to the Bank, will be assigned this rating.

8 - Substandard

These accounts or portion thereof involves a substantial and an unreasonable degree of risk to the
Bank because of unfavorable record or unsatisfactory characteristics. These accounts show
possibility of future loss to the Bank unless given closer supervision and well-defined weaknesses
that jeopardize the account liquidation.

Past Due but Not Credit Impaired

Otherwise known as under-performing loans, these accounts are characterized as showing signs of
deterioration. These include loans that are delinquent by 31-90 days and are not subject to impairment
(Stage 2) regardless of ICRS rating.

Past Due and Credit Impaired

Otherwise known as non-performing loans, these accounts are already impaired. These include
accounts under Stage 3 ECL, delinquent by 91+ days and considered non-performing as defined by
BSP Circular No. 941 regardless of ICRS rating. The following credit ratings will always be
classified as credit impaired:

9 - Doubtful
Given to an account assessed to have characteristics where collection and liquidation in full is highly
improbable and in which substantial loss is probable.
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10 - Loss
Given to an account assessed to loans or portions thereof are considered uncollectible or worthless
and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets are not warranted.

The credit quality of receivables from customers, gross of allowance for credit losses, as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 follows (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans:
High Grade P- £71,766,544 P- P- P- P- £71,766,544
Standard Grade - 9,004,975 - - - - 9,004,975
Sub-standard Grade - - - 3,755,240 - - 3,755,240
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 3,625,060 - - 3,625,060
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 2,306,915 — 2,306,915
- 80,771,519 - 7,380,300 2,306,915 - 90,458,734
Real Estate Loans:
High Grade - 37,963,620 - - - - 37,963,620
Standard Grade - - - - - - -
Sub-standard Grade - - - 3,563,113 - - 3,563,113
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 1,187,181 - - 1,187,181
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 1,057,327 — 1,057,327
- 37,963,620 - 4,750,294 1,057,327 - 43,771,241
Commercial Loans:
High Grade - 7,181,206 - - - - 7,181,206
Standard Grade - 50,610 - - - - 50,610
Sub-standard Grade - - - 191,959 - - 191,959
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 27,773 - - 27,773
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — 217,624 — 217,624
- 7,231,816 - 219,732 217,624 - 7,669,172
Personal Loans:
High Grade - 453,682 - - - - 453,682
Standard Grade - 135,883 - - - - 135,883
Sub-standard Grade - - - 1,229,425 - - 1,229.425
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 23,961 - - 23,961
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 151,875 — 151,875
- 589,565 - 1,253,386 151,875 - 1,994,826
Total Receivables from Customer:
High Grade - 117,365,052 - - - - 117,365,052
Standard Grade - 9,191,467 - - - - 9,191,467
Sub-standard Grade - - - 8,739,737 - - 8,739,737
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 4,863,976 - - 4,863,976
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 3,733,741 — 3,733,741
P£126,556,519 £13,603,713 £3,733,741 £143,893,973
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans:
High Grade P P64,577,623 P P P P P64,577,623
Standard Grade - 2,288,492 - - - - 2,288,492
Sub-standard Grade - - - 2,220,334 - - 2,220,334
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 3,382,343 - - 3,382,343
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 2,588,654 — 2,588,654
- 66,866,115 - 5,602,677 2,588,654 - 75,057,446
Real Estate Loans:
High Grade - 21,175,066 - 13,471,061 - - 34,646,127
Standard Grade - - - - - - -
Sub-standard Grade - - - 3,961,224 - - 3,961,224
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 1,268,311 - - 1,268,311
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 1,301,558 — 1,301,558
- 21,175,066 - 18,700,596 1,301,558 - 41,177,220
Commercial Loans:
High Grade - 6,097,560 - - - - 6,097,560
Standard Grade - 151,542 - - - - 151,542

(Forward)
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2023
Stage 1 Stage 2

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Sub-standard Grade P P P P58,169 P P P58,169
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 137,882 - - 137,882

Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — 304,086 — 304,086
- 6,249,102 - 196,051 304,086 - 6,749,239

Personal Loans:

High Grade - 937,607 - - - - 937,607
Standard Grade - - - - - -
Sub-standard Grade - - - 790,383 - - 790,383
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 176,386 - - 176,386

Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 198,723 — 198,723
- 937,607 - 966,769 198,723 - 2,103,099

Total Receivables from Customer:

High Grade - 92,787,856 - 13,471,061 - - 106,258,917
Standard Grade 2,440,034 - - 2,440,034
Sub-standard Grade - - - 7,030,110 - - 7,030,110
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 4,964,922 - - 4,964,922

Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 4,393,021 — 4,393,021
P P95,227,890 P P25,466,093 P4,393,021 P P125,087,004

The credit quality of other receivables, gross of allowance for credit losses, as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 follows (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable:
High Grade P- £1,921,600 P- P- P- P- £1,921,600
Standard Grade - 82,467 - - - - 82,467
Sub-standard Grade - 58 - 148,943 - - 149,001
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 123,719 - - 123,719
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 90,895 — 90,895
- 2,004,125 - 272,662 90,895 - 2,367,682
Accounts Receivable:
High Grade - 1,016,552 - - - - 1,016,552
Standard Grade - 19 - - - - 19
Sub-standard Grade - - 23,314 - - 23,314
Past Due but Not Impaired - - 11,391 - - 11,391
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — 485,175 — 485,175
- 1,016,571 - 34,705 485,175 - 1,536,451
Sales Contract Receivable:
High Grade - 18 - - - - 18
Standard Grade - - - - - - -
Sub-standard Grade - - - - - - -
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - - - - -
Non-performing Individually
Impaired - - - - 4,207 - 4,207
- 18 - - 4,207 - 4,225
Total Other Receivables:
High Grade - 2,938,170 - - - - 2,938,170
Standard Grade - 82,486 - - - - 82,486
Sub-standard Grade - 58 - 172,257 - - 172,315
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 135,110 - - 135,110
Non-performing Individually
Impaired - - - - 580,277 - 580,277
£3,020,714 £307,367 $580,277 £3,908,358
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable:
High Grade P P1,722,201 P P179,891 P P P1,902,092
Standard Grade - 26,351 - - - 26,351
Sub-standard Grade - 577 - 225,240 - - 225,817
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 106,696 - - 106,696
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 137,734 — 137,734
- 1,749,129 - 511,827 137,734 - 2,398,690
(Forward)
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2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accounts Receivable:
High Grade P P875,732 P P2,139 P P P877,871
Standard Grade - 542 - - - - 542
Sub-standard Grade - 40 - 7,548 - - 7,588
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 21,402 - - 21,402
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 485,657 — 485,657
- 876,314 - 31,089 485,657 - 1,393,060
Sales Contract Receivable:
High Grade - 421 - - - - 421
Standard Grade - - - - - - -
Sub-standard Grade - - - - -
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 228 - - 228
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 6,302 — 6302
- 421 - 228 6302 - 6,951
Total Other Receivables:
High Grade - 2,598,354 - 182,030 - - 2,780,384
Standard Grade - 26,893 - - - - 26,893
Sub-standard Grade - 617 - 232,788 - - 233,405
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - 128,326 - - 128,326
Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — 629,693 — 629,693
P P2,625,8364 P P543,144 P629,693 P P3,798,701

The credit quality of other financial assets which include RCOCI, security deposits, other
investments, shortages and liquidity requirement for electronic money products, gross of allowance
for credit losses amounting as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 follows (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Other Financial Assets

High Grade - - - - - - -
Standard Grade - 382,376 - - - - 382,376
Sub-standard Grade - - - - - - -
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - - - - -

Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — — — —
Total P382,376 P382,376

2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 Individual Collective
Other Financial Assets

High Grade P P P P P P P
Standard Grade - 401,014 - - - - 401,014
Sub-standard Grade - - - - - - -
Past Due but Not Impaired - - - - - - -

Non-performing Individually
Impaired — — — — — — —
Total P401,014 P401,014

Movements of receivables from customers as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 follow (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans

Balance as of January 1, 2024 - £66,866,116 - $5,602,677 $2,588,653 - £75,057,446
New assets originated - 38,208,861 - 1,372,461 661,533 - 40,242,855
Assets derecognized or repaid - (18,216,916) - (4,012,839) (1,524,993) - (23,754,748)
Amounts written off - - - (113,217) (973,602) - (1,086,819)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 1,138,674 - (1,067,396) (71,278) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (6,026,831) - 6,123,848 97,017) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (1,198,385) — (525,234) 1,723,619 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 80,771,519 — 7,380,300 2,306,915 — 90,458,734

(Forward)
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2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Real Estate Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - £21,175,066 - P£18,700,596 £1,301,558 - $41,177,220
New assets originated - 8,943,325 - 74,970 47,063 - 9,065,358
Assets derecognized or repaid - (3,862,639) - (2,283,661) (325,037) - (6,471,337)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 12,742,296 - (12,650,949) (91,347) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (926,250) - 1,251,227 (324,977) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (108,178) — (341,890) 450,068 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 37,963,620 — 4,750,293 1,057,328 — 43,771,241
Commercial Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - 6,249,102 - 196,051 304,086 - 6,749,239
New assets originated - 3,056,702 - 18,230 - - 3,074,932
Assets derecognized or repaid - (2,009,561) - (56,545) (88,893) - (2,154,999)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 20,211 - (17,463) (2,748) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (79,282) - 81,597 (2,315 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (5,356) — (2,138) 7,494 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 7,231,816 — 219,732 217,624 — 7,669,172
Personal Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - 937,606 - 966,769 198,724 - 2,103,099
New assets originated - 489,283 - 362,115 14,197 - 865,595
Assets derecognized or repaid - (584,308) - (230,263) (45,578) - (860,149)
Amounts written off - - - (33,359) (80,360) - (113,719)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 75,291 - (75,215) (76) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (314,403) - 314,501 98) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (13,904) — (51,163) 65,067 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 589,565 — 1,253,385 151,876 — 1,994,826
Total Receivable from Customer
Balance at January 1, 2024 - 95,227,890 - 25,466,093 4,393,021 - 125,087,004
New assets originated - 50,698,171 - 1,827,776 722,793 - 53,248,740
Assets derecognized or repaid - (24,673,424) - (6,583,308) (1,984,501) - (33,241,233)
Amounts written off - - - (146,576) (1,053,962) - (1,200,538)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 13,976,472 - (13,811,023) (165,449) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (7,346,766) - 7,771,173 (424,407) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (1,325,823) — (920,425) 2,246,248 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 - P126,556,520 o £13,603,710 £3,733,743 - P143,893,973
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2023 P £53,117,195 P £5,591,582 P1,911,795 P £60,620,572
New assets originated - 34,955,414 - 953,344 583,117 - 36,491,875
Assets derecognized or repaid - (16,062,677) - (4,635,542) (1,211,126) - (21,909,345)
Amounts written off - - - - (145,656) - (145,656)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 973,758 - (910,822) (62,936) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (5,152,053) - 5,262,979 (110,926) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (965,522) — (658,864) 1,624,386 — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 66,866,115 — 5,602,677 2,588,654 — 75,057,446
Real Estate Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2023 - 22,511,455 - 18,041,774 1,527,166 - 42,080,395
New assets originated - 5,668,433 - 7,817 7,207 - 5,683,457
Assets derecognized or repaid - (2,147,692) - (4,087,457) (351,483) - (6,586,632)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,173,204 - (2,138,138) (35,066) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (6,888,088) - 7,310,114 (422,026) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (142,246) - (433,514) 575,760 - -
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 21,175,066 — 18,700,596 1,301,558 — 41,177,220
Commercial Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2023 - 5,677,497 - 449,143 352,471 - 6,479,111
New assets originated - 2,086,517 - 3,249 - - 2,089,766
Assets derecognized or repaid - (1,611,342) - (142,344) (65,952) - (1,819,638)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 155,309 - (154,641) (668) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (50,226) - 52,035 (1,809) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (8,653) - (11,391 20,044 - -
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 6,249,102 — 196,051 304,086 — 6,749,239
Personal Loans
Balance as of January 1, 2023 - 954,478 - 1,022,648 246,014 - 2,223,140
New assets originated - 708,013 - 219,526 3,478 - 931,017
Assets derecognized or repaid - (808,151) - (105,493) (25,131) - (938,775)
Amounts written off - - - - (112,283) - (112,283)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 161,624 - (161,494) (130) - -

(Forward)
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2023
Stage 1 Stage 2

Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Transfers to Stage 2 P (P63,460) P 63,807 (B347) P P
Transfers to Stage 3 — (14,897) — (72,225) 87,122 — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 937,607 — 966,769 198,723 — 2,103,099

Total Receivable from Customer

Balance at January 1, 2023 - 82,260,625 - 25,105,147 4,037,446 - 111,403,218
New assets originated - 43,418,377 - 1,183,936 593,802 - 45,196,115
Assets derecognized or repaid - (20,629,862) - (8,970,836) (1,653,692) - (31,254,390)
Amounts written off - - (257,939) - (257,939)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 3,463,895 - (3,365,095) (98,800) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (12,153,827) - 12,688,935 (535,108) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (1,131,318) — (1,175,994) 2,307,312 — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 P £95,227,890 P £25,466,093 £4.393,021 P-  P125,087,004

Movements of other receivables as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 follow (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - £1,749,129 - $511,827 £137,734 - £2,398,690
New assets originated - 396,042 - 43,885 25,385 - 465,312
Assets derecognized or repaid - (218,176) - (164,604) (113,540) - (496,320)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 189,903 - (186,936) (2,967) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - 91,877) - 98,603 (6,726) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (20,896) — (30,113) 51,009 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 2,004,125 — 272,662 90,895 — 2,367,682
Sales Contract Receivable
Balance at January 1, 2024 - 421 - 228 6,302 - 6,951
New assets originated - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid - (564) - 67) (2,095) - (2,726)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 161 - (161) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 18 — — 4,207 — 4,225
Total Other Receivables
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 1,749,550 - 512,055 144,036 - 2,405,641
New assets originated - 396,042 - 43,885 25,385 - 465,312
Assets derecognized or repaid - (218,740) - (164,671) (115,635) - (499,046)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 190,064 - (187,097) (2,967) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - 91,877) - 98,603 (6,726) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (20,896) — (30,113) 51,009 — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 o £2,004,143 o £272,662 £95,102 o £2,371,907
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2023 P £1,918,545 P £579,008 £113,402 P £2,610,955
New assets originated - 319,435 - 30,057 39,590 - 389,082
Assets derecognized or repaid - (341,725) - (191,930) (67,692) - (601,347)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 70,955 - (67,631) (3,324) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (196,578) - 206,878 (10,300) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (21,503) — (44,555) 66,058 — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 1,749,129 — 511,827 137,734 — 2,398,690
Sales Contract Receivable
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 2,077 - 600 8,252 - 10,929
New assets originated - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid - (1,664) - (513) (1,801) - (3,978)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 299 - (299) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (291) - 440 (149) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 421 — 228 6,302 — 6,951
Total Other Receivables
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 1,920,622 - 579,608 121,654 - 2,621,884
New assets originated - 319,435 - 30,057 39,590 - 389,082
Assets derecognized or repaid - - -

Amounts written off

(Forward)

(343,389)

(192,443)

(69,493)

(605,325)
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2023

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Transfers to Stage 1 P P71,254 P (P67,930) (P3,324) P P
Transfers to Stage 2 - (196,869) - 207,318 (10,449) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 — (21,503) — (44,555) 66,058 — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 P 21,749,550 P P512,055 £144,036 P £2,405,641

External Ratings

For investment securities, in ensuring quality investment portfolio, the Bank uses the credit risk rating
from published data providers like Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) or other reputable rating
agencies.

Presented here is Moody’s rating — equivalent S&P rating and other rating agencies applies:

Credit Quality External Rating

High grade Aaa Aal Aa2 Aa3 Al A2 A3 Baal Baa2 Baa3
Standard grade Bal Ba2 Ba3 Bl B2 B3

Substandard grade Caal Caa2 Caa3 Ca C

High grade - represents those investments which fall under any of the following grade:

Aaa - fixed income obligations are judged to be of the highest quality, with the smallest degree of
risk.

Aal, Aa2, Aa3 - fixed income are judged to be of high quality and are subject to very low credit risk,
but their susceptibility to long-term risks appears somewhat greater.

Al, A2, A3 - fixed income obligations are considered upper-medium grade and are subject to low
credit risk, but have elements present that suggest a susceptibility to impairment over the long term.

Baal, Baa2, Baa3 - fixed income obligations are subject to moderate credit risk. They are considered
medium grade and as such protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable.

Standard grade - represents those investments which fall under any of the following grade:

Bal, Ba2, Ba3 - obligations are judged to have speculative elements and are subject to substantial
credit risk.

B1, B2, B3 - obligations are considered speculative and are subject to high credit risk.
Substandard grade - represents those investments which fall under any of the following grade:
Caal, Caa2, Caa3 - are judged to be of poor standing and are subject to very high credit risk.

Ca - are highly speculative and are likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of
principal and interest.

C - are the lowest rated class of bonds and are typically in default, with little prospect for recovery of
principal or interest.
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 the following tables show the credit quality of loans and advances

to banks (in thousands).

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Due from BSP
High Grade P1,183357 P P P P P P1,183,357
Due from other banks
High Grade 1,816,578 — — — — — 1,816,578
Total Loans and Advances to Banks
High Grade £2,999,935 £2,999,935
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Due from BSP
High Grade 9,745,634 P P P P P 9,745,634
Due from other banks
High Grade 1,765,439 — — — — — 1,765,439
Total Loans and Advances to Banks
High Grade P11,511,073 P P P P P PIL511,073
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the following table shows the credit quality of the Bank’s
investment securities (in thousands):
2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
FVTPL - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade £300,599 £300,599
300,599 - - - - - 300,599
FVOCI - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade 25,518,904 - - - - - 25,518,904
25,518,904 - - - - - 25,518,904
FVOCI - Private Debt Securities
Standard Grade 338,923 — — — — — 338,923
338,923 - - - - - 338,923
Investment Securities at Amortized
Cost - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade 29,031,234 - - - - - 29,031,234
29,031,234 - - - - - 29,031,234
Investment Securities at Amortized
Cost - Private Debt Securities
Standard Grade 1,076,325 — — — — — 1,076,325
1,076,325 — — — — — 1,076,325
Total Investment Securities
High Grade 54,850,737 - - - - - 54,850,737
Standard Grade 1,415,248 — — — — — 1,415,248
P56,265,985 P P P P P_ P56,265,985
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
FVTPL - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade P414,298 P P P P P P414,298
FVTPL - Derivative Asset
High Grade — — — — — — —
414,298 - - - - - 414,298
FVOCI - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade 52,699,129 - - - - - 52,699,129
52,699,129 - - - - - 52,699,129
FVOCI - Private Debt Securities
Standard Grade 1,633,147 — — — — — 1,633,147
1,633,147 — — — — — 1,633,147
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2023

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Investment Securities at Amortized
Cost - Government Debt
Securities
High Grade P27,886,190 P P P P P P27,886,190
27,386,190 - - - - - 27,386,190
Investment Securities at
Amortized Cost
Private Debt Securities
Standard Grade 2,020,864 — — — — — 2,020,864
2,020,864 - - - - - 2,020,864
Total Investment Securities
High Grade 80,999,617 - - - - - 80,999,617
Standard Grade 3,654,011 — — — — — 3,654,011
P84,653,628 P P P P P P84,653,628

All of the Bank’s loan commitments and financial guarantees amounting to £79.8 million and
P41.1 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, are classified as high grade under
Stage 1.

ECL Methodology Overview

Two modelling approaches are employed to build a consistent framework for the development of all
ECL models of the Bank. Both modeling approaches consider past events, current conditions and
forecast of economic conditions in assessing impairment.

The complex model approach is used for portfolios with a significant number of historical defaults.
This approach is applied to the consumer loan portfolios. These quantitative models are built by
applying statistical, economic, financial or mathematical theories, techniques and assumptions to
calculate provisions. Where historical data are insufficient to develop statistical models, such as for
Business Loans, Account Receivables, Sales Contract Receivables, etc. the simplified ECL approach
is employed. The Bank observes the historical PD and LGD of the portfolio and applies forward
looking economic data on PD to calculate the ECL.

Classification of Individual/Collective Impairment
The Bank calculates provisions either in a collective or individual basis.

Collective impairment calculates risk provisions by grouping exposures into smaller homogeneous
portfolios based on a combination of borrower and account characteristics. Accounts with similar
risk attributes (i.e. facility, security, credit rating, months-on-books, utilization and collateral type,
etc.) are pooled together for calculating provisions based on the expected credit loss models. All
Stage 1 accounts of the Bank are categorized under collective impairment.

Individual impairment is applicable for all accounts under Stage 3 or accounts deemed as significant

exposures and show objective evidence of impairment. The indicators may be default in payment,
restructuring, litigation or probable foreclosure.



- 46 -

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, an analysis by past due status of receivables from customers
wherein the SICR is based only on the past due information is as follows:

2024
Number of days past due
Up to

30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-180 days 180 days Total

Receivables from customers
Consumption loans £106,279 £2,641,709 £1,061,729 £1,137,327 £1,002,401 £5,949,445
Real estate loans 573,541 1,040,297 263,701 177,224 538,867 2,593,630
Commercial loans 20,632 17,781 9,992 363 204,518 253,286
Personal loans 57,409 16,250 9,403 24,231 80,481 187,774
Total £757,861 £3,716,037 P£1,344,825 £1,339,145 £1,826,267 £8,984,135

2023
Number of days past due
Up to

30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-180 days 180 days Total

Receivables from customers
Consumption loans £98,570 21,860,619 £839,132 £995,710 £1,419,009 £5,213,040
Real estate loans 669,901 890,094 321,886 237,291 573,539 2,692,711
Commercial loans 149,507 14,562 3,826 5421 210,706 384,022
Personal loans 72,723 16,700 14,043 24,394 114,622 242482
Total £990,701 P2,781,975 P1,178,887 P1,262,816 P2,317,876 P8,532,255

b. Market risk

Market risk management covers the areas of trading and interest rate risks. The Bank utilizes various
measurement and monitoring tools to ensure that risk-taking activities are managed within instituted
market risk parameters. The Bank revalues its trading portfolios on a daily basis and checks the
revenue or loss generated by each portfolio in relation to their level of market risk.

The Bank’s risk policies and implementing guidelines are regularly reviewed by the Assets and
Liabilities Committee (ALCO), ROC and BOD to ensure that these are up-to-date and in line with
changes in the economy, environment and regulations. The ROC and the BOD set the comprehensive
market risk limit structure and define the parameters of market activities that the Bank can engage in.

Market risk is the risk to earnings and capital arising from changes in the value of traded portfolios of
financial instruments (trading market risk) and from movements in interest rates (interest rate risk).
The Bank’s market risk originates primarily from holding peso and dollar-denominated debt
securities. The Bank utilizes Value-at-Risk (VaR) to measure and manage market risk exposure.
VaR estimates the potential decline in the value of a portfolio, under normal market conditions, for a
given confidence level over a specified holding period.

Trading activities

The Bank’s trading portfolios consist of peso- and dollar-denominated debt securities that are
marked-to- market daily. We use BSP-approved Type 3 Derivative License for plain vanilla FX
forwards to manage our FX risk against adverse exchange rate movements.

VaR is a statistical measure that calculates the maximum potential loss from a portfolio over a
holding period, within a given confidence level. The Bank’s current VaR model is based on a
historical simulation methodology with a one-day holding period and a 99% confidence level. The
Bank establishes limits for trading portfolios and VaR, and comply with regulatory standards. VaR
reports are prepared to closely monitor potential losses against approved VaR limit. In addition,
actual daily profit and loss levels are monitored against loss triggers. If there is a breach in the VaR
limit or loss triggers, Treasury Group is expected to close or reduce their position and bring it down
within the limit. Breaches in the limit requires approval of ALCO, President, or ROC/Board, as
appropriate.
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The Bank performs back testing to validate the VaR model. Results are reported to the ROC and
BOD on a monthly basis. Stress testing is also conducted based on historical maximum percentage
daily movement and on various ad-hoc rate shock scenarios to estimate potential losses in a crisis
situation.

Responsibility for managing the Bank’s trading market risk remains with the ROC. With the support
of RMO, the ROC recommends to the BOD changes in market risk limits, approving authorities and
other activities that need special consideration.

Discussed below are the limitations and assumptions applied by the Bank on its VaR methodology:

a. VaR is a statistical estimate and thus, does not give the precise amount of loss;

b. VaR is not designed to give the probability of bank failure, but only attempts to quantify losses
that may arise from a bank’s exposure to market risk;

c. Historical simulation does not involve any distributional assumptions, scenarios that are used in
computing VaR are limited to those that occurred in the historical sample; and

d. VaR systems are backward-looking. It attempts to forecast likely future losses using past data.
As such, this assumes that past relationships will continue to hold in the future. Major shifts
therefore (i.e., an unexpected collapse of the market) are not captured and may inflict losses much
bigger than anything the VaR model may have calculated.

The Bank’s interest rate VaR follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Peso USD Peso USD
Year-end 1 - 1 -
Average 2 - 0 -
High 7 - 2 -
Low 0 - 0 -

Non-trading activities
The Bank follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities to ensure that fluctuations in
interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.

One method by which the Bank measures the sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to interest rate
fluctuations is by way of “gap” analysis. This analysis provides the Bank with a static view of the
maturity and repricing characteristics of the positions in its statement of condition. An interest rate
gap report is prepared by classifying all assets and liabilities into various time period categories
according to contracted maturities or anticipated repricing dates, whichever is earlier. Items lacking
definitive repricing schedule (e.g., current and savings accounts) are assigned to repricing tenor
buckets based on analysis of deposit behavioral patterns, past experience and/or expert judgment.
The difference in the amount of assets and liabilities maturing or being repriced in any time period
category would then give the Bank an indication of the extent to which it is exposed to the risk of
potential changes in net interest income.

The interest rate sensitivity gap report measures interest rate risk by identifying gaps between the

repricing dates of assets and liabilities. The Bank’s sensitivity gap model calculates the effect of
possible rate movements on its interest rate profile.
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EaR measures the possible decline in the Bank’s net interest income as a result of adverse interest rate
movements, given the current repricing profile. It is a tool used to evaluate the sensitivity of the
accrual portfolio to changes in interest rates in the adverse direction over the next twelve (12) months.
The Bank’s EaR limits are based on a percentage of the Bank’s projected earnings for the year or
capital whichever is lower. The Bank also performs stress-testing to measure the impact of various
scenarios based on interest rate volatility and shift in the yield curve. The EaR and stress testing
reports are prepared on a monthly basis.

The ALCO is responsible for managing the Bank’s structural interest rate exposure. The ALCO’s
goal is to achieve a desired overall interest rate profile while remaining flexible to interest rate
movements and changes in economic conditions. The RMO and ROC review and oversee the Bank’s
interest rate risks.

The table below demonstrates the sensitivity of equity. Equity sensitivity was computed by
calculating mark-to-market changes of debt securities at FVOCI, assuming a parallel shift in the yield
curve.

2024 2023
Change in Change in

basis points Sensitivity of equity basis points Sensitivity of equity
Currency
PHP +10 (263,063,125) +10 (210,854,916)
USD +10 (112,495) +10 -
Currency
PHP -10 63,359,147 -10 10,934,344
USD -10 113,580 -10 -

The table below demonstrates the sensitivity of net interest income using the EAR model. Net
interest income sensitivity was computed by calculating the changes in the banking book gaps
assuming a parallel shift in the yield curve.

2024 2023
Change in Change in

basis points Sensitivity of NII basis points Sensitivity of NII
Currency
PHP +10 (®31,359,106) +10 (22,497,311)
USD +10 (8,945,289) +10 (9,197,978)
Currency
PHP -10 31,359,106 -10 2,497,311
USD -10 8,945,289 -10 9,197,978

The Bank employs the Delta EVE model to measure the overall change in the economic value of the
bank at one point. It reflects the changes in the net present value of its banking book at different
interest rate shocks and stress scenarios. AEVE is calculated by slotting the notional repricing cash
flows arising from rate-sensitive assets and liabilities into pre-defined tenor buckets. The present
value of the net repricing cash flows is then calculated using various interest rate scenarios prescribed
by Basel, as well as scenarios internally developed by the Bank.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of an investment's value changing due to an adverse movement in
currency exchange rates. It arises due to a mismatch in the Bank's foreign currency assets and
liabilities. The Bank uses BSP-approved Type 3 Derivative License for plain vanilla FX forwards to
manage our FX risk against adverse exchange rate movements.
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The Bank’s policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within the approved position, stop loss,
loss trigger, VaR limits and to remain within existing regulatory guidelines. To compute for VaR, the
Bank uses historical simulation model for USD/PHP FX position, with confidence level at 99.00%
and a 1 day holding period. The Bank’s VaR for its foreign exchange position for trading and non-
trading activities are as follows (in thousands):

2024! 2023!
As of year-end B59 P1,212
Average 785 1,356
High 1,676 2,319
Low 59 671

'Using METRISK Historical Simulation VaR
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk.
c. Liquidity risk

The Bank’s policy on liquidity management emphasizes on three elements of liquidity, namely,
cashflow management, ability to borrow in the interbank market, and maintenance of a stock of high-
quality liquid assets. These three approaches complement one another with greater weight being
given to a particular approach, depending upon the circumstances. The Bank’s objective in liquidity
management is to ensure that the Bank has sufficient liquidity to meet obligations under normal and
adverse circumstances and is able to take advantage of lending and investment opportunities as they
arise.

The main tool that the Bank uses for monitoring its liquidity is the Maximum Cumulative Outflow
(MCO) reports, which is also called liquidity gap or maturity matching gap reports. The MCO is a
useful tool in measuring and analyzing the Bank’s cash flow projections and monitoring liquidity
risks.

The MCO is generated by distributing the cash flows of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items to time bands based on cash flow expectations such as contractual maturity, nature of the
account, behavioral patterns and projections on business strategies. The incorporation of behavioral
cash flow assumptions and business projections or targets results in a dynamic gap report that
realistically captures the behavior of the products and creates a forward-looking cash flow projection.

Cash flows from assets are considered as cash inflows, while cash flows from liabilities are
considered cash outflows. The net cash flows are determined for each given time period. If the
inflows exceed the outflows, the Bank is said to have a positive liquidity gap or has excess funds for
the given time bucket. Conversely, if the outflows exceed the inflows, the Bank is said to have a
negative liquidity gap or has funding needs for the given time bucket.

The Bank’s Liquidity Contingency Funding Plan (LCFP) projects the Bank’s funding position during
stress to help evaluate the Bank’s funding needs and strategies under various stress conditions.

The Bank discourages dependence on Large Funds Providers (LFPs) and monitors the deposit
funding concentrations so that it will not be vulnerable to a substantial drop in deposit level should
there be an outflow of large deposits and there are enough high-quality liquid assets to fund LFP
withdrawals. ALCO is responsible for managing the liquidity of the Bank while RMO and ROC
review and oversee the Bank’s overall liquidity risk management.
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To mitigate potential liquidity problems caused by unexpected withdrawals of significant deposits,
the Bank takes steps to cultivate good business relationships with clients and financial institutions,
maintains high level of high-quality liquid assets, monitors the deposit funding concentrations and
regularly updates the Liquidity Contingency Funding Plan. The Bank’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) are managed on a daily basis to ensure compliance with
the required regulatory ratios.

Financial assets

Analysis of equity and debt securities at FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI into maturity
groupings is based on the expected date on which these assets will be realized. For other assets, the
analysis into maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period
to the contractual maturity date or if earlier, the expected date the assets will be realized.

Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date and does not consider the behavioral pattern of the creditors. When the
counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Bank can be required to pay.

Analysis of Financial Assets and Liabilities by Remaining Maturities
The tables below show the maturity profile of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations (in millions):

2024
Up to Over 1 to Over 3 to Over 6 to Total within Beyond
On 1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year 1 year Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL 2301 - - - - 2301 - 2301
Financial assets at FVOCI - - - - - - - -
Government securities - 8,469 - 49 180 8,698 16,821 25,519
Private securities - - - - - 339 339
Quoted equity securities 34 - - - - 34 - 34
Investment securities at amortized cost
Government bonds - 578 - - 1,728 2,306 26,724 29,030
Private securities - - 229 72 775 1,076 - 1,076
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks - - - - - - - -
Due from BSP 1,183 - - - - 1,183 - 1,183
Due from other banks 1,817 - - - - 1,817 - 1,817
Interbank call loans receivable 400 - - - - 400 - 400
and SPURA
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans 86 50 224 512 1,259 2,131 88,330 90,461
Real estate loans 151 129 374 494 1,105 2,253 41,592 43,845
Commercial loans 213 641 807 691 899 3,251 4,417 7,668
Personal loans 131 63 167 216 726 1,303 692 1,995
Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 531 963 108 - 12 1,614 753 2,367
Accounts receivable 1,026 27 6 6 9 1,074 463 1,537
Sales contract receivable 4 - - - - 4 - 4
Other assets
Security deposits - 1 1 2 15 19 190 209
RCOCI 17 — — — — 17 — 17
5,894 £10,921 £1,916 £2,042 £6,708 £27,481 £180,321 £207,802
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Demand $25,535 P P P P $25,535 P $25,535
Savings 47,745 - - - - 47,745 - 47,745
Time 420 50,916 19,529 2,175 895 73,935 19,997 93,932
LTNCD
73,700 50,916 19,529 2,175 895 147,215 19,997 167,212
Treasurer’s, cashier’s and manager’s checks 1,615 - - - - 1,615 - 1,615
Bills payable - - - - - -
Accrued interest payable 321 - - - - 321 - 321
Accrued other expenses payable 191 - 1,734 - - 1,925 - 1,925
Other liabilities
Accounts payable 2,072 - - - - 2,072 - 2,072
Lease liabilities - 35 70 106 199 410 782 1,192
Other credits 222 - - - - 222 - 222
Deposit for keys 1 — — — — 1 — 1
£78,122 £50,951 £21,333 £2,281 £1,094 £153,781 £20,779 £174,560
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2023
Up to Over | to Over 3 to Over 6 to Total within Beyond
On demand 1 month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year 1 year Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL P P P405 P P P405 P P405
Financial assets at FVOCI
Government securities - 49,400 1,489 178 67 51,134 1,565 52,699
Private securities - - 1,396 - - 1,396 237 1,633
Quoted equity securities - - - - - - - -
Investment securities at amortized cost
Government bonds - - 700 - 291 991 26,885 27,876
Private securities - - 254 300 554 1,463 2,017
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to banks
Due from BSP 3,599 6,149 - - - 9,748 - 9,748
Due from other banks 1,765 - - - - 1,765 - 1,765
Interbank call loans receivable and - 6,991 - - - 6,991 - 6,991
SPURA
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans 278 1,071 2,271 3,731 8,830 16,181 103,026 119,207
Real estate loans 198 420 970 1,384 2,919 5,891 72,393 78,284
Commercial loans 534 363 762 487 735 2,881 5,560 8,441
Personal loans 269 111 251 319 865 1,815 951 2,766
Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 2,315 10 15 2 57 2,399 - 2,399
Accounts receivable 911 14 2 3 1 931 462 1,393
Sales contract receivable 4 - - 2 - 6 1 7
Other assets
Security deposits - 1 3 5 16 25 173 198
RCOCI 14 — — — — 14 — 14
£9,887 £64,530 P£8,518 £6,411 P£13,781 £103,127 £212,716 P£315,843
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Demand £25.326 P P P P £25,326 P £25.326
Savings 46,463 — — — — 46,463 — 46,463
Time 259 75,892 17,558 2,259 2,214 98,182 17,143 115,325
LTNCD — — 5,112 — — 5,112 — 5,112
72,048 75,892 22,670 2,259 2,214 175,083 17,143 192,226
Treasurer’s, cashier’s and manager’s checks 1,514 - - - - 1,514 - 1,514
Bills payable - 272 - - - 272 - 272
Accrued interest payable 464 - 52 - - 516 - 516
Accrued other expenses payable - - 2,148 - - 2,148 - 2,148
Other liabilities - - - - - - -
Accounts payable 1,998 - - - - 1,998 - 1,998
Lease liabilities - 38 76 109 196 419 928 1,347
Other credits 170 - - - - 170 - 170
Deposit for keys 1 — — — — 1 — 1
£76,195 £76,202 £24,946 £2,368 £2,410 P£182,121 218,071 £200,192

Segment Information

The Bank’s operating segments are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
services provided and the different markets served, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The Bank’s reportable

segments are as follows:

a. Consumer Banking - principally provides consumer-type loans generated by the Home Office;
b. Corporate Banking - principally handles loans and other credit facilities for small and medium

enterprises, corporate and institutional customers acquired in the Home Office;

c. Branch Banking - serves as the Bank’s main customer touch point which offers consumer and

corporate banking products; and

d. Treasury - principally handles institutional deposit accounts, providing money market, trading
and treasury services, as well as managing the Bank’s funding operations by use of government
securities and placements and acceptances with other banks.

These segments are the bases on which the Bank reports its primary segment information. The Bank
evaluates performance on the basis of information about the components of the Bank that senior
management uses to make decisions about operating matters. There are no other operating segments
than those identified by the Bank as reportable segments. There were no inter-segment revenues and
expenses included in the financial information. The Bank has no single customer with revenues from

which is 10.00% or more of the Bank’s total revenue.
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The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. Primary segment information (by business segment) for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 follows (in thousands):

2024
Consumer Corporate Branch
Banking Banking Banking Treasury Total

Operating income

Interest income £4,498,367 £228,609 8,126,983 4,019,166 16,873,125

Service fees and commission 686,995 17,365 1,201,076 - 1,905,436

Other operating income 459,255 8,126 715,405 22,572 1,205,358
Total operating income 5,644,617 254,100 10,043,464 4,041,738 19,983,919
Non-cash expenses

Provision for credit and impairment losses 73,939 22,986 119,968 (2,454) 214,439

Depreciation 291,761 3,276 656,306 437 951,780

Amortization of intangible assets 50,255 857 55,922 4,324 111,358
Total non-cash expenses 415,955 27,119 832,196 2,307 1,277,577
Interest expense - - 2,494,013 2,081,572 4,575,585
Service fees and commission expense 32,398 819 56,640 — 89,857
Subtotal 32,398 819 2,550,653 2,081,572 4,665,442
Compensation and fringe benefits 1,098,412 67,928 2,890,106 32,222 4,088,668
Taxes and licenses 454,804 9,773 550,830 505,570 1,520,977
Occupancy and equipment-related costs 103,817 556 250,795 920 355,258
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 202,418 2,701 358,746 260 564,125
Miscellaneous 504,893 10,278 1,039,274 87,820 1,642,265
Subtotal 2,364,344 91,236 5,089,751 625,962 8,171,293
Income before share in net income of a joint venture and

income tax 2,831,920 134,926 1,570,864 1,331,897 P5,869,607
Share in net income of a joint venture 68,023
Income before income tax 5,937,630
Provision for income tax 729,188
Net income 5,208,442
Segment assets P111,122,145 P£3,085,367 £50,235,843 £49,702,873 214,146,228
Investment in a joint venture 892,037
Deferred tax assets 1,318,508
Total assets £216,356,773
Segment liabilities £1,875,800 £146,764 £116,459,188 £53,769,093 £172,250,845

2023
Consumer Corporate Branch
Banking Banking Banking Treasury Total

Operating income

Interest income P3,818,782 P593,849 P7,918.,866 P5,292,768 P17,624,265

Service fees and commission 586,757 12,506 1,193,480 - 1,792,743

Other operating income 953,163 7,814 607,681 22,922 1,591,580
Total operating income 5,358,702 614,169 9,720,027 5,315,690 21,008,588
Non-cash expenses

Provision for credit and impairment losses 1,267,662 50,112 138,210 (4,894) 1,451,090

Depreciation 209,247 2,932 626,693 1,264 840,136

Amortization of intangible assets 37,485 944 67,087 697 106,213
Total non-cash expenses 1,514,394 53,988 831,990 (2,933) 2,397,439
Interest expense - - 2,514,801 3,283,288 5,798,089
Service fees and commission expense 21,465 458 43,661 — 65,584
Subtotal 21,465 458 2,558,462 3,283,288 5,863,673
Compensation and fringe benefits 981,002 59,622 2,736,065 35,026 3,811,715
Taxes and licenses 409,260 11,358 513,802 738,107 1,672,527
Occupancy and equipment-related costs 89,823 571 247,741 330 338,465
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 134,936 2,006 293,958 339 431,239
Miscellaneous 476,514 9,635 1,065,178 139,519 1,690,846
Subtotal 2,091,535 83,192 4,856,744 913,321 7,944,792
Income before share in net income of a joint venture and

income tax P1,731,308 P476,531 P1,472,831 P1,122,014 P4,802,684
Share in net income of a joint venture 86,341
Income before income tax 4,889,025
Provision for income tax 357,963
Net income £4,531,062
Segment assets £96,310,679 P2,287,007 P46,653,000 P£91,054,823 $236,305,509
Investment in a joint venture 870,179
Deferred tax assets 1,257,608
Total assets £238,433,296
Segment liabilities P1,401,753 P94,864 P138,894,328 P57,888,193 P£198,279,138
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2022
Consumer Corporate Branch
Banking Banking Banking Treasury Total
Operating income
Interest income 3,205,313 P652,627 7,566,916 £2,763,017 P14,187,873
Service fees and commission 528,784 19,267 1,184,791 - 1,732,842
Other operating income 1,366,039 19,538 906,231 (3,620) 2,288,188
Total operating income 5,100,136 691,432 9,657,938 2,759,397 18,208,903
Non-cash expenses
Provision for credit and impairment losses 1,042,765 137,470 144,753 (18,746) 1,306,242
Depreciation 164,989 2,605 587,289 1,070 755,953
Amortization of intangible assets 34,423 1,039 66,598 791 102,851
Total non-cash expenses 1,242,177 141,114 798,640 (16,885) 2,165,046
Interest expense — — 2,238,266 898,957 3,137,223
Service fees and commission expense 15,657 570 35,082 — 51,309
Subtotal 15,657 570 2,273,348 898,957 3,188,532
Compensation and fringe benefits 889,555 69,526 2,645,630 35,843 3,640,554
Taxes and licenses 337,659 17,170 571,952 686,145 1,612,926
Occupancy and equipment-related costs 99,112 801 244,215 440 344,568
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 117,030 2,305 293,133 543 413,011
Miscellaneous 637,139 19,885 1,302,183 171,514 2,130,721
Subtotal 2,080,495 109,687 5,057,113 894,485 8,141,780
Income before share in net income of a joint venture and
income tax 1,761,807 440,061 1,528,837 982,840 P4,713,545
Share in net income of a joint venture 83,418
Income before income tax 4,796,963
Benefit from income tax 1,118,535
Net income P3,678,428
Segment assets 78,301,306 P£3,047,772 P46,435,918 135,539,614 P£263,324,610
Investment in a joint venture 816,285
Deferred tax assets 280,114
Total assets £264,421,009
Segment liabilities 1,102,197 P112,602 £140,290,782 85,775,817 £227,281,398
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, Interbank Call Loans Receivable and Securities
Purchased Under Resale Agreements
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
This account consists of the following:
Demand deposit (Note 16) P1,183,357,292 $£3,598,633,911
Term deposit facility - 3,000,000,000
Overnight deposit facility —  3,147,000,000

P1,183,357,292  £9,745,633,911

Due from BSP- Overnight deposit facility (ODF) bears annual interest rates ranging from 5.25% to
6.00% in 2024 and from 5.00% to 6.00% in 2023. On the other hand, due from BSP- Term Deposit
(TD) bears annual interest rates ranging from 6.06% to 6.67% in 2024 and from 6.28% to 6.71% in
2023.

Interbank Call Loans Receivable and Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreements (SPURA)
This account consists of the following:

2024 2023
Interbank call loans receivable £400,000,000 o
SPURA — 6,989,635,680

£400,000,000 P6,989,635,680

Interbank call loans (IBCL) represent short-term lending with counterparty banks and other financial
institutions. These are highly liquid instruments which mature within one to five days.
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SPURA are lending to counterparties collateralized by government securities ranging from one to six
days.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the fair values of government securities held as collateral
amounted to nil and 7.0 billion, respectively. The Bank is not permitted to sell or repledge the
related collateral in the absence of default by the counterparty.

Foreign currency-denominated IBCLs bear annual interest ranging from 5.00% to 5.51% in 2024,
from 4.00% to 4.50% in 2023 and from 0.32% to 3.25% in 2022, while peso-denominated IBCL of
the Bank bear annual interest rate ranging from 5.91% to 6.59% in 2024, from 6.19% to 6.41% in
2023 and from 1.87% to 4.25% in 2022. SPURA of the Bank bears annual interest rates ranging from
5.95% to 6.58% in 2024, 5.50% to 6.40% in 2023 and 2.00% to 5.50% in 2022.

Interest income on due from BSP, interbank call loans receivable and SPURA are as follows:

2024 2023 2022

Due from BSP P345,049,668 £1,397,792,663 P£1,254,216,130
IBCL and SPURA

IBCL (Note 29) 109,478,588 24,751,029 7,862,763

SPURA 238,088,674 394,630,077 187,915,814

347,567,262 419,381,106 195,778,577
P692,616,930 P1,817,173,769 £1,449,994,707

Investment Securities

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVITPL) Investments
FVTPL investments consist of the following:

2024 2023
Government debt securities £300,599,156 £414,298,313

The unrealized portion of the trading securities gains/(losses) on FVTPL investments amounted to
(R4.98 million) in 2024, £1.76 million in 2023 and (R0.01 million) in 2022.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Financial assets at FVOCI consist of the following:

2024 2023
Debt securities
Government P25,518,903,960 £52,699,128,847
Private 338,922,873 1,633,147,238
Equity securities
Quoted 34,364,018 27,417,546

£25,892,190,851 $£54,359,693,631

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank deposited financial assets at FVOCI with total carrying
value of £119.5 million and £123.9 million, respectively, in the form of government bonds with BSP,
in compliance with trust regulations (Note 30).
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As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the ECL on financial assets at FVOCI (included in ‘Fair value
reserves on financial assets at FVOCI’) amounted to £0.7 million (Note 15). Movements in the fair

value reserves on financial assets at FVOCI follow:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year £70,794,457 (R48,782,635)
Loss (gain) from sale of financial assets at FVOCI
realized in profit or loss (24,247,623) 677,047
Changes in allowance for ECL (Note 15) (74,924) (207,485)
Fair value gain (loss) recognized in OCI (29,502,025) 119,107,530
Balance at end of year £16,969,885 P70,794,457
Investment Securities at Amortized Cost
Investment securities at amortized cost consist of the following:
2024 2023
Debt securities
Government £29,031,233,731 £27,886,190,462
Private 1,076,325,394 2,020,863,838
30,107,559,125 29,907,054,300
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 11,237,913 13,886,257

£30,096,321,212 £29,893,168,043

In 2024 and 2023, investment securities at amortized cost include Bureau of Treasury bonds pledged
by the Bank to MBTC to secure its payroll account, with total carrying value of £63.2 million and

£60.0 million, respectively.

Interest income on investment securities consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Interest income recognized using
EIR
Financial assets at FVOCI £1,962,062,126 £2,948,166,683 £1,590,417,662
Investment securities at amortized cost 1,310,561,907 1,359,495,255 983,839,251

3,272,624,033 4,307,661,938 2,574,256,913

Interest income recognized using
nominal interest rates

FVTPL investments 44,019,337 3,495,728 2,152

£3,316,643,370 P4,311,157,666 P2,574,259,065

EIR on peso-denominated financial assets at FVOCI investments as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022, range from 5.98% to 6.73%, from 6.34% to 6.74%, and from 1.97% to 6.04%, respectively.
EIR on foreign currency-denominated financial assets at FVOCI investments as of December 31,

2024 range from 4.44% to 4.98%.

On the other hand, EIR on peso-denominated investment securities at amortized cost range from
5.02% to 5.39% in 2024, from 4.99% to 5.55% in 2023 and from 3.86% to 5.02% in 2022, while EIR
on foreign currency-denominated investment securities at amortized cost range from 3.27% to 3.49%

in 2024 from 3.28% to 3.65% in 2023 and 3.31% to 3.66% in 2022.
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Trading and securities gains (losses) - net on investment securities consist of:

2024 2023 2022
Financial assets at FVOCI P24,247,623 (B677,047) £2,499,021
FVTPL investments (Note 29) (9,956,515) 5,970,945 (43,835)
P14,291,108 £5,293,898 P2,455,186
9. Loans and Receivables
This account consists of:
2024 2023
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans £90,460,340,931 £75,082,900,240
Real estate loans 43,844,550,817 41,266,767,900
Commercial loans 7,669,171,911 6,749,239,198
Personal loans (Note 29) 1,994,825,782 2,103,099,117
143,968,889,441  125,202,006,455
Less unearned discounts and capitalized interest 74,916,465 115,002,708
143,893,972,976  125,087,003,747
Other receivables
Accrued interest receivable 2,367,681,595 2,398,689,550
Accounts receivable (Note 29) 1,536,451,201 1,393,060,263
Sales contract receivables 4,224,875 6,951,309
Bills purchased (Note 19) - 42,243,033
147,802,330,647  128,927,947,902
Less allowance for credit losses (Note 15) 3,978,878,079 6,163,535,676

P143,823,452,568 P122,764,412,226

Personal loans comprise deposit collateral loans, employee salary and consumer loan products such as
money card, multi-purpose loan and flexi-loan.

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, 33.73%, 35.65%, and 40.09%, respectively, of the total
receivables from customers are subject to periodic interest repricing with average EIR of 8.45%,
8.50%, and 8.14% in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Remaining receivables earn average annual
fixed interest rates of 16.96%, 16.43%, and 15.95%, in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Interest income on loans and receivables consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Receivables from customers
Consumption loans £8,235,230,464 P6,871,709,159 P5,666,303,484
Real estate loans 3,598,209,707 3,504,027,484 3,462,009,203
Personal loans (Note 29) 515,338,079 627,081,379 585,515,967
Commercial loans 505,100,429 476,440,498 445,022,995
Other receivables
Sales contract receivables 79,968 200,864 666,388

P12,853,958,647 P11,479,459,384  $10,159,518,037

Interest income from restructured loans amounted to 7.1 million, £10.7 million, and 5.9 million in
2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.
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On March 25, 2020, Republic Act (RA) No. 11469, otherwise known as the Bayanihan to Heal as
One Act (“Bayanihan 1 Act”) was enacted. Bayanihan 1 Act provides that all covered institutions
shall implement a 30-day grace period for all loans with principal and/or interest and lease
amortization falling due within the Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ) Period without incurring
interest on interest, penalties, fees and other charges. Subsequently, on September 11, 2020, RA No.
11494, otherwise known as the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act (“Bayanihan 2 Act”), was enacted.
Under Bayanihan 2 Act, a one-time sixty (60)-day grace period is granted for the payment of all
existing, current and outstanding loans falling due, or any part thereof, on or before December 31,
2020, without incurring interest on interests, penalties, fees, or other charges and thereby extending
the maturity of the said loans. Furthermore, a minimum 30-day grace period shall also be granted by
covered institutions to all payments due within the period of community quarantine on rent and
utility-related expenditures without incurring penalties, interest, and other charges.

Accretion of modified loans amounted to £40.1 million, 70.1 million and £107.0 million in 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively (Note 23).

10.

Investment in a Joint Venture

The Bank’s investment in a joint venture represents its 30.00% interest in Sumisho Motor Finance
Corporation (SMFC) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

SMFC was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on November 26, 2009. It started commercial operations in March 2010. Its
principal office is located at 12th Floor, PSBank Center, 777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio Street,
Makati City.

SMEFC is engaged in the business of lending or leasing to retail customers for their purchase of
motorcycles.

Management has assessed that the Bank continues to have joint control over SMFC together with GT
Capital, Sumitomo Japan, and Sumitomo Corporation of the Philippines (Sumitomo Group), as all
investors are bound by all terms and conditions of the original Joint Venture Agreement between the
Bank and Sumitomo Group, where unanimous consent is required from all the parties for SMFC’s
relevant activities.

The investment is measured using the equity method. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the
Bank’s investment in a joint venture amounted to £892.0 million and £870.2 million, respectively.
Movement in this account follows (in thousands):

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year £870,179 P816,285
Share in net income (Note 29) 68,023 86,341
Share in remeasurement gains on retirement plan
(Note 29) 3,757) 3,301
Share in hedge reserves (Note 29) 9,707) 21,852
Dividends received (32,701) (57,600)

Balance at end of year £892,037 £870,179
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The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of SMFC (in thousands):

2024 2023

Current assets £5,932,004 P7,251,886

Non-current assets 443,238 452,478
Current liabilities (3,322,004) (3,279,135)
Non-current liabilities (79,782) (1,524,632)

Net assets P2,973,456 £2,900,597

2024 2023

Cash and cash equivalents P473,387 P687,758
Current financial liabilities (3,307,846) (3,299,346)
Non-current financial liabilities (42,169) (1,417,664)

2024 2023 2022

Revenues £1,720,970 21,803,734 £1,548,564

Less: Costs and expenses 1,419,524 1,539,695 1,159,711

301,446 264,039 388,853

Less: Provision for (benefit from)

Income tax 74,703 (23,764) 110,792
Net income 226,743 287,803 278,061
Add: Other comprehensive

income (44,882) (32,357) 33,212
Total comprehensive income P181,861 P255,446 B311,273

2024 2023 2022
Interest income P1,768,569 B1,715,112 £1,459,009
Interest expense 259,724 240,397 164,828
Depreciation and amortization 116,796 96,437 91,584
Income tax expense or income 74,703 62,536 110,792

Cost of the investment as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to £600.0 million.

On June 28, 2024, SMFC declared dividends of £5.45 per share amounting to a total of
£109.0 million. The same was paid to shareholders on July 23, 2024.

On June 23, 2023, SMFC declared dividends of £9.60 per share amounting to a total of
£192.0 million. The same was paid to shareholders on July 19, 2023.

SMFC is a private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares. The net
assets of SMFC consist mainly of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Bank has no share in any contingent liabilities or capital commitments of SMFC as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023. There are also no agreements entered into by SMFC that may restrict
dividends and other capital contributions to be paid, loans and advances to be made or repaid to or
from the Bank as of the said dates.
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11. Property and Equipment

The composition of and movements in this account follow:

2024
Furniture,
Fixtures and Leasehold Right-of-use
Land Building Equipment Improvements Assets: Building Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of the

period P£976,443,676 P1,164,846,258 P£3,415,338,919 P1,131,384,796 £1,963,591,638 £8,651,605,287
Acquisitions/Additions - 5,819,383 290,698,956 22,690,510 451,270,041 770,478,890
Disposals/Retirement — — (76,054,885) — (440,073,893) (516,128,778)
Balance at end of the period 976,443,676 1,170,665,641 3,629,982,990 1,154,075,306 1,974,787,786 8,905,955,399
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of

the period - 634,324,894 2,835,102,506 1,070,267,248 969,953,262 5,509,647,910
Depreciation - 35,717,687 192,372,030 26,638,505 430,815,928 685,544,150
Disposals/Retirement - - (42,673,058) - (440,073,893) (482,746,951)
Others — 387,502 — — — 387,502
Balance at end of the

period - 670,430,083 2,984,801,478 1,096,905,753 960,695,297 5,712,832,611
Net Book Value P976,443,676 P500,235,558 P645,181,512 P57,169,553 P1,014,092,489 P3,193,122,788

2023
Furniture,
Fixtures and Leasehold Right-of-use
Land Building Equipment Improvements Assets: Building Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of the

period P976,443,676 P1,155,304,612 P3,135,342,532 P1,101,893,510 $2,001,043,368 £8,370,027,698
Acquisitions/Additions - 9,541,646 349,393,788 29,491,286 312,921,930 701,348,650
Disposals/Retirement — — (69,397,401) — (350,373,660) (419,771,061)
Balance at end of the period 976,443,676 1,164,846,258 3,415,338,919 1,131,384,796 1,963,591,638 8,651,605,287
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of

the period - 598,513,254 2,715,701,056 1,041,927,841 887,162,420 5,243,304,571
Depreciation - 35,811,640 156,665,664 28,339,407 417,200,588 638,017,299
Disposals/Retirement — — (37,264,214) — (334,409,746) (371,673,960)
Balance at end of the

period - 634,324,894 2,835,102,506 1,070,267,248 969,953,262 5,509,647,910
Net Book Value P976,443,676 P530,521,364 P580,236,413 P61,117,548 P993,638,376 P3,141,957,377

Gain on sale of property and equipment amounted to £3.9 million in 2024 and 2023 and
£12.1 million in 2022.

The details of depreciation under the statements of income follow:

2024 2023 2022

Property and equipment P685,544,150 P£638,017,299 P£580,537,882

Chattel mortgage properties 177,285,886 109,360,006 83,084,760
(Note 14)

Investment properties (Note 12) 88,949,946 92,758,455 92,330,079

P£951,779,982 P£840,135,760 P755,952,721

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, property and equipment of the Bank with gross carrying amounts
of £2.4 billion are fully depreciated but are still being used.
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12. Investment Properties

The composition of and movements in this account follow:

2024
Building

Land Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P1,404,474,771 £3,221,547,911 P4,626,022,682
Additions (Note 32) 112,105,951 360,751,014 472,856,965
Disposals (186,962,754) (580,680,865) (767,643,619)
Balance at end of year 1,329,617,968 3,001,618,060 4,331,236,028
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year - 486,395,513 486,395,513
Depreciation (Note 11) - 88,949,946 88,949,946
Disposals - (69,316,572) (69,316,572)
Balance at end of year — 506,028,887 506,028,887
Allowance for Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year 56,127,134 148,549,851 204,676,985
Provisions for the year (Note 15) 4,325,980 12,233,573 16,559,553
Disposals (691,199) (36,155,100) (36,846,299)
Balance at end of year 59,761,915 124,628,324 184,390,239
Net Book Value £1,269,856,053 £2,370,960,849 £3,640,816,902

2023
Building
Land Improvements Total

Cost
Balance at beginning of year P1,372,656,512 P£3,345,050,833 P4,717,707,345
Additions (Note 32) 196,132,372 464,387,687 660,520,059
Disposals (164,314,113) (587,890,609) (752,204,722)
Balance at end of year 1,404,474,771 3,221,547911 4,626,022,682
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year - 459,729,368 459,729,368
Depreciation (Note 11) - 92,758,455 92,758,455
Disposals — (66,092,310) (66,092,310)
Balance at end of year - 486,395,513 486,395,513
Allowance for Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year 57,557,773 168,949,139 226,506,912
Provisions (reversals) for the year (Note 15) 415,646 11,769,290 12,184,936
Disposals (1,846,285) (32,168,578) (34,014,863)
Balance at end of year 56,127,134 148,549,851 204,676,985
Net Book Value P£1,348,347,637 P2,586,602,547 £3,934,950,184

The details of the net book value of investment properties follow:

2024 2023

Real estate properties acquired in settlement of
loans and receivables

Bank premises leased to third parties and held for
capital appreciation

P£3,569,659,560 $£3,859,953,928

71,157,342 74,996,256
P£3,640,816,902 £3,934,950,184

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the aggregate fair value of investment properties amounted to
P6.5 billion and 6.6 billion, respectively. Fair value of the properties was determined using sales
comparison approach. Fair values are based on valuations performed by accredited external and
in-house appraisers.
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Gain on foreclosure of investment properties amounted to 205.1 million, £233.5 million, and
P£597.4 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Gain on sale of investment properties
amounted to £215.6 million, £128.4 million, and £204.3 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Rental income on investment properties included in ‘Miscellaneous income’ amounted
to £59.1 million, P47.2 million, and £44.1 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively (Notes 23
and 25).

Operating expenses incurred in maintaining investment properties (included under miscellaneous
expense - ‘Repairs and maintenance’) amounted to £9.3 million, £10.2 million, and £11.1 million in
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively (Note 26).

. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Goodwill P53,558,338 £53,558,338
Intangible assets
Software costs 370,106,912 207,515,121
Branch licenses 37,123,737 37,123,737
407,230,649 244,638,858
£460,788,987 £298,197,196
Movements in intangible assets follow:
2024
Software Branch
Costs Licenses Total
Balance at beginning of year P207,515,121 P37,123,737 P244,638,858
Additions 273,949,744 - 273,949,744
Amortization (111,357,953) — (111,357,953)
Balance at end of year £370,106,912 P37,123,737 £407,230,649
2023
Software Branch

Costs Licenses Total
Balance at beginning of year £243,208,824 £37,123,737 £280,332,561
Additions 70,519,156 - 70,519,156
Amortization (106,212,859) — (106,212,859)
Balance at end of year £207,515,121 £37,123,737 £244,638,858
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14. Other Assets

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Financial assets
Security deposits (Note 29) £209,109,716 P198,883,979
Liquidity requirement for electronic money
products 156,123,260 187,273,039
RCOCI 16,695,847 14,419,807
Others* 447,040 436,826
382,375,863 401,013,651
Non-financial assets
Chattel mortgage properties - net 855,404,298 667,892,031
Prepayments (Note 29) 165,991,028 164,561,700
Net retirement assets (Note 24) 63,522,505 -
Stationeries and supplies on hand 38,662,995 44,329,293
Documentary stamps on hand 28,949,779 22,890,982
Creditable withholding tax 24,116,778 45,044,403
Others** 13,934 46,556
1,176,661,317 944,764,965

P1,559,037,180 P1,345,778,616

* Others under financial assets comprise petty cash fund, shortages, and other investments
**  Others under non-financial assets comprise inter-office float items, sundry debits, deferred charges, postages stamps

Liquidity requirement for electronic money products represents the amount set up to be held in trust
for the specific purpose of liquidation of balances of electronic money (e-money) products of the
Bank in compliance with BSP Circular No. 1166, Amendments to the Regulations on Electronic
Money (e-money) and the Operations of Electronic Money Issuers (EMI) in the Philippines which was
released by BSP on February 7, 2023. The BSP requires Bangko Sentral-Supervised Financial
Institutions (BSFIs) to have sufficient liquid assets to always meet e-money redemptions by its
customers. Such amount held in the trust account shall not fall below the required minimum balance
of at least 50% of the outstanding e-money balances.

Prepayments represent prepaid insurance, rent, taxes, and other prepaid expenses.

Creditable withholding tax (CWT) pertains to the excess credits after applying CWT against income
tax payable.

Movements in chattel mortgage properties - net follow:

2024 2023

Cost

Balance at beginning of year £736,797,092 £417,400,112

Additions (Note 32) 3,922,282,431 2,320,586,633
Disposals (3,729,965,320) (2,001,189,653)
Balance at the end of year 929,114,203 736,797,092
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at beginning of year 68,762,517 82,062,955
Depreciation (Note 11) 177,285,886 109,360,006
Disposals (172,438,895) (122,660,444)
Balance at the end of year 73,609,508 68,762,517

(Forward)
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2024 2023
Allowance for Impairment Losses
Balance at beginning of year P142,544 P19,614
Provisions (Note 15) 606,596 674,171
Disposals (648,744) (551,241)
Balance at end of year 100,396 142,544
Net Book Value P£855,404,299 P667,892,031

Gain on foreclosure of chattel mortgage properties amounted to 523.5 million, £491.9 million and
P595.4 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Gain (loss) on sale of chattel mortgage properties amounted to (£313.3) million, £128.1 million and
£104.8 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

15.

Allowance for Credit and Impairment Losses

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances for loans and advances to banks as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 follows (in thousands):

2024

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total

Due from BSP
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - - - - - - -
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - _
Assets derecognized or repaid - - - — - — _
Balance at December 31, 2024 — — — - - — _
Due from other banks

Balance at January 1, 2024 1,209 - - - - - 1,209
New assets originated or purchased 269 - - - - - 269
Assets derecognized or repaid — — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 1,478 — — — — — 1,478
Total loans and advances to banks
Balance at January 1, 2024 1,209 - - - - - 1,209
New assets originated or purchased 269 - - - - - 269
Assets derecognized or repaid — — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 £1,478 o o o o o £1,478
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total

Due from BSP
Balance as of January 1, 2023 P P P P P P P
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - — -
Assets derecognized or repaid - - — — - — —
Balance at December 31, 2023 — — — — - — _
Due from other banks

Balance at January 1, 2023 14,671 - - - - - 14,671
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (13,462) — — — — — (13,462)
Balance at December 31, 2023 1,209 — — — — — 1,209
Total loans and advances to banks
Balance at January 1, 2023 14,671 - - - - - 14,671
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (13,462) — — — — — (13,462)
Balance at December 31, 2023 £1,209 P P P P P £1,209




-64 -

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances for investment securities as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 follows (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Financial assets at FVOCI
Balance at January 1, 2024 P746 - - - - - P746
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (75) — — — — — (75)
Balance at December 31, 2024 £671 — — — — — £671
Investment at amortized cost
Balance at January 1, 2024 13,886 - - - - - 13,886
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (2,648) — — — — — (2,648)
Balance at December 31, 2024 11,238 — — — — — 11,238
Total investment securities
Balance at January 1, 2024 14,632 - - - - - 14,632
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (2,723) — — — — — (2,723)
Balance at December 31, 2024 £11,909 P— P— P— P— P— £11,909
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Financial assets at FVOCI
Balance at January 1, 2023 Po54 P P P P P Po54
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (208) — — — — — (208)
Balance at December 31, 2023 746 — — — — — 746
Investment at amortized cost
Balance at January 1, 2023 18,573 - - - - - 18,573
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (4,687) — — — — — (4,687)
Balance at December 31, 2023 13,886 — — — — — 13,886
Total investment securities
Balance at January 1, 2023 19,527 - - - - - 19,527
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid (4,895) — — — — — (4,895)
Balance at December 31, 2023 P14,632 P P P P P P£14,632

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances for receivables from customers as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 follows (in thousands):

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans
Balance at January 1, 2024 - £2,017,898 - £609,879 £1,289,692 - £3,917,469
New assets originated or purchased - 548,317 - 131,756 218,429 - 898,502
Assets derecognized or repaid - (168,720) - (134,311) (165,630) - (468,661)
Amounts written off - - - (113,217) (973,602) - (1,086,819)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 116,573 - (95,879) (20,694) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (220,163) - 248,315 (28,152) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (53,564) - (67,668) 121,232 - -
Impact on change in assumptions - (1,323,320) - 180,593 373,963 - (768,764)
Balance at December 31, 2024 - 917,021 - 759,468 815,238 - 2,491,727
Real Estate Loans
Balance at January 1, 2024 - 194,310 - 573,099 195,520 - 962,929
New assets originated or purchased - 41,333 - 2,697 4,274 - 48,304
Assets derecognized or repaid - (8,314) - (46,662) (31,703) - (86,679)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 332,614 - (324,461) (8,153) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (8,648) - 39,612 (30,964) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (1,090) - (17,764) 18,854 - -
Impact on change in assumptions - (468,623) - (56,052) 23,479 - (501,196)
Balance at December 31, 2024 - 81,582 - 170,469 171,307 - 423,358
(Forward)
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2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Commercial Loans
Balance at January 1, 2024 - $28,414 - £14,923 P184,839 - $228,176
New assets originated or purchased - 5,404 - 1,106 - - 6,510
Assets derecognized or repaid - (10,434) - (512) (6,638) - (17,584)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,001 - (574) (1,427) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - 131) - 418 (287) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - a7 - (214) 231 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — 7,149 — 1,160 8,478 — 16,787
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 32,386 — 16,307 185,196 — 233,889
Personal Loans
Balance at January 1, 2024 - 70,708 - 217,699 184,753 - 473,160
New assets originated or purchased - 44,926 - 19,128 10,805 - 74,859
Assets derecognized or repaid - (19,358) - (2,798) (19,483) - (41,639)
Amounts written off - - - (33,359) (80,360) - (113,719)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 18,435 - (18,398) 37 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (41,423) - 41,500 an - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (1,638) - (14,261) 15,899 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (24,006) — (137,248) 32,025 — (129,229)
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 47,644 — 72,263 143,525 — 263,432
Total Receivables from Customers
Balance at January 1, 2024 - 2,311,330 - 1,415,600 1,854,804 - 5,581,734
New assets originated or purchased - 639,980 - 154,687 233,508 - 1,028,175
Assets derecognized or repaid - (206,826) - (184,283) (223,454) - (614,563)
Amounts written off - - - (146,576) (1,053,962) - (1,200,538)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 469,623 - (439,312) (30,311) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (270,365) - 329,845 (59,480) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (56,309) - (99,907) 156,216 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (1,808,800) — (11,547) 437,945 — (1,382,402)
Balance at December 31, 2024 P— £1,078,633 P— £1,018,507 £1,315,266 P— £3,412,406
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Consumption Loans
Balance at January 1, 2023 P 21,706,746 P £569,605 £938,875 P P3,215.226
New assets originated or purchased - 1,514,645 - 116,684 185,796 - 1,817,125
Assets derecognized or repaid - (132,064) - (182,992) (348,783) - (663,839)
Amounts written off - - - - (145,656) - (145,656)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 104,699 - (87,647) (17,052) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (165,555) - 196,066 (30,511) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (46,230) - (79,764) 125,994 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (964,343) — 77,927 581,029 — (305,387)
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 2,017,898 — 609,879 1,289,692 — 3,917,469
Real Estate Loans
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 246,988 - 547,520 311,961 - 1,106,469
New assets originated or purchased - 42,543 - 4412 4,610 - 51,565
Assets derecognized or repaid - (10,694) - (45,306) (42,410) - (98,410)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 67,007 - (63,962) (3,045) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (77,394) - 114,111 (36,717) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (1,822) - (19,200) 21,022 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (72,318) — 35,523 (59,900) — (96,695)
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 194,310 — 573,098 195,521 — 962,929
Commercial Loans
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 55,871 - 35,208 176,753 - 267,832
New assets originated or purchased - 6,824 - 38 5317 - 12,179
Assets derecognized or repaid - (28,497) - (18,003) (15,764) - (62,264)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 9,333 - (9,303) (30) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (774) - 854 (80) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (75) - (331) 406 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (14,268) — 6,460 18,237 — 10,429
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 28,414 — 14,923 184,839 — 228,176
(Forward)
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2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Personal Loans
Balance at January 1, 2023 P £107,081 P £256,563 P214,182 P P577,826
New assets originated or purchased - 38,158 - 62,300 12,539 - 112,997
Assets derecognized or repaid - (29,839) - -37,020 (1,025) - (67,884)
Amounts written off - - - - (112,283) - (112,283)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 41,548 - (41,461) (87) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (12,285) - 12,527 (242) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (2,900) - -20,676 23,576 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (71,053) — -14,536 48,093 — (37,496)
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 70,710 — 217,697 184,753 — 473,160
Total Receivables from Customers
Balance at January 1, 2023 - 2,116,686 - 1,408,896 1,641,771 - 5,167,353
New assets originated or purchased - 1,602,170 - 183,434 208,262 - 1,993,866
Assets derecognized or repaid - (201,094) - (283,321) (407,983) - (892,398)
Amounts written off - - - - (257,939) - (257,939)
Transfers to Stage 1 - 222,587 - (202,373) (20,214) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (256,008) - 323,558 (67,550) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (51,027) - (119,971) 170,998 -
Impact on change in assumptions — (1,121,982) — 105,374 587,459 — (429,149)
Balance at December 31, 2023 P £2,311,332 P £1,415,597 P£1,854,804 P £5,581,733

An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances for other receivables as

2023 follows (in thousands):

of December 31, 2024 and

2024
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - £19,026 - £15,088 £38,113 - £72,227
New assets originated or purchased - 5,652 - 1,666 6,928 - 14,246
Assets derecognized or repaid - (2,052) - (4,398) (32,563) - (39,013)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,559 - (2,297) (262) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (2,785) - 3,185 (400) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (584) - (1,433) 2,017 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (12,262) — 933 11,590 — 261
Balance at December 31, 2024 — 9,554 — 12,744 25,423 — 47,721
Sales Contract Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - 6 - 20 546 - 572
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid - 6) - 6) (176) - (188)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 14 - 14) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - 14) - - 6) - 20)
Impact on change in assumptions — — — — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2024 — — — — 364 — 364
Total Other Receivables
Balance as of January 1, 2024 - 19,032 - 15,108 38,659 - 72,799
New assets originated or purchased - 5,652 - 1,666 6,928 - 14,246
Assets derecognized or repaid - (2,058) - (4,404) (32,739) - (39,201)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,573 - (2,311 (262) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (2,785) - 3,185 (400) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (598) - (1,433) 2,011 - 20)
Impact on change in assumptions — (12,262) — 933 11,590 — 261
Balance at December 31, 2024 o £9,554 o £12,744 $25,787 o £48,085
2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Accrued Interest Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2023 P 18,183 P P18,826 £25,734 P £62,743
New assets originated or purchased - 13,079 - 2,345 9,193 - 24,617
Assets derecognized or repaid - (1,855) - (4,094) (15,174) - (21,123)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,621 - (2,459) (162) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (2,267) - 2,657 (390) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (568) - (2,317) 2,885 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (10,167) — 130 16,027 — 5,990
Balance at December 31, 2023 — 19,026 — 15,088 38,113 — 72,227

(Forward)



-67 -

2023
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Collective Individual Collective Stage 3 POCI Total
Sales Contract Receivable
Balance as of January 1, 2023 P Pl P PRIl R172 P P184
New assets originated or purchased - - - - - - -
Assets derecognized or repaid - - - (6) (37) - (43)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 6 - (6) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - 3 3) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - - - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (1) — 17 414 — 430
Balance at December 31, 2023 - 6 - 19 546 - 571
Total Other Receivables

Balance as of January 1, 2023 - 18,184 - 18,837 25,906 - 62,927
New assets originated or purchased - 13,079 - 2,345 9,193 - 24,617
Assets derecognized or repaid - (1,855) - (4,100) (15,211) - (21,166)
Amounts written off - - - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - 2,627 - (2,465) (162) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - (2,267) - 2,660 (393) - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (568) - (2,317) 2,885 - -
Impact on change in assumptions — (10,168) — 147 16,441 — 6,420
Balance at December 31, 2023 P £19,032 P 215,107 £38,659 P £72,798

The ECL allowance on accounts receivables of the Bank based on their aging as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 follows:

Age of accounts receivables 2024 2023
Up to 1 month £23,990,829 P5,566,498
> 1 to 2 months 1,105,543 1,710,417
> 2 to 3 months 1,259,561 1,103,576
More than 3 months 492,031,135 500,601,795

P518,387,068 P508,982,286

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank’s undrawn portion of committed credit lines amounted
to £4.2 billion and £4.0 billion, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, provision on
undrawn portion of committed credit lines amounted to £38.9 million and £132.8 million,
respectively (Note 19).

The details of provisions (reversals) under the statements of income follow:

2024 2023
Loans and receivables (Note 9) £199,726,806 £1,456,586,418
Investment properties (Note 12) 16,559,553 12,184,936
Investment securities (2,723,268) (4,894,264)
Due from other banks 269,350 (13,461,465)
Chattel mortgage (Note 14) 606,596 674,171

$214,439,037 $1,451,089,796

The reduction in the Bank’s provisions in 2024 reflects a combination of strategic initiatives aimed at
strengthening portfolio quality and optimizing risk management. Proactive credit management, a
secured loan portfolio, and effective recovery strategies played a significant role in mitigating risk
and supporting portfolio stability. Enhancements to ECL. model components, particularly overlay
models, allowed provisions to align more closely with improved economic conditions, moving away
from the assumptions embedded in pandemic-era models. Additionally, refinements in Probability of
Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) models enabled more precise risk assessments and
provisioning. Collectively, these efforts have contributed to lower provisions, even as the loan
portfolio continued to expand.
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16. Deposit Liabilities

Interest expense on deposit liabilities consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Time (Note 29) P4,367,299,538 £5,307,552,802 $2,416,715,820
Demand (Note 29) 50,131,705 50,405,931 54,394,093
Savings 44,979,521 44,377,682 44,392,032
LTNCD 12,715,457 260,840,070 295,891,550

P4,475,126,221 P£5,663,176,485 P2,811,393,495

Peso-denominated deposit liabilities earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.10% to 6.28% in
2024, from 0.10% to 6.25% in 2023 and 0.10% to 6.00% in 2022, while foreign currency-
denominated deposit liabilities earn annual fixed interest rates ranging from 0.05% to 4.95% in 2024,
0.05% to 6.25% in 2023 and from 0.05% to 0.25% in 2022. Effective interest rates on deposit
liabilities range from 0.05% to 5.15% in 2024, from 0.10% to 5.30% in 2023, and from 0.10% to
3.94% in 2022.

In 2024, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas issued BSP Circular No. 1201 reducing the reserve
requirements against deposits to 1.00% from 2.00% for thrift banks. The required reserves can be
kept in the form of deposit maintained in the demand deposit accounts with the BSP and any
government securities used as compliance until they mature. Further, BSP Circular No. 1100 issued
in 2020 and amended by BSP Circular No. 1155 issued in 2022 allowing banks to use peso
denominated loans that are granted after March 15, 2020 to (1) micro-small-and-medium-enterprises
(MSMESs) and (2) large enterprise excluding banks and non-bank financial institutions with quasi-
banking functions that met the definition of MSMEs/large enterprise as alternative compliances with
the reserve requirements. The use of MSMEs loans/loans to large enterprises as allowable alternative
compliance with reserve requirements was available until June 30, 2023 only. In the case of TBs,
RBs, and Coop banks, the outstanding MSME loans of these banks that are utilized as alternative
compliance with the reserve requirement as of June 30, 2023 shall remain eligible for such purpose
until said loans are fully paid but not later than December 31, 2025. As of December 31, 2024 and
2023, Due from BSP amounting to 1.2 billion and £3.3 billion, respectively, and MSME loans
amounting to £0.5 billion and 0.9 billion, respectively, were set aside as reserves for deposit
liabilities. As reported to the BSP, the Bank is in compliance with such regulations as of

December 31, 2024 and 2023.

On December 8, 2016, the BSP authorized the Bank to issue LTNCDs up to £10.0 billion through one
or multiple tranches over a period of one year. On January 30, 2017, the Bank issued the first tranche
of LTNCDs amounting to £3.4 billion with a tenor of five (5) years and three (3) months and due on
April 30, 2022 with interest rate of 3.50% per annum payable quarterly. The minimum investment
size for the LTNCDs is 250,000 with increments of £50,000 thereafter. Subject to BSP Rules, the
Bank has the option to pre-terminate the LTNCDs as a whole but not in part, prior to maturity and on
any interest payment date at face value plus accrued interest covering the accrued and unpaid interest.

On July 13, 2018, the BSP authorized the Bank to issue LTNCDs up to £15.0 billion through one or
multiple tranches over a period of one year. On August 9, 2018, the Bank issued the first tranche of
LTNCDs amounting to £5.1 billion with a tenor of five (5) years and six (6) months and due on
February 9, 2024 with interest rate of 5.00% per annum payable quarterly. The minimum investment
size for the LTNCDs is 50,000 with increments of £50,000 thereafter. Subject to BSP Rules, the
Bank has the option to pre-terminate the LTNCDs as a whole but not in part, prior to maturity and on
any interest payment date at face value plus accrued interest covering the accrued and unpaid interest.
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, deferred financing cost on LTNCDs amounted to nil and
P0.3 million, respectively. Amortization of deferred financing cost amounted to £0.3 million and
£6.6 million in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

17. Bills Payable and Bonds Payable
Bills Payable
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, Bills Payable amounted to nil and £271.9 million, respectively.
Annual interest rate on dollar-denominated securities under resale agreement (SSURA) ranges from
5.09% to 5.91%, 4.79% to 5.91%, 5.05% to 5.09%, in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Interest expense on bills payable in 2024, 2023, and 2022 amounted to £20.3 million, £35.3 million,
and £21.9 thousand, respectively (Note 29).
Bonds Payable
On February 4, 2020, the Bank issued fixed rate bonds amounting to 4.7 billion with a tenor of three
(3) years and with interest rate of 4.5% per annum payable quarterly already matured on February 4,
2023. The minimum investment size for the bonds payable is 0.5 million with increments of
P0.1 million thereafter. Debt issuance cost related to the issuance amounted to £42.7 million. There
were no transactions in 2024.
Interest expense incurred on bonds due in 2024 is nil, £20.7 million in 2023 and £224.0 million in
2022. Amortization of debt issuance costs is nil in 2024, 1.6 million in 2023 and £14.8 million in
2022.

18. Accrued Taxes, Interest and Other Expenses

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Accrued interest payable £321,208,714 B515,706,331
Accrued other taxes and licenses payable 320,636,725 304,180,386
Accrued other expenses payable (Note 29) 1,604,600,834 1,843,650,786

P2,246,446,273 $2,663,537,503

Accrued other expenses payable consists of:

2024 2023
Compensation and fringe benefits P741,950,774 £597,067,561
Litigation 357,433,281 627,167,507
Insurance (Note 29) 166,683,439 189,856,417
Information technology (Note 29) 130,879,980 148,708,322
Repairs and maintenance 41,582,060 50,282,060
Rental - ATM Offsites 37,989,751 37,989,751
Security, messengerial and janitorial 36,204,686 39,070,448

(Forward)
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2024 2023
ATM maintenance £20,400,132 £24,040,826
Donations 14,517,956 23,369,956
Advertising 10,510,397 34,173,067
Membership, fees and dues 3,773,951 3,773,951
Miscellaneous 42,674,427 68,150,920

P£1,604,600,834 P£1,843,650,786

Compensation and fringe benefits include bonuses, as well as medical, dental and hospitalization

benefits.

Miscellaneous include accruals for utilities and maintenance and other expenses.

19. Other Liabilities

This account consists of:

2024 2023

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable (Note 29)

£2,071,731,704 $£1,998,393,906

Lease liabilities (Note 25) 1,190,529,789 1,181,200,923
Other credits 221,609,042 169,937,805
Overages 4,895,091 4,108,652
Deposit for keys — SDB 734,395 741,645
Bills purchased — contra (Note 9) — 42,243,033
3,489,500,021  3,396,625,964
Non-financial liabilities

Sundry credits 91,964,895 222,364,272
Withholding taxes payable 89,391,301 116,772,129
Due to the Treasurer of the Philippines 40,721,456 36,437,950

Provision on undrawn portion of committed
credit lines (Note 15) 38,893,036 132,829,383

SSS, Medicare, ECP and HDMF

premium payable 22,387,898 20,016,801
Net retirement liability (Note 24) - 241,017,602
Miscellaneous (Note 29) 63,072,130 40,870,530
346,430,716 810,308,667

Total

P£3,835,930,737 $£4,206,934,631

Accounts payable includes payable to suppliers and service providers, and loan payments and other

charges received from customers in advance.

Other credits represent long-outstanding unclaimed cashier’s checks.

Sundry credits represent various items or transactions which cannot be classified immediately under
any credit account and subsequently classified to proper credit accounts the following month.
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20. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to whether they are
expected to be recovered or settled within one year and beyond one year from the statement of

condition dates (in thousands):

December 31
2024 2023
Within Beyond Within Beyond
One Year One Year Total One Year One Year Total
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash items 1,781,441 f o 1,781,441 P1,653,555 P P1,653,555
Due from BSP - gross 1,183,357 - 1,183,357 9,745,634 - 9,745,634
Due from other banks - gross 1,816,578 - 1,816,578 1,765,439 - 1,765,439
Interbank call loans receivable and SPURA
- gross (Note 7) 400,000 - 400,000 6,989,636 - 6,989,636
FVTPL investments (Note 8) 300,599 - 300,599 414,298 - 414,298
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 8) 8,732,721 17,159,470 25,892,191 52,558,045 1,801,649 54,359,694
Investment securities at amortized cost — gross (Note 8) 3,383,179 26,724,380 30,107,559 1,545,720 28,361,334 29,907,054
Loans and receivables - gross (Note 9) 12,844,071 135,033,176 147,877,247 13,806,138 115,236,813 129,042,951
Other assets* (Note 14) 192,173 190,203 382,376 236,741 164,273 401,014
30,634,119 179,107,229 209,741,348 88,715,206 145,564,069 234,279,275
Nonfinancial Assets
Investment in a joint venture (Note 10) - 892,037 892,037 - 870,179 870,179
Property and equipment - gross (Note 11) - 8,905,955 8,905,955 - 8,651,605 8,651,605
Investment properties - gross (Note 12) - 4,331,236 4,331,236 - 4,626,023 4,626,023
Deferred tax assets (Note 27) - 1,318,508 1,318,508 - 1,257,608 1,257,608
Intangible assets and goodwill — gross - 572,147 572,147 - 404,410 404,410
Other assets - gross** (Note 14) 257,734 992,637 1,250,371 276,873 736,797 1,013,670
257,734 17,012,520 17,270,254 276,873 16,546,622 16,823,495
Less: Allowance for credit and impairment losses
(Note 15) 4,176,085 6,383,451
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
(Notes 11, 12, 13 and 14) 6,403,829 6,171,020
Unearned discounts and capitalized interest
(Note 9) 74,916 115,003
10,654,830 12,669.474
$216,356,772 $238.,433.296

*  Other assets under financial assets comprise security deposits, liquidity requirement for electronic money products, RCOCI, petty cash fund, shortages and other investments
** Other assets under nonfinancial assets comprise chattel mortgage properties, net retirement assets, prepayments, documentary stamps on hand, stationeries and supplies on hand,
creditable withholding tax, inter-office float items, sundry debits, deferred charges, postages stamps.

December 31
2024 2023
Within Beyond Within Beyond
One Year One Year Total One Year One Year Total
Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities (Note 16) £146,990,994 £17,562,035 £164,553,029 P174,454,708 P15,167,996 P189,622,704
Bills payable - - - 271,896 - 271,896
Bonds payable (Note 17) - - - - - -
Treasurer’s, cashier’s and manager’s checks 1,615,438 - 1,615,438 1,514,066 - 1,514,066
Accrued other expenses payable (Note 18) 1,604,601 1,604,601 1,843,651 1,843,651
Accrued interest payable (Note 18) 321,209 - 321,209 515,706 - 515,706
Other liabilities* (Note 19) 2,707,917 781,583 3,489,500 2,574,961 821,665 3,396,626
153,240,159 18,343,618 171,583,777 181,174,988 15,989,661 197,164,649
Nonfinancial Liabilities
Accrued other taxes and licenses payable
(Note 18) 320,637 - 320,637 304,180 - 304,180
Other liabilities** (Note 19) 213,744 132,687 346,431 551,507 258,802 810,309
534,381 132,687 667,068 855,687 258,802 1,114,489
P153,774,540 £18,476,305 £172,250,845 P182,030,675 P16,248.463 £198,279,138

*  Other liabilities under financial liabilities comprise accounts payable, lease liabilities, bills purchased contra, other credits, overages, and deposit for safety deposit box.
** Other liabilities under nonfinancial liabilities comprise provision on undrawn portion of committed credit lines, withholding taxes payable, sundry credits, due to the treasurer of the
Philippines, SSS, Medicare, ECP & HDMF premium payable, and miscellaneous liabilities.

21.

Equity

Issued Capital

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank’s capital stock consists of:

2024

2023

Shares Amount

Shares Amount

Authorized common stock - £10.0 par

value

600,000,000 £6,000,000,000

600,000,000 £6,000,000,000

Issued and outstanding
Beginning balance

426,859,416  4,268,594,160

426,859,416  4,268,594,160

Ending balance

426,859,416 P4,268,594,160

426,859,416 $£4,268,594,160
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The Bank became listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on October 10, 1994. Subsequently,
the SEC approved the increase in the capital stock of the Bank. The summarized information on the

Bank’s registration of securities under the Securities Regulation Code follows:

Date of SEC Approval Type Authorized Shares Par Value
August 16, 1995 Common 300,000,000 B10
October 8, 1997 Common 425,000,000 10

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the total number of stockholders is 1,432 and 1,438 with share
price closed at £58.2 and £53.0, respectively.

On November 28, 2018, the PSE approved the application of the Bank for the listing of additional
142,856,925 common shares to cover the Bank’s 1:1.68177 stock rights offering at an offer price of
56.0 per share or additional capital of 8.0 billion. The Bank successfully completed 8.0 billion stock
rights offer and shares were listed on January 18, 2019 in the PSE. Capital paid in excess of par
related to the offering amounted to £6.5 billion, net of transactions costs of 101.5 million.

On March 12, 2019, the BOD approved (a) the amendment of the AOI to increase the authorized
capital stock from £4.3 billion to 6.0 billion and (b) the declaration of a 11.42% stock dividend
equivalent to 43,750,000 shares amounting to P2.6 billion representing the minimum 11.42%
subscription and paid-up capital for the increase in the authorized capital stock of the Bank which
were ratified by the stockholders representing at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock on

April 15, 2019. These were approved by BSP on August 8, 2019 and by the SEC on

November 20, 2019. Following this, the authorized capital stock of the Bank increased from

£4.3 billion to £6.0 billion consisting of 600.0 million common shares with par value of £10.00 per

share.

On January 16, 2020, the Bank received the SEC order fixing the record date of the 11.42% stock
dividend on January 31, 2020. The 11.42% stock dividend was issued on February 21, 2020 with
record date on January 31, 2020. On February 17, 2020, the PSE approved the listing of such stock
dividend. Capital paid in excess of par related to the issuance of stock dividend amounted to

P2.1 billion.

Dividends Paid and Proposed

Details of the Bank’s dividend distributions as approved by the Bank’s BOD and the BSP follow:

Cash Dividends

Date of declaration Per share Total amount  Record date Payment date
January 17,2022 £0.75 P£320,144,562  February 2, 2022 February 16, 2022
April 25,2022 0.75 320,144,562  May 11,2022 May 21, 2022

July 21,2022 0.75 320,144,562  August 5, 2022 August 22,2022
October 20, 2022 0.75 320,144,562  November 7, 2022 November 21, 2022
January 26, 2023 0.75 320,144,562  February 10,2023 February 27, 2023
April 27,2023 0.75 320,144,562  May 15,2023 May 29, 2023

July 20,2023 0.75 320,144,562  August 4, 2023 August 22,2023
October 19, 2023 0.75 320,144,562  November 8, 2023 November 20, 2023
January 18, 2024 0.75 320,144,562  February 2, 2024 February 19, 2024
April 25,2024 0.75 320,144,562  May 13,2024 May 27,2024

July 25,2024 0.75 320,144,562 August 9, 2024 August 27,2024
October 17,2024 0.75 320,144,562  November 4, 2024 November 18, 2024

Stock Dividends

Date of declaration
March 12,2019

Per share
11.42%

Total amount
P

Record date
January 31, 2020

Payment date
February 21, 2020

On October 9, 2015, the BSP issued Circular No. 888, Amendments to Regulations on Dividend
Declaration and Interest Payments on Tier 1 Capital Instruments, which liberalized said rules in the
sense that prior BSP verification and approval is no longer required except for banks with major



-73 -

supervisory concerns. However, banks are bound to comply with the provisions of Section X136 of
the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) and its subsections, including the submission of
documentary requirements under Subsection X136.4 of the MORB. Otherwise, banks, subsequently
found to have violated the provisions on dividend declaration or have falsely certified/submitted
misleading statements shall be reverted to the prior BSP verification wherein the bank can only make
an announcement or communication on the declaration of the dividends or payment of dividends
thereon upon receipt of BSP advice thereof. The Bank is compliant with the said circular.

The computation of surplus available for dividend declaration in accordance with SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 11 issued in December 2008 differs to a certain extent from the computation following
BSP guidelines.

In compliance with BSP regulations, 10.00% of the Bank’s profit from trust business is appropriated
to surplus reserves. This annual appropriation is required until the surplus reserves for trust business
equals 20.00% of the Bank’s authorized capital stock.

A portion of the surplus corresponding to the accumulated net earnings of a joint venture is not
available for dividend declaration until receipt of cash dividends from the investee.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with
externally imposed capital requirements, as mandated by the BSP, and that the Bank maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize returns for its shareholders. The
Bank considers its paid in capital and surplus as its capital.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payments to shareholders or issue capital
securities. The major activities in this area include the following:

e The Bank issued additional common shares for its qualified stockholders in 2008 and 2006
through stock rights offerings that raised £2.0 billion and £750.0 million in capital, respectively.

e On October 21, 2016, the BOD approved the Bank’s updated Dividend Policy which provides,
among others, the declaration and payment of cash dividends at a rate of 0.75 per share on a
quarterly basis unless approved by a majority vote of the BOD at a different rate or otherwise
restricted/prohibited from declaring/paying dividends.

Regulatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank’s compliance with regulatory
requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank’s unimpaired capital (regulatory capital)
as reported to the BSP. This is determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies which differ
from PFRS Accounting Standards in some respects.

In addition, the risk-based capital ratio of a bank, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital to
risk-weighted assets, should not be less than 10.00% for both solo basis and consolidated basis.
Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets are computed based on BSP regulations.

Risk-weighted assets consist of total assets less cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-

out on or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by
margin deposits and other non-risk items determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP.
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On January 15, 2013, the BSP issued Circular No. 781, Basel III Implementing Guidelines on
Minimum Capital Requirements which states the implementing guidelines on the revised risk-based
capital adequacy framework, particularly on the minimum capital and disclosure requirements for
universal banks and commercial banks, as well as their subsidiary banks and quasi-banks, in
accordance with the Basel 111 standards. The Circular took effect on January 1, 2014,

On March 29, 2022, the BSP issued Circular No. 1142, Amendments to the Guidelines on the
Computation of Minimum Required Capital and Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio, which provides
amended guidelines on the computation of the minimum required capital and the risk-based capital
adequacy ratio.

The Bank considered BSP regulations, which set out a minimum CET1 ratio of 6.00% and Tier 1
capital ratio of 7.50%, and require capital conservation buffer of 2.50% comprised of CET1
capital. The BSP’s existing requirement for Total CAR remains unchanged at 10.00% and these
ratios shall be maintained at all times.

The CAR of the Bank as of December 31, as reported to the BSP, based on BSP Circular No. 781 and
BSP Circular No. 538, respectively, are shown in the table below (amounts in millions).

2024 2023
Tier 1 capital P41,887 P38,876
CET1 capital 41,887 38,876
Less: Required deductions 3,412 2,998
Total Tier 1 Capital 38,475 35,878
Total Tier 2 capital 1,767 1,368
Total qualifying capital 40,242 37,246
Risk weighted assets £170,838 P152,250
Tier 1 ratio 22.52% 23.56%
CET1 ratio 22.52% 23.56%
Capital adequacy ratio 23.56% 24.46%

Regulatory qualifying capital consists of Tier 1 (going concern) capital, which comprises capital
stock, surplus, surplus reserves, net unrealized gains on FVOCI securities, cumulative foreign
currency translation and remeasurements of net defined benefit asset. Certain adjustments are made
to PFRS-based results and reserves, as prescribed by the BSP. The other component of regulatory
capital is Tier 2 (gone-concern) capital, which is comprised of the Bank’s general loan loss provision.
Certain items are deducted from the regulatory Gross Qualifying Capital, such as but not limited to,
outstanding unsecured credit accommodations, both direct and indirect, to DOSRI, and unsecured
loans, other credit accommodations, and guarantees granted to subsidiaries and affiliates (net of
specific provisions), deferred tax assets, goodwill, other intangible assets and significant minority
investments in a joint venture.

Risk-weighted assets are determined by assigning defined risk weights to amounts of on-balance
sheet exposures and to the credit equivalent amounts of off-balance sheet exposures.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank has complied with the requirements of BSP Circular
No. 781 and BSP Circular No. 538.

On October 29, 2014, the BSP issued Circular No. 856 which covers the implementing guidelines on

the framework for dealing with domestic systemically important banks (DSIBs) in accordance with
the Basel III standards. Banks identified as DSIBs shall be required to have higher loss absorbency,



=75 -

on top of the minimum CET1 capital and capital conservation buffer. Compliance with this
requirement was phased-in starting January 1, 2017, with full compliance on January 1, 2019. On
September 27, 2019, the BSP issued Circular No. 1051 which covers the enhancements in the
assessment methodology of D-SIBs. The Bank has complied with this requirement.

The issuance of BSP Circular No. 639 covering the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) in 2009 supplements the BSP’s risk-based capital adequacy framework under BSP Circular
No. 538. In compliance with this new circular, the Metrobank Group has adopted and developed its
ICAAP framework to ensure that appropriate level and quality of capital are maintained by the
Group. Under this framework, the assessment of risks extends beyond the Pillar 1 set of credit,
market and operational risks and onto other risks deemed material by the Group. The level and
structure of capital are assessed and determined in light of the Group’s business environment, plans,
performance, risks and budget, as well as regulatory directives. The Bank follows the Group’s
ICAAP framework and submits the result of its assessment to the Parent Company. Per BSP Circular
No. 869, effective January 31, 2015, submission of an ICAAP document is required by BSP every
March 31 of each year. The Bank has complied with this requirement.

The Bank has taken into consideration the impact of the foregoing requirements to ensure that the
appropriate level and quality of capital are maintained on an ongoing basis.

BASEL III Leverage Ratio (BLR)

On June 9, 2015, the BSP issued Circular No. 881 covering the implementing guidelines on the Basel
IIT Leverage Ratio Framework which is designed to act as a supplementary measure to the risk-based
capital requirements and shall not be less than 5.0 percent. The monitoring period has been set every
quarter starting December 31, 2014 and extended until June 30, 2018 under BSP Circular No. 990
issued on January 22, 2018. Effective July 1, 2018, the monitoring of the leverage ratio was
implemented as a Pillar I minimum requirement.

The Basel III Leverage Ratio is designed to act as a supplementary measure to the risk-based capital
requirements. The Basel III Leverage Ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided
by the exposure measure (the denominator), with this ratio expressed as percentage. Capital measure
is the Tier 1 capital. Exposure measure is the sum of on-balance sheet exposures, derivative
exposures, security financing exposures and off-balance sheet items. The leverage ratio shall not be
less than 5.0 percent computed on both solo (head office plus branches) and consolidated bases
(including subsidiary financial allied undertakings but excluding insurance companies).

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank maintains these ratios above minimum requirements as
shown in the table below (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023

A. Capital Measure P38,475 P35,878
B. Exposure Measure 212,648 236,514
C. Basel IlI Leverage Ratio (A/B) 18.09% 15.17%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

On March 10, 2016 and February 8, 2018, the BSP issued Circular Nos. 905 and 996, respectively,
which include guidelines on LCR, and LCR disclosure standards that are consistent with the Basel I11
framework. The LCR is the ratio of high-quality liquid assets (HQLAs) to total net cash outflows.
To promote the short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile of the Bank, it shall maintain an
adequate stock of unencumbered HQLAs that consists of cash or assets that can be converted into
cash at little or no loss of value in private markets, to meet its liquidity needs under stressed
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conditions. The stock of liquid assets should enable the Bank to withstand significant liquidity
shocks for at least thirty (30) calendar days, which would give time for corrective actions to be taken
by the Bank’s management and/or the BSP.

On March 15, 2019, the BSP issued Circular No. 1035 which approved the: (1) extension of the
observation period of the minimum Basel III LCR requirement to December 31, 2019 for subsidiary
banks and quasi-banks (QBs) of universal and commercial banks (U/KBs), (2) adoption of a seventy
percent (70.00%) LCR floor for subsidiary banks and QBs during the observation period, (3)
minimum requirement of one hundred (100.00%) starting January 1, 2020. As of December 31, 2024
and 2023, the LCR in single currency as reported to the BSP, is 181.64% and 167.91%, respectively.

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)

On June 6, 2018, the BSP issued Circular No. 1007, covering the implementing guidelines on the
adoption of the Basel III Framework on Liquidity Standards - NSFR. The NSFR limits overreliance
on short-term wholesale funding and promotes enhanced assessment of funding risk across all on- and
off-balance sheet accounts. The NSFR complements the LCR, which promotes short term resilience
of the Bank's liquidity profile. The covered bank shall maintain an NSFR of at least 100.0 percent at
all times. Compliance with this requirement was phased-in effective July 1, 2018, with full
implementation of the minimum NSFR on January 1, 2019.

On March 15, 2019, the BSP issued Circular No. 1034 which approved the extension of the
observation period for the Basel III Framework on Liquidity Standards - NSFR for subsidiary
banks/quasi-banks.

The implementation of the minimum NSFR shall be phased in to help ensure that the covered
banks/QBs can meet the standard through reasonable measures without disrupting credit extension
and financial market activities. In order to facilitate compliance, covered banks/QBs shall undergo an
observation period before the NSFR becomes a minimum requirement. Subsidiary banks/QBs of
U/KBs shall be subject to an NSFR floor of seventy percent (70.00%) during the observation period.
Starting January 1, 2020, the minimum NSFR for subsidiary banks/quasi-banks of universal and
commercial banks (UBs/KBs) shall be 100.00%. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the NSFR as
reported to the BSP is at 125.98% and 139.01%, respectively.

Basel III Countercyclical Capital Buffer
On December 6, 2018, the BSP issued Circular No. 1024 covering the Philippine adoption of the
Basel III Countercyclical Capital Buffer (CCyB) which imposed the following capital buffers:

e (Capital Conservation buffer (CCB) of two and a half percent (2.50%); and

e Countercyclical capital buffer (CCyB) of zero percent (0.00%) subject to upward adjustment to a
rate determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP when systemic conditions warrant but not to
exceed two and a half percent (2.50%). Any increase in the CCyB rate shall be effective 12
months after its announcements. Decreases shall be effective immediately.

The prescribed ratios shall be maintained at all times.
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22. Net Service Fees and Commission Income

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Service Fees and Commission
Income
Credit-related fees and
commissions P1,306,628,705 R1,140,696,592 21,114,725,360
Deposit-related and other fees
received (Note 29) 548,708,615 605,852,203 571,145,496
Trust fees 50,098,509 46,194,120 46,971,038
1,905,435,829 1,792,742,915 1,732,841,894
Service Fees and Commission
Expense
Commissions 83,856,797 59,629,263 45,200,420
Brokerage 6,000,297 5,954,675 6,108,650
89,857,094 65,583,938 51,309,070
Net Service Fees and
Commission Income P1,815,578,735 R1,727,158,977 P1,681,532,824
23. Miscellaneous Income
This account consists of:
2024 2023 2022
Recovery of charged-off assets £295,591,196 P311,361,694 £339,337,767
Insurance commission income 72,774,013 85,545,555 202,199,914
Rental income (Notes 12, 25
and 29) 60,258,207 48,255,017 45,235,373
Others (Notes 9 and 29) 119,354,179 137,698,703 191,002,283
P547,977,595 P582,860,969 R777,775,337

Rental income arises from the lease of investment properties and safety deposit boxes of the Bank.
Rent income on investment properties amounted to £59.1 million, £47.2 million, and £44.1 million in
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Rent income on safety deposit boxes amounted to 1.1 million in
2024 and 2023 and £1.2 million in 2022.

Other miscellaneous income includes renewal fees, checkbook charges, break funding cost and other
miscellaneous income. Accretion of modified loans amounted to £40.1 million, £70.1 million and
£107.0 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively (Note 9).
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24. Retirement Benefits

The Bank has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit plan covering substantially all of its
employees. The benefits are based on years of service and final compensation.

The plan administered by the Retirement Committee is composed of five (5) members appointed by
the BOD of the Bank. The Retirement Committee has all the powers necessary or useful in the
discharge of its duties of administration including, but not limited to determining the rights of
Members under the Plan. The Retirement Committee may adopt such rules and regulations as it
deems necessary and desirable, including those governing the establishment of procedures, the use of
necessary forms, and the setting up of minimum periods where notice is required. The Retirement
Committee may seek advice of counsel, and may appoint an independent accountant to audit the Plan
and actuary to value the plan periodically, whose professional fees and expenses may be charged to
the Fund.

Under the existing regulatory framework, RA No. 7641, Retirement Pay Law, requires a provision for
retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the
entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan.

The date of the latest actuarial valuation is December 31, 2024.

The amounts of pension expense included in ‘Compensation and fringe benefits’ in the statements of
income follow:

2024 2023
Current service cost P267,677,595 P226,594,870
Net interest cost (income) 4,486,598 (25,701,492)

$272,164,193 £200,893,378
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The net retirement liability/retirement asset shown under ‘Other liabilities’/Other assets’ recognized in the Bank’s statements of condition follows (in thousands):

2024
R ements in other comprehensive income
Return on
plan assets Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
. excludin changes changes arisin, changes arisin,
Net benefit cost ¢ amoungt arising fr%m fro%n change% fro%n change%
January 1, Current Net Benefits included in experience in demographic in financial Contribution December 31,
2024 service cost Interest Subtotal paid net interest) adjustments ptions ptions Subtotal by employer 2024
Present value of defined benefit
obligation £3,851,397 $267,678 $222,572 £490,250 #269,373) - £31,359 - (#167,186) (#135,827) - £3,936,447
Fair value of plan assets (3,610,379) — (218,085) (218,085) 269,373 14,946 — — — 14,946 (455,825) (3,999,970)
Net retirement asset (Note 14) £241,018 $267,678 £4,487 $272,165 P P 14,946 £31,359 P (P167,186) (#120,881) (P455,825) (#63,523)
2023
Remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Return on
plan assets Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
(excluding changes changes arising changes arising
Net benefit cost amount arising from from changes from changes
January 1, Current Net Benefits included in experience in demographic in financial Contribution December 31,
2023 service cost Interest Subtotal paid net interest) adjustments assumptions assumptions Subtotal by employer 2023
Present value of defined benefit
obligation P3,184,063 P226,595 P215,671 P442,266 (P243,768) P P48.,880 P £419,956 P468,836 P P3,851,397
Fair value of plan assets (3.387473) — (241,373) (241,373) 243,76 38,699 — — 38,699 (264,000) (3,610,379)
Net retirement liability (Note 19) (P203.410) P226,595 (P25,702) £200,893 P P38,699 P48.880 P £419.956 P507,535 (P264.,000) P241,018

The maximum economic benefit available is a combination of expected refunds from the plan and reductions in future contributions.

The Bank expects to contribute £264.9 million to its noncontributory defined benefit plan in 2025.




-80 -

The fair values of plan assets by each class as at the statements of condition date are as follows:

2024 2023

Investment in debt securities
Government B2,690,915,727 $2,451,193,421
Private 700,006,391 920,955,224
Special deposit account 446,377,610 85,080,009
Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) 40,245,085 44,473,708
Investment in equity securities 99,316,495 88,278,813
Other assets 26,555,952 23,509,325
4,003,417,260 3,613,490,500
Other liabilities 3,447,387 3,111,617
£3,999,969,873 £3,610,378,883

The person exercising voting right for the foregoing equity instruments is currently a senior

officer of the Bank.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement liability as of December 31,

2024 and 2023 are shown below:

2024 2023
Discount rate 6.12% 6.06%
Turnover rate 3.63%,10.23%  3.63%, 10.23%
Future salary increases 5.50% 6.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

December 31, 2024

December 31,2023

Possible Increase Possible Increase
Fluctuations (decrease) Fluctuations (decrease)
Discount rate +1.00% (P255,515,760) +1.00% (B273,484,652)
-1.00% 286,976,419 -1.00% 309,243,597
Turnover rate +1.00% (28,772,009) +1.00% (41,410,835)
-1.00% 31,952,822 -1.00% 46,374,122
Future salary increase rate +1.00% 304,782,425 +1.00% 325,011,656
-1.00% (275,809,790) -1.00% (292,242,782)

The Retirement Committee ensures that there will be sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as
they fall due and maintains the plan on an actuarially sound basis considering the benefits to

members.

Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2024 2023
Less than one year P352,484,510 £331,506,031
One to less than five years 1,887,979,250 1,611,315,196
Five to less than 10 years 2,500,669,586 2,435,184,665
10 to less than 15 years 2,997,019,022 3,182,649,515
15 to less than 20 years 1,925,401,359 2,463,811,385
20 years and above 1,713,674,949 1,993,633,106
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The average duration of the expected benefit payments at the statement of condition date is
8.79 years.

25.

Leases

The Bank leases the premises occupied by its branches for periods ranging from 1 to 30 years
renewable under certain terms and conditions. Various lease contracts include escalation clauses,
most of which bear an annual rent increase of 10.00%.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included in ‘Other
Liabilities’ in Note 19) are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P£1,181,200,923 £1,322,931,895
Additions 451,270,041 312,921,930
Accretion of interest 80,201,164 78,902,394
Payments (522,142,339) (533,555,296)

P£1,190,529,789 £1,181,200,923

The Bank recognized interest expense on lease liabilities (included in ‘Interest expense’ in the
statements of income) amounting to £80.2 million, £78.9 million and £79.9 million in 2024, 2023
and 2022, respectively, rent expense from short-term leases and leases of low-value assets amounting
(included in ‘Occupancy and equipment-related costs’ in the statements of income) to £127.8 million
in 2024, 2111.9 million in 2023 and 116.2 million in 2022.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2024 2023
Within one year P481,051,172 P428,533,488
After one year but not more than five years 797,059,051 822,505,612
More than five years 77,561,045 110,940,089

P1,355,671,268 $£1,361,979,189

The Bank has also entered into commercial property leases on its surplus office space. These
non-cancelable leases have remaining non-cancelable lease terms between 1 and 5 years. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, there is no contingent rental income. Rental income of the Bank
related to these property leases amounting to £59.1 million, 47.2 million, and £44.1 million in 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively are shown under ‘Miscellaneous income’ in the statements of income
(Notes 12 and 23).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2024 2023
Within one year P56,510,721 P17,577,256
After one year but not more than five years 114,302,499 20,901,344

£170,813,220 38,478,600
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26. Miscellaneous Expenses

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Information technology (Note 29) £479,504,386 P424,653,503 £407,689,037
Insurance (Note 29) 344,301,873 388,308,751 453,534,299
Litigation 273,379,634 242,115,429 429,974,439
Repairs and maintenance (Note 12) 123,423,586 116,111,217 171,424,078
Communications 121,314,009 134,362,180 147,148,701
Transportation and traveling 63,572,316 57,354,683 52,967,086
Advertising 52,213,710 52,841,936 22,092,410
Supervision and examination fees 50,165,101 73,281,388 75,405,438
Stationery and supplies 49,749,544 41,097,311 82,824,439
Training and seminars 19,465,802 14,607,368 26,880,748
Management and professional fees 18,174,426 25,393,062 25,473,105
Banking activities expenses 12,800,975 12,585,850 9,360,794
Donations and charitable 11,528,000 11,148,601 7,122,605

contributions

Fines, penalties and other charges 5,545,657 86,521,098 206,509,947
Membership fees and dues 4,373,086 2,937,377 2,699,211
Others 12,752,207 7,526,954 9,614,270

P£1,642,264,312 P1,690,846,708 P2,130,720,607

Insurance expense includes premiums paid to the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC)
amounting to £344.3 million, £388.3 million, and £429.2 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Other expenses include entertainment, amusement and recreation (EAR), rewards and incentives,
meeting allowance, sponsorship expenses, home free loan expenses, appraisal fees and notarial
fees. These also include payments to union members amounting to £10.0 million, £9.5 million and
£9.4 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, for the successful completion of the collective
bargaining agreement.

27.

Income and Other Taxes

Under Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as ‘Taxes and
licenses’ in the statements of income) as well as income taxes. Percentage and other taxes paid
consist principally of gross receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax (DST). Income taxes
include corporate income tax, further discussed below, and final taxes paid at the rate of 20.00%,
which is a final withholding tax on gross interest income from government securities and other
deposit substitutes.

On March 26, 2021, RA No. 11534, otherwise known as Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for
Enterprises (CREATE) Act was signed into law. CREATE reduced the RCIT rate from 30.00% to
25.00% effective July 1, 2020. With the implementation of this Act, the allowable deduction for
interest expense was reduced from 33% to 20.00% of the interest income subject to final tax.

The regulations also provide for MCIT of 2.00% (prior to CREATE) and 1.00% from (July 1, 2020 to
June 30, 2023 before reverting to 2.00%) on modified gross income and allow a NOLCO. The MCIT
and NOLCO may be applied against the Bank’s income tax liability and taxable income, respectively,
over a three-year period from the year of inception. For the taxable years 2020, 2021 and 2022, the
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NOLCO incurred can be carried over as a deduction for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years,
pursuant to Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 25-2020.

Starting July 1, 2008, the Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) equivalent to 40.00% of gross income
may be claimed as an alternative deduction in computing for the RCIT. The Bank elected to claim
itemized expense deductions instead of the OSD in computing for the RCIT in 2024 and 2023.

Current tax regulations also provide for the ceiling on the amount of EAR expense that can be
claimed as a deduction against taxable income. Under the regulations, EAR expense allowed as a
deductible expense for a service company is limited to the actual EAR paid or incurred but not to
exceed 1.00% of net revenue.

FCDU offshore income (income from non-residents) is tax-exempt while gross onshore income
(income from residents) is subject to 10.00% income tax. In addition, interest income on deposit
placements with other FCDUs and OBUs is taxed at 15.00% in 2024 and 2023. Under current tax
regulations, the income derived by the FCDU from foreign currency transactions with non-residents,
OBUs, local commercial banks, including branches of foreign banks, is tax-exempt while interest
income on foreign currency loans from residents other than OBUs or other depository banks under
the expanded system is subject to 10.00% income tax.

Provision for income tax consists of:

2024 2023 2022

Current:
Final tax £695,239.876 £1,131,814,810 £709,425,111
Current income tax 125,068,229 76,759,110 73,891,205
820,308,105 1,208,573,920 783,316,316
Deferred (91,120,738) (850,610,415) 335,219,072

P729,187,367 P357,963,505 PI1,118,535,388

Net deferred tax assets consist of the following tax effects:

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets on:

Allowance for credit and impairment losses P1,053,726,274 £952,022,697
Retirement benefit obligation 346,171,389 376,391,576
Unamortized pension cost contribution 140,308,708 149,120,044

Accumulated depreciation of assets foreclosed
or dacioned 107,421,228 103,472,613
Net effect of lease liabilities and ROU assets 45,863,734 48,590,683
Loan modification 18,670,332 21,513,010
Net unrealized gain on fair value of FVOCI 6,073,967 3,867,981

1,718,235,632 1,654,978,604

Deferred tax liabilities on:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (1,237,234) 334,414
Net unrealized gain on investment properties (398,490,237) (397,705,408)
(399,727,471) (397,370,994)
£1,318,508,161 £1,257,607,610
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank did not recognize deferred tax assets on allowance for
credit and impairment losses amounting to £0.74 million and £2,709 million, respectively. Income
tax effect credited (debited) in OCI amounted to (30.2 million), £126.9 million, and £38.5 million in
2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

The Bank believes that it is not reasonably probable that the tax benefits of these temporary
differences will be realized in the future.

Details of the excess MCIT over RCIT credits of the Bank follow:

Amount Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year

2021 P34,998,663 P34,998,663 P 2024
2022 35,228,014 35,228,014 - 2025
2024 23,706,870 - 23,706,870 2027
P93,933,547 P70,226,677 P23,706,870 -

The reconciliation between the statutory income tax and effective income tax follows (in thousands):

2024 2023 2022
Statutory income tax P1,484,407 P1,222,256 P£1,199,241
Tax effects of:
Change in deferred tax assets
and others (748,115) (851,611) 6,407
Non-taxable, tax-paid and tax-
exempt income (199,081) (307,780) (245,782)
Nondeductible expenses 177,000 306,566 233,564
FCDU income 14,976 (11,467) (74,895)
Effective income tax £729,187 P357,964 P1,118,535

28. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents information used to calculate basic EPS:

2024 2023 2022
a. Net income P5,208,442,415 P4,531,061,864 P3,678,428,259
b. Weighted average number of
common shares for basic
earnings per share 426,859,416 426,859,416 426,859,416
c. Basic/Diluted EPS (a/b) 12.20 10.61 8.62

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, there were no potential common shares with dilutive effect
on the basic EPS of the Bank.
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29. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
The Bank’s related parties are as follows:

e Bank’s Directors, Officers, Stockholders and their Related Interests (DOSRI) as defined per
BSP’s existing DOSRI rules and regulations;

e Close Family Members (i.e., second degree relatives) of the Bank’s Directors, Officers with rank
of SVP and up, and Individual Substantial Stockholders;

e Bank’s Subsidiaries and Affiliates as defined per BSP’s existing rules and regulations on lending
to subsidiaries and affiliates;

e Any party that the Bank exerts direct or indirect control over or that exerts direct or indirect
control over the Bank;

e Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) of any party that the Bank exerts
direct or indirect control over or that exerts direct or indirect control over the Bank;

e Corresponding Persons in Affiliated Companies as defined in the Bank's Related Party
Transaction (RPT) Policy; and

e Any natural person or juridical entity whose interest may pose potential conflict with the Bank’s
interest.

The Bank has several business relationships with related parties. The terms of the transactions with
such parties are listed below on substantially the same terms, including interest and collateral, as
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties, and are usually settled in
cash. These transactions also did not involve more than the nominal risk of collectability or present
other unfavorable conditions.

Transactions with the Retirement Plan

On December 20, 2012, the SEC issued Memorandum Circular No. 12 providing for guidelines on
the disclosure of transactions with retirement benefit funds. Under said circular, a reporting entity
shall disclose information about any transaction with a related party (retirement fund, in this case) and
outstanding balances necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on the
financial statements.

Under PFRS Accounting Standards, certain post-employment benefit plans are considered as related
parties. The Bank has business relationships with its retirement plan pursuant to which it provides
trust and management services to the said plan. The retirement plan of the employees of the Bank is
being managed and maintained by the Trust Division of the Bank. The total fair value of the
retirement fund as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to 4.0 billion and £3.6 billion,
respectively. The details of the assets of the fund as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are disclosed in
Note 24.

The following table shows the amount of outstanding balances of related party transactions of the
Bank with the retirement plan of the employees of the Bank as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Elements of Transaction
Related Party Nature of Transaction Statement of Condition Statement of Income
Philippine Savings Bank Savings Deposit P17,827,917 P-
Investment in Money Market Fund* 40,245,085 -
Income from UITF** - 1,775,901
Interest income - 17,250
First Metro ETF Equity investment*** 23,417,750 -

*Includes fair value gains of 2.4 million
**Includes fair value gains of 0.5 million
***Includes fair value loss of 0.9 million
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2023
Elements of Transaction
Related Party Nature of Transaction Statement of Condition Statement of Income
Philippine Savings Bank Savings Deposit P5,081,077 P-
Investment in Money Market Fund* 44,473,708 -
Income from UITF** - 1,913,824
Interest income - 15,523
First Metro ETF Equity investment*** 25,255,881 -

*Includes fair value gains of 2.0 million
**Includes fair value loss of 1.5 million
***Includes fair value loss of 1.7 million

Transactions relating to the Bank’s retirement plan are approved by its Retirement Committee. The
voting right over the investments in the Bank’s capital stocks is exercised by a member of the
Retirement Committee as approved by all members of the Retirement Committee, whom are senior
officers of the Bank.

Remunerations of Directors and Other Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the
members of the Management Committee to constitute key management personnel for purposes of
PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

Total remunerations of key management personnel (covering assistant vice presidents and up)
included under ‘Compensation and fringe benefits’ in the statements of income are as follows:

2024 2023
Short-term employee benefits £392,774,784 399,163,834
Post-employment pension benefits 7,185,126 2,694,653

£399,959,910 P401,858,487

Short-term employee benefits include salaries and other non-monetary benefits.

Remunerations given to directors, as approved by the Board Remuneration Committee, amounted to
£17.3 million, £19.1 million, and £21.5 million in 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

The Bank also provides banking services to directors and other key management personnel and
persons connected to them.

Other Related Party Transactions

Other related party transactions of the Bank by category of related party are presented below. The
following tables show the amount and outstanding balances included in the financial statements (in
thousands):

December 31, 2024

Amount/ Outstanding

Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions
Parent Company
Due from other banks P£165,388 P£1,294,442  Short term peso and foreign-currency denominated deposits with
fixed rates ranging from 0.05% to 5.00%
Financial assets at amortized cost - 60,000 Pledged for security of payroll account with MBTC
Interbank call loans receivable — Peso denominated lending with fixed interest rate ranging from
Placements - 5.94% to 6.59% maturities ranging from 1 to 5 days, secured
Maturities - Php 0.00
Accounts receivable (444) 2,980 Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non-
interest bearing; no impairment
Miscellaneous assets 856 1,713  Security deposits on lease contracts
Miscellaneous liabilities 8,695 12,253  Advance payments of security deposits from various tenants

(Forward)
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December 31, 2024
Amount/ Outstanding

Category Volume Balance Nature, Terms and Conditions

Deposit liabilities - £53,698 Short term peso and foreign-currency denominated deposits

Accrued other expense payable 16,182 41,485 Outstanding information technology expense payable

Interest income 94,208 — Income on deposits and interbank call loans receivables

Rental income 23,183 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms ranging

from 1 to 5 years

Rent expense 2,338 — Payment of rent

Information technology expense 165,206 — Payment of information technology transactions

Interest expense 6,938 — Interest from bills payable

Securities transactions
Outright purchases 24,187,700 —  Outright purchase of FVOCI investments

Joint Venture

Investment in a joint venture 48,188 892,037 Outstanding balance of capital investment in SMFC

Dividends from joint venture 32,701 — Dividends from SMFC

Accounts receivable 779 1,064 Outstanding rental and utility receivables, non-interest bearing

Deposit liabilities (158,225) 230,826 Demand and short-term peso time deposits with annual fixed rates

0f 0.25% to 5.75%

Accrued interest payable 818 818 Interest payable on deposit liabilities

Miscellaneous liabilities 2,679 10,540 Advance payment of security deposits

Rental income 18,855 — Income from leasing agreements

Interest expense 22,830 — Interest on deposit liabilities

Other Related Parties (DOSRI/Indirect)

Receivable from customers 1,120,495 Peso denominated lending which earn 5.04% to 6.00% with
Placements - — maturity terms from 1 to 15 years (excluding key personnel); mostly
Maturities (20,587) — unsecured, with ECL

Miscellaneous assets (1,430) 2,708 Security deposits

Accounts receivable 1,711 2,756 Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non

interest bearing

Prepaid insurance 667 4,893 Payment of various motor car vehicles, fire, money, security,

payroll and robbery insurance

Deposit liabilities (1,773,070) 1,994,042 Demand, savings and short-term peso and foreign currency time

deposits with fixed rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.88%

Accrued other expense payable - 446 Outstanding group life insurance

Accrued interest payable 5,462 5,462 Interest payable on deposit liabilities

Accounts payable 661 206 Various personal and car insurance payable

Miscellaneous liabilities 2,101 6,878 Advance payment of security deposits

Rental income 11,745 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms

Miscellaneous income 21,851 — Miscellaneous income from insurance

Insurance expense 53,370 — Payment of insurance premium

Interest expense 313,314 — Interest on deposit liabilities

Rent expense 222 — Payment of rent expense to various lessors

Securities transactions
Outright purchases 3,160,000 —  Outright purchase of Financial Assets at amortized cost

Key Personnel

Receivables from customers 14,151 Unsecured, no impairment, with annual
Availments 3,067 — fixed interest rates of 3.00% to 6.00%

Maturities 2,830 — and maturities ranging from 1 to 15 years

Interest income 1,193 — Interest income from loans

December 31, 2023
Amount/ Outstanding

Category Volume Balance  Nature, Terms and Conditions

Parent Company

Due from other banks (R462,999) P1,129,054 Short term peso and foreign-currency denominated deposits with

fixed rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.00%
Financial assets at amortized cost - 60,000 Pledged for security of payroll account with MBTC
Interbank call loans receivable — Peso denominated lending with fixed interest rate ranging from
Placements 27,000,000 6.19% to 6.41% maturities ranging from 1 to 5 days, secured -
Maturities (27,000,000) Php 0.00

Accounts receivable 2,118 3,424  Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non-

interest bearing; no impairment

Miscellaneous assets 857 857  Security deposits on lease contracts

Miscellaneous liabilities 1,189 3,558 Advance payments of security deposits from various tenants

Deposit liabilities - 36,782  Short term peso and foreign-currency denominated deposits

Accrued other expense payable (128,137) 25,303 Outstanding information technology expense payable

Interest income 9,717 Income on deposits and interbank call loans receivables

Rental income 9,039 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms ranging

from 1 to 5 years

Rent expense 122 — Payment of rent

Information technology expense 112,411 — Payment of information technology transactions

Securities transactions

(Forward)
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December 31, 2023

Amount/ Outstanding
Category Volume Balance  Nature, Terms and Conditions
Joint Venture
Investment in a joint venture P27,564 P843,849 Outstanding balance of capital investment in SMFC
Dividends from joint venture 57,600 — Dividends from SMFC
Accounts receivable (716) 285 Outstanding rental and utility receivables, non-interest bearing
Deposit liabilities 313,170 389,051  Short term peso time-deposits deposits with annual fixed rates

ranging from 5.50% to 5.75%
Miscellaneous liabilities - 7,861  Advance payment of security deposits
Rental income 12,204 — Income from leasing agreements
Interest expense 20 — Interest on deposit liabilities

Other Related Parties (DOSRI/Indirect)
Receivable from customers 1,141,082  Peso denominated lending with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to

Placements 950,000 4.83% with maturity terms of 14 days to 5 years (excluding key
Maturities (951,433) - personnel); mostly unsecured, with ECL
Miscellaneous assets 4,138 4,138  Security deposits
Accounts receivable 372 1,045 Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non-
interest bearing
Prepaid insurance (2,220) 4,226 Payment of various motor car vehicles, fire, money, security, payroll
and robbery insurance
Deposit liabilities 225,907 3,767,112 Demand, savings and short-term peso and foreign currency time
deposits with fixed rates ranging from 0.00% to 2.00%
Accrued other expense payable (705) 446  Outstanding group life insurance
Accounts payable (8,304) (455) Various personal and car insurance payable
Miscellaneous liabilities 2,905 4,777  Advance payment of security deposits
Rental income 42,771 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms
Insurance expense 29,846 — Payment of insurance premium
Interest expense 244 — Interest on deposit liabilities
Rent expense 165 — Payment of rent expense to various lessors
Securities transactions
Outright purchases 236,792 —  Outright purchase of Financial Assets at amortized cost

Key Personnel

Receivables from customers 13,914  Unsecured, no impairment, with annual
Availments 2,975 — fixed interest rates of 6.00%
Maturities (557) — and maturities ranging from 2 to 10 years
Interest income 1,038 — Interest income from loans

December 31, 2022

Amount/ Outstanding

Category Volume Balance  Nature, Terms and Conditions

Parent Company

Due from other banks P485,169 P1,592,053 Short term peso and foreign-currency denominated deposits with
fixed rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.00%

Financial assets at amortized cost 60,000 60,000 Pledge for security of payroll account with MBTC in 2022

Financial assets at FVOCI (59,718) — Pledge for security of payroll account with MBTC in 2021

Accounts receivable (payable) (4,483) 1,306  Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non-
interest bearing; no impairment

Miscellaneous assets (1,948) —  Security deposits on lease contracts

Miscellaneous liabilities (3,550) 2,369 Advance payments of security deposits from various tenants

Accrued other expense payable 63,037 153,440 Outstanding information technology expense payable, charges on
current and savings accounts processing

Rental income 13,056 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms ranging
from 2 to 5 years

Information technology expense 121,493 — Payment of information technology transactions

Trading and security loss 4 — Loss from securities transactions

Securities transactions

Outright purchases 5,576,850 —  Outright purchase of FVTPL, AC and FVOCI investments
Outright sales (104,000) —  Outright sale of FVTPL and FVOCI investments

Joint Venture

Investment in a joint venture 53,359 816,285 Outstanding balance of capital investment in SMFC

Dividends from joint venture 30,059 — Dividends from SMFC

Accounts receivable 96 1,001 Outstanding rental and utility receivables, non-interest bearing

Deposit liabilities 61,881 75,881 Demand and short-term peso time-deposits deposits with annual

fixed rates of 1.25%
Miscellaneous liabilities - 7,861  Advance payment of security deposits
Rental income 17,876 — Income from leasing agreements

Interest expense 28 — Interest on deposit liabilities
(Forward)
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December 31, 2022

Amount/ Outstanding

Category Volume Balance  Nature, Terms and Conditions

Other Related Parties (DOSRI/Indirect)

Receivable from customers P P1,142,515  Peso denominated lending which earns 3.00% to 7.50% fixed daily
Placements 955,000 — interest rate with maturity terms ranging from 14 days to 10 years
Maturities 967,797 —  (excluding key personnel); mostly unsecured, with ECL

Miscellaneous assets (2,949) — 3 months advance security deposits

Accounts receivable (1,112) 673 Outstanding ATM service fees, rental and utility receivables, non-

interest bearing

Prepaid expense (5,782) 6,446  Payment of various motor car vehicles, fire, money, security, payroll

and robbery insurance

Deposit liabilities (4,418,680) 3,541,205 Demand, savings and short-term peso and foreign currency time

deposits with fixed rates ranging from 0.00% to 2.00%

Accrued other expense payable - 1,151 Outstanding group life insurance

Accounts payable 7,480 7,849  Various personal and car insurance payable

Miscellaneous liabilities - 1,872 Advance payment of security deposits from various tenants

Interest income 47,171 — Income on receivables from customers and interbank call loans

receivables

Trading and securities loss 43 — Gain from securities transactions

Rental income 8,100 — Income from leasing agreements with various lease terms

Bank commission 437 — Commission income on ATM service fees

Miscellaneous income 937 — Service income received from insourcing agreements

Insurance expense 52,758 — Payment of insurance premium

Interest expense 541 — Interest on deposit liabilities

Rent expense (65) — Payment of rent expense to various lessors

Securities transactions
Outright purchases 2,000,000 —  Outright purchase of FVTPL and FVOCI investments
Outright sales (150,000) —  Outright sale of FVTPL and FVOCI investments

Key Personnel
Receivables from customers - 11,496 Unsecured, no impairment, with annual fixed interest rates
Availments 2,864 —  6.00% and maturities ranging from 2 to 10 years

Maturities (2,436) -
Interest income 1,032 — Interest income from loans

30.

Trust Operations

Securities and other resources held by the Bank in fiduciary or agency capacity for its customers are
not included in the accompanying statements of condition since these are not assets of the Bank.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank deposited government securities with carrying value of
£119.5 million and £123.9 million, respectively, in compliance with trust regulations (Note 8).

In compliance with existing banking regulations, the Bank transferred from surplus to surplus reserve
the amount of 2.8 million and 2.4 million, which corresponds to 10.00% of the net income realized
from the Bank’s Trust Department in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

31.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of the Bank's operations, there are various outstanding commitments and
contingent liabilities such as guarantees and commitments to extend credit, which are not reflected in
the accompanying financial statements. The Bank, however, does not anticipate significant losses as
a result of these transactions.
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Commitments and Contingencies

The following is a summary of the Bank’s commitments and contingent liabilities at their equivalent

peso contractual amounts:

2024 2023
Trust department accounts (Note 30) P10,249,018,666 $9,295,113,015
Stand-by credit lines 79,885,313 41,100,000
Spot foreign exchange and contracts sale 28,922,500 27,685,000
Late deposits/payments received - 290,311
Items held for safekeeping 258,875 215,511
Others 49,957 57,244

Also, several suits and claims, on behalf of or against the Bank in relation to its banking operations
and labor-related cases are pending before the courts and quasi-judicial bodies. The Bank and its
legal counsel believe that any losses arising from suits and claims which are not specifically provided

for will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

32.

Notes to Statements of Cash Flows

The following is a summary of principal non-cash activities that relate to the analysis of the

statements of cash flows:

2024 2023 2022

Additions to chattel mortgage in

settlement of loans (Note 14) £3,922,282,431 £2,320,586,633 £1,978,930,122
Additions to investment properties in

settlement of loans (Note 12) 472,856,965 660,520,059 1,438,182,517
Recognition of right-of-use assets

(Note 11) and lease liabilities

(Note 25) 451,270,041 312,921,930 523,368,707
Fair value changes in financial assets

at FVOCI (Note 8) (29,502,025) 119,107,530 (38,369,287)
Cumulative translation adjustment 12,638 399 (756,081)

The table below provides for the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in 2024 and

2023 (in millions):

Total Liabilities
Bills Bonds Lease from Financing
Payable Payable Liabilities Activities
January 1, 2024 P272 £1,181 £1,453
Cash flows from availments 2,175 - - 2,175
Cash flows from settlement (2,447) - (522) (2,969)
Others - - 532 532
December 31, 2024 P- P- £1,191 £1,191
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Total Liabilities

Bills Bonds Lease from Financing

Payable Payable Liabilities Activities

January 1, 2023 P1,186 P4,648 P1,323 P7,157

Cash flows from availments 5,068 - - 5,068
Cash flows from settlement (5,982) (4,650) (534) (11,166)

Others - 2 392 394

December 31, 2023 P272 P PL,181 P1,453

Others include amortization of bills payable and bonds payable, additions to lease liabilities, and
accretion and termination of lease liabilities.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank recognized allowance for credit losses from ‘Due from
other banks’ amounting to £1.5 million and £1.2 million, respectively.

33.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

PFRS 7 requires the Bank to disclose information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreements or similar arrangements. The effects of these arrangements are disclosed in the

succeeding table.

Financial assets

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no derivative assets.

December 31, 2024

Effect of remaining rights of
set-off (including rights to set-
off financial collateral) that

Gross Net do not meet PAS 32 offsetting
offset in pr d in criteria
Gross carrying accordance with statement of Fair value of
Financial assets recognized amounts (before the offsetting condition Financial financial Net exposure
at the end of reporting offsetting) criteria [a-b] instruments collateral [e-d]
period by type [a] [b] [c] [d] [e]
SPURA (Note 7) - - - - - P
December 31, 2023
Effect of remaining rights of
set-off (including rights to set-
off financial collateral) that
Gross amounts Net amount do not meet PAS 32 offsetting
offset in presented in criteria
Gross carrying accordance with statement of Fair value of
Financial assets recognized amounts (before the offsetting condition Financial financial Net exposure
at the end of reporting offsetting) criteria [a-b] instruments collateral [e-d]
period by type [a] [b] [c] [d] [e]
SPURA (Note 7) £6,989,635,680 P £6,989,635,680 P £6,989,635,680 P

Financial liabilities

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no outstanding foreign currency swaps and forwards.

December 31, 2024

Effect of remaining rights of
set-off (including rights to set-
off financial collateral) that

Gross Net t do not meet PAS 32 offsetting
offset in pr din criteria
Gross carrying accordance with statement of Fair value of
Financial assets recognized amounts (before the offsetting condition Financial financial Net exposure
at the end of reporting offsetting) criteria [a-b] instruments collateral [c-d]
period by type [a] [b] [c] [d] [e]
SSURA (Note 17) - - P - P -
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December 31, 2023

Effect of remaining rights of
set-off (including rights to set-
off financial collateral) that

Gross amounts Net amount do not meet PAS 32 offsetting
offset in presented in criteria
Gross carrying accordance with statement of Fair value of
Financial assets recognized amounts (before the offsetting condition Financial financial Net exposure
at the end of reporting offsetting) criteria [a-b] instruments collateral [e-d]
period by type [a] [b] [c] [d] [e]
SSURA (Note 17) P271,896.461 P P271,896.461 P P271,896.461 P

34.

Subsequent Events

Cash Dividend Declaration

On January 16, 2025, the BOD of the Bank approved the declaration of a 7.50% regular cash
dividend for the fourth quarter of 2024 for stockholders on record as of February 3, 2025
amounting to £320.1 million or £0.75 per share, to be paid on February 17, 2025.

35.

Approval for the Release of the Financial Statements

The accompanying comparative financial statements by the Bank were authorized for issue by the
BOD on February 20, 2025.

36.

Supplementary Information Required Under Section 174 of the Manual of Regulations for
Banks (MORB)

Financial Performance
The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Bank:

2024 2023 2022
Return on average equity 12.36% 11.72% 10.21%
Return on average assets 2.29% 1.80% 1.40%
Net interest margin on average
earning assets 6.00% 5.18% 4.66%
Current ratio 20.09% 48.89% 62.41%
Debt-to-equity ratio 3.91:1 4.94:1 6.11:1
Asset-to-equity ratio 4.91:1 5.94:1 7.11:1
Interest rate coverage ratio 2.30:1 1.84:1 2.52:1

Capital Instruments Issued
The Bank considers common stock as capital instruments eligible as Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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Significant Credit Exposures as to Industry/Economic Sector

Loan concentration as to economic activity follows (gross of unearned discounts, modification loss

and allowance for credit losses):

2024 % 2023 %
Activities of households as employers and
undifferentiated goods-and-services producing
activities of households for own use $92,786,857,517 64.45% £77,667,226,340 62.03%
Real estate activities 38,835,820,396 26.98% 36,589,283,371 29.22%
Wholesale and retail trade, repair of motor vehicles
and motorcycles 3,110,538,171 2.16% 2,345,575,404 1.88%
Financial and insurance 1,239,899,254 0.86% 1,435,041,015 1.16%
Transportation and storage 982,491,678 0.68% 1,014,270,488 0.81%
Electricity, gas, steam and air-conditioning supply 920,106,743 0.64% 894,812,501 0.71%
Construction 735,228,153 0.51% 607,830,158 0.49%
Manufacturing 697,689,888 0.48% 564,461,629 0.45%
Accommodation and food service activities 291,754,290 0.20% 194,468,882 0.16%
Administrative and support service activities 288,086,340 0.20% 313,279,519 0.25%
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 186,258,606 0.13% 75,789,773 0.06%
Education 182,850,945 0.13% 130,242,629 0.10%
Professional, scientific and technical activities 140,749,477 0.10% 150,632,271 0.12%
Information and communication 88,713,932 0.06% 95,851,435 0.08%
Human health and social work activities 84,219,024 0.06% 90,240,508 0.07%
Arts, entertainment and recreation 79,791,327 0.06% 78,518,459 0.06%
Water supply, sewerage, waste management and
remediation activities 62,903,638 0.04% 65,529,418 0.05%
Mining and quarrying 4,981,931 0.00% 5,659,929 0.00%
Others 3,249,948,131 2.26% 2,883,292,726 2.30%
£143,968,889,441 100.00%  P125,202,006,455 100.00%

Others relate to other service activities including the activities of membership organizations, repair of
computers, personal and household goods and a variety of personal service activities not covered

elsewhere in the classification above.

Breakdowns of Total Loans as to Security

The breakdown of loans and receivables from customers (gross of unearned discounts, modification
loss and allowance for credit losses) as to secured and unsecured and as to type of security follows:

2024 % 2023 %
Secured by:
Chattel P68,038,515,264 47.26%  P59,765,850,197 47.74%
Real estate 33,098,088,594 22.99% 30,985,023,151 24.75%
Deposit hold-out 500,495,894 0.35% 597,581,973 0.48%
101,637,099,752 70.60% 91,348,455,321 72.96%
Unsecured 42,331,789,689 29.40% 33,853,551,134 27.04%
P143,968,889,441 100.00%  P125202,006,455 100.00%
Breakdown of Total Loans as to Status
Details of non-performing loans (NPL) follow:
2024 2023
Secured P2,595,185,248 £3,240,010,197
Unsecured 1,140,410,717 1,157,125,833
P3,735,595,965 £4,397,136,030
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Generally, NPLs refer to loans, investments, receivables, or any financial asset, even without any
missed contractual payments, that satisfy any of the following conditions:

Impaired under existing accounting standards;

Classified as doubtful or loss;

In litigation, and/or;

There is evidence that full repayment of principal and interest is unlikely without foreclosure of
collateral, if any.

el

All other loans, even if not considered impaired, shall be considered non-performing if any principal
and/or interest are:

1. Unpaid for more than ninety (90) days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more
than ninety (90) days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement.

2. Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characteristics shall be considered
non-performing after contractual due date or after it has become past due.

3. Restructured loans shall be considered non-performing. However, if prior to restructuring, the
loans were categorized as performing, such classification shall be retained.

The NPLs of the Bank not fully covered by allowance for credit losses follow:

2024 2023

Total NPLs P3,735,595,965 £4,397,136,030
Less NPLs fully covered by allowance for credit

losses 435,552,212 1,040,506,478

£3,300,043,753  £3,356,629,552

Restructured loans as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to £63.1 million and

P155.2 million, respectively. The Bank’s loan portfolio includes non-risk loans as defined under
BSP regulations totaling £0.5 billion and £0.6 billion as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Information on Related Party Loans

As required under existing BSP rules and regulations, the Bank discloses loans and other credit
accommodations granted to its DOSRI. These loans and other credit accommodations were made
substantially on the same terms as with other individuals and businesses of comparable risks and were
subject of prior BOD approval and entailing BSP reportorial requirements.

Existing banking regulations also limit the total amount of credit exposure to each of the Bank’s
DOSRISs, at least 70.00% of which must be secured, to the total of their respective deposits and book
value of their respective unencumbered deposits and, if any, book value of their respective paid-in
capital contribution in the Bank. In the aggregate, the Bank’s total credit exposure to all its DOSRIs
should not exceed its net worth or 15.00% of its total loan portfolio, whichever is lower, with any
unsecured portion thereof not exceeding the lower between 30.00% of the aggregate limit or of the
total actual exposure. However, loans and other credit accommodations to DOSRIs that are secured
by assets considered by the BSP as non-risk are exempt from these ceilings. As of December 31,
2024 and 2023, the Bank's credit exposures to DOSRI are within the said regulatory limits.
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BSP Circular No. 423 dated March 15, 2004, as amended by BSP Circular No. 914 dated

June 23, 2016, provide the rules and regulations governing credit exposures to DOSRI. The
following table shows information relating to the loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees
classified as DOSRI accounts under regulations existing prior to BSP Circular No. 423 and new
DOSRI loans and other credit accommodations granted under said circular as of December 31, 2024

and 2023 (in thousands):

2024 2023
DOSRI Related DOSRI Related
Loans Party Loans Loans Party Loans
Total outstanding loans P186,375 P1,121,375 R191,082 £1,146,082
Percent of DOSRI/Related Party loans to total loan
portfolio 0.13% 0.78% 0.17% 1.03%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI/Related Party loans to
total DOSRI/Related Party loans 98.57% 99.76% 98.35% 99.73%
Percent of past-due DOSRI /Related Party loans to
total DOSRI/Related Party loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of non-performing DOSRI/Related Party
loans to total DOSRI /Related Party loans 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total interest income from DOSRI loans amounted to £11.2 million in 2024, £3.9 million in 2023

and P4.6 million 2022.

Aggregate Amount of Secured Liabilities and Assets Pledged as Security

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, investment securities at amortized cost include Bureau of
Treasury bonds pledged by the Bank to MBTC to secure its payroll account with the Bank, with total

carrying value of £63.2 million and £60.0 million, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

The following is a summary of the Bank’s commitments and contingent liabilities at their equivalent

peso contractual amounts:

2024 2023
Trust department accounts (Note 30) P10,249,018,666 $9,295,113,015
Stand-by credit lines 79,885,313 41,100,000
Spot foreign exchange and contracts sale 28,922,500 27,685,000
Late deposits/payments received - 290,311
Items held for safekeeping 258,875 215,511
Others 49,957 57,244

37.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under
No. 15-2010

Revenue Regulations (RR)

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 to amend certain provisions of RR
No. 21-2002. The regulations provide that starting 2010, the notes to financial statements shall
include information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.
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The Bank reported and/or paid the following types of taxes for the year:

Taxes and Licenses
For the taxable year ended December 31, 2024, taxes and licenses of the Bank consist of:

Gross receipts tax £909,564,947
Documentary stamps tax 519,580,940
Local taxes 84,232,538
Fringe benefit tax 7,598,998
£1,520,977,423
Withholding Taxes
As of December 31, 2024, total remittances and balance of withholding taxes are as follows:
Total

Remittances Balance
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits £457,223,405 £22.939,051
Final withholding taxes 728,150,874 57,077,143
Expanded withholding taxes 102,742,079 9,375,107

P1,288,116,358 £89,391,301

Tax Assessment
The Bank has no ongoing tax assessment as of December 31, 2024.



SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. Tel: (632) 88910307
6760 Ayala Avenue Fax: (632) 8819 0872
o 1226 Makati City sgv.ph
Building a better Philippines

working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Savings Bank

PSBank Center

777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio Street
Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Philippine Savings Bank (the Bank) as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated February 20, 2025. Our
audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the
Bank’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Revised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial information required to be set forth
therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

T AR ad 4 =

Veronica Mae A. Arce

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0117208

Tax Identification No. 234-282-413

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-153-2024, October 2, 2024, valid until October 1, 2027
PTR No. 10465265, January 2, 2025, Makati City

February 20, 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK
INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

I.  Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration (Annex 68-D)

II. Map of the Relationships of the Companies within the Group

II. Supplementary Schedules Required by Annex 68-J

A.

B.

O

Q@mmo

Financial Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated During

the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Long-term Debt

Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)
Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Capital Stock



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

DECLARATION (ANNEX 68-D)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning, 12/31/2023
Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to
Unappropriated Retained Earnings

Dividend declaration during the reporting period

Retained Earnings appropriated during the reporting period

£21,729,241,448

(P1,280,578,248)

(2,765,382) (1,283,343,630)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted
Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year

Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit
or loss during the reporting period (net of tax)
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of

dividends declared

Unrealized foreign exchange gains, except those attributable to

cash and cash equivalents

Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL)

Unrealized fair value gain of Investment Property

20,445,897,818
5,208,442,415

35,322,786

3,711,703

1,195,470,712

Sub-total

1,234,505,201

Add: Category C.3: Unrealized income recognized in profit or
loss in prior periods but reversed in the current reporting

period (net of tax)

Reversal of previously recorded foreign exchange gain, except
those attributable to cash and cash equivalents

Reversal of previously recorded fair value adjustment (mark-to-
market gains) of financial instruments at fair value through

profit or loss (FVTPL)

Reversal of previously recorded fair value gain of Investment

Property

(1,003,240)

1,322,352

1,193,116,225

Sub-total

1,193,435,337

Adjusted Net Income/Loss

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded
from the determination of the amount of available for dividends

distribution

Net movement of deferred tax asset not considered in the
reconciling items under the previous categories

5,167,372,551

(88,764,262)

Total Retained Earnings, end of the reporting period available

for dividend

£25,524,506,107




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMPANIES WITHIN THE GROUP

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
(Metrobank)

SUBSIDIARIES

First Metro Investment
Corporation (FMIC)

ASSOCIATES

and subsidiaries and
associates

(Refer to
separate
sheet for
FMIC's
organizational
structure)

Metro Remittance (Hong

SMBC Metro
Investment
Corporation **

Northpine Land,

Kong) Limited

Metro Remittance
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Philippine Savings Bank

First Metro Holdings USA,
Inc. (formerlyMR USA)

(PSBank)
and a joint venture

(Refer to
separate sheet
forPSBank's
organizational
structure)

ORIX Metro Leasing and
Finance Corporation

MB Remittance
Center (Hawaii), Ltd.

Metro Remittance
(Canada), Inc.

Metro Remittance (UK)
Limited

(ORIX Metro)
and subsidiaries

(Refer to
separate sheet
for ORIX

TRO's
organizational
structure)

Metropolitan Bank

Inc. **

Taal Land, Inc.

Metro Remittance (Japan)

Philippine Savings Bank
(PSBank)

Co. Ltd.

First Metro Insurance and
Reinsurance Brokers, Inc.

JOINTVENTURE

(FMIRBI)

(China)Ltd.

Metropolitan Bank

Sumisho Motor Finance
Corporation

Circa2000 Homes, Inc. *

(Bahamas) Limited**

First Metro International
InvestmentCompany

Philbancor Venture Capital
Corporation*

Limited (FMIIC), and a
subsidiary

Golly Investment
imite

*In process of dissolution
**In process of liquidation



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J

SCHEDULE A - FINANCIAL ASSETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of Valued based on Interest Income
Name of Issuing Entity Shares or Amount shown in .
and Association of Principal the Statement of Market Quotatu.)n at|  Accrued asat
Each Issue Amount of Condition End of R'eportlng End qf
. o Period Reporting
@) Bonds and (ii) (i) Period
Notes
Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) Investments
Government Bonds £300,046,521 £300,599,156 £300,599,156 £4,038,864
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Debt Securities
Government Bonds
Peso-denominated £8,500,000,000 £8,469,115,684 £8,469,115,684 P
Dollar-denominated 867,675,000 825,315,107 825,315,107 13,280,248
Treasury Notes
Peso-denominated 16,070,706,467 16,224,473,169 16,224,473,169 272,532,054
Private Corporation
Peso-denominated 350,000,000 338,922,873 338,922,873 2,713,846
25,788,381,467 25,857,826,833 25,857,826,833 283,526,148
Equity Securities 6,594,720 34,364,018 34,364,018 -
$£25,794,976,187 £25,892,190,851 $£25,892,190,851 P288,526,148
Investment Securities at Amortized Cost
Government Bonds
Dollar-denominated £9,285,973,540 P11,312,662,333 £10,229,589,694 £286,878,910
Treasury Notes
Peso-denominated 17,741,057,000 17,708,223,005 17,530,721,747 191,024,648
Private Corporation
Peso-denominated 552,050,000 551,317,774 544,842,582 3,594,311
Dollar-denominated 520,605,000 524,118,100 524,158,129 8,835,823
£28,099,685,540 £30,096,321,212 £28,829,312,152 $£490,333,692
£54,194,708,248 £56,289,111,219 £55,022,102,159 £782,898,704

(i)  Each issue shall be stated separately, except that reasonable grouping, without enumeration may be made of
(a) securities issued or guaranteed by the Philippine Government or its agencies and (b) securities issued by
others for which the amounts in the aggregate are not more than two per cent of total assets.

(ii)  State the basis of determining the amounts shown in the column. This column shall be totaled to correspond
to the respective Statements of Condition caption or captions.

(iii)

column.

This column may be omitted if all amounts that would be shown are the same as in the immediate preceding




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J

SCHEDULE B - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES,

RELATED PARTIES, AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN RELATED

PARTIES)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Name and Balance at
Designation Beginnin Amounts Amounts Not Balance at
g 8 g Additions Collected Written-off Current End of
of Debtor of the (i) (i) Current Period
@) Period
NONE TO REPORT

Note: Transactions to these parties are made in the ordinary course of business.

(i)  Show separately accounts receivables and note receivable. In case of notes receivable, indicate pertinent

information such as the due date, interest rate, terms or repayment and collateral, if any.
(ii)  If collection was other than in cash, explain.
(iii)  Give reasons for write-off.




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J
SCHEDULE C - AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE

ELIMINATED DURING THE CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Name and Balance at Amounts Amounts Not Balance at
Designation Beginning Additions Collected Written Off Current Current End of
of debtors of Period 1Y) (ii) Period
NOT APPLICABLE

(i)  If collection was other than in cash, explain.
(ii))  Give reasons for write off.




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J
SCHEDULE D — LONG-TERM DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amount shown
under Caption
“Current Portion
of Long-Term
Debt” in related

Amount shown
under Caption
“Long-Term
Debt” in related

Title of Issue and Amount Statement of Statement of
Type of Obligation Authorized by Condition Condition Interest
(i) Indenture (ii) (iii) Rate Maturity Date
NOT APPLICABLE

(1)  Include in this column each type of obligation authorized.

(ii))  This column is to be totaled to correspond to the related Statements of Condition caption.
(iii)  Include in this column details as to interest rates, amounts or number of periodic installments, and maturity

dates.




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J

SCHEDULE E - INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG-TERM LOANS FROM
RELATED COMPANIES)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Name of Related Party Balance at Beginning Balance at the End of Period
@) of Period (ii)
NONE TO REPORT

(i)  The related parties named shall be grouped as in Schedule C. The information called for shall be stated
separately for any persons whose investments were shown separately in such related schedule.

(ii))  For each affiliate named in the first column, explain in a note hereto the nature and purpose of any material
increase during the period that is in excess of ten per cent (10%) of the related balance at either the beginning
or end of the period.




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J
SCHEDULE F — GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Name of Issuing Entity of Title of Issue of Total Amount
Securities Guaranteed by each Class of Guaranteed and Amount Owned by Nature of
the Company for which this Securities Outstanding Person for which Guarantee
Statement is filed Guaranteed () Statement is Filed (ii)
NONE TO REPORT

(i)  Indicate in a note any significant changes since the date of the last Statements of Condition filed. If this
schedule is filed in support of Consolidated Financial Statements, there shall be set forth guarantees by any
person included in the consolidation except such guarantees of securities which are included in the
Consolidated Statements of Condition.

(ii))  There must be a brief statement of the nature of the guarantee, such as “Guarantee of principal and interest”,
“Guarantee of interest”, or “Guarantee of dividends”. If the guarantee is of interest, dividends, or both, state
the annual aggregate amount of interest or dividends so guaranteed.




PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J
SCHEDULE G - CAPITAL STOCK

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of
Shares Number of
Issued and Shares
Outstanding | Reserved for
as shown Options, Number of
under related Warrants, Shares Held
Number of Statement of | Conversion by Related Directors,
Title of Issue Shares Condition and Other Parties Officers, and Others
(i) Authorized Caption Rights (ii) Employees (iii)
Common Stock -
P10 par value 600,000,000 426,859,416 — 377,279,068 862 49,579,486

(1)  Include in this column each type of issue authorized.

(ii))  Related Parties referred to include persons for which separate financial statements are filed and those

included in consolidated financial statements, other than the issuer of the particular security.

(iii)  Indicate in a note any significant changes since the date of the last Statements of Condition filed.




SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. Tel: (632) 88910307
6760 Ayala Avenue Fax: (632) 8819 0872
e 1226 Makati City sgv.ph
Building a better Philippines

working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Savings Bank

PSBank Center

777 Paseo de Roxas corner Sedefio Street
Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Philippine Savings Bank (the Bank) as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated February 20, 2025. Our
audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions,
formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility
of the Bank’s management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating
performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards and may
not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented
for the purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared
in accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards. The components of these financial soundness indicators
have been traced to the Bank’s financial statements as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2024 and no material exceptions were noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ve'rgr{ica Mae A. Arce

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0117208

Tax Identification No. 234-282-413

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-153-2024, October 2, 2024, valid until October 1, 2027
PTR No. 10465265, January 2, 2025, Makati City

February 20, 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE ON FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATOR

(ANNEX 68-E)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Return on Assets
Net Income
Average Total Resources

Return on Equity
Net Income
Average Stockholders' Equity

Net Interest Margin
Net Interest Income
Average Earning Assets

Cost to Income Ratio
Operating Expenses Excluding Provision
for Impairment and Credit Losses and Income Taxes

Net Interest Income + Operating Income

SOLVENCY RATIOS
Debt to Equity Ratio
Total Liabilities
Total Stockholders' Equity

Asset-to-Equity Ratio
Total Assets
Total Stockholders' Equity

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
Interest Expense

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
Liquidity/Current Ratio
Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Loans to Deposit Ratio
Gross Loans*
Total Deposits

Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Qualifying Capital
Total Risk-Weighted Assets

2.29%

12.36%

6.00%

60.51%

3.91:1

4.91:1

2.30:1

20.09%

87.45%

23.56%

1.80%

11.72%

5.18%

58.89%

4.94:1

5.94:1

1.84:1

48.89%

65.97%

24.46%

*Loans and receivables, net of unearned discounts and capitalized interest (before allowance for credit losses)



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK

ANNEX B

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
FEE-RELATED INFORMATION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Total Audit Fees' (including Trust and Retirement Fund) £3,004,365 P2,861,300
Non-audit services fee:

Other assurance services — -

Tax services - -

All other services 44,000 44,000

Total Non-audit Fees’ 44,000 44,000

Total Audit and Non-audit Fees P3,048,365 £2,905,300

Notes:
1.

Disclose agreed fees (excluding out of pocket expenses and VAT) with the external auditor/audit firm and its

network firms (as applicable) for the audit of the covered company's stand- alone financial statements on
which the external auditor/audit firm expresses an opinion. These do not include fees for special purpose audit

or review of financial statements.

» Section 2.1 b: Disclose charged or billed fees {excluding out of pocket expenses and VAT) by the external
auditor/audit firm or a network firm {as applicable) for non-audit services to the covered company on which
the external auditor/audit firm expresses an opinion. These include other assurance services such as special

purpose audit or review of financial statements.



PHILIPPINE SAVINGS BANK
EVENTS REPORTED UNDER FORM 17-C
(Reportsfiled during the year 2024)

ANNEX C

Particulars

Date Reported

PSBank reported the following information as of December 313:20
. Top 20 Stockholders
. Top 100 Stockholders
. Statement of Beneficial Ownership
. Summary Report on Distribution of Stockholdings by Nationality
. List of Major PSBank Stockholders Owning 5% or more
. List of Stockholders and their Stockholdings
Changes in Stockholdings of Stockholders

~NOoO O~ WNPE

January 17, 2024

PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held ararigary 2024
passed a resolution declaring a 7.5% Regular Cash Dividend for the fuantter of
2023 amounting to Php 320.14 million equivalent to Php @é&t5share. This will be
payable to all common stockholders as of the Record Date of 02aFel2@24 and will
be paid no later than the Payment Date of 19 February 2024.

January 19, 2024

PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held afard@ary 2024

passed a resolution on the following:

1) Scheduling of the Annual Stockholders Meeting on April 25, 2024 at Three o’clock
in the afternoon (3:00 PM). Final mode of conduct of the megeshall be
determined at a later date and shall be pursuant to all applicable SEioegu

2) Setting March 1, 2024 as the Record Date for determining stockhedétled to
notice and to vote in the Meeting; and

3) Grant of authority to Mr. Jose Vicente L. Alde, PSBank Presidenhange the date,
time, place and/or mode of conduct of the Meeting as welleagettord date and to
decide on such other related matters as may be required by the reqaidtather
exigencies; and to sign, execute and deliver any and all éatamand to do and
perform any and all acts as may be necessary to carry fiietd ¢he intents and
purposes of the foregoing.

January 19, 2024

PSBank reported the attendance of the Board of Directors with asponding
certification issued by our Corporate Secretary, Ms. Leah M. Zamoraalaondthe
attendance of the Principal / Key Officers of Philippine SaviBgnk in the Corporat
Governance Seminars / Webinars in 2023.

January 31, 2024

PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its special meeting heldnuary 31
2024, accepted the resignation of Director Ma. Soledad D.S. Dedsamember of th
Board of Directors and as a member of the Trust Committee and the REkmatigd
Transactions Committee. The said resignation is due to personal reasbeffextive
immediately.

January 31, 2024

PSBank reported the SEC Form 18-A (Report by Stockholder with Mben 5%
Ownership) for Director Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon in compliance S8R regulation
and in relation to PSBank.

February 8, 2024

PSBank reported its financial results for year-end 2023.

February 26, 2024

In compliance with the SEC Notice (Feb-2024) on the alternativde for distributing
and providing copies of the Notice of Meeting, Information Stategmand othe
documents in connection with the holding of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (“ASM”) for
2024, PSBank informed the Commission that the Philippine Savings Bank’s 2024 Notice
of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting was published in two (2) newspapers of general
circulation (print and online) on March 26 and 27, 2024. Accoldirige same had bee
disclosed to the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) pursuant lioaipe PSE regulations.

April 1, 2024

10

PSBank reported the retirement of Senior Vice President and Inditest&@annel Grouy
(ISCG) Head Jose Jesus B. Custodio effective April 1, 2024.

April 1, 2024

11

PSBank reported the following information as of March 31, 2024

. Top 20 Stockholders

. Top 100 Stockholders

. Statement of Beneficial Ownership

. Summary Report on Distribution of Stockholdings by Nationality
. List of Major PSBank Stockholders Owning 5% or more

. List of Stockholders and their Stockholdings

NOoO O~ WNPE

. Changes in Stockholdings of Stockholders

April 18, 2024




9 PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on rA528p4, passeq April 29, 2024
a resolution declaring a 7.5% Regular Cash Dividend for the first quarte02sf
amounting to Php 320.14 million equivalent to Php 0.75 paeshis will be payable tq
all common stockholders as of the Record Date of 13 May 2024vidintte paid no later
than the Payment Date of 27 May 2024.
12 | PSBank reported the results of its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on 25 April 2024. April 29, 2024
13 | PSBank reported the results of its Organizational Meeting held apr2532024. April 29, 2024
14 | PSBank reported the SEC Form 23-A of the newly-elected Directors,Féttou |. April 29, 2024
Evangelista and Ms. France Gail E. Male, who are covered by the Bank’s policy on Insider
Trading.
15 | PSBank reported its financial results for first quarter of 2024. May 6, 2024
16 | PSBank reported the SEC Form 18-A (Report by Stockholder with Mbes 5% June 10, 2024
Ownership) for Director Ma. Soledad D.S. De Leon in compliance 88 regulation
and in relation to PSBank. This is in relation to the transfer of réngasares.
17 | PSBank reported the following information as of June 30, 2024: July 16, 2024
1. Top 20 Stockholders
2. Top 100 Stockholders
3. Statement of Beneficial Ownership
4. Summary Report on Distribution of Stockholdings by Nationality
5. List of Major PSBank Stockholders Owning 5% or more
6. List of Stockholders and their Stockholdings
7. Changes in Stockholdings of Stockholders
18 | PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held dnl22024, passed July 26, 2024
resolution declaring a 7.5% Regular Cash Dividend for the second qu&rg24
amounting to Php 320.14 million equivalent to Php 0.75 peesfiais will be payable tq
all common stockholders as of the Record Date of 09 August &0@4will be paid ng
later than the Payment Date of 27 August 2024.
19 | PSBank reported its financial results for first half of 2024. August 5, 2024
20 | PSBank reported the passing of Independent Director FranciscagsaM, Jr. and th{  September 18, 2024
request for a reasonable extension within which to fill up the vacant Beat vis-a-vig
the 45-dayrule per Section 28 of the Revised Corporation Codeelsfoh period expires
21 | PSBank reported the following information as of September 3%:20 October 16, 2024
1. Top 20 Stockholders
2. Top 100 Stockholders
3. Statement of Beneficial Owneiigh
4. Summary Report on Distribution of Stockholdings by Nationality
5. List of Major PSBank Stockholders Owning 5% or more
6. List of Stockholders and their Stockholdings
7. Changes in Stockholdings of Stockholders
22 | PSBank reported that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on tbbe&d2024, October 21, 2024
passed a resolution declaring a 7.5% Regular Cash Dividend for the uhitérqpf 2024
amounting to Php 320.14 million equivalent to Php 0.75 peaeshis will be payable ta
all common stockholders as of the Record Date of 04 Novemi2dr &t will be paid ng
later than the Payment Date of 18 November 2024.
23 | PSBank reported its financial results for third quarter of 2024. November 5, 2024
24 | PSBank reported the resignation of Mr. Noli S. Gomez, Executive Rresident, Head g December 2, 2024

Operations, effective December 31, 2024.




This document was downloaded from www.psbank.com.ph.
Duplication or reproduction is allowed.
Please do not modify its content.
Document Classification: PUBLIC

ANNEX D

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )S.S

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, EDUARDO A SAHAGUN Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
N - after having been duly sworn to in
accordance w1th law do hereby declare that:

1. Iam a nominee for independent director of Philippine Savings Bank and have
been its independent director since April 2017.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government — Owned and Controlled Corporations) :

POSITION/ PERIOD OF

COMPANY/ ORGANIZATION RELATIONSHIP SERVICE

MEMBER, BOARD OF
UNION GALVASTEEL CORPORATION DIRECTORS 2010 to present
UNION GALVASTEEL CORPORATION PRESIDENT & CEO | 2017 to present
PHINMA PROPERTY HOLDINGS MEMBER, BOARD OF | .
CORPORATION DIRECTORS 0 presen
EDCOMMERCE CORPORATION CHAIRMAN 2017 to present
PHINMA SOLAR ENERGY ' :

CORPORATION PRESIDENT & CEO 2017 to present
PHILCEMENT CORPORATION PRESIDENT & CEO | 2017 to present

PHINMA FOUNDATION INC.

TRUSTEES

MEMBER, BOARD OF

2019 to present

T-O INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.

DIRECTORS

MEMBER, BOARD OF

2019 to present

PHINMA CORPORATION

DIRECTORS

MEMBER, BOARD OF

2021 to present

SONG LAM CEMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY

DIRECTORS

MEMBER, BOARD OF

2021 to present

CAGAYAN DE ORO COLLEGE, INC.

DIRECTORS

MEMBER, BOARD OF

2021 to present

FIRST BATANGAS HOTEL MEMBER, BOARD OF 2021 ¢ .
CORPORATION DIRECTORS 0 presen
UNION INSULATED PANEL
CORPORATION PRESIDENT & CEO 2022 to present
s DANAD PRESIDENT & CEO 2024 to present

CORPORATION
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3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Philippine Savings Bank, as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. T am related to the following director/ officer/ substantial shareholder of (covered
company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule
38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable):

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ COMPANY NATURE OF

OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL _ RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER . '
N/A N/A N/A

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/ administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR STATUS
INVESTIGATED AGENCY INVOLVED
N/A N/A , N/A

6. (For those in government service/ affiliated with a government agency or GOCC)
I have the required written permission or consent from the _ N/A  to be an independent
director in _N/A . pursuant to the Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances. '

8. Ishall inform the Corporate Secretary of Philippine Savings Bank of any changes
in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

FEB 2 4 2028

Done, this “day of. s atm
“duardo A. Sahagun
FEB 24 2005
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of , , at
WMEY , affiant exhibiting to me his Passport No. -~ issued on
Y R
Doc. No. 4o Rl L
Page NO' éq L= Ro'l“'No’. 451;5;' [ WA
Book No. 6L gy STACY PUBLICFOR AT 25
Series of 2025, 7 “CINTMENT NO. M-011 UNTIL DECEMBER 21, 2~

MCLE COMPLIANGE NO. VIIl0012723 APRIL. 14, 267
18P LIFETIME MO, 018063, 01/03/2018 MAKATI CITY
. PTRNO. 10485509 , 01/02/200% MAKATI CITY
VIZANINE FLR, PEBANK CENTER NO, 777 PASEO DE RONAS
CUR. SEDENO ST, MAKAT! OITY .
TELNO. (62)3591.8042
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, RUFINO LUIS T. MANOTOK, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of - =~
. _, after having been duly sworn to in accordance

with law do hereby declare that:

1. I am a nominee for independent director of Philippine Savings Bank and have been

its independent director since April 2023.

2. Tam affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government —

Owned and Controlled Corporations) :

POSITION/ PERIOD OF

COMPANY/ ORGANIZATION RELATIONSHIP SERVICE
MANOTOK BROS., INC. DIRECTOR 1997 to present
MANARSA HOLDINGS CHAIRMAN OF THE 016 1o .

CORPORATION BOARD prese

| INDEPENDENT |

CEBU LANDMASTERS, INC. DIRECTOR 2017 to present
MANILA MEDICAL SERVICES, INDEPENDENT 2019 ¢ .
INC. DIRECTOR O presen

1. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of the Philippine Savings Bank. as provided for in Section 38 of the

Securities Regulation Code, its implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

2. I am related to the following director/ officer/ substantial shareholder of
(covered company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under

Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable):

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ COMPANY NATURE OF
OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER
N/A N/A N/A
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3. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/ administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR STATUS
INVESTIGATED AGENCY INVOLVED
N/A N/A ' N/A

4. (For those in government service/ affiliated with a government agency or GOCC)
I have the required written permission or consent from the _ N/A  to be an independent
director in _N/A , pursuant to the Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

5. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

6. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of the Philippine Savings Bank of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

FEB 2 4 2005
day of

Done, this , at MAXATI CITY

Rufino Luis T. Manotok
~ Affiant

FEB 24 2005

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of , at
| ?W%W - , affiant e>f-}}1b1t1ng to me his Passport No. issued on
Doc. No. 319 AVIY. ROWEQ SEHRBANG YA, Ui,
Page No. 9 : LLNO, 45164 :
. NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKAT| CI7
Book No. . Q¢ APPOINTMENT NO. M-011 UNTIL Dgéé'MCer; 23
Series of 2025. - MCLE COMPLIANCE NO. VIIl0012723 APRIL 14, 267 1

1BP LIFETIME NO, 018663, 01/03/2018 MAKATI CITY
— PTR NO. 10465508 . 01/02/2025 MAKATI CITY
MEZZANINE FLR. PSBANK CENTER NO, 777 PAGEO DE Ry~
COR. SEDENO $T. MAKATI CITY '
TECNO. (02)8511-2042
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )S.S

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, RONALD LUIS S GOSECO Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
. after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1. T am a nominee for independent director of Philippine Savings Bank and have been
its independent director since September 2023.

2. T am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government —
Owned and Controlled Corporations) :

: POSITION/ PERIOD OF
COMEANTTOREANIZATION RELATIONSHIP SERVICE
FINEX ACADEMY TREASURER 2018 to present
GUAGUA NATIONAL -
COLLEGES CHAIRMAN 2019 to present
AUTOMATEDHEéRE PAYMENT DIRECTOR 2022 to present
SOUTH LUZON THERMAL A
ENERGY. INC. PRESIDENT ' 2022 to present
ETM PHILIPPé\IN (I;: S HOLDINGS PRESIDENT 2022 to present
FINEX RESEARCH AND »
DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION, TRUSTEE 2023 to present
INC.

1. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Philippine Savings Bank. as provided for in Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code, its implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

2. lam related to the following director/ officer/ substantial shareholder of (covered
company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule
38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable):

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ COMPANY NATURE OF
OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER '

N/A | N/A ' N/A
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3. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the following
criminal/ administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR STATUS
INVESTIGATED AGENCY INVOLVED
N/A N/A N/A

4. (For those in government service/ affiliated with a government agency or GOCC)
I have the required written permission or consent from the _ N/A  to be an independent
director in _N/A . pursuant to the Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

5. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

6. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of __ Philippine Savings Bank  of any

changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

FEB 5
Done, this i dgy f)f Zmb , atmn ClTY

Ronald Luis 8. Goseco
Affiant

1 24

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this

2

T .;mm W7 , affiant exhibiting to me his Unified Multi Purpose ID with CRN
Doc. No. AITY. ROM ASANGYA, Jx.
Paoe N T v LNO. 45164
age No. g0 NOTARK PUBLIC FOR MAKATI CITY
Book No. APPOINTMENT NO. M011 UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2026
: L L MCLE COMPLIANCE NO. VIII-0012723 APRIL 14, 2023
Series of 2025. BP LIFETIME NO, 018663, 01/03/2018 MAKATI CITY

~ PTRNO. 10465509 . 01/02/2025 MAXAT) CITY
MEZZANINE FLR. PSBANK CENTER NO. 777 PASEOQ DE 10+~
COR. SEDENO ST, MAKATI CITY -
TEL NO. (02)3511-8042
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATI CITY )S.S

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I CECILIA C. BORROMEO F111p1n0 of legal age and a resident of

, after having been duly sworn to
in accordance with law do hereby dcclare that.

1. I am a nominee for independent director of Philippine Savings Bank and have been
its independent director since January 2025.

2. Tam afﬁliatcd'wi,th the following companies or organizations (including Government —
Owned and Controlled Corporations) :

POSITION/ PERIOD OF

COMPANY/ ORGANIZATION RELATIONSHIP SERVICE
_ INDEPENDENT
COSCO CAPITAL, INC. (COSCO) DIRECTOR 2023 to present

ATLANTIC GULF & PACIFIC COMPANY INDEPENDENT 2004 to present
OF MANILA, INC. (AG&P PHILIPPINES) DIRECTOR p

PHILIPPINE LIFE FINANCIAL

ASSURANCE CORPORATION INB%&%TT 2024 to present

(PHILLIFE)

DIRECTOR AND February 5, 2025

UPGRADE ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC. CHAIRPERSON to present

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of the Philippine Savings Bank, as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its implementing Rules and Regulations and other
SEC issuances. |

4. T am related to the following director/ officer/ substantial shareholder of (covered
company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under
Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable):

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ COMPANY NATURE OF
OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP
SHAREHOLDER

N/A | N/A N/A




This document was downloaded from www.psbank.com.ph.
Duplication or reproduction is allowed.

Please do not modify its content.

Document Classification: PUBLIC

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the
following criminal/ administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR STATUS
INVESTIGATED AGENCY INVOLVED
N/A N/A _ N/A

6. (For those in government service/ affiliated with a government agency or GOCC)
I have the required written permission or consent from the _ N/A . to be an
independent director in _ N/A . pursuant to the Office of the President Memorandum
Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7. 1 shall faithfully and . diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of the Philippine Savings Bank of any changes
in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence.

- FEB 2 4 2005

Done, this day of , at MAKATI CWY
Cecilia C.rliorr(')inieo
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this ___ day of , at
ﬁﬁ@?‘?ﬁ;@} Ty , affiant exhibiting to me her Passport No. = . =~ - issued on
Doc. No. 242 AITY. ROMT:6 S. MASANGYA:JR.

. AS . NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKATI CITY

Book No. Q7 - : APPOINTMENT NO, M-011 UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2026

; MCLE COMPLIANGE NO, VIIG012723 APRIL 14, 2024
Series of 2025. 1BP LIFETIME NO. 018662, 011032018 MAKATICITY
PTRNO, 10485509, 011022028 MAKATICITY
VEZZANINE FLR. PSBANK CENTER NO, 777 PASEO DE R0
COR. SEDENO ST, MAKATI CITY
TEL NO. (02)8511:9042
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